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Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer 4 Accelerated Filer O
Non-Accelerated Filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) mefier Reporting Company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxge Act). YESD NOM
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$113,760,527,188 , based upon the closing price@asted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

The number of shares outstanding of the regissaainmon stock was 1,689,435,673 at November 4 201
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TRADEMARKS

Qualcomm, QChat, Brew, Snapdragon, MSM, Plaza amdl®gs Reach are trademarks of Qualcomm Incorpadyaégistered in the United
States and other countries. Omnitracs is a tradenfadmnitracs, Inc., registered in the United &etnd other countries.

Other products and brand names may be trademarkgistered trademarks of their respective owners.




In this document, the words “Qualcomm,” “we,” “dufours” and “us”refer only to QUALCOMM Incorporated and its subsidés and nc
any other person or entity. This Annual Reportl(iding, but not limited to, the section regardingddgement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations) ao# forward-looking statements regarding our bessnfinancial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Words such as “expéatstitipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “skg,” “estimates” and similar expressions or
variations of such words are intended to identifyMard-looking statements, but are not the excluaieans of identifying forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report. Additionally tetaents concerning future matters such as the algwent of new products, enhancements c

technologies, sales levels, expense levels and stétements regarding matters that are not histioare forward-looking statements.

” o

Although forward-looking statements in this Ann&aport reflect our good faith judgment, such statets can only be based on facts and
factors currently known by us. Consequently, fodvimoking statements are inherently subject tosrisid uncertainties and actual results anc
outcomes may differ materially from the results antcomes discussed in or anticipated by the fati@oking statements. Factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences in resuwitsoutcomes include without limitation those d&ssd under the heading “Risk Factors”
below, as well as those discussed elsewhere itinsial Report. Readers are urged not to placeaingliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date ofthisual Report. We undertake no obligation to rewis update any forward-looking
statements in order to reflect any event or cirdanse that may arise after the date of this AnRegdort. Readers are urged to carefully re\
and consider the various disclosures made in thisual Report, which attempt to advise interestatigsaof the risks and factors that may
affect our business, financial condition, resuftserations and prospects.

PART |
Iltem 1. Business

We incorporated in 1985 under the laws of the si&tealifornia. In 1991, we reincorporated in thats of Delaware. We operate and repor
using a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the lasd8y in September. Our %2ek fiscal years consist of four equal quartersiveeks eac
and our 53-week fiscal years consist of three 18lwfiscal quarters and one 14-week fiscal quaittee. financial results for our 53-week fiscal
years and our -week fiscal quarters will not be exactly compaestiol our 52-week fiscal years and our 13-week figoarters. Both of the
fiscal years ended September 29, 2013 and Septeétb2011 included 52 weeks. The fiscal year erf@utember 30, 2012 included
53 weeks.

Overview

We continue to lead the development and commezaiadin of a digital communication technology call@@MA (Code Division Multiple
Access), and we own significant intellectual prapepplicable to products that implement any versibCDMA including patents, patent
applications and trade secrets. The mobile comnatinits industry generally recognizes that a compa@aking to develop, manufacture an
sell products that use CDMA technology will requireatent license from us. CDMA is one of the miaghnologies currently used in digital
wireless communications networks (also known agless networks). CDMA and TDMA (Time Division Mydte Access), of which GSM
(Global System for Mobile Communications) is thar@ry commercial form, are the primary digital taologies currently used to transmit a
wireless device user’s voice or data over radioasawsing a public cellular wireless network.

We also continue our leading role in the developnaed commercialization of OFDMA (Orthogonal Fregag Division Multiple Access) -
based technologies for which we own substantiallexttual property. Sales of multimode CDMA and L T#hich stands for “Long Term
Evolution” and is an OFDMAsased standard for cellular wireless communicadjgplications, wireless devices have grown signifityaduring
the past several years.

In addition to licensing portions of our intelleatyroperty portfolio, which includes certain pateghts essential to and/or useful in the
manufacture and sale of certain wireless produwatsjesign, manufacture, have manufactured on dalband market products and services
based on CDMA, OFDMA and other digital communicatidechnologies. Our products principally consishtegrated circuits (also known
chips or chipsets) and system software used inlmdbvices and in wireless networks. We also shkmoproducts and services, which include
integrated circuits for use in wired devices, mattrly broadband gateway equipment, desktop coenputelevisions, set-top boxes and Blu-
ray players; content enablement services to wisedgerators; development, other services and celaireless communications products used
by the United States government; location awareardscommerce services; and software and hardvessdapment services.
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The Mobile Communications Industry

Mobile technology has seen significant growth addpion since the first mobile phone call took pléw 1973. The International
Telecommunication Union (ITU) estimated that 90%haf world’s population lived in areas served bybiteonetwork coverage as of 2010. As
of September 30, 2013, there were approximatelypiliBn cellular connections worldwide, comprisetlapproximately 3.2 billion unique
individual cellular account holders, also knowrsabscribers (GSMA Intelligence estimates as of Mdser 4, 2013). Information regarding
wireless technologies used by the mobile industyrovided in the section entitled Wireless Techgis in this Annual Report.

Key trends shaping the evolution and growth ofrttedile industry include the expanding role of melak the leading computing platform
and the shift from primarily voice-centric featyreones to data-centric smartphones; the evolufie@chnologies aimed at accommodating the
increase of data usage; the use of wireless teabiesl for machine-to-machine (M2M) applicationsy éime advent of new mobile devices,
applications and services that provide new useeméapces.

Mobile Computing.Due to the processing power and “always on” conviégtavailable in advanced mobile devices, consisage opting
to use their smartphones and tablets to perforks faeviously reserved for their personal computush as email, welbrowsing, gaming an
social networking. That preference is reflecteddtes trends. More than twice as many smartphargetahlets were shipped globally in 2012
as compared to personal computers (Gartner and $&@tember 2013). Additionally, in 2012, semicoridutdustry revenues for mobile
phones surpassed those for personal computensefdirst time (Gartner, April 2013).

While some feature phones support Internet corvigctind other basic computing functions, the malildustry is seeing a shift to
smartphones. Global smartphone shipments reachedxamately 700 million units in 2012, representmgear-over-year increase of
approximately 44%, and smartphone shipments afegteal to reach approximately 1.8 billion in 20G&(tner, September 2013). Growth is
expected to be particularly strong in emergingoegj with a projected compound annual growth ragrartphone shipments of
approximately 30% between 2012 and 2017 (GartrepteBnber 2013). For many people, particularly ireegimg regions where income levels
may make purchasing a personal computer out ohrehe smartphone or tablet may be the first arig device that will be used to access the
Internet and perform other computing functions.

As smartphone and tablet shipments achieve inecrgasiale, the chipsets powering these devicesem@nting an increasingly important
differentiator to industry participants. To compeféectively, suppliers are seeking to strike aahak between performance, form factor (size
and design) and battery life of devices. To achibes, there is a trend toward chipsets that istisgmany of the essential components of the
mobile device into a unified and optimized systemaschip (SOC), which includes a modem, a centratgssor (CPU), a graphics processing
unit (GPU), multimedia support and other componéms work together.

Meeting the Needs for Increased Daféhe large-scale adoption of smartphones and otireracted devices is creating a significant
increase in demand for data services. To meetlthizand, mobile operators are deploying 3G/4G (ténmeration/fourth generation) networks
and investing in a variety of strategies to incesth® capacity and performance of their networks.

The total number of 3G and multimode 3G/4G conwoastiworldwide reached approximately 2.3 billioro&dSeptember 30, 2013,
accounting for only approximately 34% of total oédr connections (GSMA Intelligence estimates aN@fember 4, 2013). Looking ahead,
approximately 4.5 billion 3G and multimode 3G/4Gnections are projected by 2017 (GSMA Intelligeasgmates as of November 4, 2013).
Globally, during the third calendar quarter of 2048 average more than one million new 3G and moldie 3G/4G connections were being
added every day (GSMA Intelligence estimates ddasfember 4, 2013). In emerging regions, 3G andimolle 3G/4G cellular connections
account for more than three times the number efdfisroadband connections (GSMA Intelligence and 8YBlctober 2013).

Additional data demands are being placed on th&orks as mobile technology is incorporated into menmnected devices in a growing
number of sectors including the consumer electsyr@atomotive, health and life sciences and @iisectors. We refer to this as the “Internet
of Everything.”

To meet the increased demand for data, which vez tefas “the 1000x data challenge,” network opesadre expected to deploy a variety
of strategies (in addition to deploying 3G/4G tedlogies) aimed at increasing the performance apdaty of their networks. One key stratt
is network densification, such as complementingtaxg cellular networks by deploying smaller sizesyer-power cellular base stations,
commonly referred to as small cells.

Another key focus is on more efficient use of speut Some relief from network congestion causethieydemand for data is expected to
come from the proliferation of peer-to-peer comneations in which devices communicate directly vather devices without having to access
the cellular network. Additional efficiencies argpected to come from the continuing evolution of8G and WiFi technologies and the use
broadcast capabilities made possible by LTE brogtdeghnology.




New User CapabilitiesThere is a growing emphasis on finding ways to giehe ability to efficiently access, sense anotics digital
content and services. The evolution of mobile teébgy is expected to augment our senses, in effeetting what we refer to as the “digital
6th sense.” The industry is working on a varietyrohts toward this vision by investing in incredsmmputing capabilities, enhanced
connectivity and new ways for users to interachwéichnology. Among the areas of focus are pe@ety-connectivity technologies,
augmented reality and context awareness.

Wireless Technologies

The growth in the use of wireless devices worldwilech as smartphones and tablets, and demandtiosérvices and applications
requires continuous innovation to further improle tiser experience, enable new services and ircnedwork capacity, make use of different
frequency bands and enable dense network deplogniBmimeet these requirements, different wirelessnsunications technologies continue
to evolve. For over two decades, we have investédcantinue to invest heavily in research and dgyaknt of many of these cellular wireless
communication technologies, including CDMA and OFBMs a result, we have developed and acquired ¢antinue to develop and
acquire) significant related intellectual propefiis intellectual property has been incorporated the most widely accepted and deployed
wireless communications technology standards, antiave licensed it to wireless device and infrastme manufacturers (more than 250
licensees, including all leading manufacturers)siMif the cellular wireless technologies can beigedl into three categories.

TDMA-based. TDMA-based technologies are characterized by tegess method allowing several users to sharathe frequency
channel by dividing the signal into different tirslets. Most of these systems are classified ass2€oad generation) technology.

The main examples of TDMA-based technologies arM @&ployed worldwide), 1S-136 (deployed in the Ainas) and Personal Digital
Cellular (PDC) (deployed in Japan). Compared toetidier generations of analog technologies, tlésital communications technologies
provided for significantly enhanced efficiency witta fixed spectrum, resulting in increased voiapacity. These technologies also enable
enhanced services, such as SMS (short messageejdenting service, as well as low-speed datasesvGSM has evolved to support mobile
packet data transmission, such as GPRS (GeneriatRadio Service) and EDGE (Enhanced Data RatgSlibal Evolution).

According to GSMA Intelligence estimates as of Nober 4, 2013, there were approximately 4.4 billi@®M connections worldwide,
representing approximately 65% of total cellulanmections.

CDMA-based CDMA-based technologies are characterized by tmxiess method allowing several users to sharethe frequency and
time by allocating different orthogonal codes tdiidual users. Most of the CDMA-based technologiesclassified as 3G (third generation)
technology.

There are a number of variants of CDMA-based teldgies deployed around the world, in particular @@ne, Cdma2000, EV-DO
(Evolution Data Optimized), WCDMA (Wideband CDMA)@& TD-SCDMA (Time Division - Synchronous CDMA) (deged exclusively in
China). Similar to other digital communicationstrologies, CDMA-based technologies provided vastigroved capacity for voice and low-
rate data services as compared to analog techeslobie following are the CDMA-based technologies their standards revisions:

» CDMA2000 revisions A through

* 1xEV-DO revisions A through

»  WCDMA/HSPA releases 4 through
* TD-SCDMA releases 4 through

To date, these technologies have seen many resjsaond they continue to evolve, progressively affghigher capacity and data rates,
improved user experiences and new applicationssandces. As these technologies continue to evolew, features are being defined in their
relevant standardization bodies, the 3rd Gener&amtnership Project 2 (3GPP2) for CDMA2000 and\:BO and the 3rd Generation
Partnership Project (3GPP) for WCDMA and TD-SCDMA.

For simplicity, the releases of these technologresoften combined and given “marketing” or “trag@mes that also indicate their bene
One example is the 3GPP releases: Releases 5Stagdtfer are called “HSPA- High Speed Packet Actd@$e releases from 7 to 10 are
called HSPA+, indicating that they provide perfonoaimprovements over HSPA. We refer to releaseantilbeyond as HSPA+ Advanced,
again indicating improvements beyond the onesHiIg&RA+ offers.

The naming convention also applies to the releasEOMA2000, whose successive releases are groapedeferred to as CDMA2000
1X, 1x Advanced, as well as to 1xEV-DO, whose reésaare called as EV-DO Rev. A, Rev. B and DO Adeédn

CDMA technologies ushered in a significant increiasieroadband data services and continue to grpwdisa According to GSMA
Intelligence estimates as of November 4, 2013 gthere approximately 2.2 billion CDMA-based coniwtd
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worldwide. As of the fourth quarter of calendar 20the first phases of 1x Advanced and DO Advanasdyell as up to the eighth release of
HSPA+, were commercially launched.

OFDMA-based OFDMA-based technologies are characterized by #eziess method allowing several users to shargathe frequency
and time by allocating different subcarriers toividhial users. Most of the OFDMA-based technologies classified as 4G (fourth generation)
technology.

The primary OFDMAbased technology is LTE and is incorporated in 3GpaRifications starting from release 8. LTE has tmodes, FDI
(frequency division duplex) and TDD (time divisidaplex) to support paired and unpaired spectruspeaetively, and is being developed by
3GPP. The principal benefit of LTE is its ability leverage wide swaths of spectrum (bandwidth9dd#iHz or more). LTE is designed to
seamlessly interwork with 3G through multimode 3GMevices. Currently, LTE relies on 2G/3G for vagggvices across the network, as wel
as for ubiquitous data services outside LTE coverrga, and on 4G for data services inside therageeaarea.

LTE'’s releases are often combined and given “margebr “trade” names that also indicate their bigaseThe name LTE covers releases &
and 9. Releases 10 and beyond are referred toB#\dVanced. According to GSMA Intelligence estinsaéis of November 4, 2013, there w
144 million global 3G/4G multimode connections. Tinst step of LTE Advanced, referred to as carsiggregation, was commercially
launched in June 2013.

Other Wireless Technologie3here are other non-cellular wireless technolotiias have also been broadly adopted in mobile legllu
devices.

Wireless Local Area Networkélireless local area networks (WLAN, also known asRiy link two or more devices using a wireless
technology method and usually provide connectitlitpugh an access point. WLAN systems have beewlatdized by the Institute of
Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) stadd@ommittee in the various versions of 802.11 ciinclude advanced features, such as
multiple in/multiple out (MIMO), support for largeandwidth and support for different frequency baaid higher order modulation.

Bluetooth Bluetooth is a wireless personal area networkghatides wireless connectivity between devices abert distances ranging
from a few centimeters to a few meters. Bluetoetthhology provides wireless connectivity to a widiege of fixed or mobile consumer
electronics devices. Bluetooth functionalities standardized by the Bluetooth Special Interest @inwarious versions of the specification
(from 1.0 to 4.0), which include different functalities, such as enhanced data rate or low energy.

Location positioning technologielsocation positioning technologies use satellite¢eys to provide accurate location of devices and
primarily work outdoors, when devices have a cléaw of the sky. Cell site assistance with locatitenermination in addition to satellite
system determination improves in-building perforeenThe device location can be used for navigatystems as well as location-based
services (e.g., search results based on the locatithe device). There are many satellite coretielhs in use or under development today.
Global Positioning System (GPS) developed by thiddrStates, GLONASS (Global Navigation Satellijst®m) developed by Russia and
BeiDou developed by China are some examples ofitotaosition technology.

Operating Segments

We conduct business primarily through four repdgaegments: QCT, QTL, QWI and QSI. QSI did notehesvenues, or had negligible
revenues, in all periods presented. Revenuesdal {013, 2012 and 2011 for our other reportabyenamts were as follows (in millions, exct
percentage data):

QCT QTL QwWI
2013 $ 16,71 $ 755¢ % 61z
As a percent of total 67% 30% 2%
2012 $ 12,14: % 6,327 $ 63:
As a percent of total 63% 33% 3%
2011 $ 8,85¢ $ 542: $ 65€
As a percent of total 5%% 36% 4%

QCT (Qualcomm CDMA Technologies) Segme®CT is a leading developer and supplier of integtatircuits and system software basec
on CDMA, OFDMA and other technologies for use incecand data communications, networking, applicagicocessing, multimedia and
global positioning system products. QCT's integilaticuit products and system software are solhtd/or licensed to manufacturers that use
our products in wireless devices, particularly n®phones,




tablets, laptops, data modules, handheld wirelesgpaters and gaming devices, access points anersodiata cards and infrastructure
equipment, and in wired devices, particularly bimatd gateway equipment, desktop computers, tetmgsset-top boxes and Blu-ray players.
Our Mobile Station Modem (MSM) integrated circuitghich include the Mobile Data Modem, Qualcomm &nghip and Qualcomm
Snapdragon processor devices, perform the cordaadenodem functionality in wireless devices provgdvoice and data communications
well as multimedia applications and global positignfunctions. Our Snapdragon processors providarazed application and graphics
processing capabilities. QCT’s system software kesahe other device components to interface viighintegrated circuit products and is the
foundation software enabling manufacturers to dgvelevices utilizing the functionality within ourtegrated circuits. Because of our
experience in designing and developing CDMA- and®IRA- based products, we design both the baseband itedgriacuit and the supportil
system as well, including the RF (Radio Frequemnewices, PM (Power Management) devices and accoymgpsoftware products. This
approach enables us to optimize the performanteeoivireless device with improved product featued integration with the network syste
We also provide support, including reference desimd tools, to enable our customers to reducenteerequired to design their products and
bring their products to market faster. We plandd additional features and capabilities to ourgraéed circuit products to help our customers
reduce the cost and size of their products, to Eynpur customers’ design processes and to enaole wireless devices and services.

QCT offers a broad portfolio of products, includipgth wireless device and infrastructure integraieclits, in support of CDMA2000 1X
and 1xEV-DO, as well as the ENO Revision A/B evolutions of CDMA 2000 technolodyeveraging our expertise in CDMA, we also dew
and offer integrated circuits supporting the WCDMeétsion of 3G for manufacturers of wireless deviddsre than 80 device manufacturers
have selected our WCDMA products that support GIRMRS, WCDMA, HSDPA (High-Speed Downlink Packet A&esISUPA (High-
Speed Uplink Packet Access) and HSPA+ for theifadsv QCT also sells multimode products for the Ist&ndard, which offer seamless
backward compatibility to existing 3G technologi€sir integrated circuit products are included br@ad range of devices, from low-tier,
entry-level devices for emerging regions, which mag our Qualcomm Reference Design (QRD) prodteisemium-tier devices. In fiscal
2013, QCT shipped approximately 716 million MSMeigitated circuits for wireless devices worldwideasipared to approximately 590
million and 483 million in fiscal 2012 and 2011spectively.

Our modems are built to work with increasingly cdexpnetworks. They support the latest communicatémhnologies and adapt to
network conditions and user needs in real timenaoke delivery of faster, smoother data and voa®ections. Our 3G/4G modem roadmap
delivers the latest network technologies acrosgiptelproduct tiers and devices. This roadmap ésrésult of our years of research into
emerging network standards and the developmerttip$ets that take advantage of these new standanée, maintaining backward
compatibility with existing standards.

Each Snapdragon processor is a highly integratetljlexoptimized system on a chip incorporating advanced technologies, including a
high performance CPU, digital signal processor (RE&PU and modem, multimedia subsystems, includirgjo, high-definition video and
camera capabilities, and highly accurate locatiositipning engines. Our CPU cores are designeeliged high levels of compute performa
at low power, allowing manufacturers to design sind powerful devices with longer battery life beém charges. Our GPUs are also desii
to deliver graphics performance for visually ridd §aming and user interfaces. The heterogeneoupwerarchitecture of our Snapdragon
processors is designed to ensure that the CPU,an8EPU work efficiently together, each being padenp and utilized only when needed,
which enhances the processing capacity, speedfficidrecy of our Snapdragon processors and provicleger battery life of the devices using
our processors. Most Snapdragon processors alsmporate our modem technology for advanced molvdadband.

Our wireless products also consist of integratecudis and system software for WLAN, Bluetoothguency modulation (FM) and near
field communications (NFC) as well as technologiest enable location data and services, includiR® GGLONASS and BeiDou. Our
wireless technologies are provided in the form afAM; Bluetooth and FM products, for which the teclogies are integrated into the cellular
modem and combined with a companion RF chip; WLAN Bluetooth combination chips; and stand-alonelpcts. Our wired connectivity
products consist of integrated circuits and sofeafar Ethernet and Powerline networks. Our wiredfpbo enables delivery of richer,
comprehensive multi-connectivity product platforrm®ur networking, computing and consumer elect®customer base. We also developet
the combination of WLAN, Powerline and Ethernettealogies to deliver hybrid networking platformssiged for home, known as Hi-Fi
products. The technology has now evolved to bedtvaenultiple-physical layer (multi-PHY) networkirsandard known as the IEEE 1905.1.

QCT utilizes a fabless production model, which nsetat we do not own or operate foundries for ttoelpction of silicon wafers from
which our integrated circuits are made. Integrafeclits are die cut from silicon wafers that hdween assembled into packages or module
have completed the final test manufacturing praeesddie cut from silicon wafers are the essentatponents of all of our integrated circuits
and a significant portion of the total integratéauit cost. We employ both turnkey and two-stagenafacturing models to purchase our
integrated circuits. Turnkey is when our foundrpgliers are responsible for delivering fully assésdtand tested integrated circuits. Under
two-stage manufacturing model, we




purchase wafers and die from semiconductor marnudagtfoundries and contract with separate thirdypsuppliers for probe, assembly and
test services.

We rely on independent third-party suppliers tdfqren the manufacturing and assembly, and mostefehkting, of our integrated circuits
based primarily on our proprietary designs andpgesgrams. Our suppliers also are responsiblehfptocurement of most of the raw mate
used in the production of our integrated circuitkjch we believe are currently generally availaBlee primary foundry suppliers for our
various digital, analog/mixed-signal, RF and PMegrated circuits are Global Foundries Inc., Intdomal Business Machines Corporation,
Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd., Semiconductor Manufaw International Corporation, Taiwan Semicortdudanufacturing Company and
United Microelectronics Corporation. The primarymseonductor assembly and test suppliers are AdwhBSesniconductor Engineering, Aml
Technology, Siliconware Precision Industries andB3ChipPAC. The majority of our foundry and subcant assembly and test suppliers
located in the Asia-Pacific region.

QCT'’s sales are primarily made through standardimsge orders for delivery of products. QCT gengialbws customers to reschedule
delivery dates within a defined time frame anddnazl orders prior to shipment with or without payrof a penalty, depending on when the
order is canceled. The market in which QCT operiat@gensely competitive. QCT competes worldwidéhwva number of United States and
international designers and manufacturers of samliectors. As a result of global expansion by fanedgd domestic competitors, technolog
changes, device manufacturer concentrations angdteatial for further industry consolidation, wetiaipate the market to remain very
competitive. We believe that the principal competifactors for our products may include perfornerevel of integration, quality,
compliance with industry standards, price, timertarket, system cost, design and engineering cajxediinew product innovation and
customer support. QCT also competes in both sirgid-dual-mode environments against alternativenoonications technologies including,
but not limited to, GSM/GPRS/EDGE, TDMA and TD-SCBM

QCT'’s current competitors include, but are nottedito, companies such as Broadcom, Ericsson,ieti8ilTechnologies, Intel, Lantiq,
Marvell Technology, Maxim Integrated Products, Mgk, nVidia, Realtek Semiconductor, Samsung Eeats, Spreadtrum
Communications, Texas Instruments and VIA TelecQ@T also faces competition from internally develbpeoducts by our customers,
including some of our largest customers, and fromesearly-stage companies. Our competitors devgidfisant amounts of their financial,
technical and other resources to develop and madmpetitive products and, in some cases, to dpwio adopt competitive digital
communication or signal processing technologied,those efforts may materially and adversely af@€i. Moreover, some of these current
and potential competitors have advantages overatsriclude, among others: motivation by our cugtmin certain circumstances to find
alternate suppliers; foreign government suppodtbér technologies or competitors; more extensationships with local distribution
companies and original equipment manufacturersniarging geographic regions (e.g., China); lowet strsictures; and/or a more established
presence in certain device markets.

QTL (Qualcomm Technology Licensing) Segme@TL grants licenses or otherwise provides rightsge portions of our intellectual
property portfolio, which, among other rights, imdés certain patent rights essential to and/oulisethe manufacture and sale of certain
wireless products, including, without limitatiorroplucts implementing CDMA2000, WCDMA, CDMA TDD (ihaling TD-SCDMA),
GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA (including LTE) standaeshd their derivatives. Our licensees manufastimgless products, such as
mobile devices, also known as subscriber unitscvhiclude handsets, other consumer devices {aldets, personal computers, e-readers,
personal navigation devices), machine-to-machivicds (e.g., telematics devices, meter readingcgsyiand plug-in end user data modem
cards, certain embedded modules for incorporatitménd user products, the infrastructure equipmesqiired to establish and operate a
network, and equipment to test networks and sufxscrinits. QTL licensing revenues are comprisditense fees as well as royalties base
worldwide sales by licensees of products incorpogadr using our intellectual property. Licensedege fixed amounts paid in one or more
installments. Royalties are generally based uppereentage of the wholesale (i.e., licensgsélling price of complete licensed products,af
certain permissible deductions (e.g., certain shigpposts, packing costs, VAT, etc.). Revenues ige¢ed from royalties are subject to quarterly
and annual fluctuations. The vast majority of QE&kenues have been generated through our licersales’ of CDMA2000- and WCDMA-
based products, such as feature phones and snmagpho

Separate and apart from licensing manufacturevdrefess products and devices and network equipmanhave entered into certain
arrangements with competitors of our QCT segmeith) s Broadcom, Fujitsu, MediaTek, NEC, Texagimsénts and VIA Telecom. A
principal purpose of these arrangements is to gdemweur QCT segment and the counterparties ceraénldém of operation with respect to each
party’s integrated circuits business. In every csese agreements expressly reserve the riglTarto seek royalties from the customers of
such integrated circuit suppliers with respectuchssuppliers’ customers’ sales of CDMA-, WCDMA-da@FDMA-based wireless devices i
which such suppliers’ integrated circuits are ipovated.

We face competition in the development of intellattproperty for future generations of digital viies communications technology and
services. On a worldwide basis, we currently compeimarily with the GSM/GPRS/EDGE digital wireless
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communications technologies. GSM has been utileadnsively in Europe, much of Asia, other tharadagnd South Korea, and certain other
countries. To date, GSM has been more widely adapi@n CDMA; however, CDMA technologies have begoped for all 3G wireless
systems. In addition, most GSM operators deployB&E, a packet data technology, as a 2G bridge aémiyn and a number of GSM
operators deployed EDGE. However, the majority 8\MGoperators have already augmented their netweitks3G WCDMA and HSPA.
According to the Global mobile Suppliers Associat{GSA), as of October 2013, more than 220 wiretgegators have commercially
deployed and other wireless operators have stegtithg LTE, a multearrier transmission technique based on OFDMA teldyy. Accordinc
to GSA, more than 420 wireless operators have cdtednio deploy LTE networks. We have invested ithlibe acquisition and the
development of OFDMA technology and intellectuagerty. We expect that upon the initial deployme&E®FDMA-based networks, the
products implementing such technologies generaillype multimode and will also implement CDMBased technologies. The licenses gra
under our existing CDMA license agreements genecaler multimode CDMA/OFDMA (3G/4G) devices, angr dicensees are obligated to
pay royalties under their CDMA license agreemeaotsstich devices. Further, over 90 companies (imetudG, Nokia, Samsung and ZTE)
have royalty-bearing licenses under our patenf@atfor use in single-mode OFDMA products (whidh not implement any CDMA-based
standards).

Since our founding in 1985, we have focused heanrilyechnology development and innovation. Theketsfthave resulted in a leading
intellectual property portfolio related to, amortfer things, wireless technology. We have an eitermortfolio of United States and foreign
patents, and we continue to pursue patent apgitafiround the world. Our patents have broad cgedramany countries, including Brazil,
China, India, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and camin Europe and elsewhere. A substantial podfasur patents and patent applications
relate to digital wireless communications techn@egincluding patents that are essential or maiynipartant to the commercial
implementation of CDMA2000, WCDMA (UMTS), TD-SCDMA;D-CDMA and OFDMA products. Because all commeiygideployed
forms of CDMA and their derivatives require the e$®ur patents, our patent portfolio is the mowtely and extensively licensed portfolio in
the industry with over 250 licensees. Over the gemnumber of companies have challenged our patssition, but at this time, companies in
the mobile communications industry generally recogihat any company seeking to develop, manufa@uad/or sell subscriber units or
infrastructure equipment that use CDMA and/or OFDM&hnologies will require a license or other rigtdt use our patents.

As part of our strategy to generate licensing reresrthat continue to support our research and deweint investments and support
worldwide adoption of our CDMA, OFDMA and other tewlogies, we provide rights to design, manufactume sell products utilizing certain
portions of our intellectual property to other canjes.

We have licensed or otherwise provided rights ®aws patented technologies to interested companiésrms that are fair, reasonable
non-discriminatory. Unlike some other companiesun industry that hold back certain key technolegige offer interested companies
essentially our entire patent portfolio for use@lular subscriber devices and cell site infrattite equipment. Our strategy to make our
patented technologies broadly available has bewtiedyst for industry growth, helping to enableidewange of companies offering a broad
array of wireless products and features while iasireg the capabilities of and/or driving down agerand low-end selling prices for 3G
handsets and other wireless devices. By licensimgt@rwise providing rights to use our patentetht@logies to a wide range of equipment
manufacturers, encouraging innovative applicatisapporting equipment manufacturers with integratggset and software products, and
focusing on improving the efficiency of the airlifdr wireless operators, we have helped 3G CDMA\;aggrow and reduce device pricing all
at a faster pace than the 2G technologies thaegeetit (e.g., GSM).

Standards bodies have been informed that we hadshfsathat might be essential for all 3G stand#drdsare based on CDMA. We have
committed to such standards bodies that we wiraid license our essential patents for these CBkAdards on a fair, reasonable and non-
discriminatory basis. We have also informed stagsliodies that we hold patents that might be eisséort certain standards that are based or
OFDMA technology (e.g., 802.16e, 802.16m and LTl(iding FDD and TDD versions)) and have committedffer to license our essential
patents for these OFDMA standards on a fair, resslerand non-discriminatory basis.

Our license agreements generally provide us rightse certain of our licensees’ technology anellettual property to manufacture and
sell certain components (e.g., Application-Spedifiegrated Circuits) and related software, subgcrunits and/or infrastructure equipment. In
most cases, our use of our licensees’ technolodyraallectual property does not require us to ppalties based on the sale of our products.
However, under some of the licenses, if we incafmcertain of our licensees’ licensed technolagytellectual property into certain of our
products, we are obligated to pay royalties orstile of such products.
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QWI (Qualcomm Wireless & Internet) Segmerithe four divisions aggregated into QWI are:

Omnitracs Division Omnitracs designs, manufactures and sells equiprieenses software and provides services tacastomers to
manage their assets, products and workforce. Oacsiffers satellite- and terrestrial-based way wireless information and position locat
services to transportation and logistics fleet$ émable customers to track the location and mop#oformance of their assets, communicate
with their personnel and collect data. On AugustZiil 3, we entered into a definitive agreement umdeéch we agreed to sell the North and
Latin American operations of Omnitracs to a U.Ssdzhprivate equity firm for $800 million in cashlipgect to the terms and conditions of the
definitive agreement. The transaction is subjectigtomary closing conditions, including receiptedulatory approvals, and is expected to
close in the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

QIS (Qualcomm Internet Services) DivisiGiS provides software products and content enabileservices to wireless operators
worldwide to support and accelerate the growthaahdhncement of wireless data products and serwiéesffer Brew and Plaza platform
products and services for wireless applicationsbigment, device configuration, application digitibn and billing and payment. Our QChat
product enables one-to-one (private) and one-toynfgoup) push-to-talk (PTT) calls over 3G networks

QGOV (Qualcomm Government Technologies) DiviS@OV provides development and other services dateeproducts involving
wireless communications technologies to U.S. gawemt agencies and their contractors. Based ondieeptage of QGOV revenues to our
total consolidated revenues, no government agenciggeir contractors are major customers.

QRS (Qualcomm Retail Solutions) DivisiQRS, our retail services business, builds and memagftware applications that enable certain
mobile location-awareness and commerce services.

QSI (Qualcomm Strategic Initiatives) Segme@SI makes strategic investments that we believe apay new or expand opportunities for
our technologies, support the design and introdnatif new products and services for voice and datamunications or possess unique
capabilities or technology. Many of these stratégiestments are in early-stage companies. QSlralkis wireless spectrum. As part of our
strategic investment activities, we intend to persarious exit strategies from each of our QSI $tweents in the future.

Other BusinessesNonreportable segments are comprised of our QMTalgdunm MEMS Technologies) division and other digpla
wireless technology and services initiatives thatude, but are not limited to: low power consuroptihigh optical performance flat display
modules; medical device connectivity and related deanagement; augmented reality; and deviaetoee communication. QMT continues
develop an interferometric modulator (IMOD) disptaghnology based on micro-electro-mechansyatems (MEMS) structure combined w
thin film optics.

SeasonalityMany of our products or intellectual property avedrporated into consumer wireless devices, whielsabject to seasonality
and other fluctuations in demand. As a result, ®@3 tended historically to have stronger salesrmtee end of the calendar year as
manufacturers prepare for major holiday sellingseesa, and QTL has tended to record higher royaitgmues in the first calendar quarter w
licensees report their sales made during the farabndar quarter. These seasonal trends may onatayontinue in the future.

Additional information regarding our operating semns is provided in the notes to our consolidateginicial statements in this Annual
Report in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statetsieote 8. Segment Information.”

Corporate Structure

We operate our businesses through our parent com@apALCOMM Incorporated, and multiple direct amdlirect subsidiaries. We have
developed our corporate structure in order to astdvarious legal, regulatory, tax, contractual clianpe, operations and other matters.

At the beginning of fiscal 2013, we completed goooate reorganization in which certain assets oAQUOMM Incorporated, as well as
the stock of certain of its direct and indirect sidiaries, were contributed to its wholly-owned sidiary Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. (QTI).
QTL continues to be operated by QUALCOMM Incorpedgtwhich continues to own the vast majority of patent portfolio. Substantially all
of our products and services businesses, inclu@i@g, and substantially all of our engineering, egsk and development functions, are
operated by QTI and its subsidiaries. Neither Qdrlany of its subsidiaries has any right, poweaathority to grant any licenses or other ri
under or to any patents owned by QUALCOMM Incorpeda




Revenue Concentrations, Significant Customers and &dgraphical Information

Consolidated revenues from international custoraadslicensees as a percentage of total revenuesdvés, 95% and 94% in fiscal 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. During fiscal 2049% , 20% and 11% of our revenues were from cust®anal licensees based in China,
South Korea and Taiwan, respectively, as compard@¥ , 22% and 14% during fiscal 2012 , respelstivand 32% , 19% and 17% during
fiscal 2011 , respectively. We distinguish revenines external customers by geographic areas baséle location to which our products,
software or services are delivered, or for QTLdsiag revenues, the invoiced addresses of ourdemsy Additional geographic information is
provided in the notes to our consolidated finansiatements in this Annual Report in “Notes to @didated Financial Statements, Note 8.
Segment Information.”

A small number of customers/licensees historidadlye accounted for a significant portion of oursmidated revenues. In fiscal 2013 ,
2012 and 2011, revenues from Samsung Electronitstituted more than 10% of consolidated revenudgscal 2013 and 2012, revenues
from Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd./Foxcoits,affiliates and other suppliers to Apple Incnsttuted more than 10% of consolidated
revenues; and in fiscal 2011 , revenues from HTi@&tituted more than 10% of consolidated revenues.

Research and Development

The communications industry is characterized bydrégrhnological change, requiring a continuousrétio enhance existing products and
technologies and to develop new products and tdopims. We have significant engineering resourcesuding engineers with substantial
expertise in CDMA, OFDMA and a broad range of otteehnologies. Using these engineering resourcegxpect to continue to invest in
research and development in a variety of ways iaftort to extend the demand for our products agises, including developing new
versions of CDMA, OFDMA and other technologies, eleping alternative technologies for certain splexsd applications, participating in t
formulation of new voice and data communicatiomggads and technologies and assisting in depladiigital voice and data communications
networks around the world.

Our research and development team has a demoudstiratk record of innovation in voice and data camination technologies. Our
research and development expenditures in fisca3,22012 and 2011 totaled approximately $5.0 billié3.9 billion and $3.0 billion ,
respectively, and as a result, we continue to ex@axa enhance our products, services and intedieptoperty portfolios.

We develop, commercialize and actively support 3BViA-based technologies, including CDMA2000 1X, 10, EV-DO Revision A,
EV-DO Revision B, 1x Advanced, WCDMA, HSDPA, HSURAd HSPA+, as well as OFDMBased LTE technologies, products and net\
operations, to grow our royalty and integrateduitrand related software revenues. From time te twe also make acquisitions to meet
certain technology needs, to obtain developmewiuregs or to pursue new business opportunities.

We make investments to provide our integrated #ticustomers with chipsets designed on leading-eglgienology nodes that combine
multiple technologies for use in consumer devigeduding smartphones, consumer electronics aneratévices. In addition to 3G and 4G
LTE technologies, our chipsets support other wagkend wired connectivity technologies, includingAM, Bluetooth, Ethernet, GPS,
GLONASS and Powerline Communication. Our integratieipsets often include multiple technologies, iiithg advanced multimode
modems, application processors and graphics engisasell as the tools to connect these diverdetdogies. We continue to support
Android, Windows Phone/RT and other mobile cliesftware environments in our chipsets.

We develop on our own, and with our partners, imtions that are integrated into our product podfts further expand the opportunity
wireless communications and enhance the valueroprmalucts and services. These innovations arectaghéo enable our customers to
improve the performance or value of their exisiegvices, offer these services more affordablyiatrdduce revenue-generating broadband
data services ahead of their competition.

We have research and development centers in vdooasons throughout the world that support owbgl development activities and
ongoing efforts to advance CDMA, OFDMA and a broage of other technologies. We continue to usesohbstantial engineering resources
and expertise to develop new technologies, appitatand services and make them available to lent help grow the communications
industry and generate new or expanded licensingrtypities. In addition to internally sponsoredaash and development, we perform
contract research and development for various gwwent agencies and commercial contractors.

We continue to develop our interferometric modul@tmOD) and other display technologies. We intéadicense our next generation
IMOD display technology, while we continue to deygbnd directly commercialize certain IMOD conswtaggeted mobile products. Our
IMOD display technology, based on a micro-electrechranical-systems (MEMS) structure
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combined with thin film optics, is intended to pige performance and power consumption benefitoagared to other display technologies.

We make investments across a broad spectrum ofiynities that leverage our existing technical Andiness expertise to deploy new
business models and enter into new industry segmsmth as technologies to address the growth biflendata traffic, including 3G/LTE and
Wi-Fi products designed for implementation of sneallls, which can be used by carriers to extenaddpacity of licensed and unlicensed
wireless spectrum and the 1000x data challengejesis charging; proximity-based communicationsy \egh speed connectivity; mobile
location awareness and commerce; mobile healthralsEatechnology; gaming; and products for the eacted home, the digital 6th sense and
the Internet of Everything.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing activities of our operatingre=gs are discussed under Operating Segments. @#rketing activities include public
relations, advertising, web-marketing, participatio technical conferences and trade shows, deredapof business cases and white papers,
competitive analyses, industry intelligence anceptharketing programs, such as marketing developfoads with our customers. Our
Corporate Marketing department provides companyrintion on our Internet site and through otherimegharding our products, strategies
and technology to industry analysts and for pukitice.

Competition

Competition faced by our operating segments isudised under Operating Segments. Competition indhemunications industry
throughout the world continues to increase at arppce as consumers, businesses and governmalige tee potential of wireless
communications products and services. We havadttgeitl competition in the wireless communicatiarduistry by licensing our technologies
to, and therefore enabling, a large number of matufers. Although we have attained a significarsifion in the industry, many of our
current and potential competitors may have advastager us, which include, among others, motivabpour customers in certain
circumstances to find alternate suppliers or chatteenate technologies and foreign governmentaums other technologies (e.g., GSM) or
our competitors. In addition, our competitors mayénestablished more extensive relationships withlldistribution and original equipment
manufacturer companies in emerging geographic nsgie.g., China) or a more established presenceriain device markets. These
relationships may affect customers’ decisions t@lpase products or license technology from us. Atingly, new competitors or alliances
among competitors could emerge and rapidly accpigneificant market positions to our detriment.

We expect to continue to face competition througltioet world as new technologies and services dredaced in the future and as
additional companies compete with our productseovises based on 3G, 4G or other technologiesofiih we intend to continue to make
substantial investments in developing new prodantstechnologies and improving existing products i@ehnologies, our competitors may
introduce alternative products, services or teabgiek that threaten our business. It is also ples#ilt the price we charge for our products
services may continue to decline as competitiorticoas to intensify.

Corporate Responsibility

We strive to better our local and global commusitigrough ethical business practices, socially emepimg technology applications,
educational and environmental programs and empldivegsity and volunteerism.

* Our GovernanceWe aim to demonstrate accountability, transpareimtggrity and ethical business practices througloou
operations and interactions with our stakeholders.

» Our ProductsWe strive to meet or exceed industry standardprfoduct responsibility and supplier managen

*  Our WorkplaceWe endeavor to provide a safe and healthy workrenmient where diversity is embraced and variou®dppities
for training, growth, and advancement are stromglyouraged for all employees.

*  Our CommunityWe have strategic relationships with a wide rangeaal organizations and programs that developsirehgthen
communities worldwide.

*  Our EnvironmentWe aim to expand our operations while minimizing ocarbon footprint, conserving water and reduciragts

» Wireless Reachle invest in projects that foster entrepreneursdighjn public safety, enhance delivery of healihe¢ enrich teaching
and learning and improve environmental sustainghitirough the use of 3G and next-generation telciyies.
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Employees

At September 29, 2013 , we employed approximat#|Q full-time, part-time and temporary employdesring fiscal 2013 , the number
of employees increased by approximately 4,300, gmilgndue to increases in engineering resources.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.qualcomm.com. Therenake available, free of charge, our annual repoffarm 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on FornK8nd any amendments to those reports, as so@asasirably practicable after we electronically sileh
material with, or furnish it to, the Securities aaxchange Commission (SEC). We also make availableur Internet site public financial
information for which a report is not required t® filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our SEC reépand other financial information can be
accessed through the investor relations secti@muofnternet site. The information found on ourehmiet site is not part of this or any other
report we file with or furnish to the SEC.

Executive Officers
Our executive officers (and their ages at Septer@BeP013 ) are as follows:

Paul E. Jacobs, age 50, has served as Chairmha Bbard of Directors since March 2009, as a diresince June 2005 and as Chief
Executive Officer since July 2005. He served asuBr@resident of QWI from July 2001 to June 200%addition, he served as Executive Vice
President from February 2000 to June 2005. Dr.kle@s a director of A123 Systems, Inc. from Noven#02 to July 2012. Dr. Jacobs
holds a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering anth@uter Science, an M.S. degree in Electrical Begging and a Ph.D. degree in Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science from the UnivwerditCalifornia, Berkeley.

Steven R. Altman, age 52, has served as Vice Chaigince November 2011. He served as PresidentJuiyr2005 to November 2011, as
Executive Vice President from November 1997 to R0@5 and as President of QTL from September 18%ptil 2005. Mr. Altman has bee
a director of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. since Octol#813 and DexCom, Inc. since November 2013. Mmah holds a B.S. degree in Police
Science and Administration from Northern Arizonaikgmsity and a J.D. degree from the University ah®iego. Mr. Altman will retire from
Qualcomm effective January 3, 2014.

Derek K. Aberle, age 43, has served as Executice President and Group President since Novembdr. M served as Executive Vice
President and President of QTL from September 2008vember 2011 and as Senior Vice President aamfal Manager of QTL from
October 2006 to September 2008. Mr. Aberle joinedl@omm in December 2000 and prior to October 2848 positions ranging from Legal
Counsel to Vice President and General Manager af. @F. Aberle holds a B.A. degree in Business Eauius from the University of
California, Santa Barbara and a J.D. degree frauUthiversity of San Diego.

Cristiano R. Amon, age 43, has served as ExecVie President, Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. andP@sident of QCT since October
2012. He served as Senior Vice President, Qualctmorporated and Co-President of QCT from June 26 Qctober 2012, as Senior Vice
President, QCT Product Management from October 200une 2012 and as Vice President, QCT Producglgiement from September 2005
to October 2007. Mr. Amon joined Qualcomm in 198%a engineer and throughout his tenure at Qualcbeithseveral other technical and
leadership roles. Mr. Amon holds a B.S. degreeléttfical Engineering from UNICAMP, the State Unisity of Campinas, Brazil.

George S. Davis, age 55, has served as ExecutoesRfiesident and Chief Financial Officer since Ma®013. Prior to joining Qualcomm,
Mr. Davis was Chief Financial Officer of Applied Kéaials, Inc., a provider of equipment, serviced software for the manufacture of
advanced semiconductor, flat panel displays arat gdlotovoltaic products, from November 2006 to &lta2013. Mr. Davis held several other
leadership roles at Applied Materials from Novemb@®9 to November 2006. Prior to joining Applied tiet@als, Mr. Davis served 19 years
with Atlantic Richfield Company, a global oil, gaad chemical company, in a number of finance ahdratorporate positions. Mr. Davis ha
a B.A. degree in Economics and Political ScienoenfClaremont McKenna College and an M.B.A. degremfthe University of California,
Los Angeles.

Andrew M. Gilbert, age 50, has served as Execlitigce President, Qualcomm Europe, Inc. and Europeaovation Development since
January 2011. He served as Executive Vice Presat@hPresident of Qualcomm Europe from SeptemhEd &) January 2011, as Executive
Vice President and President of QIS and Qualcommoeufrom May 2009 to September 2010 and as ExexMice President and President
of QIS, our former MFT division and Qualcomm Eurdpmm January 2008 to May 2009. He served as Sé&fitar President and President of
Qualcomm Europe from November 2006 to January 20@Bas President of Qualcomm Europe from Februa®$ 20 November 2006.

Mr. Gilbert joined Qualcomm in January 2006 as \Weesident of Qualcomm Europe. Prior to joining Qomm, he served as Vice President
and General
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Manager of Flarion Technologies, Inc.’s Europeaigdie Eastern and African regions from May 2003douary 2006. Mr. Gilbert will retire
from Qualcomm effective December 30, 2013.

Matthew S. Grob, age 47, has served as Executive Niesident, Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. and Aréehnology Officer since
October 2012. He served as Executive Vice Presidamlcomm Incorporated and Chief Technology Officem July 2011 to October 2012
and as Senior Vice President, Engineering from 2086 to July 2011. Mr. Grob joined Qualcomm in Asg1991 as an engineer and
throughout his tenure at Qualcomm held severalrdduhnical and leadership roles. Mr. Grob hol@ % degree in Electrical Engineering
from Bradley University and an M.S. degree in Hieel Engineering from Stanford University.

Margaret “Peggy” L. Johnson, age 51, has servdtkasutive Vice President, Qualcomm Technologies, &md President of Global
Market Development since October 2012. She sergdtkacutive Vice President, Qualcomm IncorporatediRresident of Global Market
Development from January 2011 to October 2012.seneed as Executive Vice President of the Amercakindia from January 2008 to
January 2011 and as Executive Vice President §hlecember 2006. She served as President of our faviR€ division from December 2005
to January 2008 and as President of QIS from JMi 20 January 2008. She served as Senior Vicéderasand General Manager of QIS fr
September 2000 to July 2001. Ms. Johnson has bdgacdtor of Live Nation Entertainment, Inc. siniie 2013. Ms. Johnson holds a B.S.
degree in Electrical Engineering from San DiegdeStiniversity.

James P. Lederer, age 53, has served as Executedxesident, Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. and @¢Manager of QCT since
October 2012. He served as Executive Vice Presidamlcomm Incorporated and General Manager of @@ May 2009 to October 2012,
as Executive Vice President, QCT Business PlanaimgFinance from May 2008 to May 2009 and as Safiae President, Finance from
April 2005 to May 2008. Mr. Lederer joined Qualconmil997 as Senior Manager, Corporate Financelamodghout his tenure at Qualcomm
held several other finance and leadership rolesLiudlerer holds a B.S. degree in Business Admatistn (Finance/MIS) and an M.B.A.
degree from the State University of New York atfald. Mr. Lederer will retire from Qualcomm effeeti January 3, 2014.

Steven M. Mollenkopf, age 44, has served as Pnasatal Chief Operating Officer since November 2044 served as Executive Vice
President and Group President from September 20M@vember 2011, as Executive Vice President apditkent of QCT from August 2008
to September 2010, as Executive Vice President, R@duct Management from May 2008 to July 200&esor Vice President, Engineeri
and Product Management from July 2006 to May 20@Bas Vice President, Engineering from April 2003aly 2006. Mr. Mollenkopf joine
Qualcomm in 1994 as an engineer and throughouehige at Qualcomm held several other technicaleadkrship roles. Mr. Mollenkopf
holds a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering f\inginia Tech and an M.S. degree in Electrical Eregiring from the University of Michigan.

Venkata S.M. “Murthy” Renduchintala, age 48, haveé as Executive Vice President, Qualcomm Teclygie) Inc. and Co-President of
QCT since October 2012. He served as Senior Viesidnt, Qualcomm Incorporated and Co-Preside@@¥ from June 2012 to October
2012, as Senior Vice President, QCT Engineeringpf@actober 2007 to June 2012 and as Vice PresiQ&it, Engineering from April 2004 to
October 2007. Dr. Renduchintala holds a B.E. degrédectrical Engineering, an M.B.A. degree arf@haD. degree in Digital Communication
from the University of Bradford, United Kingdom.

Donald J. Rosenberg, age 62, has served as Exedite President, General Counsel and Corporateetéeg since October 2007. He
served as Senior Vice President, General CounseCanporate Secretary for Apple Inc. from Decenf06 to October 2007. From
May 1975 to November 2006, Mr. Rosenberg held noogepositions at IBM Corporation, including Servtice President and General
Counsel. Mr. Rosenberg holds a B.S. degree in Madlties from the State University of New York at 8tdBrook and a J.D. degree from St.
John’s University School of Law.

Daniel L. Sullivan, age 62, has served as ExecWtigce President of Human Resources since August.286 previously served as Senior
Vice President of Human Resources from February 189uly 2001. Dr. Sullivan holds a B.S. degreEammunication from lllinois State
University, an M.A. degree in Communication from $¥¥irginia University and a Ph.D. degree in Comioation from the University of
Nebraska

James H. Thompson, age 49, has served as Exeblitiwd’resident, Engineering for Qualcomm Technasginc. since October 2012. He
served as Senior Vice President, Engineering fal€@mm Incorporated from July 1998 to October 2@r2. Thompson joined Qualcomm in
1992 as a senior engineer and throughout his textu@eialcomm held several other technical and Isaderoles. Dr. Thompson holds B.S.,
M.S. and Ph.D. degrees in Electrical Engineeringnfthe University of Wisconsin.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider each of the following factagsagell as the other information in this Annual Repo evaluating our business and our
prospects. The risks and uncertainties describkxviere not the only ones we face. Additional riaksl
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uncertainties not presently known to us or thatweently consider immaterial may also impair ousibess operations. If any of the following
risks actually occur, our business and financigiitts could be harmed. In that case, the tradiitge mf our common stock could decline. You
should also refer to the other information setHantthis Annual Report, including our financiaht@ments and the related notes.

Risks Related to Our Businesses

Our revenues depend on the commercial deploymenEBMA, OFDMA and other communications technologiesontinuing growth in our
customers’ and licensees’ sales of products and/gms based on these technologies and our abibtitgdntinue to drive customer demand
for our products and services based on these tedhgies.

We develop, patent and commercialize technologypoducts based on CDMA, OFDMA and other commuivoattechnologies. We
depend on our customers, licensees, operators MfACAnd OFDMA-based wireless networks and otheustdes to use our technologies,
and on the timing of their deployment of new praduand services, and they may incur lower grosgimsion products or services based on
these technologies than on products and servicesilan alternative technologies. We also deper@liosustomers and licensees to develop
products and services with value-added featuresite selling prices as well as consumer demanaéar 3G and 3G/4G devices. Our
revenues and/or growth in revenues could be neggtimpacted, our business may be harmed and dustantial investments in these
technologies may not provide us an adequate refurn,

» wireless operators and other industries deployradtese technologie

» wireless operators delay 3G and/or 3G/4G multimuetevork deployments, expansions or upgrades adélay moving 2G custome
to 3G, 3G/4G multimode or 4G wireless devices;

+ LTE, an OFDMAbased 4G wireless technology, is not more wideplaleed or commercial deployment is delay

e government regulators delay the reallocatioB@fspectrum to allow wireless operators to upgthde networks to 3G, thereby
restricting the expansion of 3G/4G wireless conmigf

» wireless operators are unable to drive improvemian®& or 3G/4G multimode network performance andapacity

e our customers’ and licensees’ sales of prodaistsservices using these technologies, particutadynium-tier device products, do not
grow or do not grow as quickly as anticipated; or

e we are unable to drive the adoption of our patsiand services into networks and devices bas&DMA, OFDMA and other
communications technologies.

Our industry is subject to competition in an envitment of rapid technological change that could rdsin decreased demand and/or
declining average selling prices for our productacthose of our customers and/or licensees andiesult in placing new specifications or
requirements on our products, each of which couldgatively affect our revenues and operating results

Our products, services and technologies face sigmf competition, and the revenues they generateeaiming of their deployment,
which may depend on the actions of others, mayneat expectations. Competition in the communicatiodustry is affected by various
factors that include, among others: evolving industandards and business models; evolving metbblansmission for voice and data
communications; networking and connectivity trerelglving nature of computing (including demanddérays on, always connected
capabilities); rapid technological change; valudetifeatures that drive selling prices as wellasamer demand for new 3G and 3G/4G
devices; turnkey, integrated products that incafmhardware, software, user interface, application reference designs; rapid growth in
mobile data consumption; device manufacturer camagons; growth in emerging geographic regionsjaaility; and the ability of the system
technology to meet customers’ immediate and futetevork requirements. We anticipate that additimeahpetitors will introduce products as
a result of growth opportunities in wireless comiwations, the trend toward global expansion byifpreand domestic competitors,
technological and public policy changes and reédgiow barriers to entry in selected segmentsefibhdustry.

Our future success will depend on, among otheofacbur ability to:

« develop innovative, differentiated integratextgit products at competitive cost and price pofatsemerging and developed
geographic regions and across device tiers (egmipm- and low-tier smartphones);

» increase and/or accelerate demand for our iatedrcircuit products and drive their adoption itite most popular device models,
particularly premium-tier models, and across a tregectrum of devices, such as smartphones, table¢saders, gaming devices and
other mobile computing and connected devices;

« strengthen our integrated circuit product roagrue, and develop channel relationships in, enmgrgieographic regions, such as
China and India, and provide turnkey products dov-tier smartphones;

13




» be a preferred partner (and sustain preferdatisaships) providing integrated circuit produtiat support multiple operating system
platforms to the partners that effectively commadize new devices using these platforms;

e continue to be a leader in 4G technology evolutincluding expansion of our OFDMA-based singledm licensing program, and
continue to innovate and introduce 4G turnkey,graged products and services that differentiatars our competition;

» be aleader serving original equipment manufact high level operating systems (HLOS) provideperators and other industry
participants as competitors, new market entrardsodimer factors continue to affect the industrydirape;

* increase and/or accelerate demand for our véinebwireless connectivity products, including netdrg products for consumers,
carriers and enterprise equipment and connectedetev

» become a leading supplier of small cell techgglfwhich allows inexpensive cell sites deployedusgrs to connect to traditional
cellular networks through wired internet connecsioto enable significant network capacity expanstoomeet anticipated growth in
mobile data traffic;

» continue to develop brand recognition to effeslif compete against better known companies in la@oimputing and other consumer
driven segments and to deepen our presence iffisagiiemerging geographic regions; and/or

» create stand-alone value and/or contributeecstitcess of our existing businesses through imesgss in new industry segments
and/or disruptive technologies, including new digpiechnologies, wireless charging, mobile heaftbbile location awareness and
commerce, the connected home and the Internetefykhing, among others.

Competition and/or the introduction and growthates of low-tier products, particularly relativegremium-tier products, may reduce
average selling prices for our chipset productsthegroducts of our customers and licensees.dymamic is particularly pronounced in
emerging geographic regions. Reductions in theameeselling prices of our chipset products, withmrtesponding decreases in average unit
costs, would negatively impact our margins. In #ddj total royalties payable to us would generdiygrease, negatively impacting our
revenues, as a result of reductions in the avesalljag prices of our licensees’ products, unldéset by an increase in volumes.

Companies that promote standards that are neitB8AC nor OFDMA-based (e.g., GSM) as well as comparthat design integrated
circuits based on CDMA, OFDMA or their derivativa® generally competitors or potential competitessamples (some of which are strate
partners of ours in other areas) include Broaddemesson, Fujitsu, HiSilicon Technologies, Integritiq, Marvell Technology, Maxim
Integrated Products, MediaTek, nVidia, Realtek Semiuctor, Samsung Electronics, Spreadtrum Comratiaits, Texas Instruments and
VIA Telecom. Some of these current and potentiahjgetitors have advantages over us that includengrathers: motivation by our custom
in certain circumstances to find alternate supgjifareign government support of other technologiesompetitors; more extensive
relationships with local distribution companies amidjinal equipment manufacturers in emerging gaphic regions (e.g., China); lower cost
structures; and/or a more established presencertaic device markets.

Certain of our software and our suppliers’ softwaigy contain or may be derived from “open souredgtvgare, and we have seen, and
believe we will continue to see, an increase inamsrs requesting that we develop products, inolydbftware associated with our integrated
circuit products, that incorporate open sourceveari® elements and operate in an open source emermtn which, under certain open source
licenses, may offer accessibility to a portion @fraduct’s source code and may expose relatedeotedl property to adverse licensing
conditions. Licensing of such software may imposeain obligations on us if we were to distribuegidative works of the open source
software. For example, these obligations may requérto make source code for the derivative wovkdable to our customers in a manner
allows them to make such source code availabledio tustomers, or license such derivative workdeuma particular type of license that is
different than what we customarily use to license software. Developing open source products, wamequately protecting the intellectual
property rights upon which our licensing businesgahds, may prove burdensome and time-consumirgr @edain circumstances, thereby
placing us at a competitive disadvantage for nesdpet designs. Also, our use and our customersbfispen source software may subject ou
products and our customers’ products to governrhsotatiny and delays in product certification, ainicould cause customers to view our
products as less desirable than our competitooslymts. While we believe we have taken appropstaps and employed adequate controls to
protect our intellectual property rights, our us®pen source software presents risks that could ha adverse effect on these rights and o
business.

We derive a significant portion of our consolidatedvenues from a small number of customers and fisees. If revenues derived from the
customers or licensees decrease or the timing athstevenues fluctuate, our operating results coudd negatively affected.

Our QCT segment derives a significant portion ekraies from a small number of customers, and webmaynable to further diversify
our customer base. In addition, our industry isegdgncing and may continue to experience an ingrgas
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concentration of device share among a few compaaresthis trend may result in an increasing portibour revenues being derived from a
small number of customers. The loss of any onauok@nificant customers, a reduction in the puselseof our products by such customers or
cancelation of significant purchases from any ekthcustomers would reduce our revenues and catdd dur ability to achieve or sustain
expected operating results, and a delay of sigmfipurchases, even if only temporary, would redugeevenues in the period of the delay.
Further, concentration of device share among acfawpanies, and the corresponding purchasing pofitbese companies, may result in loy
prices for our products which, if not accompanigdalsufficient increase in the volume of purchasfesur products, could have an adverse
effect on our revenues and margins. In additioa titming and size of purchases by our significarsteamers may be impacted by the timing of
such customers’ new or next generation produobéhictions, over which we have little or no conteoid the timing of such introductions may
cause our operating results to fluctuate. Accoiglinigcurrent industry dynamics and concentrationstinue, our QCT segment’s revenues
will continue to depend largely upon, and be imeddty, future purchases and the timing and siangfsuch future purchases by these
significant customers.

Further, companies that provide HLOS for devicesluding leading technology companies, have entdredevice market. If we fail to
effectively partner with these companies, or tipairtners or customers, they may decide not to ageckeither directly or through their cont
manufacturers), or to reduce or discontinue theiclpases of, our integrated circuit products.

In addition, there has been and continues to igalibn among certain of our customers and oth#msiry participants, and the potential
outcomes of such litigation, including but not lied to injunctions against devices that incorpocateproducts or rulings on certain patent law
issues that create new legal precedent, could inpaidusiness.

Although we have more than 250 CDMA-based license@sQTL segment derives a significant portiodic#nsing revenues from a
limited number of licensees. Moreover, the futurewgh and success of our core licensing busineksligpend in part on the ability of our
licensees to develop, introduce and deliver highume products that achieve and sustain custonoapsance. We have little or no control o
the product development or sales efforts of owrigees, and our licensees might not be succeRgfdiictions in the average selling prices of
wireless devices sold by our major licensees, witlzosufficient increase in the volumes of suchaks/sold, would generally have an adverse
effect on our revenues.

The continued and future success of our licensingpbgrams can be impacted by the deployment of otieehnologies in place of
technologies based on CDMA, OFDMA and their deriiags; the need to extend certain existing licenggeements that are expiring and/or
to cover additional later patents; and/or the susseof our licensing programs for 4G single mode guets and emerging industry segments.

Although we own a very strong portfolio of issuadigpending patents related to GSM, GPRS, EDGE, OFODRDMA, WLAN, MIMO
and other technologies, our patent portfolio liGeggprogram in these areas is less establishednégitt not be as successful in generating
licensing revenues as our CDMA licensing programanilwireless operators are investigating or halectssl OFDMA-based LTE as their
next-generation 4G technology for deployment irseéxg or future wireless spectrum bands as compiéameto their existing CDMA-based
networks. While 3G/4G multimode products are gelhecavered by existing 3G licensing agreementsdpcts that implement 4G and do not
implement 3G are generally not covered by exis@iGglicensing agreements. Although we believe thatpatented technology is essential anc
useful to implementation of the LTE industry stami$sand have granted royalty-bearing licenses tertian 90 companies (including LG,
Nokia, Samsung, Sony Mobile and ZTE) that havezedlthat they need a license under our patentsate and sell products implement
4G standards but not implementing 3G standardsolyedty rates for single mode 4G products are gdlydower than our royalty rates for 3G
and 3G/4G multimode products, and therefore, wehtmgt achieve the same licensing revenues onlstiErproducts as on 3G or 3G/4G
multimode products. In addition, new connectivigy\gces are emerging that rely on devices that anagay not be used on traditional cellular
networks, such as devices used in the connectee bothe Internet of Everything. Standards, evefad® standards, that develop as these
technologies mature, in particular those that ddmmude a base level of interoperability, may aopour ability to obtain royalties that are
equivalent to those that we receive for 3G produstd in cellular communications. Although we bai¢hat our patented technology is
essential and useful to the commercialization chsservices, the royalties we receive may be Idhem those we receive from our current
licensing program.

Over the long-term, we need to continue to evolwepatent portfolio. If we do not maintain a strqmaytfolio that is applicable to current
and/or future products and/or services, our fuligensing revenues could be negatively impacted.

The licenses granted to and from us under a nuoflbaur license agreements include only patentsateeither filed or issued prior to a
certain date and, in a small number of agreemenysajties are payable on those patents for a Spddifme period. As a result, there are
agreements with some licensees where later paentsot licensed by or to us and/or royalties ateowed to us under such license agreen
after the specified time period. In order to licems to obtain a license to such later patentt) cgceive royalties after the specified time
period, we will need to extend or modify such liseragreements or enter into new license agreemiéhtsuch licensees. We might not be
able to modify those license agreements, or enter i
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new license agreements, in the future without &éfigache material terms and conditions of our leeagreements with such licensees, and
modifications or new agreements may negatively chpar revenues. If we are unable to reach agreeamesuch modifications or new
agreements, it could result in patent infringengigiation with such companies.

Efforts by some communications equipment manufaats or their customers to avoid paying fair and semable royalties for the use
our intellectual property may require the investmenf substantial management time and financial regsoces and may result in legal
decisions and/or actions by governments, courtgulators or agencies, Standards Development Orgatians (SDOs) or other industry
organizations that harm our business.

From time to time, companies initiate various tg#&s to attempt to renegotiate, mitigate andiarieate their need to pay royalties to us
for the use of our intellectual property. Thesatsiies have included: (i) litigation, often allegiinfringement of patents held by such
companies, patent misuse, patent exhaustion, pateidity and/or patent and/or license unenfohity, or some form of unfair competition;
(ii) taking positions contrary to our understandafgheir contracts with us; (iii) appeals to gaverental authorities; (iv) collective action,
including working with wireless operators, standabdies, other like-minded companies and othearorgtions, on both formal and informal
bases, to adopt intellectual property policies pratttices that could have the effect of limitinguras on intellectual property innovations; and
(v) lobbying governmental regulators and electditials for the purpose of seeking the impositidisome form of compulsory licensing
and/or to weaken a patent holder’s ability to ecdats rights or obtain a fair return for such tiggh

In addition, in connection with our participatioan$DOs, we, like other patent owners, generallyeradatractual commitments to such
organizations to license those of our patentswioatld be infringed by standard-compliant productgerms that are fair, reasonable and
nondiscriminatory (FRAND). Some manufacturers asers of standard-compliant products advance irg&pons of these FRAND
commitments that are adverse to our licensing fssinincluding interpretations that would limit #r@ount of royalties that we could collect
on the licensing of our patent portfolio.

Further, some companies or entities have propdgedisant changes to existing intellectual progepblicies for implementation by SD¢
and other industry organizations with the goalighicantly devaluing standards-essential patefts.example, some have put forth proposal
which would require a maximum aggregate intellelgmaperty royalty rate for the use of all essdmi@ents owned by all of the member
companies to be applied to the selling price of product implementing the relevant standard. TreseHurther proposed that such maximum
aggregate royalty rate be apportioned to each meotmepany with essential patents based upon théeuof essential patents held by such
company. Others have proposed that injunctiondeain available remedy for infringement of essépttents and/or have made proposals
that could severely limit damage awards and otheredies by courts for patent infringement (e.g.séyerely limiting the base upon which the
royalty percentage may be applied). A number oféhstrategies are purportedly based on interppagatf the policies of certain SDOs
concerning the licensing of patents that are or beagssential to industry standards and on ouoantiier companies’ alleged failure to abide
by these policies.

Some courts and governmental agencies have adaptechay in the future adopt some or all of theserjimetations or proposals in a
manner adverse to our interests, and SDOs may adoptinterpretations or proposals as so-calladficitions or amendments to their
intellectual property policies.

We expect that such proposals, interpretationsstnatiegies will continue in the future, and if sessful in the future, our business model
would be harmed, either by limiting or eliminatiogr ability to collect royalties on all or a pomi@f our patent portfolio, limiting our return
investment with respect to new technologies, lingitour ability to seek injunctions against infringef our standards-essential patents, or
forcing us to work outside of SDOs or other indysfroups to promote our new technologies, and esults of operations could be negatively
impacted. In addition, the legal and other cost®eiated with asserting or defending our positizage been and continue to be significant. Wi
assume that such challenges, regardless of theitsimeill continue into the foreseeable future amdy require the investment of substantial
management time and financial resources.

The enforcement and protection of our intellectuptoperty rights may be expensive, could fail to yeat misappropriation or unauthorized
use of our proprietary intellectual property rightsould result in the loss of our ability to enfoecone or more patents, or could be adversely
affected by changes in patent laws, by laws in agrtforeign jurisdictions that may not effectivelgrotect our intellectual property rights or
by ineffective enforcement of laws in such juristimns.

We rely primarily on patent, copyright, trademariddrade secret laws, as well as nondisclosureanfidentiality agreements and other
methods, to protect our proprietary informatiochteologies and processes, including our patenfgdiort Policing unauthorized use of our
products, technologies and proprietary informatsodifficult and time consuming. We cannot be derthat the steps we have taken, or may
take in the future, will prevent the misappropoatior unauthorized use of our proprietary informatnd technologies, particularly in foreign
countries where the laws may not protect our petary intellectual property rights as fully or aadily as United States laws or where the
enforcement of such laws may be lacking or ineffectSome industry participants who have a vesigatést in devaluing patents in genera
standards essential patents in particular, haventedwattacks on certain patent systems, increalsetikelihood of changes to
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established patent laws. In the United Statesetisetontinued discussion regarding potential gdéem changes. Many observers anticipate

in the next few years the European Union will adophitary patent system that may broadly impaat tagion’s patent regime. We cannot
predict with certainty the long-term effects of ggtential changes. In addition, we cannot be ettt the laws and policies of any country
or the practices of any standards bodies, foreigiomestic, with respect to intellectual propentjoecement or licensing or the adoption of
standards, will not be changed in the future inag detrimental to our licensing program or to thke ©r use of our products or technology. We
have had, and may continue to have, difficultyeénta@in circumstances in protecting or enforcing iotellectual property rights and/or
contracts, including collecting royalties for udeoar patent portfolio in particular foreign juristions due to, among others: policies of foreigr
governments; challenges to our licensing practiceter such jurisdictions’ competition laws; adoptaf mandatory licensing provisions by
foreign jurisdictions (either with controlled/regtgd royalties or royalty free); failure of foreigourts to recognize and enforce judgments of
contract breach and damages issued by courts ldritied States; and/or challenges pending befaridn competition agencies to the pricing
and integration of additional features and fundaiiy into our chipset products.

We may need to litigate in the United States oswelgere in the world to enforce our intellectualgady rights, protect our trade secrets ol
determine the validity and scope of proprietaritigof others. As a result of any such litigatiwe, could lose our ability to enforce one or
more patents or incur substantial unexpected dpgrabsts. Any action we take to enforce our ietetihal property rights could be costly and
could absorb significant management time and attenivhich, in turn, could negatively impact oureogting results.

Our research, development and other investmentaénw technologies, products and services may notegate operating income or
contribute to future operating results that meet oexpectations.

Our industry is subject to rapid technological amrand we must make substantial research, develupand other investments in new
products, services and technologies to competeesafidly. Technological innovations generally regudignificant research and development
efforts before they are commercially viable. Wesird to continue to make substantial investmentéieweloping new products, services and
technologies that we believe can create stand-alalue and/or contribute to the success of outtiegidbusinesses, and it is possible that thes
initiatives will not be successful and/or will n@tsult in meaningful revenues or generate operaticgme that meets expectations. While we
continue to focus our development efforts primairilsupport of 3G CDMA- and 4G OFDMA-based techigids, we innovate across a broad
spectrum of opportunities that leverage our exgstechnical and business expertise to deploy nesinbss models and enter into new industry
segments. Our recent investment initiatives raatamong others, new display technologies, wisetdmrging technology, small cell
technology and the 1000x data challenge, proximé@ged communications, very high speed connectivithile location awareness and
commerce, mobile health, wearable technology, ggraimd products for the connected home, the di§itasense and the Internet of
Everything.

Our research, development and other investmemtsvintechnologies, products or services may notemetdue to, among others:
improvements in alternate technologies in ways tbdtice the advantages we anticipate from our imasgs; competitorgroducts or service
being more cost effective, having more capabilitiefewer limitations or being brought to markedtéx than our new products and services;
and competitors having longer operating histomeimdustry segments that are new to us. We mayualderestimate the costs of or
overestimate the future operating income and/oginarthat could result from these investments;thede investments may not, or may take
many years to, generate material returns. If owr t@ehnologies, products or services are not sgfue®r are not successful in the time frame
we anticipate, we may incur significant costs and&set impairments, our business may not grow@&@ated, our margins may be negatiy
impacted and/or our reputation may be harmed.

Claims by other companies that we infringe theirt@llectual property could adversely affect our bosss.

From time to time, companies have asserted, andagay assert, patent, copyright and other intielld@roperty rights against our
products or products using our technologies orragaghnologies used in our industry. These claimselresulted and may again result in our
involvement in litigation. We may not prevail inculitigation given the complex technical issued arherent uncertainties in intellectual
property litigation. If any of our products weraufal to infringe on another company’s intellectualgerty rights, we could be subject to an
injunction or required to redesign our productsialittould be costly, or to license such rights angay damages or other compensation to
such other company. If we are unable to redesigmpmducts, license such intellectual property tsgised in our products or otherwise
distribute our products through a licensed supplier could be prohibited from making and sellingtsproducts. In any potential dispute
involving other companies’ patents or other intellal property, our chipset foundries, semiconduassembly and test providers and
customers could also become the targets of libgatiVe are contingently liable under certain pracades, services, license and other
agreements to indemnify certain customers agaeriio types of liability and/or damages arisimgnirqualifying claims of patent
infringement by products or services sold or predithy us. Reimbursements under indemnificatiomgements could have an adverse effect
on our results of operations. Furthermore, any ditightion could severely disrupt the supply of quoducts and the businesses of our chipse
customers and their customers, which in turn cbuld our relationships with them
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and could result in a decline in our chipset saled/or reductions in our licensees’ sales, causiogrresponding decline in our chipset and/or
licensing revenues. Any claims, regardless of thwrit, could be time consuming to address, résudostly litigation, divert the efforts of our
technical and management personnel or cause proglaase or shipment delays, any of which couldetavadverse effect upon our operating
results.

We expect that we may continue to be involvedtigdition and may have to appear in front of adntiats/e bodies (such as the U.S.
International Trade Commission) to defend agaiagtmt assertions against our products by compasvase of whom are attempting to gain
competitive advantage or leverage in licensing tiations. We may not be successful in such procegsdiand if we are not, the range of
possible outcomes includes everything from roypityment to an injunction on the sale of certainwfintegrated circuit products (and on the
sale of our customers’ devices using such produsts) imposition of royalty payments might make gheises of our products less economica
for our customers and could have an adverse affemt our operating results. A negative outcomeninsuch proceeding could severely
disrupt the business of our chipset customers fagid wireless operator customers, which in turnl@darm our relationships with them and
could result in a decline in our share of worldwidigpset sales and/or a reduction in our licensgsg’s to wireless operators, causing
corresponding declines in our chipset and/or lizensevenues.

A number of other companies have claimed to owematapplicable to products implementing variousM@Dstandards, GSM standards
and OFDMA standards. In addition, existing standar@htinue to evolve, and new standards, inclutlinge applicable to new industry
segments, continue to be developed. If future stafsddiminish, or fail to include, a base leveintéroperability, our business may be harmed
and our investments in these new segments mayunoésd. If we or other product manufacturers agaired to obtain additional licenses
and/or pay royalties to one or more of such otlaemt holders, this could have an adverse effeth@ecommercial implementation of our
products and technologies, average sales pricascdfiemand for our licensees’ products and ouitsestioperations.

We depend on a limited number of third-party supgt for the procurement, manufacture and testingair products. If we fail to execute
supply strategies that provide supply assuranceht®logy leadership and low cost, our operating ués and our business may be harme

Our QCT segment purchases wafers, die and fullgrabked and tested integrated circuits from thirtdypsemiconductor manufacturing
foundries. We also contract with third-party supgifor assembly, test and other services relat#fietmanufacture of our products. A
reduction, interruption, delay or limitation in oproduct supply source, a failure by our suppliersrocure raw materials or to provide or
allocate adequate manufacturing or test capaditgdo products or their inability to react to shifb product demand or an increase in raw
material or component prices could have an adwdfeet on our ability to meet customer demands,buginess and/or our profitability. The
loss of a supplier or the inability of a suppliembeet performance or quality specifications oiveéey schedules could harm our ability to meet
our delivery obligations to our customers and/ayatively impact our revenues, business operatiadsaility to compete for future business.
In the event of a loss of or a decision to changepplier, qualifying a new foundry supplier andreoencing volume production or testing
could cause us to incur additional expense andygtaxh delays, resulting in possible loss of custmsn

While we have established alternate suppliersdaiain technologies that we consider critical, g bn sole- or limited-source suppliers
for some products, subjecting us to significarkgisncluding: possible shortages of raw mategalmanufacturing capacity; poor product
performance; and reduced control over delivery doles, manufacturing capability and yields, quadisgurance, quantity and costs. To the
extent we have established alternate suppliersetieppliers may require significant levels of supfo bring complex technologies to
production. As a result, we may invest a signifteamount of effort and resources and incur higlostto support and maintain such alternate
suppliers. Further, any future consolidation ofrfdty suppliers could increase our vulnerabilitgtde- or limited-source arrangements. Our
arrangements with our suppliers may oblige us ¢aricosts to manufacture and test our productddhaibt decrease at the same rate as
decreases in pricing to our customers. Our abdityl that of our suppliers, to develop or mainte&ding process technologies, including
transitions to smaller geometry process technofygiad to effectively compete with the manufacyipnocesses and performance of our
competition, could also impact our ability to meastomer demand, increase our costs and subjécttiis risk of excess inventories. Our
inability to meet customer demand due to soleiwitéd-sourcing and/or the additional costs thatimeeir because of these or other supply
constraints or because of the need to supporhateisuppliers could negatively impact our businessrevenues and our results of operati

Although we have long-term contracts with our sigpl many of these contracts do not provide fogterm capacity commitments. To
the extent that we do not have firm commitmentsfiaur suppliers over a specific time period, ordny specific quantity, our suppliers may
allocate, and in the past have allocated, cap&eitiye production and testing of products for tle¢irer customers while reducing or limiting
capacity to manufacture or test our products. Adioglly, capacity for our products may not be av@#éavhen we need it or at reasonable
prices. To the extent we do obtain long-term cagatmmitments, we may incur additional costs mdab those commitments.
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One or more of our suppliers or potential alterrsatepliers may manufacture CDMA- or OFDMA-base@dnated circuits that compete
with our products. In this event, the supplier coellect to allocate raw materials and manufactucaqacity to their own products and reduc
limit deliveries to us to our detriment. In additjove may not receive reasonable pricing, manufegflor delivery terms. We cannot guarar
that the actions of our suppliers will not caussruptions in our operations that could harm oulitglio meet our delivery obligations to our
customers or increase our cost of sales.

Our stock price and earnings are subject to subgtaihquarterly and annual fluctuations and to markelownturns.

Our stock price and earnings have fluctuated irptist and are likely to fluctuate in the futurecteas that may have a significant impact
on the market price of our stock and/or earningfuote, among others:

« volatility of the stock market in general andheology-based companies in particular that isnofterelated to the operating
performance of any specific public company;

e announcements concerning us, our competitoosiocustomers, including the selection of wirelem®mmunications technologies by
wireless operators and the timing of the roll-ofuthmse technologies, the use of our or our cortgustiintegrated circuits in wireless
devices by certain manufacturers or the businegerpgance of our customers;

« international developments, such as technology ri@sdpolitical developments or changes in econquiicies
» changes in recommendations of securities anz

» fluctuations (or market expectations of fututetfuations) in our operating margins and/or eaysifor forecasts) that exceed or fail to
meet financial guidance that we provide to investord/or the expectations of analysts or investors;

« whether our return of capital to our stockholdeesis, does not meet or exceeds the expectati@rsabfsts or investol

* proprietary rights, product or patent litigatiokea or threatened against us or against our custoondicensee

» strategic transactions, such as debt issuatregegic equity or debt investments, acquisitiatigestitures or spimffs;

» unexpected and/or significant changes in theameeselling prices of our license@sbducts and/or our produc

» unresolved disputes with licensees that resulibin-payment and/or nae€ognition of royalty revenues that may be oweds

» declines in the value or performance of our sigaifit marketable securities portfolio, which is gebfo financial market volatility ar
liquidity, interest rate, credit and other risks; o

» inquiries, rumors or allegations regarding our ficial disclosures, practices or compliance progt

In the past, securities class action litigatiorenfhas been brought against a company followinpgeof volatility in the market price of
its securities. Due to changes in our stock praemay be the target of securities litigation ia fhture. Securities litigation could result in
substantial uninsured costs and divert managemattéstion and resources.

We are subject to government regulations and p@giOur business may suffer as a result of new loarges in laws, regulations or
policies, our failure or inability to comply withdws, regulations or policies or adverse rulingseénforcement or other proceeding

Our business, products and services, and thosgrafustomers and licensees, are subject to valdsusand regulations globally, as well
as government policies and the specifications tefirational, national and regional communicatidasdards bodies. The adoption of new
laws, regulations or policies, changes in the prigation of existing laws, regulations or poligieBanges in the regulation of our activities |
government or standards body and/or adverse ruiingsurt, regulatory, administrative or other predings relating to such laws, regulations
or policies, including, among others, those affegthe use of our technology or products, competitiusiness practices, licensing practices,
protection of intellectual property, trade, foreignestments or loans, spectrum availability acdrse issuance, adoption of standards, the
provision of device subsidies by wireless operatotheir customers, taxation, environmental priddacor employment, could have an adverse
effect on our business. Delays in government apgsoor other governmental activities that coulditefsom, among others, a decrease in or a
lack of funding for certain agencies or branchethefgovernment and/or political changes, couldltés our incurring higher costs, could
negatively impact our ability to timely consummatmategic transactions and/or could have otherthagenpacts on our business and the
businesses of our customers and licensees.

National, state and local environmental laws amlietions affect our operations around the worlieSe laws may make it more
expensive to manufacture, have manufactured ahgreelucts, and our costs could increase if oudees (e.g., third-party manufacturers or
utility companies) pass on their costs to us.
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The SEC has recently adopted disclosure rulesdimpanies that use conflict minerals in their praduwith substantial supply chain
verification requirements in the event that theeriats come from, or could have come from, the Denatic Republic of the Congo or
adjoining countries. These new rules and veriftratequirements, which apply to our activities &lemdar 2013 and future years, impose
additional costs on us and on our suppliers andlimdt/the sources or increase the prices of matersed in our products. Further, if we are
unable to certify that our products are conflietefr we may face challenges with our customersplaae us at a competitive disadvantage, anc
our reputation may be harmed.

Laws, regulations and standards relating to cotpayavernance, business conduct, public disclosndehealth care are complex and
changing and may create uncertainty regarding ceme. Laws, regulations and standards are sulgjeetrying interpretations in many cas
and their application in practice may evolve overet As a result, our efforts to comply may fadyrticularly if there is ambiguity as to how
they should be applied in practice. New laws, ratiohs and standards or evolving interpretationegdl requirements may cause us to incur
higher costs as we revise current practices, gsliahd/or procedures and may divert managementtith@ttention to compliance activities.

We may engage in acquisitions or strategic transacs or make strategic investments that could acedy affect our financial results or fail
to enhance stockholder value.

We engage in acquisitions and strategic transacton make strategic investments with the goalaimizing stockholder value. We
acquire businesses and other assets, includingesdrepectrum, patents and other intangible ass#es; into joint ventures or other strategic
transactions and purchase minority equity intergsts make loans to companies that may be priaatkearlystage. Our strategic activities
generally focused on opening new or expanded oppitigs for our technologies and supporting theégieand introduction of new products
and services for voice and data communications.yMdirour acquisitions or strategic investments ikathigh degree of risk, and investments
may not become liquid for several years after te @f the investment, if at all. Our acquisitiamsstrategic investments may not generate
financial returns or result in increased adoptiosantinued use of our technologies. In some cagesnay be required to consolidate or recor
our share of the earnings or losses of companiedich we have acquired ownership interests. Iritaafg we may record impairment charges
related to our acquisitions and strategic investsielny losses or impairment charges that we inelated to strategic investments or other
transactions will have a negative impact on ouatditial results, and we may continue to incur newadditional losses related to strategic asse
or investments that we have not fully impaired xitesl.

Achieving the anticipated benefits of business &itijons depends in part upon our ability to intggrthe acquired businesses in an
efficient and effective manner. The integratiorcofmpanies that have previously operated indepelydeiaty result in significant challenges,
including, among others: retaining key employeastessfully integrating new employees, businesesysand technology; retaining
customers and suppliers of the acquired businesémiing the diversion of management'’s attentimmi ongoing business matters;
coordinating geographically separate organizatioossolidating research and development operatamsconsolidating corporate and
administrative infrastructures. We may not deriig eommercial value from acquired technology, peidwr intellectual property or from
future technologies or products based on the aedu@chnology and/or intellectual property, andmay be subject to liabilities that are not
covered by indemnification protection we may obtainve may become subject to litigation. Additidpalve may not be successful in
expanding into geographic regions and/or categorfigsoducts served by or adjacent to an acquitsihiess or in addressing potential new
opportunities that may arise out of the combinatidne to our inexperience with products of andeographic regions served by acquired
businesses, we may underestimate the costs and@stimate the benefits, including product aneéodynergies and growth opportunities
we expect to realize, and we may not achieve tliewe do not achieve the anticipated benefits afibeiss acquisitions, our results of
operations may be adversely affected, and we magntance stockholder value by engaging in thesesactions.

Global economic conditions that impact the mobilensmunications industry could negatively affect tidemand for our products and
services and our custome’ or licensees’ products and services, which mayatvely affect our revenues.

A decline in global economic conditions, particlfan geographic regions with high concentratiohsveless voice and data users, coulc
have adverse, wide-ranging effects on demand fopmducts and for the products and services ofaatomers or licensees, particularly
equipment manufacturers or others in the wirelessnsunications industry who buy their products, sashwireless operators. Any prolonged
economic crisis may result in a downturn in demfmdur products or technology; the insolvency ey lsuppliers; delays in reporting and/or
payments from our licensees and/or customers;réaslby counterparties; and negative effects onl@gsedevice inventories. In addition, our
direct and indirect customers’ ability to purchasgay for our products and services, obtain fimagand upgrade their wireless networks
could be adversely affected by economic condititeeging to a reduction, cancelation or delay oeos for our products or services.

Currency fluctuations could negatively affect futarproduct sales or royalty revenues, harm our alilio collect receivables or increase the
U.S. dollar cost of our products or the activitie$ our foreign subsidiaries and strategic investnien
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Our customers sell their products throughout thddvio various currencies. Consolidated revenueshfinternational customers as a
percentage of total revenues were greater thand0#g each of the last three fiscal years. Adversgements in currency exchange rates
may negatively affect our business and our opagatisults due to a number of factors, includingpagothers:

e Our products and those of our customers andsiees that are sold outside the United States mwynte less priceempetitive, whicl
may result in reduced demand for those productfbaddwnward pressure on average selling prices;

»  Certain of our revenues, such as royalties,ahatderived from licensee or customer sales dematad in foreign currencies could
decrease;

«  Our foreign suppliers may raise their pricethdy are impacted by currency fluctuations, resglth higher than expected costs and
lower margins;

» Foreign exchange hedging transactions that \yagmin to reduce the impact of currency fluctusimay require the payment of
structuring fees, limit the U.S. dollar value ofadties from licensees’ sales that are denominatéoreign currencies, cause earnings
volatility if the hedges do not qualify for hedgecaunting and expose us to counterparty risk ifcinenterparty fails to perform; and

e The U.S. dollar value of our marketable securitieg are denominated directly or indirectly in figrecurrencies may declir

Failures in our products or services or in the prodts of our customers, including those resultingpin security vulnerabilities, defects or
errors, could harm our business.

The use of devices containing our products to acaausted content creates a risk of exposingybtem software in those devices to
viral or malicious attacks. While we continue tadis on this issue and are taking measures to safégur products from cybersecurity thre
device capabilities continue to evolve, enablingemata and processes, such as mobile computidgnareasing the risk of security failures.
Further, our products are inherently complex ang owatain defects or errors that are detected whign the products are in use. For example
as our chipset product complexities increase, waeguired to migrate to integrated circuit tecgas with smaller geometric feature sizes.
The design process interface issues in new donoditeshnology are complex and add risk to manufaaguyields and reliability.
Manufacturing, testing, marketing and use of owdpicts and those of our customers and licenseas i risk of product liability. Because
our products and services are responsible focatifunctions in our customers’ products and/omoeks, security failures, defects or errors in
our components, materials or software or in outarasrs’ products could have an adverse impact porusur customers and on the end user
of their products. Such adverse impact could inglpgbduct liability claims or recalls, a decreasdeémand for connected devices and wireles
services, damage to our reputation and to our mestoelationships and other financial liabilitylarm to our business.

Our business and operations could suffer in the avef security breaches.

Attempts by others to gain unauthorized accessitanformation technology systems are increasimgtye sophisticated. These attempts,
which might be related to industrial or other espige, include covertly introducing malware to oomguters and networks and impersonating
authorized users, among others. We seek to detddhaestigate all security incidents and to preévbair recurrence, but in some cases, we
might be unaware of an incident or its magnitudea effiects. While we have identified several incigesf unauthorized access, to date none
have caused material damage to our business. €fteuhauthorized use or publication of our inteile&l property and/or confidential business
information could harm our competitive positionduee the value of our investment in research ardldpment and other strategic initiatives
and/or otherwise adversely affect our businesgsh&aextent that any security breach results inpnagriate disclosure of our customers’ or
licensees’ confidential information, we may inciability. We expect to continue to devote additioresources to the security of our
information technology systems.

Potential tax liabilities could adversely affect ouesults of operations

We are subject to income taxes in the United Statesnumerous foreign jurisdictions. Significardgment is required in determining our
provision for income taxes. Although we believetthar tax estimates are reasonable, the final aetation of tax audits and any related
litigation could materially differ from amounts te€ted in historical income tax provisions and aats. In such case, our income tax provision
and results of operations in the period or perindghich that determination is made could be negétiaffected.

Our QCT segment’s nodnited States headquarters is located in Singapdecobtained tax incentives in Singapore provided tve mee
specified employment and incentive criteria, and assult of expiration of these incentives, ourg@pore tax rate is expected to increase in
fiscal 2017 and again in fiscal 2027. If we do ma&tet the criteria required to
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retain such incentives, our Singapore tax rateccmdrease prior to those dates, and our resultpefations may be adversely affected.

Tax rules may change in a manner that adversedgtafour future reported financial results or ttaywwe conduct our business. For
example, we consider the operating earnings oitenon-United States subsidiaries to be indefiniterested outside the United States base
on our current needs for those earnings to be ested offshore as well as estimates that futureedtimcash generation will be sufficient to
meet future domestic cash needs for the foreseéabie. No provision has been made for UnitedeSté¢deral and state or foreign taxes that
may result from future remittances of the undistréldl earnings of these foreign subsidiaries. Owréufinancial results and liquidity may be
adversely affected if tax rules regarding unrepétd earnings change, if domestic cash needs eeggiito repatriate foreign earnings, or if the
United States international tax rules change asgf@omprehensive tax reform or other tax legisfat

If wireless devices pose safety risks, we may ligesti to new regulations, and demand for our prodsi@and those of our customers al
licensees may decrease.

Concerns over the effects of radio frequency emmsscontinue. Interest groups have requestedhbdtederal Communications
Commission investigate claims that wireless comizations technologies pose health concerns and datesterence with, among other
things, airbags, hearing aids and medical devared there continues to be litigation in the indusiith respect to these issues. Legislation tha
may be adopted in response to these concerns ersednews or findings about safety risks could cediemand for our products and those of
our licensees and customers in the United Stateekh®as in foreign countries.

We may not be able to attract and retain qualifiethployees.

Our future success depends largely upon the cardisarvice of our executive officers and other keynagement and technical personnel
and on our ability to continue to attract, retai anotivate qualified personnel. In addition, impénting our business strategy requires
specialized engineering and other talent, and etgrnues are highly dependent on technological ewdlipt innovations. The market for
employees in our industry is extremely competitiverther, existing immigration laws make it mor#idult for us to recruit and retain highly
skilled foreign national graduates of universiiieshe United States, making the pool of availahlent even smaller. We continue to anticipat:
increases in human resource needs, particulagpdgineering. If we are unable to attract and regaialified employees, our business may be
harmed.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

At September 29, 2013, we occupied the indicatiedu footage in the owned or leased facilitiesidiesd below (square footage in

thousands):
Number Total
of Square
Buildings Location Status Footage Primary Use Primary Segment(s)
35 United States Owned 4,66( Executive and administrative offices, research and All
development, sales and marketing, service functions
manufacturing and network management hub.
50 United States Leased 1,80¢ Administrative offices, research and developmealgsand All
marketing, service functions and network managerneht
2 Taiwan Owned 1,82¢ Administrative offices, research and development, QMT, QCT
manufacturing and sales and marketing.
9 India Leased 67€ Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT
and marketing.
15 China Leased 38€ Administrative offices, research and developmesigsand All
marketing, service functions and network operatiegters.
7 Taiwan Leased 137 Administrative offices, research and development sales QMT
and marketing.
3 India Owned 13€ Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT
and marketing.
7 Canada Leased 134 Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT, Omnitracs
and marketing.
5 Israel Leased 12€ Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT, QTL
and marketing.
3 Mexico Leased 11¢  Administrative offices, sales and marketing, sezvic QWI, QTL
functions, manufacturing and network management hub
3 South Korea Leased 99 Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT
and marketing.
2 Singapore Leased 62  Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT
and marketing.
4 England Leased 55 Administrative offices, research and developmentsales QCT
and marketing.
7 Germany Leased 48 Administrative offices, research and development sales QCT, QTL
and marketing.
39 Other Leased 17z Administrative offices, research and developmentsales All
International and marketing.
10,43¢

Total square footage

In addition to the facilities above, we own or leapproximately 4,000 square feet of propertiesataleased or subleased to third parties
Our facility leases expire at varying dates thro289, not including renewals that would be ataption.

Several owned and leased facilities are under ngot&in totaling approximately 468,000 additionqliare feet to meet the requirements
projected in our long-term business plan. In cotinaavith our intention to license our next genematinterferometric modulator
(IMOD) display technology in the future, while ditey commercializing only certain IMOD products, &ee evaluating strategic options for
one of our manufacturing facilities in Taiwan, whioclude, but are not limited to, operating theilfey in support of our commercialization
efforts and/or a sale to, or joint venture withrdtparties.

We believe that our facilities will be suitable asdequate for the present purposes and that tieigiree capacity in facilities that are not
under construction is substantially utilized. le flature, we may need to purchase, build or leddéianal facilities to meet the requirements
projected in our long-term business plan.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Tessera, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporate®n April 17, 2007, Tessera filed a patent infengent lawsuit in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas and a caimplwith the United States International Trade @dssion (ITC) pursuant to Section 337 of
the Tariff Act of 1930 against us and other companalleging infringement of two patents. The @istourt action was stayed pending
resolution of the ITC proceeding, including all apfs. On May 20, 2009, the ITC issued a limitedwesion order and a cease and desist ordel
both of which were terminated when the patentsredpdn September 24, 2010. During the period okkwtusion order, we shifted supply of
accused chips for customers who manufacture predibat may be imported to the United States toemBed supplier of Tessera, and we
continued to supply those customers without infgiom. The ITC’s orders were affirmed on appeatl an November 28, 2011, the United
States Supreme Court denied our petition for review January 18, 2012, pursuant to the partigstkstiion, the District Court in the Eastern
District of Texas lifted the stay and ordered tthat case be moved to the United States DistrictiGouthe Northern District of California. On
March 1, 2012, that court consolidated the cashk aiitearlier-filed lawsuit filed by Tessera agamsitiple parties, including some of our
semiconductor chip package suppliers. The coursbaspril 24, 2014 as the hearing date for clabmsstruction and any summary judgment
motions that may be filed. Trial is scheduled farglist 25, 2014. Tessera may continue to seek dlleast damages in the district court, but it
cannot obtain injunctive relief due to the expimatbf the patents.

MOSAID Technologies Incorporated v. Dell, Inc. et ©®n March 16, 2011, MOSAID filed a complaint agaiAtheros Communications,
Inc. (Atheros Communications), which we acquired/iay 2011 and renamed Qualcomm Atheros, Inc. (Quata Atheros), and 32 other
entities in the United States District Court foe thastern District of Texas alleging that certainRiMoroducts infringed six MOSAID patents
and seeking damages for the relevant statutorpgerior to May 2011. On July 17, 2013, we entén¢d an agreement with MOSAID
pursuant to which MOSAID agreed to dismiss withjyuléee all claims against us, licensed to us cem&DSAID patents and provided other
considerations, and we paid to MOSAID an amourtt\es not material to our financial statements. @twrt dismissed the claims against us
with prejudice on August 2, 2013.

ParkerVision, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporate®n July 20, 2011, ParkerVision filed a complaighinst us in the United States District
Court for the Middle District of Florida allegingat certain of our products infringe seven of asents alleged to cover direct dowonversior
receivers. ParkerVision's complaint sought damageksinjunctive and other relief. On February 28 2®ParkerVision filed an amended
complaint dropping two patents from the case amtirgdone new patent. On January 22, 2013, the goanted in part ParkerVision’s motion
to dismiss our counterclaim for inequitable condaaid we subsequently withdrew the remainder ofireeguitable conduct counterclaim. On
February 20, 2013, the court issued its claim cantbn order. We filed our amended answer and @yalaims on April 11, 2013.
Subsequently, ParkerVision narrowed its allegatioressert only four patents. The trial began otoler 7, 2013. On October 17, 2013, the
jury returned a verdict finding all asserted claiofishe four e-issue patents to be infringed and finding thatenohthe asserted claims are
invalid. On October 24, 2013, the jury returnecpasate verdict assessing total past damages ahaptely $173 million and finding that
our infringement was not willful. We recorded a $1iillion charge in other expenses in fiscal 208 &aesult of this verdict. The court will
a schedule for post-verdict proceedings, includiregparties’ respective motions for judgment asaéten of law and ParkerVision’s request for
ongoing equitable relief. We intend to appeal.

Icera Complaint to the European Commissiddn June 7, 2010, the European Commission (thendission) notified and provided us
with a redacted copy of a complaint filed with themmission by Icera, Inc. alleging that we haveagegl in anticompetitive activity. We were
asked by the Commission to submit a preliminarpoese to the portions of the complaint disclosedstoand we submitted our response in
July 2010. On October 19, 2011, the Commissiorfirdtus that we should provide to the Commissiadittwhal documents and information.
On January 16, 2012, we provided additional docusand information in response to that requestJ@y 10, 2013, the Commission ordered
us to provide additional documents and informatiée. continue to cooperate fully with the Commis&aqureliminary investigation.

Korea Fair Trade Commission (KFTC) Complaif®n January 4, 2010, the KFTC issued a writtensitat finding that we had violated
South Korean law by offering certain discounts esfthtes for purchases of our CDMA chips and foluiiag in certain agreements language
requiring the continued payment of royalties aftitticensed patents have expired. The KFTC leddithe, which we paid in the second que
of fiscal 2010. We appealed to the Seoul High Gamtl on June 19, 2013, the Seoul High Court affitithe KFTC’s decision. On July 4,
2013, we filed an appeal with the Korea SupremerCou

Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) Complaiithe JFTC received unspecified complaints alledfiray our business practices are, in
some way, a violation of Japanese law. On Septe@he2009, the JFTC issued a cease and desistaodeluding that our Japanese licensee
were forced to cross-license patents to us on atsefree basis and were forced to accept a provisiaieuwhich they agreed not to assert t
essential patents against our other licensees vettte @
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similar commitment in their license agreements wishThe cease and desist order seeks to requicenusdify our existing license agreements
with Japanese companies to eliminate these prawsidile preserving the license of our patenthitsé companies. We disagree with the
conclusions that we forced our Japanese licenseggrée to any provision in the parties’ agreemantsthat those provisions violate the
Japanese Antimonopoly Act. We have invoked ourtrigtder Japanese law to an administrative heaefigrd the JFTC. In February 2010, the
Tokyo High Court granted our motion and issueday sf the cease and desist order pending the astmgitive hearing before the JFTC. The
JFTC has held hearings on 19 different dates, avitither hearing scheduled for January 22, 2014ddiional hearing dates yet to be
scheduled.

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) FormaéQutiPrivate Investigation and Department of Jestinvestigation On Septembe
8, 2010, we were notified by the SEC’s Los Ang&tegional office of a formal order of private invgstion. We understand that the
investigation arose from a “whistleblower’s” allé¢igams made in December 2009 to the audit commdferir Board of Directors and to the
SEC. In 2010, the audit committee completed anniafereview of the allegations with the assistasicmdependent counsel and independent
forensic accountants. This internal review intohastleblower’s allegations and related accounpragtices did not identify any errors in our
financial statements. On January 27, 2012, we éshtinat the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the SouthBiistrict of California/Department of
Justice (collectively, DOJ) had begun an invesiigategarding our compliance with the Foreign Cptfaractices Act (FCPA). FCPA
compliance is also a focus of the SEC investigafidre audit committee continues to conduct an tiratiereview into our compliance with the
FCPA with the assistance of independent counseiratependent forensic accountants.

As previously disclosed, we have discovered, aral @art of our ongoing cooperation with these itigasions have informed the SEC and
the DOJ of, instances in which special hiring cdasation, gifts or other benefits (collectively nledits) were provided to several individuals
associated with Chinese statened companies or agencies. Based on the fagentiyrknown, we believe the aggregate monetaryeraf the
benefits in question to be less than $250,000uelka) employment compensation. We are continuingptiperate with the SEC and the DOJ,
but are unable to predict the outcome of their tigations.

We will continue to vigorously defend ourselveghe foregoing matters. However, litigation and istigations are inherently uncertain.
Accordingly, we cannot predict the outcome of thesdters. Other than the amount recorded for thkdPdision verdict, we have not recorc
any accrual at September 29, 2013 for contingessiele associated with these matters based on @eirthalk losses, while possible, are not
probable. Further, any possible range of loss da@oeasonably estimated at this time. Nonethgtheaunfavorable resolution of one or more
of these matters could have a material adversetedfeour business, results of operations, findrcadition or cash flows. We are engaged in
numerous other legal actions not described abdsma@rin the ordinary course of our business arfdlerthere can be no assurance, we believ
the ultimate outcome of these other legal actioiisnat have a material adverse effect on our bessn results of operations, financial condi
or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globaé8eMarket under the symbol “QCOM.” The followirgpte sets forth the range of
high and low sales prices of our common stockHterftscal periods indicated, as reported by NASD&Qch quotations represent inter-dealer
prices without retail markup, markdown or commissémd may not necessarily represent actual transact

High ($) Low ($)

2012
First quarter 57.97 46.40
Second quarter 67.00 54.01
Third quarter 68.87 54.85
Fourth quarter 64.45 53.09

2013
First quarter 64.72 57.29
Second quarter 68.50 60.22
Third quarter 67.66 59.46
Fourth quarter 70.37 59.02

At November 4, 2013 , there were 8,067 holdergobrd of our common stock. On November 4, 2018 Jdkt sale price reported on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market for our common stocksv&9.57 per shar

Dividends

On March 6, 2012, we announced an increase inwanteyly dividend from $0.215 to $0.25 per shareafimon stock. On March 5, 2013,
we announced an increase in our quarterly dividesrd $0.25 to $0.35 per share of common stock. @astends paid on outstanding
common stock announced in fiscal 2012 and 2013 affellows (in millions, except per share data):

Cumulative
Per Share Total by Fiscal Year
2012
First quarter $ 0.21t % 36z $ 362
Second quarter 0.21t 36€ 72€
Third quarter 0.25( 42¢ 1,157
Fourth quarter 0.25(C 42€ 1,58:
$ 0.93C $ 1,58:
2013
First quarter $ 0.25( $ 428 $ 42¢
Second quarter 0.25(C 431 85¢
Third quarter 0.35( 604 1,46%
Fourth quarter 0.35( 592 2,05k
$ 1.20C $ 2,05¢

On October 24, 2013, we announced a cash dividefil.35 per share of common stock, payable on Dbee 19, 20130 stockholders ¢
record as of December 2, 2013 . We intend to caoatio pay quarterly dividends subject to capitalilability and our view that cash dividends
are in the best interests of our stockholders. feutividends may be affected by, among other itemsyiews on potential future capital
requirements, including those relating to researahdevelopment, creation and expansion of sas#shdition channels and investments and
acquisitions, legal risks, stock repurchase progratabt issuance, changes in federal and statmmtax law and changes to our business
model.
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Share-Based Compensation

We primarily issue restricted stock units under eguity compensation plans, which are part of adoased, long-term retention program
that is intended to attract and retain talentedleyges and directors and align stockholder and eyag! interests.

Our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2006 Plan) piesifor the grant of both incentive and non-quedifstock options, restricted stock
units, stock appreciation rights, restricted stgekformance units and shares and other dbasled awards. Restricted stock units generally
over periods of three years from the date of gi@tuck options are granted at a price not less ttafair market value of the stock on the date
of grant. Stock options vest over periods not edteefive years and are exercisable for up to 1dryérom the grant date. The Board of
Directors may terminate the 2006 Plan at any time.

Additional information regarding our share-basethpensation plans and plan activity for fiscal 202812 and 2011 is provided in the
notes to our consolidated financial statementhismAnnual Report in “Notes to Consolidated FinahStatements, Note 6. Employee Benefit
Plans” and in our 2014 Proxy Statement under tlagling “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Issuer purchases of equity securities during thetfioquarter of fiscal 2013 were:

Total Number of Shares  Approximate Dollar Value of

Average Price Purchased as Part of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Paid Per Share  Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans or
Shares Purchased Q) or Programs (2) Programs (2)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In millions)
July 1, 2013, to July 28, 2013 8,65 $ 60.9:2 8,65 $ 3,43t
July 29, 2013 to August 25, 2013 22,57 65.6¢ 22,57 1,954
August 26, 2013 to September 29, 2013 19,46( 67.4% 19,46( 4,85(
Total 50,68: 65.5¢ 50,681 g 4,85(

(1) Average Price Paid Per Share excludes cash paabfomission:
(2) On September 11, 2013, we announced a new reperphagram authorizing us to repurchase up to $8i0rbof our common stock. The stock repurch

program has no expiration date. This stock repwelpgogram replaced the previous $5.0 billion stegkirchase program announced on March 5, 201
September 29, 2013, $4.9 billion remained avagldd repurchase.

Performance Measurement Comparison of Stockholder &urn

The following graph compares total stockholdermetmn our common stock since September 28, 2008dadndices: the Standard &
Poor’s 500 Stock Index (S&P 500) and the NASDAQ-Iriflex (NASDAQ-100). The S&P 500 tracks the aggtegaice performance of the
equity securities of 500 United States companitectad by Standard & Poor’s Index Committee toudel companies in leading industries ant
to reflect the United States stock market. The NA®BLOO tracks the aggregate price performance®fLd0 largest domestic and
international non-financial securities listed o tHASDAQ Stock Market based on market capitalizatio

The total return for our stock and for each indssumes the reinvestment of gross dividends anasisdoon the returns of the component
companies. We began paying dividends on our conmstamk on March 31, 2003. Our common stock is tramethe NASDAQ Global Select
Market and is a component of each of the S&P 5@Dtha NASDAQ-100.
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Comparison of Cumulative Total Return on InvestmentSince
September 28, 200§)
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(1) Shows the cumulative total return on investmentiassg an investment of $100 (including reinvestrrardividends) in our common stock, the S&P
500 and the NASDAQ-100 on September 28, 2008.&4llms are reported as of our fiscal year end, lwisithe last Sunday in September.

Our closing stock price on September 27, 2013la$ietrading day of our 2013 fiscal year, was $87h8r share.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following data should be read in conjunctiothvthe annual consolidated financial statementatae notes and other financial

information appearing elsewhere herein.

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues

Operating income

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net income attributable to Qualcomm

Per Share Data:

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to
Qualcomm:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income

Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to

Qualcomm:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income

Dividends per share announced

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities

Total assets

Loans and debentures (2)
Capital lease obligations
Other long-term liabilities (3)
Total stockholders’ equity

Years Ended (1)

September 29, September 30, September 25, September 26, September 27,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In millions, except per share data)
24,86t 3 19,12: % 14,957 10,98: $ 10,381
7,23( 5,68: 5,02¢ 3,721 2,542
6,84¢ 5,28: 4,55¢ 3,52( 1,79z
— 77€ (313 (273 (200)
6,85: 6,10¢ 4,26( 3,247 1,592
39¢ $ 312 % 2.7¢ 218 $ 1.0¢
— 0.4t (0.129 (0.19) (0.12)
3.9¢ 3.5¢ 2.57 1.9¢ 0.9¢
3.91 3.0¢ 2.7C 2.1z 1.07
— 0.4t (0.18) (0.16) (0.12)
3.91 3.51 2.52 1.9¢ 0.9t
1.2C 0.9 0.81 0.7z 0.6€
29,40¢ % 26,837 % 20,91 18,40: $ 17,74:
45,51¢ 43,01: 36,42 30,57: 27,44
— 1,06¢ 994 1,08¢ —
17 6C 17C 221 187
53¢ 36€ 45(C 54C 66E
36,08: 33,54¢ 26,97 20,85¢ 20,31¢

(1) Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in Septeriibe fiscal years ended September 29, 2013, Sbeie25, 2011, September 26, 2010 and Septembe

27, 2009 each included 52 weeks. The fiscal yede@iSeptember 30, 2012 included 53 weeks.
(2) Loans and debentures were included in liabilitiefs fior sale in the consolidated balance sheet 8gptember 30, 201

(3) Other long-term liabilities in this balance sheatadexclude capital lease obligations and uneamazhues. Capital lease obligations are includexdtiar

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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Item 7. Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

In addition to historical information, the followgrdiscussion contains forward-looking statemenrds dine subject to risks and uncertainties
Actual results may differ materially from thoseewgd to herein due to a number of factors, indgdiut not limited to risks described in the
section entitled Risk Factors and elsewhere inAhisual Report.

Overview

Recent Developments

Revenues for fiscal 2013 were $24.9 billion , witt income attributable to Qualcomm of $6.9 billiomhich primarily resulted from the
following key items:

*  We shipped approximately 716 million Mobile &atModem (MSM) integrated circuits for CDMA- and~OMA-based wireless
devices, an increase of 21%, compared to approglynad0 million MSM integrated circuits in fiscaD22 .

» Total reported device sales were approximat2BA$® billion, an increase of approximately 23%mpared to approximately
$187.3 billion in fiscal 2012%

Against this backdrop, the following recent devetemts occurred during fiscal 2013 with respectep &élements of our business or our
industry:

«  Worldwide cellular connections grew by approxieta 6% to reach approximately 6.8 billidA.

»  Worldwide 3G connections (all CDMA-based) greyvapproximately 18% to approximately 2.2 billionhish was approximately
32% of total cellular subscriptions, including aggmately 0.5 billion CDMA2000 1X/1XEV-DO subscriphs and approximately
1.7 billion WCDMA/HSPA/TD-SCDMA subscription€

(1) Total reported device sales is the sum afeglbrted sales in U.S. dollars (as reported toyusub licensees) of all licensed CDMA-based, OFDMased
and CDMA/OFDMA multimode subscriber devices (inéhgihandsets, modules, modem cards and other siodasdevices) by our licensees during a
particular period (collectively, 3G/4G devices).tNdl licensees report sales the same way (e.medicensees report sales net of permitted dechgtio
including transportation, insurance, packing casis other items, while other licensees report satesthen identify the amount of permitted dedungim
their reports), and the way in which licensees regpach information may change from time to timetal reported device sales for a particular penay
include prior period activity that was not reportgdthe licensee until such particular period.

(2) According to GSMA Intelligence estimates as of Naber 4, 2013, for the quarter ended September@B gstimates excluded Wireless Local Lc
Our Business and Operating Segments

We design, manufacture, have manufactured on dwlband market digital communications products s@ivices based on CDMA,
OFDMA and other technologies. We derive revenuascjprally from sales of integrated circuit prodydized license fees (payable in one or
more installments) and ongoing royalties for usewfintellectual property, and fees for messagind other services and related hardware
sales, software development and licensing, antlcekservices and software hosting services. Cost®gpenses primarily consist of cost of
equipment and services revenues and research aathpment and selling, general and administratikeases.

We conduct business primarily through four repdeaegments: QCT, QTL, QWI and QSI. Our reportalelgments are operated by
QUALCOMM Incorporated and its direct and indireabsidiaries. At the beginning of fiscal 2013, wengdeted a corporate reorganization in
which certain assets of QUALCOMM Incorporated, a&dlas the stock of certain of its direct and iedirsubsidiaries, were contributed to its
wholly-owned subsidiary Qualcomm Technologies, [GET1). QTL continues to be operated by QUALCOMMdmporated, which continues
to own the vast majority of our patent portfoliatStantially all of our products and services besses, including QCT, and substantially all o
our engineering, research and development functemesoperated by QTI and its subsidiaries. NeiiE nor any of its subsidiaries has any
right, power or authority to grant any licensestirer rights under or to any patents owned by QUAMM Incorporated.

QCT (Qualcomm CDMA Technologies) is a leading depel and supplier of integrated circuits and sysdeftware based on CDMA,
OFDMA and other technologies for use in voice aath&dommunications, networking, application proceganultimedia and global
positioning system products. QCT’s integrated dirptoducts and system software are sold to onfed to manufacturers that use our
products in wireless devices, particularly mobit®pes, tablets, laptops, data modules, handhetdess computers and gaming devices, a
points and routers, data cards and infrastructyugenent, and in wired devices, particularly broadh gateway equipment, desktop compu
televisions, set-top boxes and Blu-ray players. MI$M integrated circuits, which include the Mobidata Modem, Qualcomm Single Chip
and Qualcomm
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Snapdragon processor devices, perform the cordaadenodem functionality in wireless devices provgdvoice and data communications
well as multimedia applications and global posiitignfunctions. In addition, our Snapdragon procespoovide advanced application and
graphics processing capabilities. QCT’s systemnsrft enables the other device components to icteifdth the integrated circuit products
and is the foundation software enabling manufacsuiedevelop devices utilizing the functionalitjthin the integrated circuits. QCT revenues
comprised 67%, 63% and 59% of total consolidatedmaes in fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respegtivel

QCT utilizes a fabless production business modeickvmeans that we do not own or operate foundoiethe production of silicon wafe
from which our integrated circuits are made. In&ed circuits are die cut from silicon wafers thave been assembled into packages or
modules and have completed the final test manufiagtprocesses. We rely on independent third-psuppliers to perform the manufacturing
and assembly, and most of the testing, of our mateg circuits based primarily on our proprietaegidns and test programs. Our suppliers are
also responsible for the procurement of most ofélve materials used in the production of our inéea circuits. We employ both turnkey and
two-stage manufacturing models to purchase ougiated circuits. Turnkey is when our foundry supgiare responsible for delivering fully
assembled and tested integrated circuits. Undemthestage manufacturing model, we purchase wafiedsdie from semiconductor
manufacturing foundries and contract with sepatftd-party suppliers for probe, assembly and $estices.

QTL (Qualcomm Technology Licensing) grants licensestherwise provides rights to use portions afiatellectual property portfolio,
which, among other rights, includes certain patighits essential to and/or useful in the manufacturd sale of certain wireless products,
including, without limitation, products implemengi€DMA2000, WCDMA, CDMA TDD (including TDSCDMA), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/
OFDMA standards and their derivatives. QTL licegsiavenues are comprised of license fees as wedlyadties based on sales by licensee
products incorporating or using our intellectuadgerty. License fees are fixed amounts paid inanmaore installments. Royalties are
generally based upon a percentage of the wholésalglicensee’s) selling price of complete liced$roducts, net of certain permissible
deductions (e.g., certain shipping costs, packosis; VAT, etc.). QTL recognizes royalty revenuasdal on royalties reported by licensees
during the quarter and when other revenue recagndtiteria are met. Licensees, however, do nairtegnd pay royalties owed for sales in
given quarter until after the conclusion of thaadar. QTL revenues comprised 30%, 33% and 36%taf tonsolidated revenues in fiscal
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. The vast ritgjof such revenues were generated through oengees’ sales of CDMA2000- and
WCDMA-based products, such as feature phones aadgnones.

QWI (Qualcomm Wireless & Internet), which includas Omnitracs, QIS, QGOV and QRS divisions, gemsragvenues primarily throu
sales of products, services (including softwaresttgyment) and software aimed at the support aridedglof wireless applications. Omnitracs
sells integrated wireless systems and servicaamsportation and logistics companies to managedbsets and workforce. On August 21,
2013, we entered into a definitive agreement umdech we agreed to sell the North and Latin Ameriogerations of Omnitracs to a U.S.-
based private equity firm for $800 million in cashbject to the terms and conditions of the defi@iagreement. The transaction is subject to
customary closing conditions, including receiptedulatory approvals, and is expected to closherfitst quarter of fiscal 2014. We expect to
record the gain on sale, net of income taxes,disc@ntinued operation upon close. However, themaes and operating results were not
presented as a discontinued operation in any fige@bd because they were immaterial. QIS (Qualcdntarnet Services) provides content
enablement services for the wireless industry pigiclg its Brew, Plaza and other products and sesviQlS also provides QChat push-to-talk
and other software products and services for wisetgerators. QGOV (Qualcomm Government Technadpgivides development and ot
services and related products involving wirelessmmuinications technologies to government agencidgtair contractors. QRS (Qualcomm
Retail Solutions) builds and manages software agfitins that enable certain mobile locatawareness and commerce services. QWI reve
comprised 2%, 3% and 4% of total consolidated reeern fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

QSI (Qualcomm Strategic Initiatives) makes stratégvestments that we believe may open new or ekpaportunities for our
technologies, support the design and introductfamear products and services for voice and data conications or possess unigue capabil
or technology. Many of these strategic investmantsin early-stage companies. QSI also holds véisedpectrum. As part of our strategic
investment activities, we intend to pursue variexis strategies from each of our QSI investmensoate point in the future. During the third
quarter of fiscal 2013, we deconsolidated subsiiahat were established to operate a wirelessanktin India using broadband wireless
access spectrum (the BWA subsidiaries) due to subat resulted in a change in control of thesasiglidries. The former BWA subsidiaries
were merged into one entity on August 5, 2013,@n@ctober 17, 2013, all of our interest in the agnimg former subsidiary was sold.

Nonreportable segments are comprised of our QMTal€@mm MEMS Technologies) division and other digplaireless technology and
service initiatives that include, but are not ligdgitto: low power consumption, high optical perfonte flat display modules; medical device
connectivity and related data management; augmeagdidy; and device-to-device communication. QMdhtinues to develop an
interferometric modulator (IMOD) display technolobgised on micro-electro-mechanical-systems (MEM8E&ire combined with thin film
optics.
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Discontinued Operations

On March 27, 2011, the FLO TV business and netwagie shut down. On December 27, 2011, we compteedale of substantially all
our 700 MHz spectrum for $1.9 billion, and as auligsve recognized a gain in discontinued operatioh$1.2 billion during fiscal 2012. The
results of the discontinued FLO TV operations wasdollows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 30, September 25,
2012 2011
Revenues $ — § 5
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 1,20 % (507)
Income tax (expense) benefit (427) 194
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ 77€ 8 (319

Looking Forward

The deployment of 3G networks has enabled increasied capacity and higher data rates than prioegaion networks, thereby
supporting more minutes of use and a wide rangeatfile broadband data applications for handsets;@®ected computing devices and
other consumer electronics. According to the Glababile Suppliers Association (GSA), as of Octod@t 3, to complement their existing 3G
networks, more than 220 wireless operators haviogeg and more than 420 wireless operators arenjrigrio deploy OFDMA-based
technology, often called 4G, in new wireless speutto gain additional capacity for data services.afresult, we expect continued growth in
the coming years in consumer demand for 3G and@@#dltimode products and services around the world.

As we look forward to the next several months,féllewing items are likely to have an impact on duisiness:

e The worldwide transition from 2G to 3G and 3G/A&works is expected to continue, including thehier expansion of 3G in
emerging regions, such as China. We expect thartheth of low-tier smartphone products will cobtrte to such expansion.

»  We expect consumer demand for advanced 3G aMi3@ultimode devices, including smartphones and-dantric devices, to
continue at a strong pace.

»  We expect that CDMA-based device prices willtomne to vary broadly due to the increased peretraif smartphones combined
with active competition throughout the world atm@iice tiers. Additionally, varying rates of econergrowth by region and stronger
growth of CDMA-based device shipments in emergegjans, as compared to developed regions, are &xptrcontinue to impact
the average and range of selling prices of CDMAedasevices.

«  We continue to invest significant resources taadvancements to 3G, 3G/4G and 4G LTE (an OFDMsgeld standard)
technologies, audio and video codecs, wirelesshiaaskechips, our converged computing/communicat{@nsipdragon) chips,
multimedia products, software and services. Weats®@ investing across a broad spectrum of oppditsrthat leverage our existing
technical and business expertise to deploy newnbasimodels and enter into new industry segmarth,as our IMOD and other
display technologies; 3G/LTE and Wi-Fi productsigesd for implementation of small cells and the @0@ata challenge; wireless
charging; proximity-based communications; very higleed connectivity; mobile location awarenesscamdmerce; mobile health;
wearable technology; gaming; and products for treected home, the digital 6th sense and the letefrEverything.

In addition to the foregoing business and markeedamatters, we continue to devote resources tkimgpwith and educating participants
in the wireless value chain as to the benefitsunflmsiness model in promoting a highly competitimel innovative wireless industry.
However, we expect that certain companies may eoetto be dissatisfied with the need to pay redsdemrayalties for the use of our
technology and not welcome the success of our besimodel in enabling new, highly cost-effectivenpetitors to their products. We expect
that such companies will continue to challengelmsginess model in various forums throughout thddvor

Further discussion of risks related to our busimegsesented in the Risk Factors included in Amiaual Report.
Critical Accounting Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our results of dfmera and liquidity and capital resources are basedur consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordegititaccounting principles generally accepted i thnited States. The preparation of thes
financial statements requires us to make estinatdgudgments that affect the reported amountssdta, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilit@ss an ongoing basis,
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we evaluate our estimates and judgments, incluttioge related to revenue recognition, valuatioimi@angible assets and investments, income
taxes and litigation. We base our estimates ofigsti and anticipated results and trends and oiowsother assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, including gssums as to future events. These estimates foenbdisis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities thatreoereadily apparent from other sources. By thature, estimates are subject to an inherent
degree of uncertainty. Although we believe thatestimates and the assumptions supporting oursaasess are reasonable, actual results the
differ from our estimates could have a significadverse effect on our operating results and firsdmpasition. We believe that the following
significant accounting estimates may involve a bigtiegree of judgment and complexity than others.

Revenue RecognitionVe derive revenue principally from sales of integdacircuit products and licensing of our intelledtproperty. The
timing of revenue recognition and the amount okraie actually recognized in each case dependsaipariety of factors, including the
specific terms of each arrangement and the nafuraraleliverables and obligations.

We license or otherwise provide rights to use paogiof our intellectual property portfolio, whialicludes certain patent rights essential to
and/or useful in the manufacture and sale of aextd@ieless products. Licensing revenues includenke fees (payable in one or more
installments) and ongoing royalties based on lieesssales of products incorporating or using menised intellectual property. License fees
are recognized over the estimated period of beagftie license to the licensee, typically 5 toygars . From time to time, licensees will not
report royalties timely due to legal disputes dreptreasons, and when this occurs, the timing antpbarability of royalty revenues could be
affected.

Valuation of Intangible Assets and Investmen®ur business acquisitions typically result in teearding of goodwill and other intangible
assets, and the recorded values of those assetisanagne impaired in the future. We also acquiranigible assets in other types of
transactions. At September 29, 2013 , our goodmill other intangible assets, net of accumulatedtamation, were $4.0 billion and $2.6
billion , respectively. The determination of théueof such intangible assets requires managernanake estimates and assumptions that
affect our consolidated financial statements. Rtarigible assets purchased in a business combin#i® estimated fair values of the assets
received are used to establish their recorded safumr intangible assets acquired in a non-monetarfiange, the estimated fair values of the
assets transferred (or the estimated fair valu#iseofssets received, if more clearly evidentuaesl to establish their recorded values, unless
the values of neither the assets received norgbetsitransferred are determinable within reaseriabits, in which case the assets receivec
measured based on the carrying values of the a@saptderred. Valuation techniques consistent withmarket approach, income approach
and/or cost approach are used to measure fair.vatuestimate of fair value can be affected by masgumptions that require significant
judgment. For example, the income approach gegaeuires assumptions related to the appropriasenbss model to be used to estin
cash flows, total addressable market, pricing dnadesforecasts, competition, technology obsolessdnture tax rates and discount rates. Our
estimate of the fair value of certain assets m#fgminaterially from that determined by others wise different assumptions or utilize different
business models. New information may arise in titeré that affects our fair value estimates andccoesult in adjustments to our estimates in
the future, which could have an adverse impactwnesults of operations.

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atssare tested annually for impairment and in imbgperiods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying amounts may be imphiteng-lived assets, such as property and equiparghintangible assets subject to
amortization, are reviewed for impairment when ¢hisrevidence that events or changes in circumssaindicate that the carrying amount o
asset or asset group may not be recoverable. @gments regarding the existence of impairment atdis and future cash flows related to
goodwill and other intangible assets are basedpenational performance of our businesses, markeditons and other factors. Although th
are inherent uncertainties in this assessment gsotize estimates and assumptions we use, inclediimgates of future cash flows, volumes,
market penetration and discount rates, are consigtiéh our internal planning. If these estimatesheir related assumptions change in the
future, we may be required to record an impairnedarge on a portion or all of our goodwill and atlmangible assets. Furthermore, we
cannot predict the occurrence of future impairntegggering events nor the impact such events ntiglve on our reported asset values. Futur
events could cause us to conclude that impairnmelitators exist and that goodwill or other intaihgiassets associated with our acquired
businesses are impaired. Any resulting impairmesg tould have an adverse impact on our finanoisitipn and results of operations. During
fiscal 2013 and 2012, we recorded $158 million $6d million , respectively, in impairment chargesulting from revisions to our estimates
of expected cash flows for certain long-lived assdtour QMT division as we continue to pursue l@ensing model.

We hold investments in marketable securities, iidg U.S. treasury and government-related secsyitierporate bonds and notes,
mortgage- and asset-backed securities, auctiorseataities, common and preferred stock and eaunitiydebt funds. The fair value of these
investments totaled $23.3 billion at September2Dd3 , with increases and decreases in fair vednemlly recorded through stockholders’
equity as other comprehensive income or loss. Werdeimpairment charges through the statement efaijpns when we believe an
investment has experienced a decline that is otiaer temporary. The determination that a declirshsr than temporary is subjective and
influenced by many factors. In addition, the faatues of our strategic investments may be subgestibstantial quarterly and annual
fluctuations and to significant market volatility.
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Adverse changes in market conditions or poor opayaesults of investees could result in lossearpinability to recover the carrying value of
the investments, thereby requiring impairment cesr§Vhen assessing these investments for an ¢thestémporary decline in value, we
consider such factors as, among other things, lignifisant the decline in value is as a percentafgihe original cost; how long the market
value of the investment has been below its orighoal; the extent of the general decline in pramean increase in the default or recovery rates
of securities in an asset class; negative eveits &s1a bankruptcy filing or a need to raise chpitaeek financial support from the governrmr
or others; the performance and pricing of the itees securities in relation to the securitiest®tiompetitors within the industry and the
market in general; and analyst recommendationapplicable. We also review the financial statemefitbe investee to determine if the
investee is experiencing financial difficultiesw& determine that a security price decline is iothan temporary, we record an impairment |
which could have an adverse impact on our res@itperations. During fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 20tk recorded $72 million$71 million anc
$39 million, respectively, in net impairment lossesour investments in marketable securities.

Income TaxesOur income tax returns are based on calculatiodsaaaumptions that are subject to examination éyrtternal Revenue
Service (IRS) and other tax authorities. In additithe calculation of our tax liabilities involvescertainties in the application of complex tax
regulations. We recognize liabilities for uncerttm positions based on a two-step process. Tsiesfiep is to evaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of avaiklevidence indicates that it is more likely thar that the position will be sustained on au
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses, if any. The second step is to me#tsatax benefit as the largest amount that is
more than 50% likely of being realized upon setdaimWhile we believe we have appropriate supporttfe positions taken on our tax retu
we regularly assess the potential outcomes of thegminations and any future examinations for tiveent or prior years in determining the
adequacy of our provision for income taxes. We iooratly assess the likelihood and amount of po&tmatiljustments and adjust the income ta
provision, income taxes payable and deferred tax#ee period in which the facts that give risateevision become known. We are
participating in the IRS Compliance Assurance Pseqrogram whereby we endeavor to agree with tBediRthe treatment of all issues prior
to filing our federal return. A benefit of partieipion in this program is that post-filing adjustrtsehy the IRS are less likely to occur.

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceesblasn historical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, the expected tinoifithe reversals of existing temporary differenaad the implementation of tax-planning
strategies. At September 29, 2013 , net deferveddsets were $1.6 billion , which included a vabraallowance of $51 million . If we are
unable to generate sufficient future taxable incameertain tax jurisdictions, or if there is a @l change in the time period within which -
underlying temporary differences become taxablgealuctible, we could be required to increase tteatimn allowance against our deferred
tax assets, which could result in an increase ireffactive tax rate and an adverse impact on diperaesults.

We can only use net operating losses to offsebtaxacome of certain legal entities in certain jiaksdictions. At September 29, 2013 , we
had unused federal, state and foreign net operhtssgs of $131 million , $604 million and $75 il , respectively. Based upon our
assessments of projected future taxable incoméoasds and historical losses incurred by theséiestive expect that the future taxable
income of the entities in these tax jurisdictiori mot be sufficient to utilize the net operatilugses we have incurred through fiscal 2013 .
Therefore, we have provided a $32 million valuatdiowance for these net operating losses. Sigmifijudgment is required to forecast the
timing and amount of future taxable income in derjarisdictions. Adjustments to our valuation aWance based on changes to our forecast c
taxable income are reflected in the period the ghas made.

Our QCT segment’s non-United States headquartéosased in Singapore. We obtained tax incentimeSingapore, including a tax
exemption for the first five years, provided that meet specified employment and incentive criten as a result of expiration of these
incentives, our Singapore tax rate will increaséisoal 2017 and again in fiscal 2027.

We consider the operating earnings of certain naited States subsidiaries to be indefinitely inedstutside the United States based on
estimates that future domestic cash generatiorb&iufficient to meet future domestic cash nedtishave not recorded a deferred tax liak
of approximately $7.6 billion related to the Unit8thtes federal and state income taxes and fovaihpholding taxes on approximately $21.6
billion of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiariedeifinitely invested outside the United States.uftheve decide to repatriate the fore
earnings, we would have to adjust the income taxipion in the period we determined that the eaysiwill no longer be indefinitely invested
outside the United States.

Litigation. We are currently involved in certain legal procegdi, and we intend to continue to vigorously defeaselves. However, the
unfavorable resolution of one or more of these @edings could have a material adverse effect ofasiness, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows. We estimate the rangeatifility related to pending litigation where the ammt and range of loss can be estimated. W
record our best estimate of a loss when the losgrisidered probable. Where a liability is probatid there is a range of estimated loss with
no best estimate in the range, we record the mimrastimated liability related to the claim. As aiial information becomes available, we
assess the potential liability
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related to our pending litigation and revise oumeates. Revisions in our estimates of the potelidhility could materially impact our results
of operations.

Results of Operations

Revenues (in millions) Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25, 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
2013 2012 2011 Change Change
Equipment and services $ 16,98¢ $ 12,465 $ 9,22: $ 452: % 3,24:
Licensing 7,87¢ 6,65¢ 5,73¢ 1,222 922
$ 24,86¢ $ 19,12 $ 14,957 $ 5748  $ 4,164

The increases in equipment and services revendesal 2013 and 2012 were primarily due to incesais QCT revenues of $4.58 billion
and $3.25 billion, respectively. The increasesderising revenues in fiscal 2013 and 2012 werealyndue to increases in QTL revenues of
$1.23 billion and $905 million, respectively.

QCT and QTL segment revenues related to the predidicdamsung Electronics and Hon Hai PrecisiondtigiCo., Ltd/Foxconn, its
affiliates and other suppliers to Apple Inc. corspd 43% and 38% of total consolidated revenueiséalf2013 and 2012, respectively. QCT
and QTL segment revenues from Samsung Electronit$id C comprised 26% of total consolidated revenndiscal 2011.

Revenues from customers in China, South Korea andah comprised 49% , 20% and 11% , respectivéligtal consolidated revenues
for fiscal 2013 , as compared to 42% , 22% , ar¥d 14espectively, for fiscal 2012 , and 32% , 199d 47% , for fiscal 2011 . We distinguish
revenues from external customers by geographicdrased on the location to which our productswsof or services are delivered or, for
QTL licensing revenues, the invoiced addressesioficensees.

Costs and Expenses (in millions) Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25, 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
2013 2012 2011 Change Change
Cost of equipment and services (E&S) revenues  $ 982( $ 7,09 $ 4877 $ 272¢ % 2,21¢
Cost as % of E&S revenues 58% 57% 53%

The decreases in margin percentage in fiscal 2682812 were primarily attributable to decrease@@T gross margin percentage. Our
margin percentage may continue to fluctuate inreuperiods depending on the mix of products soltiservices provided, competitive pricing,
new product introduction costs and other factors.

Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25, 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
2013 2012 2011 Change Change

Research and development $ 4967 $ 391t % 299 % 1,052 $ 92C
% of revenues 20% 20% 20%
Selling, general, and administrative $ 251¢ % 227C  $ 1,948 $ 248 $ 32E
% of revenues 10% 12% 13%
Other $ 331 % 15¢  $ 114 % 17 $ 44

The dollar increases in research and developmemreses in fiscal 2013 and 2012 were primarilytaitable to increases of $904 million
and $741 million, respectively, in costs relatedh® development of CDMA-based 3G, OFDMA-based 4& land other technologies for
integrated circuit and related software productstarexpand our intellectual property portfolio andreases of $97 million and $149 million,
respectively, in share-based compensation. Rentpdotiar increases were related to research anelal@went of other new product and
licensing initiatives.

The dollar increase in selling, general and adrrative expenses in fiscal 2013 was primarily htttable to a $113 million increase in
employee-related expenses, a $56 million incraaselling and marketing expenses, a $40 milliomgase in patentelated expenses and a !
million increase in depreciation and amortizatiagpense, partially offset by a decrease of $23 amilin share-based compensation. The dollal
increase in selling, general and administrativee@sps in fiscal 2012 was primarily attributabl@ 96 million increase in employee-related
expenses, a $77 million increase in costs relatditidation and other legal matters, a $65 milliaorease in share-based compensation, a $4
million increase in selling and marketing experesed a $28 million increase in patent-related expgngartially offset by a $55 million
decrease in charitable contributions (primarihatetl to the establishment and initial funding & @ualcomm Charitable Foundation in fiscal
2011).
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Other expenses in fiscal 20&re comprised of a $173 million charge resultiranf the ParkerVision verdict against us and a $hBiBon
impairment charge resulting from revisions to ostireates of expected cash flows for certain lorngdiassets of our QMT division as we
continue to pursue our licensing model. Other espsrin fiscal 2012 were comprised of an $81 miltbarge related to a payment made to th
Indian government concurrent with the issuancé@BWA spectrum license, a $54 million impairmemaige related to certain long-lived
assets of our QMT division and $23 million in goadltiumpairment charges related to our QRS divisi@ther expenses in fiscal 2011 were
comprised of a $114 million goodwill impairment che related to our QRS division.

Net Investment Income (in millions) Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25, 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
2013 2012 2011 Change Change

Interest and dividend income $ 697 $ 60¢ $ 50C $ 88 $ 10¢
Interest expense (23 (90) (1149 67 24
Net realized gains on marketable securities 317 342 33t (25) 7
Net realized gains on other investments 52 27 2 25 25

Impairment losses on marketable securities and othe
investments (85) (83 (52 2 (32
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments — 84 ©)] (89 87
Net gains on deconsolidation of subsidiaries 12 — — 12 —
Equity in net losses of investees (6) 9) @) 3 )
$ %64 $ 83C $ 661 $ 84 $ 21¢

The increases in interest and dividend income tedditom higher average balances of cash, caslhaquois and marketable securities in
fiscal 2013 and 2012 and higher interest ratessaaf 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The decreaseddrest expense resulted from capitali.
a portion of interest starting in fiscal 2012 rethto the former BWA subsidiaries, which were deobidated in fiscal 2013. Net gains on
derivative instruments in fiscal 2012 primarily utied from changes in the fair value of put optisofd in connection with our stock repurck
program that expired in fiscal 2012.

Income Tax Expense (in millions) Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25, 2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
2013 2012 2011 Change Change
Income tax expense $ 1,34¢ $ 1,27¢ % 1,132  $ 70 $ 147
Effective tax rate 16% 19% 20% (3)% (D%

The following table summarizes the primary factiwat caused our annual effective tax rates to $®tlean the United States federal
statutory rate:

Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25,
2013 2012 2011

Expected income tax provision at federal statutaryrate 35% 35% 35%
State income tax provision, net of federal benefit —% —% 5%
Benefits from foreign income taxed at other tha8.Uates (17%) (16%) (19%)
Benefits related to the research and developmgrutréalit (2%) (1%) (3%)
Change in valuation allowance —% 1% 1%
Other —% —% 1%
Effective tax rate 16% 19% 20%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 reflecteda benefit of $64 million related to fiscal 20¥%ulting from the retroactive extension of
the United States research and development tak.cheldlitionally, the effective tax rate for fiscaD13 as compared to fiscal 2012 reflected
increased foreign earnings taxed at less than tiieed) States federal rate.

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2012 as compadeefiscal 2011 reflected a reduction in our effeetstate tax rate as a result of California
tax legislation previously enacted, partially offbg increased earnings taxed at the United Statesate. The annual effective tax rate for fi
2012 only reflected the United States federal mre$eand development credit generated through Deee3th 2011, the date on which the
credit expired.
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The effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 reflectexd eenefits of $44 million related to an agreemeaiched on a component of our fiscal 2006
through fiscal 2010 state tax returns and $32 omillielated to fiscal 2010 resulting from the rettoee extension of the United States federal
research and development tax credit.

Our Segment Results (in millions)

The following should be read in conjunction witke tliscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 financial resultsfach reporting segment. See “Notes tc
Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 8. Segimémmation.”

QCT QTL QwWiI Qsl
2013
Revenues $ 16,71t  $ 755 $ 612 $ —
EBT (1) 3,18¢ 6,59( 8) 56
EBT as a % of revenues 1% 87% (1%)
2012
Revenues $ 12,14: % 6,321 $ 633 $ =
EBT (1) 2,29¢ 5,58t (15) 270
EBT as a % of revenues 19% 88% (2%)
2011
Revenues $ 8,85¢ $ 542: $ 65€ $ —
EBT (1) 2,05¢ 4,75: (152) (139)
EBT as a % of revenues 23% 88% (23%)

(1) Earnings (loss) before tax

QCT SegmentThe increases in QCT revenues in fiscal 2013 aid@ 20 $4.57 billion and $3.28 billion, respectivelyere primarily due t
increases in equipment and services revenues. Equipand services revenues, mostly related to salSM and accompanying RF and PM
integrated circuits, were $16.49 billion, $11.91lidcm and $8.65 billion in fiscal 2013 , 2012 an@l1A, respectively. The increases in equipn
and services revenues in fiscal 2013 and 2012tessptimarily from increases of $2.09 billion argb% million, respectively, related to the net
effects of changes in product mix and lower aveisng prices of such products, increases of $Bilion and $1.71 billion, respectively,
related to higher unit shipments and increase2d2 $nillion and $803 million, respectively, relatiedsales of connectivity products.
Approximately 716 million, 590 million and 483 midh MSM integrated circuits were sold during fis2all3 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

QCT EBT as a percentage of revenues remainechff&gdal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012. Durisgdl 2013, QCT revenues increased
38% relative to a combined increase of 26% in neteand development expenses and selling, genedaddministrative expenses, partially
offset by a decrease in gross margin percentagedé&brease in QCT EBT as a percentage of revendissal 2012 was primarily due to a
decrease in gross margin percentage, partiallyeofig an increase of 37% in QCT revenues relativee¢ombined increase of 33% in research
and development expenses and selling, generaldmhistrative expenses. QCT gross margin percerdageeased in fiscal 203 a result ¢
the net effects of lower average selling prices am@dvorable product mix, partially offset by a oesse in average unit costs. QCT gross
margin percentage decreased in fiscal 2012 asilt cfghe net effects of lower average sellinges, unfavorable product mix and higher
product support costs, partially offset by a desecia average unit costs. The higher product sumosts in fiscal 2012 primarily related to
increased expenses incurred to facilitate additismpply of 28 nanometer integrated circuits.

QCT inventories increased by 34% in fiscal 26b8n $973 million to $1.30 billion primarily due tertain higher value MSM products ¢
an increase in work-in-process and finished goetiged to growth of the business.

QTL SegmentThe increases in QTL revenues in fiscal 2013 ari®29 $1.23 billion and $905 million, respectivelyere primarily due to
increases in sales of CDMBased devices by licensees. The net increase inr@nues in fiscal 2012 also included the effé@4®1 million
in revenues recorded in fiscal 2011 in connecti@th gettlement agreements entered into with twenigees. The decrease in QTL EBT as a
percentage of revenues during fiscal 2013 wasatable to an increase of 19% in revenues relébian increase of 29% in costs and expe
primarily due to increased allocation of patentenges in connection with the corporate reorgamizaind increased research and developme
expenses.

QWI SegmentThe decrease in QWI revenues in fiscal 2063 primarily due to a decrease of $13 million I @venues. The decreas
QWI revenues in fiscal 2012 was primarily due %28 million decrease in Omnitracs revenues. QWiscasd expenses in fiscal 2012 and
2011 included $23 million and $114 million respeely, of goodwill impairment charges related to QRS division. The $16 million decree
in QWI EBT during fiscal 2013, excluding the impaint
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charges, was primarily attributable to a $19 millincrease in QRS operating loss (before the impait charges). The $46 million increase in
QWI EBT in fiscal 2012, excluding the impairmentaches, was primarily attributable to a $26 milladecrease in QRS operating loss (before
the impairment charges) and a $25 million decr@a&S operating loss.

QSI Segment QSI costs and expenses for fiscal 2012 includddrgillion related to a payment made to the In@jamernment concurrent
with the issuance of the BWA spectrum license. ifiseeases in QSI EBT in fiscal 2013 and 2012 of8pddllion and $43 million,
respectively, excluding this expense, were pringatile to increases of $67 million and $40 millisespectively, in net realized gains on
investments and decreases of $60 million and $2mirespectively, in interest expense as a tedutapitalizing interest starting in the third
quarter of fiscal 2012 related to the BWA subsiéisrwhich were deconsolidated in fiscal 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are our existicash, cash equivalents and marketable secugtish, generated from operations and
proceeds from the issuance of common stock undestoak option and employee stock purchase plaash(ash equivalents and marketable
securities were $29.4 billion at September 29, 2Bincrease of $2.6 billion from September 3,2. This increase included $1.5 billion in
proceeds from the issuance of common stock undegauity compensation plans. Our cash, cash eauitabhnd marketable securities at
September 29, 2013 consisted of $8.1 billion hgltUhited Statedased subsidiaries and $21.3 billion held by foreigbsidiaries. Of our ca
cash equivalents and marketable securities at Sépe29, 2013 , $21.2 billion is indefinitely reested and would be subject to material tax
effects if repatriated. Due to tax consideratioms,derive liquidity for operations primarily fronothestic cash flow and investments held
domestically. Total cash provided by operatingwiitis increased to $8.8 billion during fiscal 201&mpared to $6.0 billion during fiscal
2012.

During fiscal 2013 , we repurchased and retire98,000 shares of common stock for $4.6 billioefpbe commissions. At September 29,
2013, approximately $4.9 billion remained avaiafdr repurchase under a new stock repurchasegognnounced in September, and we
currently expect to complete a minimum of $4 biiliof stock repurchases during fiscal 2014. Thekstepurchase program has no expiration
date. We continue to evaluate repurchases as asméagturning capital to stockholders, subjeabtio periodic determinations that repurche
are in the best interests of our stockholders.

We paid dividends totaling $2.1 billion and $1.8idn, or $1.20 and $0.93 per common share, dufisgal 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
On March 5, 2013, we announced an increase in wanterly dividend from $0.25 to $0.35 per shareahmon stock. On October 24, 2013 ,
we announced a cash dividend of $0.35 per sharernfon stock, payable on December 19, 2013 to ktdd&rs of record as of December 2,
2013 . We intend to continue to use cash dividersds means of returning capital to stockholdeigiestito capital availability and our view
that cash dividends are in the best interests o§tmekholders.

Accounts receivable increased 47% during fiscaB20Rays sales outstanding, on a consolidated ,basie 30 days &eptember 29, 201
compared to 29 days at September 30, 2012 . Theaise in accounts receivable and the related @dédgs sutstanding were primarily due to
growth of the business and the effects of timinglipments and customer payments for receivablateceto integrated circuits.

We believe our current cash, cash equivalents aaretable securities and our expected cash flowergéad from operations will provide
us with flexibility and satisfy our working and @hcapital requirements over the next fiscal yeat lseyond based on our current business
plans.

* Ourresearch and development expenditures weefetfillion and $3.9 billion in fiscal 2013 and ZD1respectively, and we expect to
continue to invest heavily in research and devekagror new technologies, applications and senvioesoice and data
communications, primarily in the wireless industry.

»  Cash outflows for capital expenditures were $fliion and $1.3 billion in fiscal 2013 and 2018espectively, including approximat
$480 million in fiscal 2012 related to the constioe of a new manufacturing facility in Taiwan foar QMT division. We expect to
continue to incur capital expenditures in the fattor support our business, including research amdldpment activities. Future cap
expenditures may be impacted by transactions teatwarently not forecasted.

» Our purchase obligations for fiscal 2014 , sahehich relate to research and development aigs/éind capital expenditures, totaled
$3.3 billion at September 29, 2013 .

» On August 21, 2013, we entered into a definifigeeement under which we agreed to sell the NorthLatin American operations of
our Omnitracs division for $800 million, subjectdimsing conditions, including receipt of regulatapprovals. We expect the
transaction to close in the first quarter of fisz@il4.
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*  We expect to continue making strategic investsiand acquisitions, the amounts of which could gignificantly, to open new
opportunities for our technologies, obtain develepiiresources, grow our patent portfolio or purses business.

Contractual Obligations / Off-Balance Sheet Arrangenents

We have no significant contractual obligations fiatlyy recorded on our consolidated balance sheetslly disclosed in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements. We have no niahtEff-balance sheet arrangements as definedKn3B3(a)(4)(ii).

At September 29, 2013, our outstanding contracthbdjations included (in millions):

Contractual Obligations
Payments Due By Fiscal Period

No
Beyond Expiration
Total 2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 2018 Date
Purchase obligations (1) $ 3,55¢ $ 3,28¢ % 25¢ $ 8 % c $ =
Operating lease obligations 343 8¢ 13t 72 47 —
Capital lease obligations (2) 36 1 3 3 2¢ —
Equity funding commitments (3) 2 — — — — 2
Other long-term liabilities (4)(5) 42 — 26 8 6 2
Total contractual obligations $ 3981 § 3374 § 42C  $ 91 % 92 % 4

(1) Total purchase obligations include $2.8 billiorcmmitments to purchase integrated circuit produatntories. Integrated circuit product inventory
obligations represent purchase commitments farasiliwvafers and assembly and test services. Undenanufacturing relationships with our foundry
partners and assembly and test service providensetation of outstanding purchase orders is gépalibwed but requires payment of all costs imedr
through the date of cancelation.

(2) Amounts represent future minimum lease paymentsdintg interest payments. Capital lease obligatiemesincluded in other liabilities in the consotielh
balance sheet at September 29, 2013 .

(3) These commitments do not have fixed funding datelsaae subject to certain conditions. Commitmeapsesent the maximum amounts to be financed or
funded under these arrangements; actual financifignding may be in lesser amounts or not at all.

(4) Certain long-term liabilities reflected on our bata sheet, such as unearned revenues, are nattekgethis table because they do not require cash
settlement in the future. Other long-term liakdiitias presented in this table include the relaie@mt portions.

(5) Our consolidated balance sheet at September 28,i20ided a $208 million noncurrent liability for certain tax positions, all of which may result ash
payment. The future payments related to unceréaipositions have not been presented in the tdlmieeadue to the uncertainty of the amounts anchgmi
of cash settlement with the taxing authorities.

Additional information regarding our financial coritments at September 29, 2013 is provided in thesitw our consolidated financial
statements. See “Notes to Consolidated FinancidéBtents, Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies.”

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued guidance on disclosure rements for items reclassified out
accumulated other comprehensive income. This neglagae requires entities to present (either orfabe of the statement of operations or in
the notes to the financial statements) the effestthe line items in the statement of operationsafoounts reclassified out of accumulated ¢
comprehensive income. The new guidance will bectffe for us beginning in the first quarter of 862014. The adoption of the guidance will
impact our financial statement presentation anolémrdisclosures but will not impact our financialstion, results of operations or cash flows.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures @out Market Risk

Interest Rate RiskWe invest a portion of our cash in a number of diifeed fixed and floating rate securities, consigtof cash
equivalents, marketable debt securities, debt famdisderivative instruments, including interesé mvaps, that are subject to interest rate risk
Changes in the general level of interest ratesaffact the fair value of our investment portfolibinterest rates in the general economy were t
rise, our holdings could lose value.

Historically, we presented a table that disclosertiain information (including principal or notionaiounts, interest rates and maturities)
regarding our interediearing instruments. However, given the increagadand diversity in our investment portfolio, welibve that providin
a sensitivity analysis provides more meaningfutidisure regarding the impact to our holdings oeptial changes in interest rates. As a resul
in lieu of the tabular presentation, we are provjda sensitivity analysis that shows the effecrofssumed 100 basis point adverse movemel
in interest rates across the entire yield curve.
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At September 29, 2013, a hypothetical increasetarest rates of 100 basis points on our holdimgsld have resulted in decreases of $9
million and $443 million in the fair values of obioldings classified as trading (including derivatimstruments) and our remaining holdings,
respectively. At September 30, 2012, the same Ihgpictl increase in interest rates would have tedih decreases of $17 million and $430
million in the fair values of our holdings classifi as trading (including derivative instruments) anr remaining holdings, respectively.

Equity Price RiskWe hold a diversified marketable securities poitftthat includes equity securities and fund shéitesare subject to
equity price risk. We have made investments in itatide equity securities of companies of varyirrg sstyle, industry and geography, and
changes in investment allocations may affect tieeprolatility of our investments. A 10% decreaséhe market price of our marketable eq
securities and fund shares at September 29, 20liRlwause a decrease in the carrying amounts séthecurities of $332 million. At
September 29, 2013, gross unrealized losses ahatketable equity securities and fund shares $emillion. Although we consider these
unrealized losses to be temporary, there is ahiskwe may incur other-than-temporary impairmérarges or realized losses on the values of
these securities if they do not recover in valuthinia reasonable period.

Foreign Exchange RiskWe manage our exposure to foreign exchange masket when deemed appropriate, through the use of
derivative financial instruments, including foreigarrency forward and option contracts with finahciounterparties. We utilize such
derivative financial instruments for hedging okrimanagement purposes rather than for speculatigropes. Counterparties to our derivative
contracts are all major banking institutions. Ia #vent of the financial insolvency or distresg @bunterparty to our derivative financial
instruments, we may be unable to settle transactidhe counterparty does not provide us withisight collateral to secure its net settlement
obligations to us, which could have a negative iohpa our results. See “Notes to Consolidated RirzuStatements, Note 1. The Company
and Its Significant Accounting Policies” for a déption of our foreign currency accounting policies

At September 29, 2013 , we had a net asset of $ii@dmrelated to foreign currency option contratliat were designated as hedges of
foreign currency risk on royalties earned from @ierticensees on their sales of CDMA-based devitesir forecasted royalty revenues were
to decline by 20% and foreign exchange rates weohange unfavorably by 20% in our hedged foreigmency, we would incur a loss of $1
million.

At September 29, 2013 , we had a net liability ®dillion related to foreign currency forward catts that were designated as hedges of
foreign currency risk on intercompany paymentsmdrating expenditures relating to a wholly-ownegkign subsidiary. If our forecasted
operating expenditures were to decline by 20% angign exchange rates were to change unfavorabB0BYy in each of our hedged foreign
currencies, we would not incur a loss.

At September 29, 2013, we had a net liability D4 $nillion related to foreign currency forwardstutes, options and swaps that were not
designated as hedging instruments related to odkatable securities portfolios classified as tradiffi the foreign exchange rates relevant to
these contracts were to change unfavorably by 1@damee do not have an offset foreign currency exposeiating to debt instruments held in
our marketable securities portfolios classifiedrading, we would incur a loss of $2 million.

Financial assets and liabilities held by consofidegubsidiaries that are not denominated in thetifmmal currency of those entities are
subject to the effects of currency fluctuations aval affect reported earnings. As a global compamyface exposure to adverse movemer
foreign currency exchange rates. We may hedgermeyrexposures associated with certain assets alpitities denominated in nonfunctional
currencies and certain anticipated nonfunctionalericy transactions. As a result, we could expegamanticipated gains or losses on
anticipated foreign currency cash flows, as wekesnomic loss with respect to the recoverabilitineestments. While we may hedge certain
transactions with noiknited States customers, declines in currency gdlueertain regions may, if not reversed, advgra#fect future produs
sales because our products may become more expaagiurchase in the countries of the affectedecizies.

Our analysis methods used to assess and mitigatisis discussed above should not be consideogépions of future risks.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements at Septer2®e2013 and September 30, 2012 and the ReportagvilaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,iackided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K on pa§el through F-36.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial officer,
we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure césaand procedures, as such terms are defined thderl3a-15(e) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tichd&hge Act). Based on this evaluation, our prinapacutive officer and our principal
financial officer concluded that our disclosure trols and procedures were effective as of the érldeoperiod covered by this Annual Report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a5(f). Under the supervision and with the partitigra of our management, including our principal @xéve officer anc
principal financial officer, we conducted an evaion of the effectiveness of our internal contreépfinancial reporting based on the
framework inlnternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under this éwaark, our management concluded that our interowadrol over financial reporting was
effective as of September 29, 2013 .

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent regisiublic accounting firm that audited the cordsatied financial statements included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also autiitee effectiveness of our internal control oveaficial reporting as of September 29, 20132
as stated in its report which appears on page F-1.

Inherent Limitations over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting issitged to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statemémt external purposes in accordance with geneaaltepted accounting principles. Our
internal control over financial reporting includd®se policies and procedures that:

i. pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions of
our assets;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactimnsecorded as necessary to permit preparatioornsolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteouating principles, and that our receipts and egfiares are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of our mamagnt and directors; and

iii.  provide reasonable assurance regarding ptévenr timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thedimlated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiabn@m objectives because of its inherent
limitations, including the possibility of human errand circumvention by collusion or overridingaaintrols. Accordingly, even an effective
internal control system may not prevent or deteatemal misstatements on a timely basis. Also,qutapns of any evaluation of effectivenes
future periods are subject to the risk that costrohy become inadequate because of changes irtioosdir that the degree of compliance \
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control diwancial reporting during the fourth quarter afdal 2013 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, aternal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item regardingediors is incorporated by reference to our DefirifProxy Statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission in connectioin edr Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be hel@@14 (the 2014 Proxy Statement)
under the headings “Election of Directors” and “tB#t 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting CompliaricCertain information required by
this item regarding executive officers is set farthtem 1 of Part | of this Report under the captiExecutive Officers,” and certain
information is incorporated by reference to the£28toxy Statement under the heading “Section 1B¢agficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance.” The information required by this iteegarding corporate governance is incorporatecefgrence to the 2014 Proxy Statement
under the headings “Code of

41




Ethics and Corporate Governance Principles andiPea¢’ “Director Nominations” and “Board MeetingSpmmittees and Attendance.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement uheéenéadings “Executive
Compensation and Related Information,” “Directom@aensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks Bsider Participation in
Compensation Decisions” and “Compensation Commpegort.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement uhéenéadings “Equity Compensation
Plan Information” and “Stock Ownership of Certaiarficial Owners and Management.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa&ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement uhgenéadings “Certain Relationships
and Related-Person Transactions” and “Directorpeddence.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorpaaby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement uhgehéading “Fees for Professional
Services.”
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of thepart:

Page
Number
(a) Financial Statements:

(1) Report of Independent Registered Public AcdogrEirm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 29, 2@l September 30, 2012 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for FiscaB20012 and 2011 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomEisoal 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for FiscA820012 and 2011 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquityHiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

(2) Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-1

Financial statement schedules other than thossllmbove have been omitted because they are rihezquired, not applicable or the
information is otherwise included in the noteshe tonsolidated financial statements.

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, m&eaded. (1)

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws. (2)

4.1 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated aspdéiBber 26, 2005 between the Company and Compatergrus
Company, N.A., as successor Rights Agent to Comglidee Investor Services LLC. (3)

4.2 Amendment dated as of December 7, 2006 to the Aetbadd Restated Rights Agreement dated as of Skete2i, 20C
between the Company and Computershare Trust ComplbAy; as successor Rights Agent to Computersimaestor
Services LLC. (4)

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement between thenfGany, each director and certain officers. (5)(6)

10.40 Form of Stock Option Grant Notice andéemnent under the 2001 Stock Option Plan. (5)(7)

10.43 Form of Stock Option Grant Notice andéggnent under the 2001 Non-Employee Directors’ S@gtion Plan. (5)(8)

10.55 2001 Stock Option Plan, as amended.)5)(9

10.66 2001 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Optian, as amended. (5)(10)

10.84 Form of Grant Notice and Stock Optionéegnent under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plarf1(j)

10.86 Form of Grant Notice and Market StocktUgreement under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Ria)y(12)

10.94 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amerahedrestated. (5)(13)

10.95 Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorpar@@01 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (5)(13)

10.96 Atheros Communications, Inc. 2004 Staadehtive Plan, as amended. (5)(14)

10.97 Atheros Communications, Inc. 2009 IndusenGrant Incentive Plan. (5)(14)

10.98 Atheros Communications, Inc. (formerlypan Corporation) 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, asnaea (5)(14)

10.99 Third Amended and Restated Intellon Catian 2000 Employee Incentive Plan. (5)(14)

10.100 Intellon Corporation 2007 Equity InceatPlan. (5)(14)

10.101 Resolutions Amending Atheros Commuricesj Inc. Equity Plans. (5)(14)

10.102 Executive Retirement Matching Contribution Planeahed and restated generally effective Januar@1ll,2as
subsequently amended by Amendment Number 1 and émemt Number 2. (5)(15)

10.103 Amendment to the 2006 Long-Term Incenklan, as amended and restated. (5)(15)
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10.118

10.119
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23.1
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.LAB
101.PRE
101.DEF

Form of Grant Notices and Global Empéo$tock Option Agreement under the 2006 Long-Tetoeitive Plan. (5)(15)

Form of Grant Notices and Global EmpéoRestricted Stock Unit Agreement under the 2006gkberm Incentive Plan.
(5)(15)

Form of Grant Notice and Performance Stock Unitesgnent under the 2006 Lofdgrm Incentive Plan for the Novem
1, 2010 to October 31, 2013 performance period§1%»

Form of Grant Notices and Performance Stock Unite&gients under the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plathi®
September 26, 2011 to September 26, 2014 perforngariods, including variation of forms for empleyia the United
Kingdom. (5)(15)

Form of Performance Unit Agreements for the Anr@ash Incentive Plan under the 2006 Long-Term Incerftlan for
the fiscal 2012 performance period. (5)(15)

Executive Retirement Matching Contribution Plan aded and restated generally effective January 11,28
subsequently amended by Amendment Number 1, Amemntdhenber 2 and Amendment Number 3. (5)(16)

Form of Performance Unit Agreements for the AnrCash Incentive Plan under the 2006 Long-Term Irieerlan for
the fiscal 2013 performance period. (5)(16)

2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as ameahel restated. (5)(17)
Amended and Restated QUALCOMM Incorpat&t001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (5)(17)
Form of Aircraft Time Sharing AgreemdB)(18)

Form of Executive Grant Notices and Executive Rerfmce Stock Unit Agreements under the 2006 Lbegn Incentivi
Plan for the September 30, 2013 to September 2/ @8rformance periods. (5)

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan (formérpwn as Executive Retirement Matching Contribufdan)
amended and restated effective September 30, PB) 3.

Form of Grant Notices and Non-Employee DirectortReted Stock Unit Agreements under the 2006 LoegAT
Incentive Plan for non-employee directors residmthe United Kingdom and Hong Kong. (5)

Form of Executive Grant Notice and Executive Penfance Stock Unit Agreement under the 2006 Long-Tiarantive
Plan, which includes a September 30, 2013 to JAn2@14 performance period. (5)

Form of Grant Notices and Non-Employee Directorddefd Stock Unit Agreements under the 2006 Ldegn Incentive
Plan for non-employee directors residing in thetebhiStates and Spain. (5)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered PuldanAnting Firm.

Certification pursuant to Section 302h#f Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Paul E. Jacobs.
Certification pursuant to Section 302haf Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for George S. Davis.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dhigaBexley Act of 2002 fc
Paul E. Jacobs.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of dhigaBegxley Act of 2002 fc
George S. Davis.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation kivase.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiarkhase.
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkse.

(1) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QuéytReport on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 25, 2(

(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s CuriRaport on Form & filed on July 11, 201.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s CuriRaport on Form 8-K (File No. 0009528) filed on September 30, 2C

(4) Filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Cuti@eport on Form 8-K (File No. 0009528) filed on December 12, 20

(5) Indicates management or compensatory plan or sgraegt required to be identified pursuant to Iterfal

(6) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s Regisin Statement on Form S-1 (No. 82782)

(7) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QuéytReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 00®528) for the quarter ended June 27, 2
(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QudytReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 00®528) for the quarter ended April 1, 2(
(9) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s QuéytReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 00®528) for the quarter ended March 28, 2
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(10) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s Currentdtepn Form 8-K/A (File No. 000:9528) filed on May 6, 200
(11) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's Annual Repa Form 10K for the year ended September 27, 2

(12) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s Quartergp&t on Form 1@ for the quarter ended December 27, 2
(13) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quartergp®&t on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 27, 2(
(14) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registrattdatement on Form &filed on June 1, 201

(15) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's Annual Repa Form 10K for the year ended September 30, 2

(16) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quartergp&t on Form 1@ for the quarter ended December 30, 2
(17) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’'s Quartergp&t on Form 1@ for the quarter ended March 31, 2(
(18) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quartergp&t on Form 1@ for the quarter ended June 30, 2
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

November 6, 201

QUALCOMM Incorporated

By /s/ Paul E. Jacobs
Paul E. Jacobs,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ Paul E. Jacobs Chief Executive Officer and Chairman November 6, 2013
Paul E. Jacobs (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ George S. Davis Chief Financial Officer November 6, 2013
George S. Davis (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Barbara T. Alexander Director November 6, 2013

Barbara T. Alexander

/s/ Donald G. Cruickshank Director November 6, 2013
Donald G. Cruickshank

/sl Raymond V. Dittamore Director November 6, 2013
Raymond V. Dittamore

s/ Susan Hockfield Director November 6, 2013
Susan Hockfield

/s/ Thomas W. Horton Director November 6, 2013
Thomas W. Horton

/sl Sherry L. Lansing Director November 6, 2013
Sherry L. Lansing

/s/ Duane A. Nelles Director November 6, 2013
Duane A. Nelles

/s/ Clark T. Randt, Jr. Director November 6, 2013
Clark T. Randt, Jr.

/sl Francisco Ros Director November 6, 2013
Francisco Ros

/s/ Jonathan J. Rubinstein Director November 6, 2013
Jonathan J. Rubinstein

/sl Brent Scowcroft Director November 6, 2013
Brent Scowcroft

/s/ Marc |. Stern Director November 6, 2013
Marc |. Stern
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of QUAMIM Incorporated:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated foianstatements listed in the index appearing uftden 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of QUALZM Incorporated and its subsidiaries at SeptemBe2213 and September 30, 2012 and
the results of their operations and their cash $léov each of the three years in the period endgdetnber 29, 2013 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thedéhStates of America. In addition, in our opinitire financial statement schedule listed in
the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) preseiry.fan all material respects, the information f&th therein when read in conjunction with
the related consolidated financial statements. Asmur opinion, the Company maintained, in all enetl respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 29, 2088sed on criteria establishediernal Control - Integrated Framework (1998sued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s managemeesonsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, fortanaing effective internal control over financia@porting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting, included in the accompanying ManagensReport on Internal Control over Financ
Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsjbitli to express opinions on these financial states) on the financial statement schedule
and on the Company’s internal control over finahegorting based on our integrated audits. We gotetl our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requatevtk plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfal@tatements are free of material misstatemedhtnehether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materidpects. Our audits of the financial statemermsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the éilahstatements, assessing the accounting prirsciled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé#éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordx@r financiakeporting included obtainir
an understanding of internal control over finanogdorting, assessing the risk that a material wesk exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internalrcbibiased on the assessed risk. Our audits aldadiext performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wayé¢hat our audits provide a reasonable basiedo opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituref®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California

November 6, 201




QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share data)

September 29, September 30,

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,14: $ 3,807
Marketable securities 8,824 8,561
Accounts receivable, net 2,145 1,45¢
Inventories 1,302 1,03(
Deferred tax assets B 30¢
Other current assets 572 47:%
Total current assets 19,55¢ 15,64¢
Marketable securities 14,44( 14,46
Deferred tax assets 1,05¢ 1,412
Assets held for sale 72 1,10¢
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,99t 2,851
Goodwill 3,97¢ 3,917
Other intangible assets, net 2,55¢ 2,93¢
Other assets 86¢€ 677
Total assets $ 45,51¢ $ 43,01:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable $ 155/ % 1,29¢
Payroll and other benefits related liabilities 83¢ 664
Unearned revenues 501 54E
Liabilities held for sale 43 1,07
Other current liabilities 2,27¢ 1,72
Total current liabilities 5,21z 5,30z
Unearned revenues 3,66¢ 3,73¢
Other liabilities 55C 42€
Total liabilities 9,42¢ 9,467
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders’ equity:
Qualcomm stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; issuable ilese8 shares authorized; none outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 6,000 shares ap¢hip 1,685 and 1,706 shares issued and outs@ndin
respectively — —
Paid-in capital 9,87¢ 11,95¢
Retained earnings 25,46 20,70:
Accumulated other comprehensive income 758 86¢€
Total Qualcomm stockholders’ equity 36,08¢ 33,52:
Noncontrolling interests Q) 22
Total stockholders’ equity 36,08’ 33,54¢
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 45,51¢  $ 43,01

See accompanying notes.






QUALCOMM Incorporated

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues:
Equipment and services
Licensing
Total revenues

Costs and expenses:
Cost of equipment and services revenues
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Other (Note 2 and 7)
Total costs and expenses

Operating income

Investment income, n et (Note 3)
Income from continuing operations before incomesax
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes (Ndfe
Net income
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to Qualcomm

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable td¢@uam:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable t@l@omm:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic
Diluted

Dividends per share announced

Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25,
2013 2012 2011
$ 16,98¢ $ 12,468 $ 9,227
7,87¢ 6,65¢€ 5,73¢
24,86¢ 19,12: 14,957
9,82( 7,09¢ 4,877
4,967 3,91¢ 2,99t
2,51¢ 2,27( 1,94¢
331 15€ 114
17,63¢ 13,43¢ 9,931
7,23( 5,682 5,02¢
964 88(C 661
8,19« 6,562 5,681
(1,349 (1,279 (1,139
6,84% 5,28: 4,55¢
— 77¢€ (313
6,84% 6,05¢ 4,247
8 50 18
$ 6,85: $ 6,10¢ $ 4,26(
$ 3.9¢ $ 3.14 % 2.7¢
— 0.4& (0.19
$ 3.9¢ $ 35¢ % 2.57
$ 391 % 3.06 % 2.7C
— 0.4& (0.1¢)
$ 391 % 351 % 2.52
1,71t 1,70(C 1,65¢
1,75¢ 1,741 1,691
$ 1.2C $ 09 $ 0.81

See accompanying notes.




QUALCOMM Incorporated

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions)
Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25,
2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 6,84t $ 6,05¢ 4,24:
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of incorresta
Foreign currency translation (20) (29 9)
Reclassification of foreign currency translatioedes included in net income 11 — —
Noncredit other-than-temporary impairment lossessrbsequent changes in fair value relat
to certain available-for-sale debt securities,afehcome taxes of $0, $1 and $10, respective Q) 4 (29
Reclassification of net other-than-temporary losseavailable-for-sale securities included in
net income, net of income taxes of $26, $26 and f&pectively 47 47 25
Net unrealized gains (losses) on other availahiesfte securities and derivative instruments
net of income taxes of $24, $357 and $80, respagtiv 44 652 (145
Reclassification of net realized gains on availdbtesale securities and derivative instruments
included in net income, net of income taxes of $H%¥B and $112, respectively (19%) (169 (299
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (119 51F (347)
Total comprehensive income 6,731 6,57¢ 3,89
Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrollinigriests 9 46 21
Comprehensive income attributable to Qualcomm $ 6,74C § 6,62( 3,91¢

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
Year Ended
September 29, September 30, September 25,
2013 2012 2011
Operating Activities:
Net income $ 6,84t $ 6,05¢ $ 4,24;
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,01% 897 1,061
Gain on sale of wireless spectrum — (1,179 —
Goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges 192 84 12¢
Revenues related to non-monetary exchanges (129 (122 (129
Income tax provision in excess of (less than) inedax payments 26¢ 39t (1,209
Non-cash portion of share-based compensation egpens 1,10t 1,03t 824
Incremental tax benefit from share-based compemsati (2317) (16€) (189
Net realized gains on marketable securities anérativestments (369 (369 (337
Net impairment losses on marketable securitiesodimer investments 85 83 52
Other items, net 104 (52 2
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effettcquisitions:
Accounts receivable, net (680) (45€) (140
Inventories (300 (252 (62
Other assets (209 (240 (70
Trade accounts payable 307 371 (26)
Payroll, benefits and other liabilities 752 (341) 572
Unearned revenues 15 258 16¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,77¢ 5,99¢ 4,90(
Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (1,049 (1,289 (599
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (13,95) (15,519 (20,94%)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of availableséie securities 13,49: 9,85¢ 10,66:
Purchases of trading securities (3,319 (4,009 —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of trading siésir 3,367 3,06( —
Proceeds from sale of wireless spectrum — 1,92¢ —
Acquisitions and other investments, net of cashuized (192 (839 (3,629
Other items, net 64 (83 15
Net cash used by investing activities (1,579 (6,877 (4,489
Financing Activities:
Borrowings under loans and debentures 534 71C 1,55t
Repayments of loans and debentures (439 (597) (1,555
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,52¢ 1,714 2,647
Incremental tax benefit from share-based compemsati 231 16¢€ 183
Repurchases and retirements of common stock (4,610 (1,319 (142
Dividends paid (2,055 (1,589 (1,346
Other items, net (32) 13¢€ 17€
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (4,845 (757) 1,51¢
Changes in cash and cash equivalents held for sale (15) — —
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (5) (29 (14
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivakent 2,33t (1,655 1,91¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,807 5,462 3,547
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 6,14z § 3807 § 5,46z

See accompanying notes.






QUALCOMM Incorporated

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In millions)

Accumulated

Common Other Total Qualcomm Total

Stock Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’ Noncontrolling Stockholders’

Shares Capital Earnings Income Equity Interests Equity
Balance at September 26, 2010 1612 $ 6,856 $ 13,30 $ 697 $ 20,85¢ $ —  $ 20,85¢
Total comprehensive income (1) — — 4,26( (344) 3,91¢ (21) 3,89t
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits 72 2,72( — — 2,72( — 2,72(
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (©)] (142) — — (142) — (142)
Share-based compensation — 84¢ — — 84¢ — 84¢
Dividends — — (1,367 — (1,36)) — (1,36))
Value of stock awards assumed in acquisition — 10€ — — 10€ — 10€
Issuance of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests — 14 — — 14 42 56
Other — (8) = = (8) = (8
Balance at September 25, 2011 1,68 10,39« 16,20« 35: 26,95 21 26,97:
Total comprehensive income (1) — — 6,10¢ 511 6,62( (46) 6,57¢
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits, net of shares
withheld for tax 48 1,772 — — 1,772 — 1,772
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (24) (1,319 — — (1,319 — (1,319
Share-based compensation — 1,06z — — 1,06z — 1,06z
Dividends — — (1,617 — (1,617) — (1,617
Issuance of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests — 44 — 2 4€ 40 86
Other — 3) — — 3) 7 4
Balance at September 30, 2012 1,70¢ 11,95¢ 20,70: 86€ 33,52: 22 33,54¢
Total comprehensive income — — 6,85¢ (113) 6,74( 9 6,731
Common stock issued under employee benefit
plans and the related tax benefits, net of shares
withheld for tax 51 1,38¢ — — 1,38t — 1,38¢
Repurchase and retirement of common stock (72) (4,610 — — (4,610 — (4,610
Share-based compensation — 1,142 — — 1,14 — 1,14z
Dividends — — (2,099 — (2,099 — (2,099
Issuance of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests — 2 — — 2 9 11
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries — — — — — (23 (23
Other — (1) — — 1) — (@)
Balance at September 29, 2013 1,68 $ 987. $ 2546 $ 758 0 $ 36,08¢ $ @ $ 36,08"

(1) Income (loss) from discontinued operations, néhodme taxes (Note 11), was attributable to Qualnc

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. The Company and Its Significant AccountingdPolicies

The CompanyQUALCOMM Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, @sdubsidiaries (collectively the Company or Qoaten), develop,
design, manufacture and market digital communioatjgroducts and services. The Company is a leatimgloper and supplier of integrated
circuits and system software based on CDMA (Codasizin Multiple Access), OFDMA (Orthogonal Frequgrigivision Multiple Access) an
other technologies for use in voice and data conicatinns, networking, application processing, nmitia and global positioning system
products to device and infrastructure manufactufene Company grants licenses to use portionsahiellectual property portfolio, which
includes certain patent rights essential to anai$eful in the manufacture and sale of certain wi®lproducts, and receives fixed license fees
(payable in one or more installments) as well agarg royalties based on sales by licensees ofesgise¢elecommunications equipment
products incorporating its patented technologié® Tompany sells equipment, software and servicgamsportation and other companies to
wirelessly connect their assets and workforce. Company provides software products and servicesdotent enablement across a wide
variety of platforms and devices for the wirelasdustry. The Company also makes strategic invedsnersupport the global adoption of its
technologies and services.

Principles of ConsolidationThe Company’s consolidated financial statementisidecthe assets, liabilities and operating resfltaajority-
owned subsidiaries. In addition, the Company cadat#s its investments in certain immaterial I&sstmajority-owned variable interest
entities as the Company is the primary beneficilhe ownership of the other interest holders ofsotidated subsidiaries and the variable
interest entities is presented separately in tmsaalated balance sheets and statements of apesafll significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated. Certaineo€Company’s consolidated subsidiaries are inclinléite consolidated financial statements
one month in arrears to facilitate the timely irsétin of such entities in the Company’s consolidditeahcial statements.

Financial Statement PreparationThe preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States requires management to make estimateassumptions that affect the reported amounttstee disclosure of contingent amot
in the Company’s consolidated financial statemantsthe accompanying notes. Actual results codfdrdrom those estimates. Certain prior
year amounts have been reclassified to conforrhgatirrent year presentatic

Fiscal Year.The Company operates and reports using a 52-53 figegl year ending on the last Sunday in Septemier fiscal years
ended September 29, 2013 and September 25, 2QLdeadc52 weeks . The fiscal year ended Septemhe2(B@ included 53 weeks .

Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investmenith original maturities of three months or legsde cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are comprised of ynoraket funds, commercial paper, government agshsecurities and certain bank time
deposits. The carrying amounts approximate fauevalue to the short maturities of these instruments

Marketable SecuritiesMarketable securities include trading securitiesjlable-for-sale securities, securities for whikh Company has
elected the fair value option and certain bank til@posits. The classification of marketable seiagrivithin these categories is determined at
the time of purchase and reevaluated at each akreet date. The Company classifies portfoliatebt securities that utilize derivative
instruments to acquire or reduce foreign exchamgkoa equity, prepayment and credit risk as tradifige Company classifies marketable
securities as current or noncurrent based on theeaf the securities and their availability faeun current operations. Marketable securities
are stated at fair value. The net unrealized gaiingsses on available-for-sale securities arertmmbas a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of income taxes. Thealinesl gains or losses on trading securities andri&s for which the Company has
elected the fair value option are recognized inm&tstment income. The realized gains and lossenarketable securities are determined
using the specific identification method.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesskebkesfor-sale securities in an unrealized lossiton to determine whether the
unrealized loss is other than temporary. The Compansiders factors including: the significancetaf decline in value compared to the cost
basis; underlying factors contributing to a declim¢he prices of securities in a single assetsglasw long the market value of the security has
been less than its cost basis; the security’sivelgerformance versus its peers, sector or aksst; @xpected market volatility, the market and
economy in general; analyst recommendations arme pargets; views of external investment managenss or financial information that has
been released specific to the investee; and tHeabutor the overall industry in which the investgerates.

If a debt security’s market value is below amodizest and the Company either intends to sell ¢earity or it is more likely than not that
the Company will be required to sell the securigjooe its anticipated recovery, the Company recards
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QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

other-than-temporary impairment charge to net itmaest income for the entire amount of the impairmEor the remaining debt securities, if
an other-than-temporary impairment exists, the Camgseparates the other-than-temporary impairnmémtie portion of the loss related to
credit factors, or the credit loss portion, andpibetion of the loss that is not related to créadtors, or the noncredit loss portion. The credit
loss portion is the difference between the amadtizest of the security and the Company’s best edgéiraf the present value of the cash flows
expected to be collected from the debt securitg Adtncredit loss portion is the residual amounhefother-than-temporary impairment. The
credit loss portion is recorded as a charge tanvestment income, and the noncredit loss porare¢orded as a component of other
accumulated comprehensive income, net of incomestax

When calculating the present value of expected flagls to determine the credit loss portion of ttker-than-temporary impairment, the
Company estimates the amount and timing of projectesh flows, the probability of default and theitig and amount of recoveries on a
security-by-security basis. These calculationsingats primarily based on observable market date) s credit default swap spreads,
historical default and recovery statistics, rataggncy data, credit ratings and other data releeagmalyzing the collectibility of the security.
The amortized cost basis of a debt security issaelfor any credit loss portion of the impairmettorded to earnings. The difference betwee
the new cost basis and cash flows expected to llextam is accreted to net investment income dverémaining expected life of the security.

Securities that are accounted for as equity séesliiiclude investments in common stock, certaffigored stock, equity mutual and
exchange-traded funds and debt funds. For equityrgies, the Company considers the loss relativihe expected volatility and the likelihood
of recovery over a reasonable period of time. Hrdg and circumstances indicate that a declinedvalue of an equity security has occurred
and is other than temporary, the Company recoadgege to net investment income for the differdoesveen fair value and cost at the bal:
sheet date. Additionally, if the Company has eitherintent to sell the equity security or doeshte both the intent and the ability to hold
equity security until its anticipated recovery, tbempany records a charge to net investment indonée difference between fair value and
cost at the balance sheet date.

Derivatives.The Company’s primary objective for holding derivatinstruments is to manage foreign exchangefaskertain foreign
currency revenue and operating expenditure traiosesctTo a lesser extent, the Company also holdgalive instruments in its investment
portfolios to manage risk by acquiring or reduciageign exchange risk, interest rate risk and/aritggprepayment and credit risk. The
Company also uses derivative instruments as pats efock repurchase program.

Foreign Currency Hedgedhe Company manages its exposure to foreign exeharagket risks, when deemed appropriate, througlusie
of derivative instruments, including foreign curcgrforward and option contracts with financial ctemarties. We utilize such derivative
financial instruments for hedging or risk managenpemposes rather than for speculation purposesntegparties to the Company’s derivative
instruments are all major institutions. The deiik@instruments mature between 4 and 28 monthsiv@lve instruments are recorded at fair
value and are included in other current assetssuroent assets, other accrued liabilities or ottwercurrent liabilities based on their maturity
date. Gains and losses arising from the effectoréign of foreign currency forward and option cauatis that are designated as cash flow
hedging instruments are recorded as a componamcoinulated other comprehensive income as gainkases on derivative instruments, ne
of income taxes. The hedging gains and lossescnaglated other comprehensive income are subsdyuealassified to revenues or costs
and expenses, as applicable, in the consolidadgeisénts of operations in the same period in wiietunderlying transactions affect the
Company’s earnings. Gains and losses arising flenineffective portion of foreign currency forwaadd option contracts are recorded in net
investment income as gains and losses on deriviatsgriments. The cash flows associated with dévieanstruments designated as cash flow
or net investment hedging instruments are claskégcash flows from operating activities in thasmlidated statements of cash flows, which
is the same category as the hedged transactiorcaiteflows associated with the ineffective portidderivatives are classified as cash flows
from investing activities in the consolidated staémts of cash flows.

The aggregate fair value of the Company’s foreigmency option and forward contracts used to hédgegn currency risk recorded in
total assets was $38 million and $11 million att8eyber 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012 , respbgstare the fair value recorded in total
liabilities was $9 million and $6 million at Septbar 29, 2013 and September 30, 20f&spectively, all of which were designated as dkav
hedging instruments.

Investment Portfolio Derivative§the Company also utilizes currency forwards, fudumptions and swaps that are not designated agng
instruments to acquire or reduce foreign exchaigie interest rate risk and/or equity, prepaymentt eredit risk in its marketable securities
investment portfolios classified as trading. Thedgive instruments mature over various periodsaup9 years . Gains and losses arising fror
changes in the fair values of such contracts aerded in net investment income as gains and lasséerivative instruments. The cash flows
associated with such derivative instruments argsdiad as cash flows from investing activitieghe consolidated statements of cash flows. A
September 29, 2013 , the
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fair value of these derivative instruments recoritetibtal assets was negligible. At September 8222 the fair value of these derivative
instruments recorded in total assets was $5 milliahSeptember 29, 2013 and September 30, 20i2fair value of these derivative
instruments recorded in total liabilities was $1dlion and $5 million , respectively.

Gross Notional Amount3he gross notional amounts of the Company's foreigrency and investment portfolio derivatives bsttument
type were as follows (in millions):

September 29, September 30,

2013 2012
Options $ 60 $ 1,092
Currency forwards 544 46¢
Futures 10¢€ 11¢
Swaps 18 19C
Other — 4
$ 1277 $ 1,87(

The gross notional amounts by currency were aevisli(in millions):

September 29, September 30,

2013 2012

Japanese yen $ 617 $ 687
Indian rupee 20t 11¢
Euro 161 31z
United States dollar 10¢ 37t
Canadian dollar 62 10E
British pound sterling 46 11C
Australian dollar 11 12€
Other 67 36

$ 1277 % 1,87(

Stock Repurchase Programm: connection with the Company’s stock repurchasgiam, the Company may sell put options that meqti
to repurchase shares of its common stock at fixegé@ These put options subject the Company tiyeprice risk. Changes in the fair value
these put options are recorded in net investmeaini® as gains and losses on derivative instruméhéscash flows associated with the put
options are classified as cash flows from investiativities in the consolidated statements of dkskis. There were no put options outstanding
at September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012 .

Allowances for Doubtful AccountsThe Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the Company’s customers to make reegiipayments. The Company considers the followintpfa when determining if collection
of required payments is reasonably assured: custoredit-worthiness, past transaction history with customer, current economic industry
trends, changes in customer payment terms, anddvadk-worthiness for letters of credit. If ther@pany has no previous experience with the
customer, the Company typically obtains reportsifi@rious credit organizations to determine thatdhstomer has a history of paying its
creditors. The Company may also request finanofarination, including financial statements or otHecuments to determine that the
customer has the means of making payment. If tfaeders do not indicate collection is reasonabluasd, revenue is deferred until collection
becomes reasonably assured, which is generally tgoaipt of cash. If the financial condition of tBempany’s customers was to deteriorate,
adversely affecting their ability to make paymeatiditional allowances would be required.

Inventories.Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or rebfkeplacement cost, not to exceed net realizzdlee) using the first-in,
first-out method. Recoverability of inventoriesaissessed based on review of committed purchasesdrdm customers, as well as purchase
commitment projections provided by customers, anathgr things.

Property, Plant and Equipmen®roperty, plant and equipment are recorded atarastepreciated or amortized using the straigkt-lin
method over their estimated useful lives. Uponrdieement or disposition of property, plant andipment, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed, and a galoss is recorded. Buildings and building imgments on owned land are depreciated
over 30 years and 15 years, respectively. Leddémprovements and buildings

F-9




QUALCOMM Incorporated
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

on leased land are amortized over the shorteredf &stimated useful lives, not to exceed 15 dhglears, respectively, or the remaining term
of the related lease. Other property, plant andpagent have useful lives ranging from 2 to 25 ge@irect external and internal costs of
developing software for internal use are capitalizebsequent to the preliminary stage of developnieased property meeting certain capital
lease criteria is capitalized, and the net pregaluie of the related lease payments is recordediability. Amortization of assets under capital
leases is recorded using the straight-line metived the shorter of the estimated useful lives erl#iase terms. Maintenance, repairs and minc
renewals or betterments are charged to expense@sed. Interest expense related to the broadinetess access (BWA) spectrum and
related construction of the network infrastructassets in India by the Company’s former BWA sulasids was capitalized beginning in May
2012 through the third quarter of fiscal 2013 whiss BWA subsidiaries were deconsolidated (Note thd¢rest capitalized by the former BV
subsidiaries totaled $65 million and $29 millionfiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset§&oodwill represents the excess of purchase priee thve value assigned to the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets of businesses aeduicquired intangible assets other than goodwdlamortized over their useful lives unless
the lives are determined to be indefinite. Forngible assets purchased in a business combin#tiestimated fair values of the assets
received are used to establish their recorded sakumr intangible assets acquired in a non-monetarflange, the estimated fair values of the
assets transferred (or the estimated fair valu#iseofssets received, if more clearly evidentuaesl to establish their recorded values, unless
the values of neither the assets received nordbetatransferred are determinable within reaserabits, in which case the assets receivec
measured based on the carrying values of the a@saptderred. Valuation techniques consistent withmarket approach, income approach
and/or cost approach are used to measure fair.value

Weighted-average amortization periods for finiteetl intangible assets, by class, were as followgéars):

September 29, September 30,
2013 2012
Wireless spectrum 14 5
Marketing-related 9 9
Technology-based 11 11
Customer-related 2 6
Total finite-lived intangible assets 11 11

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived AssetSoodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atssare tested annually for
impairment in the fourth fiscal quarter and in nmeperiods if certain events occur indicating tthe carrying amounts may be impaired. If a
gualitative assessment is used and the Compangmidets that the fair value of a reporting unitrmdefinite-lived intangible asset is more
likely than not (i.e., a likelihood of more than%Dless than its carrying amount, a quantitativeairment test will be performed. If goodwill
guantitatively assessed for impairment, a two-stggroach is applied. First, the Company compamegstimated fair value of the reporting
unit in which the goodwill resides to its carryimglue. The second step, if necessary, measuresrthent of such impairment by comparing
the implied fair value of goodwill to its carryinglue. Other indefinite-lived intangible assets guantitatively assessed for impairment, if
necessary, by comparing their estimated fair valagiseir carrying values. If the carrying valueegds the fair value, the difference is
recorded as an impairment.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant andpagemt and intangible assets subject to amortizatimreviewed for impairment when
there is evidence that events or changes in ciramuss indicate that the carrying amount of antass&sset group may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isared by comparing the carrying amount of an amsasset group to estimated undiscountec
future cash flows expected to be generated bydbetar asset group. If the carrying amount ofssetaor asset group exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recagphior the amount by which the carrying amounthefasset or asset group exceeds the
estimated fair value of the asset or asset groapgilived assets to be disposed of by sale aretegpat the lower of their carrying amounts or
their estimated fair values less costs to sellamechot depreciated.

Revenue RecognitionThe Company derives revenues principally from saféstegrated circuit products, licensing of igallectual
property and software, and sales of messagingyvaadthosting, software development and other sesvand related hardware. The timing of
revenue recognition and the amount of revenue bigtigognized in each case depends upon a vasfdfctors, including the specific terms
of each arrangement and the nature of the Compaleji\serables and obligations.
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Revenues from sales of the Company’s productseai@gnized at the time of shipment, or when titlé ask of loss pass to the customer
and other criteria for revenue recognition are nfiéater. Revenues from providing services, inéhgdsoftware hosting services, are recogn
when earned. Revenues from providing services lesgethan 10% of total revenues for all periodsgnéed.

The Company licenses or otherwise provides rightsse portions of its intellectual property poritiolwhich includes certain patent rights
essential to and/or useful in the manufacture atelaf certain wireless products. Licensees tyhiqady a fixed license fee in one or more
installments and royalties based on their salgsaducts incorporating or using the Company’s lgazhintellectual property. License fees are
recognized over the estimated period of benefiheflicense to the licensee, typically 5 to 15 gearhe Company earns royalties on such
licensed products sold worldwide by its licensedba time that the licensees’ sales occur. The gzmy's licensees, however, do not report
and pay royalties owed for sales in any given quantil after the conclusion of that quarter. TW@mmpany recognizes royalty revenues basec
on royalties reported by licensees during the guamd when other revenue recognition criterianage

The Company records reductions to revenues foomestincentive arrangements, including volume-egland other pricing rebates and
cost reimbursements for marketing and other a@#involving certain of the Company’s products échnologies. The Company recognizes
the maximum potential liability at the later of thate at which the Company records the relatedhteasor the date at which the Company
offers the incentive or, if payment is contingemtien the contingency is resolved. In certain areamgnts, the liabilities are based on custome
forecasts. The Company reverses accruals for umethincentive amounts to revenues when the uncthan®unts are no longer subject to
payment.

Unearned revenues consist primarily of license feemtellectual property and software producesakith continuing performance
obligations.

Concentrations A significant portion of the Company’s revenuesasicentrated with a small number of customers/tieen of the
Company s QCT and QTL segments. Revenues related to thlripi® of two companies comprised 24% and 19% af tansolidated
revenues in fiscal 2013 and 20% and 18% of totasotidated revenues in fiscal 2012. Revenues freoncompanies each comprised 13% of
total consolidated revenues in fiscal 2011 . Aggtegccounts receivable from two customers/licensemprised 43% of gross accounts
receivable at September 29, 2013 . Aggregate atsoeceivable from three customers/licensees campd8%of gross accounts receivable
September 30, 2012 .

Shipping and Handling CostsCosts incurred for shipping and handling are inetith cost of equipment and services revenuesdtrite
the related revenue is recognized. Amounts bilbeal tustomer for shipping and handling are repaekvenue.

Share-Based CompensatioBhare-based compensation expense for equity-éeassifvards, principally related to restricted staoks
(RSUs) and stock options, is measured at the glaet or at the acquisition date for awards assumbdsiness combinations, based on the
estimated fair value of the award and is recognmezt the employee’s requisite service period. Sfised compensation expense is adjuste
to exclude amounts related to share-based awaatiarh expected to be forfeited.

The fair values of RSUs are estimated based ofathmarket values of the underlying stock on th&d of grant or dates the RSUs are
assumed. If RSUs do not have the right to partieijadividends, the fair values are discountedheydividend yield. The weighted-average
estimated fair values of employee RSUs grantechddiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were $64.21 , $58rfl7$50.1per share, respectively. F
the majority of RSUs, shares are issued on thengedaites net of the amount of shares neededitfysstiatutory tax withholding requirements
to be paid by the Company on behalf of the emplsyas a result, the actual number of shares issilete fewer than the number of RSUs
outstanding. The annual pre-vest forfeiture rateRi8Us granted in fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 wgéimated to be approximately 3%ased ol
historical experience.

The fair values of employee stock options grantedeatimated using the lattice binomial option-mgcmodel, and the fair values of
employee stock options assumed in business conitrigadre estimated using the Black-Scholes optieiqg model. No stock options were
granted or assumed during fiscal 2013. The weightegtage estimated fair values of employee stotibigp granted during fiscal 2012 and
2011 were $14.70 and $13.17 per share, respectiVeg/following table presents the weighted-aveggimptions (annualized) used to
estimate the fair values of employee stock optgnasted or assumed in the periods presented:
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2012 2011
Volatility 31.5% 30.8%
Risk-free interest rate 1.C% 2.1%
Dividend yield 1.5% 1.5%
Post-vest forfeiture rate 9.C% 9.€%
Suboptimal exercise factor 1.7 1.€

The Company uses the implied volatility of markeigied options in the Company’s stock to deterntieecsixpected volatility. The term
structure of volatility is used for approximatelya years, and the Company uses the implied vdiatfithe option with the longest time to
maturity for periods beyond two years . The riskefinterest rate is based on observed interestagfopriate for the terms of the Company’s
employee stock options. The Company does not targpecific dividend yield for its dividend paym&hbut is required to assume a dividend
yield as an input to the binomial model. The dividg/ield is based on the Comp/s history and expectation of future dividend patgoand
may be subject to substantial change in the fuftine.post-vest forfeiture rate and suboptimal ggerfactor are based on the Company’s
historical option cancelation and employee exencifmmation, respectively.

The expected life of employee stock options isrvdd output of the lattice binomial model andrigpiacted by all of the underlying
assumptions used by the Company. The weighted-geengpected life of employee stock options grardedierived from the binomial model,
was 5.3 years and 5.6 years during fiscal 20022811 , respectively.

Total share-based compensation expense, relatbdabthe Company’s share-based awards, was ceegbas follows (in millions):

2013 2012 2011

Cost of equipment and services revenues $ 71 % 75 % 67
Research and development 643 54¢ 397
Selling, general and administrative 391 414 34¢
Continuing operations 1,10¢ 1,03t 813
Related income tax benefit (217) (225) (199)
Continuing operations, net of income taxes 88¢ 81C 61¢
Discontinued operations — 1 8
Related income tax benefit — — (3)
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes — 1 5
$ 88t $ 811 % 624

The Company recorded $242 million , $270 milliom &165 million in share-based compensation expdnsag fiscal 2013 , 2012 and
2011 , respectively, related to share-based awpedded during those periods. The remaining shased compensation expense was primaril
related to share-based awards granted in earli@mdseand share-based awards assumed. In addiidiiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , $231
million , $168 million and $183 million , respeatly, were reclassified to reduce net cash provitedperating activities with an offset to net
cash provided (used) by financing activities in tbasolidated statements of cash flows to refleetinicremental tax benefits from stock
options exercised and restricted stock units ahdrathare-based awards that vested in those pefibdsamount of compensation cost
capitalized related to share-based awards wasgilgglifor all periods presented.

Litigation. The Company is currently involved in certain legadceedings. The Company records its best estiofadoss related to
pending litigation when the loss is considered phde and the amount can be reasonably estimateere/drange of loss can be reasonably
estimated with no best estimate in the range, thraany records the minimum estimated liability tedbto the claim. As additional
information becomes available, the Company ass¢lssgmtential liability related to the Compasigending litigation and revises its estime
The Company'’s legal costs associated with defenittiedf are recorded to expense as incurred.

Foreign Currency.Certain foreign subsidiaries use a local currersctha functional currency. Resulting translatiomgar losses are
recognized as a component of accumulated other i@mapsive income.
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Transaction gains or losses related to balancesntieated in a currency other than the functionatency are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations. Net foreigrency transaction losses included in the Comgaronsolidated statements of operations
were $4 million , $7 million and $8 million for fisl 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Income TaxesThe asset and liability approach is used to reamgdeferred tax assets and liabilities for the etqubfuture tax
consequences of temporary differences betweenratingimg amounts and the tax bases of assets abilitiks. Tax law and rate changes are
reflected in income in the period such change€naeted. The Company records a valuation allowsmoeduce deferred tax assets to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realiZEte Company includes interest and penalties kkaténcome taxes, including unrecognized
tax benefits, within the income tax provision.

The Company’s income tax returns are based onlagiloos and assumptions that are subject to exdimimby the Internal Revenue
Service and other tax authorities. In addition,dakulation of the Company’s tax liabilities invek dealing with uncertainties in the
application of complex tax regulations. The Compeagognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positidresed on a twstep process. The first st
is to evaluate the tax position for recognitiond@termining if the weight of available evidenceigades that it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained on audit, including resion of related appeals or litigation processieany. The second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than B@8ty of being realized upon settlement. While Bompany believes it has appropriate
support for the positions taken on its tax retuths,Company regularly assesses the potential masof examinations by tax authorities in
determining the adequacy of its provision for ineotaxes. The Company continually assesses théhlicel and amount of potential
adjustments and adjusts the income tax provisimome taxes payable and deferred taxes in thedoeriwhich the facts that give rise to a
revision become known.

The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits asdgediwith share-based awards directly to stockhsléguity only when realized. A
windfall tax benefit occurs when the actual taxdfénmealized by the Company upon an employee’padigion of a share-based award exceed
the deferred tax asset, if any, associated withatierd that the Company had recorded. When asgesbiether a tax benefit relating to share-
based compensation has been realized, the Complmyd the tax law ordering method, under whichrent year share-based compensation
deductions are assumed to be utilized before retatipg loss carryforwards and other tax attributes

Earnings Per Common ShareéBasic earnings per common share are computed ijirivnet income attributable to Qualcomm by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstguadiring the reporting period. Diluted earnings gammon share are computed by
dividing net income attributable to Qualcomm by tloenbination of dilutive common share equivalentsnprised of shares issuable under the
Company'’s share-based compensation plans and shasest to written put options, and the weightedrage number of common shares
outstanding during the reporting period. Dilutivamamon share equivalents include the dilutive eftédh-the-money share equivalents, which
are calculated based on the average share prieaébrperiod using the treasury stock method. Uthdetreasury stock method, the exercise
price of an award, if any, the amount of compensatiost for future service that the Company hag/abtecognized, if any, and the estimated
tax benefits that would be recorded in paid-in @dpihen an award is settled, if any, are assumdée tused to repurchase shares in the curre
period. The incremental dilutive common share egjents, calculated using the treasury stock mettoodiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were
38,670,000 , 40,978,000 and 32,908,000 , respégtive

Employee stock options to purchase 355,000 , 108@0and 20,224,000 shares of common stock durseglf?013 , 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively, were outstanding but not includethacalculation of diluted earnings per common shcause the effect would be anti-
dilutive. Put options outstanding during fiscal 2Gnd 2011 were not included in the earnings pemeon share computation because the put
options’ exercise prices were less than the avarag&et price of the common stock while they wartstanding, and therefore, the effect on
diluted earnings per common share would be antitidé. No put options were outstanding during i@l 3. In addition, other common stock
equivalents of 152,000 , 1,947,000 and 1,963,0@0eshoutstanding during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 20&&pectively, were not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per common shagabse the effect would be anti-dilutive or cerfaénformance conditions were not satisfied
at the end of the period.

Comprehensive Income&Comprehensive income is defined as the changeuityeaf a business enterprise during a period ftransactions
and other events and circumstances from non-ownecss, including foreign currency translation atfjuents and unrealized gains and losse
on marketable securities and derivative instrumedtiser comprehensive income includes reclassificadjustments for: foreign currency
translation gains and losses recognized in thersttts of operations as a result of deconsolidaticubsidiaries; net realized gains and losse
recognized in the statements of operations wheketelle securities are sold or derivative instrutsh@ne settled; and unrealized losses on
marketable securities recognized in the statenwrdperations when they are no longer viewed apteary. The portion of other-than-
temporary
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impairment losses related to noncredit factorssanmsequent changes in fair value included in cohgsive income are shown separately
from other unrealized gains or losses on marketsdxerities.

The components of accumulated other comprehensbagrie in Qualcomm stockholders’ equity were aofad (in millions):

September 29, September 30,

2013 2012
Foreign currency translation $ (115) $ (107)
Noncredit other-than-temporary impairment lossessaubsequent changes in fair value related toineatailable-for-
sale debt securities, net of income taxes 25 28
Net unrealized gains on other available-for-sateiges, net of income taxes 82t& 94z
Net unrealized gains on derivative instruments ofi@icome taxes 18 2
$ 75¢ % 86¢€

At September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012 padated other comprehensive income included $lianithnd $ 7 million ,
respectively, of other-than-temporary losses orketable debt securities related to factors othen ttredit, net of income taxes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncementis February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued guidance on disclosure
requirements for items reclassified out of accutealather comprehensive income. This new guidasgeires entities to present (either on
face of the statement of operations or in the nmtéise financial statements) the effects on the iiems in the statement of operations for
amounts reclassified out of accumulated other cehmgmsive income. The new guidance will be effediivehe Company beginning in the fi
quarter of fiscal 2014. The adoption of the guidawil impact the Company’s financial statementgar@ation and/or disclosure but will not
impact its financial position, results of operasar cash flows.

Note 2. Composition of Certain Financial Statementtems

Accounts Receivable (in millions) September 29,  September 30,
2013 2012

Trade, net of allowances for doubtful accountsafid $1, respectively $ 2,066 $ 1,41¢

Long-term contracts 27 32

Other 49 9

$ 2,14; % 1,45¢

Inventories (in millions) September 29,  September 30,
2013 2012

Raw materials $ 2 % 19

Work-in-process 631 531

Finished goods 66¢ 48C

$ 1,302 % 1,03(
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Property, Plant and Equipment (in millions) September 29,  September 30,
2013 2012
Land $ 21z $ 202
Buildings and improvements 1,73 1,392
Computer equipment and software 1,42t 1,40¢
Machinery and equipment 2,01z 1,82¢
Furniture and office equipment 87 80
Leasehold improvements 21¢ 237
Construction in progress 48( 774
6,16¢ 5,92
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,179 (3,079
$ 2,99 § 2,85]

Depreciation and amortization expense relatedapgaty, plant and equipment for fiscal 2013 , 2ah@d 2011 was $515 million , $427
million and $704 million , respectively. The grdssok values of property under capital leases iregfid buildings and improvements w&8
million and $64 million at September 29, 2013 aegt8mber 30, 2012 , respectively. These capitakkearincipally related to base station
towers and buildings.

At September 29, 2013, buildings and improvemantsleasehold improvements that were leased b plairties or held for lease to third
parties were negligible. Future minimum rental imeoon facilities leased to others is expected todggigible. At September 30, 2012 ,
buildings and improvements and leasehold improvesnsith a net book value of $13 million were leasethird parties or held for lease to
third parties.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset3he Company’s reportable segment assets do neid@goodwill. The Company allocates goodwiill
to its reporting units for annual impairment tegtpurposes. Goodwill was allocable to reportingsuimcluded in the Comparg/reportable ar
nonreportable segments, as described in Notef8|laws (in millions):

September 29, September 30,

2013 2012
QCT $ 2,87 $ 2,81¢
QTL 70€ 707
QWwWI 107 12¢
Nonreportable segments 28¢ 26€
$ 397¢ $ 3,917

During fiscal 2012, the Company’s QMT division (@wmeportable segment) updated its business plfotus on licensing its next
generation interferometric modulator (IMOD) displ®ghnology while directly commercializing certdMOD products. In the course of
pursuing its licensing model, the Company consideaious alternatives for certain property, plantl equipment. The Company performed
interim and subsequent annual goodwill impairmestsin fiscal 2013 and 2012 of the QMT divisiohjeth was determined to be a reporting
unit for purposes of the goodwill impairment tesitsd concluded each time that the fair value ofQMT reporting unit was greater than its
carrying value. The Company also assessed theeegllity of QMT’s other long-lived assets. Durifigcal 2013 and 2012, as a continuation
of evaluating alternatives with respect to certaimg-lived assets comprising QMT asset groupsCibimpany revised its estimates of expectec
cash flows and recorded impairment charges of $diliibn and $54 million , respectively, in otherpenses. At September 29, 2013 , the
carrying values of the QMT division’s goodwill al@hg-lived asset groups were $133 million and $@0ifion , respectively.

During fiscal 2012 and 2011, the Company recordgghirment charges of $23 million and $114 milliamspectively, in other expenses to
write down goodwill related to its QRS division¢lnded in the QWI segment). At September 29, 208837, million of goodwill remained for
the QRS division.
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The components of other intangible assets, net agfellows (in millions):

September 29, 2013

September 30, 2012

Gross Carrying

Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Wireless spectrum $ 19 ¢ B $ 2 % 3)
Marketing-related 7€ (37 7¢ (28
Technology-based 3,96¢ (1,519 3,96( (1,15¢)
Customer-related 87 (36) 101 33
$ 4,14¢ 9 (1,599 $ 4,16C $ (1,227

All of these intangible assets are subject to aixation, other than acquired in-process researdidanelopment with a carrying value of
$54 million at September 29, 2013 . Amortizatiopenxse related to these intangible assets for f&xE3 , 2012 and 2011 was $499 million ,
$473 million and $357 million , respectively. Amiaetion expense related to these intangible assetsacquired in-process research and
development, beginning upon the expected completiche underlying projects, is expected to be $d@iflon , $444 million , $340 million ,
$226 million and $193 million for fiscal 2014 to 2®, respectively, and $867 million thereafter.

Other Current Liabilities (in millions) September 29, September 30,
2013 2012

Customer incentives and other customer-relateditiab $ 1,706 $ 1,107

Other 57C 61€

$ 2,27¢ $ 1,72:

Assets and Liabilities Held for Sal®©n August 21, 2013, the Company entered into aniiel agreement under which it agreed to sell the
North and Latin American operations of its Omnigraévision to a U.¢-based private equity firm for $800 million in caslibject to the terms
and conditions of the definitive agreement. Thageation is subject to customary closing conditi@msluding receipt of regulatory approvals,
and is expected to close in the first quarter sxfdl 2014. As a result, assets (recorded as otinet assets and noncurrent assets held for sa
and liabilities (recorded as current liabilitiedchéor sale and other noncurrent liabilities) of3®Imillion and $43 million , respectively, were
classified as held for sale at September 29, ZDB8.Company expects to present the gain on thersati®f income taxes, as a discontinued
operation upon close. However, the revenues andtipg results of the North and Latin American @tiens of the Omnitracs division, which
comprise substantially all of the Omnitracs divisizvere not presented as discontinued operatioasyiffiscal period because they were
immaterial. At September 30, 2012, assets anditiabiheld for sale of $1.1 billion each were carsed of the assets and liabilities of the
Company'’s former BWA subsidiaries (Note 10).
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Note 3. Investment Income

QUALCOMM Incorporated

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment income, net was comprised as followsn(itions):

Interest and dividend income
Interest expense

Net realized gains on marketable securities

Net realized gains on other investments

Net impairment losses on marketable securities

Impairment losses on other investments

Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments

Net gains on deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Equity in losses of investees

comprehensive income were negligible for all pesipdesented.

Note 4. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision werlk®wvs (in millions):

Current provision:
Federal
State
Foreign

Deferred (benefit) provision:
Federal
State
Foreign

2013 2012 2011
$ 697 $ 60 $ 50C
(239 (90) (114
317 34z 33E
52 27 2
(729) (79) (39
13 (129 13
— 84 (3
12 — —
(6) 9 @)
$ 964 $ 83C $ 661
Net impairment losses on marketable securitiesa@len the noncredit portion of losses on debt is&esi recognized in other
2013 2012 2011
$ 324 14C  $ 17¢
15 1 57
1,06¢ 934 67C
1,407 1,07t 90¢€
(32) 20¢ 17C
6 (16) 62
(32 12 (6)
(59 204 22€
$ 1,34¢  $ 127¢  $ 1,132

The foreign component of the income tax provisionsists primarily of foreign withholding taxes ayalty fees included in United States

earnings.

The components of income from continuing operatioefore income taxes by United States and foreigadictions were as follows (in

millions):

United States
Foreign

2013 2012 2011
$ 3,79¢ $ 3,52t $ 2,98¢
4,39¢ 3,03: 2,70t
$ 8,19¢ $ 6,56z $ 5,68

The following is a reconciliation of the expectedtstory federal income tax provision to the Compsmctual income tax provision for

continuing operations (in millions):
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2013 2012 2011

Expected income tax provision at federal statutaxyrate $ 2,86¢ $ 2297 % 1,991
State income tax provision, net of federal benefit 26 24 28¢
Foreign income taxed at other than U.S. rates (1,362 (1,045 (1,079
Tax credits (295 (36) (153
Valuation allowance (©)] 55 42
Revaluation of deferred taxes 8 — 69
Other 7 (1€) (28)

$ 1,34¢  $ 127¢  $ 1,132

The Company’s QCT segmerd non-United States headquarters is located inaPmg. The Company has obtained tax incentives in
Singapore, which are effective through March 2QBa&t result in a tax exemption for the first fiveays provided that the Company meets
specified employment and investment criteria. Thenfany’s Singapore tax rate will increase in fit@l7 and again in fiscal 2027 as a resul
of expiration of these incentives. Had the Compastablished QCT'’s nobiited States headquarters in Singapore withowsethex incentive:
the Company'’s income tax expense would have bagrehand impacted earnings per share attributab@ualcomm as follows (in millions,
except per share amounts):

2013 2012
Additional income tax expense $ 75¢  $ 193
Reduction to basic earnings per share $ 044  $ 0.11
Reduction to diluted earnings per share $ 04: $ 0.11

The revaluation of deferred taxes represents tipadtnof paying current taxes at a higher statect¥fe tax rate than the effective tax rate
that will be in effect when the resulting defertas asset or liability is scheduled to reverse. Thenpany has not recorded a deferred tax
liability of approximately $7.6 billiomelated to the United States federal and statenecaxes and foreign withholding taxes on approsefy:
$21.6 billion of undistributed earnings of certamn-United States subsidiaries indefinitely invdstatside the United States. Should the
Company decide to repatriate the foreign earnithgsCompany would have to adjust the income taxigian in the period management
determined that the earnings will no longer be fimitely invested outside the United States.

The Company files income tax returns in the Unii¢ates federal jurisdiction and various state anelign jurisdictions. The Company is
currently a participant in the Internal Revenuevi®er (IRS) Compliance Assurance Process, wherebyRB and the Company endeavor to
agree on the treatment of all tax issues priohéotax return being filed. The IRS completed itarenation of the Company’s tax return for
fiscal 2011 and issued a final revenue agent’srtehaing the third quarter of fiscal 2013, resudtin no change to the income tax provision.
The Company is no longer subject to United Stagdsrfal income tax examinations for years prioigoal 2012. The Company is subject to
examination by the California Franchise Tax Boandfiscal years after 2008. The Company is alsgestibio income taxes in other taxing
jurisdictions in the United States and around tleeldy many of which are open to tax examinationgpferiods after fiscal 2000. The Comps
does not expect the impact of any future stat®@@idn audits to be material.
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The Company had deferred tax assets and defesrdididities as follows (in millions):

September 29, September 30,

2013 2012
Unearned revenues $ 1,308 % 1,34(
Share-based compensation 497 628
Unrealized losses on marketable securities 29¢ 23z
Accrued liabilities and reserves 30¢ 26C
Unused net operating losses 91 10&
Capitalized start-up and organizational costs 71 78
Tax credits 29 50
Other 49 10z
Total gross deferred assets 2,64( 2,79(C
Valuation allowance (51) (142)
Total net deferred assets 2,58¢ 2,64¢
Unrealized gains on marketable securities (53€) (552)
Intangible assets (265) (261)
Property, plant and equipment (129 (115
Other (27) (7
Total deferred liabilities (957) (935)
Net deferred assets $ 163 $ 1,718
Reported as:
Current deferred tax assets $ 572 $ 30¢
Non-current deferred tax assets 1,05¢ 1,41z
Non-current assets held for sale 2 —
Current deferred tax liabilities (1) — Q)
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (1) 2 @)
$ 1632 $ 1,71¢

(1) Current deferred tax liabilities and non-currerfeded tax liabilities were included in other currdiabilities and other liabilities, respectiveip, the
consolidated balance sheets.

At September 29, 2013 , the Company had unuseddiedet operating loss carryforwards of $131 millexpiring from 2021 through
2031 , unused state net operating loss carryforsvai 604 million expiring from 2014 through 2038nd unused foreign net operating loss
carryforwards of $75 million , which expire from 20through 2021 . At September 29, 2013 , the Compad unused tax credits of $25
million in foreign jurisdictions, which begin to pixe in 2014 . The Company does not expect itsriddet operating loss carryforwards and its
state income tax credits to expire unused.

The Company believes, more likely than not, thatilithave sufficient taxable income after dedunsaelated to share-based awards to
utilize the majority of its deferred tax assets.S&ptember 29, 2013 , the Company has providetlatian allowance on certain foreign
deferred tax assets, state net operating lossesetruépital losses of $21 million , $17 millionda®13 million , respectively. The valuation
allowances reflect the uncertainties surroundirgGompany’s ability to generate sufficient futuagable income in certain foreign and state
tax jurisdictions to utilize its net operating lessand the Company’s ability to generate sufficapital gains to utilize all capital losses.

A summary of the changes in the amount of unrea@aghiax benefits for fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 201lb¥es (in millions):
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2013 2012 2011
Beginning balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 86 $ 9% $ 358
Additions based on prior year tax positions 1 — 64
Reductions for prior year tax positions and lapsstatute of limitations — (28) (20)
Additions for current year tax positions 14& 1C 12
Settlements with taxing authorities (12 2 (329
Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits $ 221§ 8€ $ 96

The Company does not expect any unrecognized tefiterecorded at September 29, 2013 to reswlaghm payment in fiscal 2014 .
Unrecognized tax benefits at September 29, 2018ded $218 million for tax positions that, if reeoged, would impact the effective tax rate.
The unrecognized tax benefits differ from the amdhat would affect the Company’s effective taxerptimarily because the unrecognized ta
benefits were included on a gross basis and didefietct secondary impacts such as the federaldiedufor state taxes, adjustments to
deferred tax assets and the valuation allowandetght be required if the Compamyfax positions are sustained. The increase ircogreze«
tax benefits in fiscal 2013 was primarily due te p@sitions related to transfer pricing. The deseci unrecognized tax benefits in fiscal 2012
was primarily due to settlement of the Company’§f@aia tax examination for fiscal 2005 througkdal 2008, which was partially offset by
an increase in unrecognized tax benefits genematiéstal 2012. The Company does not believe thiatieasonably possible that the total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits at Septemhe2@L3 will significantly increase or decreaséiscal 2014 . Interest expense related to
uncertain tax positions was negligible in fiscal 3Q 2012 and 2011 . The amount of accrued intaregipenalties was negligible at
September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012 .

Cash amounts paid for income taxes, net of refuacisived, were $1.1 billion , $1.3 billion and $3illion for fiscal 2013 , 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Note 5. Capital Stock

Preferred StockThe Company has 8,000,000 shares of preferred sittblorized for issuance in one or more series par value of
$0.0001 per share. In conjunction with the distitru of preferred share purchase rights, 4,00090@0es of preferred stock are designated as
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, such shares are reserved for issuance upon exefditse preferred share purchase rights. At
September 29, 2013 and September 30, 2012 , nessbbpreferred stock were outstanding.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Agreemefhe Company has a Preferred Share Purchase Rigntgeient (Rights Agreement) to
protect stockholders’ interests in the event of@psed takeover of the Company. Under the origRights Agreement, adopted on
September 26, 1995, the Company declared a dividkade preferred share purchase right (a Rightgéeh share of the Company’s commor
stock outstanding. Pursuant to the Rights Agreenasnamended and restated on December 7, 2006Régtnthentitles the registered holder to
purchase from the Company a one one-thousandth sh&eries A Junior Participating Preferred St&k0001 par value per share, subject t
adjustment for subsequent stock splits, at a psecpace of $180 . The Rights are exercisable irayperson or group (an Acquiring Person)
acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of@oenpany’s outstanding shares of common stock wtthpproval of the Board of
Directors. Upon exercise, holders, other than aquiing Person, will have the right, subject tariération, to receive the Company’s commor
stock or other securities, cash or other assetatnamarket value, as defined, equal to twice guakhase price. The Rights, which expire on
September 25, 2015 , are redeemable in whole,diubmpart, at the Company’s option prior to thadisuch Rights are triggered for a price of
$0.001 per Right.

Stock Repurchase Progran®n September 11, 2013, the Company announced aapawmchase program authorizing it to repurchas® up
$5.0 billion of the Company’s common stock. Thecktoepurchase program has no expiration date. 853 billion stock repurchase program
replaced the previous $5.0 billion stock repurchsgram, of which $791 million remained availafiderepurchase. Any shares repurchased
are retired, and the amount paid in excess of alaevis recorded to paid-in capital. During fis2@ll3 , 2012 and 2011 , the Company
repurchased and retired 71,696,000 , 23,893,002 878,000 shares of common stock, respectivety$4db billion , $1.3 billion and $142
million , respectively, before commissions. At Sepber 29, 2013 , approximately $4.9 billion remdineathorized for repurchase under the
Company'’s stock repurchase program.

In connection with the Company'’s prior stock refnase programs, the Company sold three put optioiits @wn stock during fiscal 2011,
of which all expired unexercised during fiscal 20D2iring fiscal 2012 and 2011, the Company recaephiz
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gains of $80 million and losses of $5 million ,pestively, in net investment income due to changele fair values of the put options. No put
options were outstanding during fiscal 2013 .

Dividends.The Company announced increases in its quarterigetid per share of common stock from $0.19 to #®@h March 8, 2011 ,
from $0.215 to $0.25 on March 6, 2012 , and fron2$Qo $0.35 on March 5, 2013 . Dividends chargecttained earnings in fiscal 2013 ,
2012 and 2011 were as follows (in millions, exgegt share data):

2013 2012 2011
Per Share Total Per Share Total Per Share Total
First quarter $ 0.25C $ 438 $ 0.21t % 36 $ 0.19C $ 314
Second quarter 0.25( 43¢ 0.21% 377 0.19( 31¢
Third quarter 0.35( 61% 0.25(C 42¢ 0.21¢ 36C
Fourth quarter 0.35( 604 0.25(C 43¢ 0.21¢ 36¢€
$ 1.20C $ 2,09 $ 0.93C $ 1612 $ 0.81C $ 1,361

On October 24, 2013 , the Company announced adigistend of $0.35 per share of common stock, payabl December 19, 2013 to
stockholders of record as of December 2, 2013 ¢hvhiill be reflected in the consolidated finanatdtements in the first quarter of fiscal
2014 .

Note 6. Employee Benefit Plans

Employee Savings and Retirement Plarhe Company has a 401(k) plan that allows eligéntloyees to contribute up to 100% of their
eligible compensation, subject to annual limitse @ompany matches a portion of the employee cauttoibs and may, at its discretion, make
additional contributions based upon earnings. The@any’s contribution expense was $70 million , $@ilion and $52 million in fiscal
2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Equity Compensation PlansThe 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 2006 Plaa} adopted during the second quarter of fiscal 2006
replaced the 2001 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 Braployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and thegdecessor plans (the Prior Plans).
The 2006 Plan provides for the grant of incentind aon-qualified stock options, restricted stocksyrstock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, performance stock units and other shareebasards and is the source of shares issued umel&tdn-Qualified Deferred Compensation
Plan (the NQDCP), formerly known as the Executietifement Matching Contribution Plan. The shardbaiized under the 2006 Plan were
approximately 573,284,000 at September 29, 2008uyding 90,000,000 shares that were approveddZtimpany’s stockholders in March
2013. The share reserve remaining under the 2006Wds approximately 270,380,000 at September®®B 2Shares subject to any stock
option under a Prior Plan that is terminated orceted (but not a stock option under a Prior Plat #xpires) following the date that the 2006
Plan was approved by stockholders, and sharest@aubject to an award under the NQDCP and awmest to the Company because they
to vest, will again become available for grant urttie 2006 Plan. The Board of Directors of the Campmay amend or terminate the 2006
Plan at any time. Certain amendments, includingnarease in the share reserve, require stockhalagtoval.

During fiscal 2011 , the Company assumed a tot8l 964,000 outstanding stock awards under varitmngksased incentive plans (the
Assumed Plans) as a result of the acquisition bEAis (Note 9). The Assumed Plans provided fogthet of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock units attter stock-based awards. The Company can cortingient stock awards under one of the
Assumed Plans, the Atheros Communications, Inc4 Z10ck Incentive Plan, as amended (the Atheras) Rdecertain employees. The share
reserve under the Atheros Plan was 4,075,000 de®der 29, 2013 . All other remaining shares ablander Assumed Plans were
terminated on the date of the acquisition, anddditenal shares may be granted under those plans.

Net share-based awards, after forfeitures and tatiares, granted during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2@htesented 0.8% , 0.9% and 0.7% of
outstanding shares as of the beginning of eachlfigzar, respectively. Total share-based award#epaduring fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011
represented 1.0% , 1.0% and 0.9% , respectivelyutstanding shares as of the end of each fiseal ye

Restricted Stock UnitRRSUs are share awards that entitle the holderctive shares of the Company’s common stock upotinge§ he
RSUs generally include dividend-equivalent rightd aest over periods of three years from the daggant. A summary of RSU transactions
for all equity compensation plans follows:
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Weighted-Average Aggregate

Grant Date Fair Intrinsic
Number of Shares Value Value
(In thousands) (In billions)
RSUs outstanding at September 30, 2012 3292 $ 53.22
RSUs granted 15,50¢ 64.2(
RSUs canceled/forfeited (1,549 56.6¢
RSUs vested (15,809 50.5(
RSUs outstanding at September 29, 2013 31,07¢ g 5991 $ 2.1

At September 29, 2013, total unrecognized estichedenpensation expense related to non-vested R&ldged prior to that date was $1.3
billion , which is expected to be recognized overeaghted-average period of 1.8 years. The totsi-date fair value of RSUs that vested
during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $1.0 billi@352 million and $43 million , respectively. Rbe majority of RSUs, shares are issued o
the vesting dates net of the amount of shares deedsatisfy statutory tax withholding requiremetatde paid by the Company on behalf of
employees. The total shares withheld were appraxiyn®,805,000 , 1,965,000 and 243,000 in fiscdl3202012 and 2011 , respectively, and
were based on the value of the RSUs on their \@siéites as determined by the Company’s closink gtace. Total payments for the
employees’ tax obligations to the taxing authaositieere $374 million , $131 million and $14 millianfiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively.

Stock OptionsThe Board of Directors may grant stock optionsdiested employees, directors and consultants t€émepany to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exegpcise not less than the fair market value of tioels at the date of grant. Stock options
vest over periods not exceeding five years an@éseecisable for up to 10 years from the grant détsummary of stock option transactions
all equity compensation plans follows:

Weighted-
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Shares Price Contractual Term Value
(In thousands) (Years) (In billions)
Stock options outstanding at September 30, 2012 106,60: $ 39.9¢
Stock options canceled/forfeited/expired (652) 40.2¢
Stock options exercised (34,929 37.51
Stock options outstanding at September 29, 2013 71,026 § 41.13 42 $ 1.9
Exercisable at September 29, 2013 65,241 g 41.0¢ 40 $ 1.7

At September 29, 2013, total unrecognized estichad@pensation expense related to non-vested efmans granted prior to that date
was $51 million , which is expected to be recogtiager a weighted-average period of 0.5 years.tdta¢ intrinsic value of stock options
exercised during fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 w&®$8illion , $1.0 billion and $1.1 billion , resgaely. The Company recorded cash
received from the exercise of stock options of $illl&n , $1.5 billion and $2.5 billion and relatéax benefits of $659 million , $438 million
and $421 million during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 20Q1dspectively. Upon option exercise, the Compasyes new shares of stock.

Employee Stock Purchase Plaithe Company has an employee stock purchase platigdsle employees to purchase shares of common
stock at 85% of the lower of the fair market vatuethe first or the last day of each offering périohich is generally six months. Employees
may authorize the Company to withhold up to 15%hefr compensation during any offering period, sabjo certain limitations. The
employee stock purchase plan includes a non-4284b) The shares authorized under the employe& ptachase plan were approximately
46,709,000 at September 29, 2013 . The sharevegstr future issuance were approximately 10,703 & September 29, 2013 . During
fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 , approximately 4,0d@,03,654,000 and 3,778,000 shares, respectiwele issued under the plan at an average
price of $52.70 , $48.31 and $36.82 per shareeatisely. At September 29, 2013 , total unrecogrhiestimated compensation expense relate
to non-vested purchase rights granted prior todhtg was $21 million . The Company recorded cashived from the exercise of purchase
rights of $213 million , $177 million and $139 nlh during fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respebtive
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Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal ProceedingsTessera, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporate®n April 17, 2007, Tessera filed a patent infengent lawsuit in the
United States District Court for the Eastern Dgdtaf Texas and a complaint with the United Stétésrnational Trade Commission
(ITC) pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Actk#30 against the Company and other companiesjrajlé@gfringement of two patents. The
district court action was stayed pending resolutibthe ITC proceeding, including all appeals. Oay\M20, 2009, the ITC issued a limited
exclusion order and a cease and desist orderdbathich were terminated when the patents expire@eptember 24, 2010. During the period
of the exclusion order, the Company shifted suplgccused chips for customers who manufactureystsdhat may be imported to the
United States to a licensed supplier of Tessedttam Company continued to supply those customiéheut interruption. The ITC’s orders
were affirmed on appeal, and on November 28, 20iELUnited States Supreme Court denied the Compauagition for review. On January
18, 2012, pursuant to the parties’ stipulation,Bligtrict Court in the Eastern District of Texafédd the stay and ordered that the case be mov
to the United States District Court for the North@&istrict of California. On March 1, 2012, thatuebconsolidated the case with an earfikd
lawsuit filed by Tessera against multiple partiesjuding some of the Company’s semiconductor gapkage suppliers. The court has set
April 24, 2014 as the hearing date for claims camtdion and any summary judgment motions that nefiled. Trial is scheduled for August
25, 2014. Tessera may continue to seek allegeddpasages in the district court, but it cannot abtajunctive relief due to the expiration of
the patents.

MOSAID Technologies Incorporated v. Dell, Inc. et ©®n March 16, 2011, MOSAID filed a complaint agaiAtheros Communications,
Inc. (Atheros Communications), which the Companyuéired in May 2011 and renamed Qualcomm Atheras, (Qualcomm Atheros), and 32
other entities in the United States District Cdartthe Eastern District of Texas alleging thattaier Wi-Fi products infringed six MOSAID
patents and seeking damages for the relevant@tafoériod prior to May 2011. On July 17, 2013, M&B and the Company entered into an
agreement pursuant to which MOSAID agreed to diswish prejudice all claims against the Compargerised to the Company certain
MOSAID patents and provided other considerationd, the Company paid to MOSAID an amount that wasmaterial to the Company’s
financial statements. The court dismissed the daigainst the Company with prejudice on Augus©0232

ParkerVision, Inc. v. QUALCOMM Incorporate®n July 20, 2011, ParkerVision filed a complagainst the Company in the United
States District Court for the Middle District ofdfida alleging that certain of the Company’s praduefringe seven of its patents alleged to
cover direct down-conversion receivers. ParkerVisicomplaint sought damages and injunctive andrattlief. On February 28, 2012,
ParkerVision filed an amended complaint dropping patents from the case and adding one new p&enianuary 22, 2013, the court grat
in part ParkerVision’s motion to dismiss the Comparounterclaim for inequitable conduct, and the(any subsequently withdrew the
remainder of its inequitable conduct countercladn.February 20, 2013, the court issued its claimstraction order. The Company filed its
amended answer and counterclaims on April 11, 28WiBsequently, ParkerVision narrowed its allegatitnassert only four patents. The trial
began on October 7, 2013. On October 17, 2013utggeturned a verdict finding all asserted claiofishe four at-issue patents to be infringec
and finding that none of the asserted claims aralich On October 24, 2013, the jury returned aasaie verdict assessing total past damag
approximately $173 million and finding that the Quany'’s infringement was not willful. The Companygeeded a $173 milliocharge in othe
expenses in fiscal 2013 as a result of this verdice court will set a schedule for post-verdiagiqaedings, including the parties’ respective
motions for judgment as a matter of law and Parlksov’s request for ongoing equitable relief. Thengpany intends to appeal.

Icera Complaint to the European Commissiddn June 7, 2010, the European Commission (then@ission) notified and provided the
Company with a redacted copy of a complaint filéthwhe Commission by Icera, Inc. alleging that @@mpany has engaged in
anticompetitive activity. The Company was askedhgyCommission to submit a preliminary responghégportions of the complaint
disclosed to it, and the Company submitted itsorsp in July 2010. On October 19, 2011, the Comarnissotified the Company that it should
provide to the Commission additional documentsiafarmation. On January 16, 2012, the Company plediadditional documents and
information in response to that request. On July200 3, the Commission ordered the Company to geoadditional documents and
information. The Company continues to cooperatly fulth the Commission’s preliminary investigation.

Korea Fair Trade Commission (KFTC) Complaif®n January 4, 2010, the KFTC issued a writtensitat finding that the Company had
violated South Korean law by offering certain disets and rebates for purchases of its CDMA chimsfanincluding in certain agreements
language requiring the continued payment of rogaléfter all licensed patents have expired. The®&IFeVied a fine, which the Company paid
in the second quarter of fiscal 2010. The Compapealed to the Seoul High Court, and on June 183 2Be Seoul High Court affirmed the
KFTC's decision. On July 4, 2013, the Company fidedappeal with the Korea Supreme Court.
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Japan Fair Trade Commission (JFTC) Complaiithe JFTC received unspecified complaints allegivag the Company’s business
practices are, in some way, a violation of JapafegeOn September 29, 2009, the JFTC issued & @abdesist order concluding that the
Company’s Japanese licensees were forced to doessé patents to the Company on a royalty-frees laesl were forced to accept a provisior
under which they agreed not to assert their esdgydtents against the Company’s other license@smdde a similar commitment in their
license agreements with the Company. The ceasdesist order seeks to require the Company to matdigxisting license agreements with
Japanese companies to eliminate these provisioits prieserving the license of the Company’s patemthose companies. The Company
disagrees with the conclusions that it forcedadgsahese licensees to agree to any provision ipattes’ agreements and that those provisions
violate the Japanese Antimonopoly Act. The Compaasyinvoked its right under Japanese law to anmidtrative hearing before the JFTC. In
February 2010, the Tokyo High Court granted the gamy’s motion and issued a stay of the cease asidtaeder pending the administrative
hearing before the JFTC. The JFTC has held heaond® different dates, with another hearing schestifor January 22, 2014 and additional
hearing dates yet to be scheduled.

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) FormaéQotiPrivate Investigation and Department of Jesstinvestigation On Septembe
8, 2010, the Company was notified by the SEC’s Angeles Regional office of a formal order of prizvétvestigation. The Company
understands that the investigation arose from asteblower’s” allegations made in December 200h®maudit committee of the Company’s
Board of Directors and to the SEC. In 2010, thdatazammittee completed an internal review of tHegstions with the assistance of
independent counsel and independent forensic atamotsn This internal review into the whistlebloveeallegations and related accounting
practices did not identify any errors in the Compaifinancial statements. On January 27, 20120bmpany learned that the U.S. Attorney’'s
Office for the Southern District of California/Depment of Justice (collectively, DOJ) had begurirarestigation regarding the Company’s
compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices &AZPA). FCPA compliance is also a focus of the SBE@stigation. The audit committee
continues to conduct an internal review into thenpany’s compliance with the FCPA with the assistamicindependent counsel and
independent forensic accountants.

As previously disclosed, the Company has discovered as a part of its ongoing cooperation witls¢hievestigations has informed the
SEC and the DOJ of, instances in which speciahdpiconsideration, gifts or other benefits (colleely, benefits) were provided to several
individuals associated with Chinese state-ownedpzonies or agencies. Based on the facts currentiwknthe Company believes the
aggregate monetary value of the benefits in questide less than $250,000, excluding employmemipamsation. The Company is continu
to cooperate with the SEC and the DOJ, but is enebpredict the outcome of their investigations.

The Company will continue to vigorously defend litse the foregoing matters. However, litigationdaimvestigations are inherently
uncertain. Accordingly, the Company cannot prettietoutcome of these matters. Other than the amrenatded for the ParkerVision verdict,
the Company has not recorded any accrual at Septe?®h 2013 for contingent losses associated Wwihd matters based on its belief that
losses, while possible, are not probable. Furdmey,possible range of loss cannot be reasonabipaed at this time. Nonetheless, the
unfavorable resolution of one or more of these enattould have a material adverse effect on thegaosis business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. The Companyrga&ged in numerous other legal actions not destdbeve arising in the ordinary course of
its business and, while there can be no assurhetieyes that the ultimate outcome of these osmgallactions will not have a material adverse
effect on its business, results of operations i condition or cash flows.

Loans and Debenturesthe Company’s former BWA subsidiaries (Note 10) lwath and debenture liabilities in connection wite BWA
spectrum won in India in fiscal 2010. The subsigmmwere merged into one remaining former BWA gadlibsy in August 2013, and that
subsidiary had a loan from a bank related to payme®81 million to the India Government’s Departrhef Telecommunications in March
2012 (the DoT loan), which was recorded by the Camypas a charge to other expenses in the secomgiqoBfiscal 2012. On on June 25,
2013, all outstanding debentures ( $492 milliamc|uding accrued interest) were redeemed, and @u#tB0, 2013, all outstanding loans,
excluding the DoT loan, ( $368 million ) were regan full using funding provided by Bharti, ancet@ompany’s related guarantee and
indemnification agreements were terminated. Padhé deconsolidation of the BWA subsidiaries oneJ@5, 2013, cash paid for interest on
the loans and debentures was $92 million , $8danithnd $94 million for fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2Q%&spectively.

The DoT loan was guaranteed by QUALCOMM Incorpataad one of its wholly owned subsidiaries and dexsominated in Indian
rupees. The fair value of the guarantee was redaaide liability when the Company deconsolidatedBWA subsidiaries (Note 10). The DoT
loan was due and payable on December 1, 2014 ardrierest at an annual rate that was reset qlyanéus 0.25% ( 10.20% at
September 29, 2013 ) with interest payments duetmorhe DoT loan was repaid in full on October 2813 ( $67 million ) using funding
provided by Bharti as a condition to Bharti's agition of all of the Company’s interest in the reniiag former BWA subsidiary, which
occurred on October 17, 2013.
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Indemnifications. With the exception of the practices of its Qualcortheros subsidiary, the Company generally doesnuemnify its
customers and licensees for losses sustained frismgement of third-party intellectual propertghts. However, the Company is contingently
liable under certain product sales, services, §ieeand other agreements to indemnify certain cust®ragainst certain types of liability and/or
damages arising from qualifying claims of pateftilmgement by products or services sold or provibdgdhe Company. The Company’s
obligations under these agreements may be limitéerims of time and/or amount, and in some insw®rtbe Company may have recourse
against third parties for certain payments madéhbyCompany. Under Qualcomm Atheros’ indemnificatagreements, software license
agreements and product sale agreements (includiistgindard software license agreements and sthtetars and conditions of semicondut
sales), Qualcomm Atheros agrees, subject to réstigcand after certain conditions are met, to indiéy and defend its licensees and
customers against third-party claims assertingrigément of certain intellectual property right$iigh may include patents, copyrights,
trademarks or trade secrets, and to pay any judgnestered on such claims against the licenseesstomers. Through September 29, 2013,
Qualcomm Atheros has received a number of claioms fts direct and indirect customers and othedtharties for indemnification under such
agreements with respect to alleged infringemeihiodi-party intellectual property rights by its picts.

These indemnification arrangements are not inytiseasured and recognized at fair value becaugeatieedeemed to be similar to product
warranties in that they relate to claims and/oeptctions that could impair the ability of the Guany’s direct or indirect customers to use the
Company'’s products or services. Accordingly, thenpany records liabilities resulting from the arrangents when they are probable and can
be reasonably estimated. Reimbursements under mitleation arrangements have not been materidiécGompany’s consolidated financial
statements. The Company has not recorded any &¢orucantingent liabilities at September 29, 2G@E3ociated with these indemnification
arrangements, other than insignificant amountsdbas the Company’s belief that additional liakgkt while possible, are not probable.
Further, any possible range of loss cannot be nedidp estimated at this time.

Purchase ObligationsThe Company has agreements with suppliers and p#rées to purchase inventory, other goods andce= and
long-lived assets. Obligations, which generallydhavemaining term of less than one year, undsethgreements at September 29, 2013 for
each of the subsequent five years from fiscal 281gugh 2018 were approximately $3.3 billion , $20@lion , $54 million , $6 million and $3
million , respectively, and $10 million thereaft&f these amounts, for fiscal 2014 and 2015 , camanits to purchase integrated circuit
product inventories comprised $2.7 billion and $&llion , respectively. Integrated circuit produstentory obligations represent purchase
commitments for silicon wafers and assembly andseexwvices. Under the Company’s manufacturing iaahips with its foundry partners and
assembly and test service providers, cancelati@mutstanding purchase orders is generally allowgddguires payment of all costs incurred
through the date of cancelation.

LeasesThe future minimum lease payments for all cap#akks and operating leases at September 29, 204 Zsviollows (in millions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases Total
2014 $ 2 $ 89 ¢ 91
2015 2 74 76
2016 1 62 63
2017 1 46 47
2018 1 25 26
Thereafter 28 47 76

Total minimum lease payments 36 9 343§ 37¢

Deduct: Amounts representing interest 19
Present value of minimum lease payments 17
Deduct: Current portion of capital lease obligasion —
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations $ 17

The Company leases certain of its land, faciliied equipment under noncancelable operating leasthsterms ranging frortess than on
yearto 31 years and with provisions in certain leasesbst-of-living increases. Rental expense fadif013 , 2012 and 2011 was $90
million , $87 million and $87 million respectively. The Company leases certain properther capital lease agreements primarily relatesitée
leases that have an initial term of five to sevearg with renewal options of up to five additioreiewal periods. Capital lease obligations are
included in other liabilities.
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Note 8. Segment Information

The Company is organized on the basis of produadssarvices. The Company aggregates four of itisidivs into the QWI segment and
two of its divisions into the QSI segment. Repdeaegments are as follows:

QCT (Qualcomm CDMA Technologies) segment — depeland supplies integrated circuits and systetwacé based on CDMA,
OFDMA and other technologies for use in voice aathdommunications, networking, application procggsmultimedia and global
positioning system products.

QTL (Qualcomm Technology Licensing) segment -aigs licenses or otherwise provides rights to uségns of the Company’s
intellectual property portfolio, which, among othights, includes certain patent rights essentiartd/or useful in the manufacture .
sale of certain wireless products, including, withiimitation, products implementing CDMA2000, WCB/ICDMA TDD (including
TD-SCDMA), GSM/GPRS/EDGE and/or OFDMA (including EY standards and their derivatives, and QTL cdiléicense fees as
well as royalties based on sales by licenseesoafyats incorporating or using the Company’s intdilal property.

QWI (Qualcomm Wireless & Internet) segmentcemprised o

«  Omnitracs division — provides fleet managemeatellite- and terrestrial-based two-way wirelegermation and position
reporting and other services, software and hardteatmnsportation and logistics companies. On Atugd, 2013, the
Company entered into a definitive agreement totelNorth and Latin American operations of Ommisr@vhich comprise
substantially all of the Omnitracs division) tohérdl party, subject to closing conditions (Note 2);

* QIS (Qualcomm Internet Services) division — pd®s content enablement services for the wireledisstry and push-to-talk
and other software products and services for wssetetwork operators;

*  QGOV (Qualcomm Government Technologies) divisierprovides development and other services antegtjaroducts
involving wireless communications technologies t@grnment agencies and their contractors; and

* QRS (Qualcomm Retail Solutions) division — bsilshd manages software applications that enatigirc@nobile location-
awareness and commerce services.

QSI (Qualcomm Strategic Initiatives) segment emprised of the Company’s Qualcomm Ventures anac8ired Finance &
Strategic Investments divisions. QS| makes stratieyiestments that the Company believes may operon@xpand opportunities for
its technologies, support the design and introdnotif new products or services for voice and dataraunications or possess unique
capabilities or technology. Many of these stratégiestments are in early-stage companies. QSlralkis wireless spectrum. Prior to
fiscal 2013, QSI's FLO TV division was presentedlessontinued operations. All discontinued operatiovere attributable to
Qualcomm.

The Company evaluates the performance of its segnb@sed on earnings (loss) before income taxe$)(EBm continuing operations.
Segment EBT includes the allocation of certain ocaife expenses to the segments, including depiciand amortization expense related to
unallocated corporate assets. Certain income aamdjel are not allocated to segments in the Companghagement reports because they are
not considered in evaluating the segments’ opaygt@rformance. Unallocated income and chargesdectertain net investment income;
certain share-based compensation; and certainrobsaad development expenses and selling and nragkestpenses that were deemed to be
not directly related to the businesses of the seggnéAdditionally, starting with acquisitions inetlthird quarter of fiscal 2011, unallocated
charges include recognition of the step-up of itegas to fair value, amortization and impairmehtertain intangible assets and certain othel
acquisition-related charges. Such charges relatadduisitions that were completed prior to thedtlguarter of fiscal 2011 are allocated to the
respective segments. The table below presentsueseand EBT for reportable segments (in
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millions):
Reconciling
QCT QTL QwiI Qs Items Total
2013
Revenues $ 16,71¢ $ 755¢ $ 61 $ — 3 (16) $ 24,86¢
EBT 3,18¢ 6,59( 8 56 (1,639 8,19«
Total assets 3,30¢ 28 53 511 41,61¢ 45,51¢
2012
Revenues $ 12,14: $ 6,327 $ 63 $ — 3 20 $ 19,12:
EBT 2,29¢ 5,58¢ (15) (170 (1,139 6,56:
Total assets 2,27¢ 63 12¢ 1,42¢ 39,11¢ 43,01:
2011
Revenues $ 8,85¢ $ 542: $ 65€ $ — 3 20 % 14,957
EBT 2,05¢ 4,75: (152) (132) (83¢) 5,681
Total assets 1,56¢ 36 13€ 2,38¢ 32,29¢ 36,42

Segment assets are comprised of accounts recemathlmventories for all reportable segments aotthe@n QSI. QS| segment assets include
certain marketable securities, notes receivableless spectrum, other investments and all aséetmeolidated subsidiaries included in QSI.
QSI segment assets related to the discontinued PLBusiness totaled $59 million and $913 milliorSatptember 30, 2012 and September 2
2011 , respectively. QSI assets at September 2% 28eptember 30, 2012 and September 25, 201idietI$17 million , $11 million and $20
million , respectively, related to investments quity method investees. Reconciling items for takdets included $892 million , $1.2 billion
and $806 million at September 29, 2013 , Septerd®e2012 and September 25, 2011 , respectivelypodiwill and other assets related to the
Company’s QMT division, a nonreportable segmenettging display technology for mobile devices atitko applications. Total segment
assets also differ from total assets on a congeliddasis as a result of unallocated corporatésagsenarily comprised of certain cash, cash
equivalents, marketable securities, property, phauck equipment, deferred tax assets, other inteng#sets and assets of nonreportable
segments. The net book values of long-lived taegisisets located outside of the United States $89@ million , $1.1 billion and $629
million at September 29, 2013 , September 30, 20t2September 25, 2011 , respectively. The net ahles of long-lived tangible assets
located in the United States were $2.1 billion.83illion and $1.8 billion at September 29, 20B:ptember 30, 2012 and September 25,
2011, respectively.

Revenues from each of the Company'’s divisions agdesl into the QWI reportable segment were asvialifn millions):

2013 2012 2011
Omnitracs $ 372 % 371 % 39t
QIS 13€ 151 15C
QGOoV 102 10¢ 10C
QRS 1 2 11
$ 61 $ 63 $ 65€
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Other reconciling items were comprised as folloimsnfillions):

2013 2012 2011
Revenues
Nonreportable segments $ 12 $ 24 % 23
Intersegment eliminations (4) (4) (©)]
$ 1e) $ 2C % 20
EBT
Unallocated cost of equipment and services revenues $ (335 $ (300 $ (210
Unallocated research and development expenses (789 (702) (559
Unallocated selling, general and administrativeesges (502) (549 (506)
Unallocated other expense 173 — —
Unallocated investment income, net 877 92¢ 75€
Nonreportable segments (71)) (517) (329
Intersegment eliminations — — @
$ (1,63) $ 1,139 $ (83¢)

Nonreportable segments’ losses before taxes diisogl 2013 , 2012 and 2011 were primarily attréhlé to the Compang’QMT division
Effectively all equity in earnings (losses) of istees was recorded in QSI in fiscal 2013 , 2012281d . Amounts included in unallocated
expenses related to the amortization and impairmiecgrtain intangible assets, contract terminatiand the recognition of the step-up of
inventories to fair value that resulted from acdigins were as follows (in millions):

2013 2012 2011
Unallocated cost of equipment and services revenues $ 264 $ 22§ 145
Unallocated research and development expenses 3 — 6
Unallocated selling, general and administrativeegges 2€ 43 5¢

In fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, interest incomeudet in QS| EBT was $8 million , $19 million anddbaillion , respectively, and interest
expense included in QS| EBT was $18 million , $78iom and $99 million , respectively. Interest oroe and interest expense recorded by
other segments were negligible in all periods presk

Intersegment revenues are based on prevailing maates for substantially similar products and E&w or an approximation thereof, but
the purchasing segment may record the cost of tesgeat the selling segment’s original cost. In ehant, the elimination of the selling
segment’s gross margin is included with other Bg#gment eliminations in reconciling items. QCT rawes for fiscal 2013 , 2012 and 2011
included $3 million , $4 million and $3 million aftersegment revenues, respectively. All other meres for reportable segments were from
external customers for all periods presented.

The Company distinguishes revenues from exterretboters by geographic areas based on the locatiwhith its products, software or
services are delivered or, for QTL licensing revesjuhe invoiced addresses of its licensees. Bdtgmation by geographic area was as
follows (in millions):

2013 2012 2011
China $ 12,28¢ $ 7971 % 4,744
South Korea 4,98: 4,20: 2,88
Taiwan 2,68: 2,64¢ 2,55(
United States 80t 967 897
Other foreign 4,107 3,33 3,87¢
$ 24,86t 3 19,12:  $ 14,957
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Note 9. Acquisitions

During fiscal 2013, the Company acquired five basses for total cash consideration of $115 millidechnology-based intangible assets
recognized in the amount of $24 million are beinpdized on a straight-line basis over a weighteerage useful life of siyears. Goodwill ¢
$82 million was recognized in these transactiohgytoch $21 million is expected to be deductible fax purposes.

During fiscal 2012, the Company acquired eight hesses for total cash consideration of $774 millidechnology-based intangible assets
recognized in the amount of $164 million are beangprtized on a straight-line basis over a weiglateerage useful life of six years. The
Company recorded $62 million related to 10 in-pesceesearch and development (IPR&D) projects. Atéeber 29, 2013, the remaining
IPR&D of $51 million consisted of six projects, whiare expected to be completed within two yeapgaritompletion, the IPR&D projects
will be amortized over their useful lives, whicleaxpected to range between three to nine yeam\v@ib of $517 million was recognized in
these transactions, of which $71 million is expédtebe deductible for tax purposes.

On May 24, 2011, the Company acquired Atheros Conications, Inc. (Atheros) for total cash considierabf $3.1 billion (net of $233
million of cash acquired) and the exchange of wkated earned unvested share-based awards withiarakes! fair value of $106 million . The
primary objective of the acquisition was to helgealerate the expansion of the Company’s technadogiel platforms to new businesses
beyond cellular, including home, enterprise andieanetworking. Atheros was integrated into theTQg&gment. The $3.5 billion total
purchase price was allocated as follows: $1.8dmilto goodwill, $856 million to amortizable intabtg assets, $150 million to IPR&D af691
million to other net assets.

Goodwill recognized in the Atheros acquisition @& deductible for tax purposes and was allocatededCT segment for annual
impairment testing purposes. Goodwill largely cetsdf expected revenue synergies resulting frenctmbination of product portfolios, cost
synergies related to reduction in headcount gramthlower manufacturing costs, assembled workfamtbaccess to additional sales and
distribution channels. The intangible assets aequérre being amortized on a straight-line basis wedghted-average useful lives of four
yearssix years and three years for technology-basedketing-related and customer-related intangibletassespectively. At September 29,
2013, the remaining IPR&D of $3 million consistefcboe project, which is expected to be completeet thre next year . The Company’s
results of operations for fiscal 2011 included diperating results of Atheros since the date of &itipn, the amounts of which were not
material.

Unaudited pro forma revenues and net income attiidel to Qualcomm for fiscal 2011, presenting #sults of operations of Qualcomm
and Atheros as though the companies had been cechbmof the beginning of fiscal 2010, were $18I®b and $4.3 billion , respectively.
This unaudited pro forma information is provided iftformational purposes only and is not indicatdfehe results of operations that would
have been achieved if the acquisition had taketepds of the beginning of fiscal 2010.

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired nine oth&sinesses for total cash consideration of $486mi Technology-based intangible
assets recognized in the amount of $150 milliorbaieg amortized on a straight-line basis over mhted-average useful life of five years.
Goodwill of $276 million was recognized in thesarsactions, of which $234 million is expected talbductible for tax purposes.

Goodwill recognized in these acquisitions was assigto the Company’s reportable segments as fol{owsillions):

2013 2012 2011
QCT $ 65 $ 364 $ 1,99¢
QwWI — — 36
QTL — 22 6
Nonreportable segments 17 131 8
$ 82 ¢ 517 $ 2,04¢
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Note 10. Deconsolidation of and Retained Investment the BWA Subsidiaries

In fiscal 2010, the Company established subsidianédndia to operate a wireless network using Bb@ad Wireless Access (BWA)
spectrum (the BWA subsidiaries). In June 2012, Biartel Limited (Bharti), an Indian wireless netrnk operator, purchased shares in the
BWA subsidiaries that were held by two third-pdrtgian investors, and the BWA subsidiaries issigiiteonal equity interests to Bharti for
$85 million , reducing the Company’s ownership iat in each of the BWA subsidiaries to 51% . OmeJ25, 2013, the BWA subsidiaries
issued additional equity interests to Bharti foll $dillion , further reducing the Company’s owneyshiterests to 49%and redeemed all of tl
outstanding debentures using funding provided barBkthrough subordinated debt (Note 7). Also, Bihgained additional power over
significant activities through certain leadershifaeges. These events resulted in a change in tofittee BWA subsidiaries and therefore, the
BWA subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the Camgjsafinancial statements. Prior to the deconsdilioig the assets and liabilities of the
BWA subsidiaries were classified as held for sale.

As a result of the deconsolidation, the Companggaized a gain in net investment income of $6 milimeasured as the difference
between (a) the net fair values of the retainectaotrolling investment and the Company’s guaranfabe former BWA subsidiaries’ bank
loans (Note 7) and (b) the carrying values of tivener BWA subsidiarieshet assets, including cumulative translation lossesnoncontrollin
interests. Total assets and total liabilities wexduced by $1.0 billion and $999 million , respeely. Such assets and liabilities consisted
primarily of wireless spectrum, network-relatedeass@nd loan obligations. The deconsolidation e¢hamounts represented a noncash
investing and noncash financing transaction andneaseflected in the statement of cash flows figr nine months ended June 30, 2013. The
fair value of the Company’s retained noncontrollingestment of $34 million was determined by applya discounted cash flow valuation
model to the estimated cash proceeds that the Qongaected to receive upon the sale of its intéceBharti.

The former BWA subsidiaries were merged into onétyeon August 5, 2013. On August 30, 2013, thea#img former BWA subsidiary
repaid all of the outstanding loans, excluding®od loan, using funding provided by Bharti in ttoerh of subordinated debt (Note 7). Also on
August 30, 2013, Bharti converted the subordindtsut, and the former BWA subsidiary issued add#ti@quity interests to Bharti, further
reducing the Company’s ownership interest to 7% Q@tober 15, 2013, the DoT loan was repaid usimgihg provided by Bharti (Note 7),
and on October 17, 2013, Bharti acquired all of@eenpany’s interest in the remaining former sulzsidi

Note 11. Discontinued Operations

On March 27, 2011, the FLO TV business and netwagte shut down. On December 27, 2011 , the Compampleted the sale of
substantially all of its 700 MHz spectrum for $biflion , and as a result, the Company recognizgédia in discontinued operations of $1.2
billion during fiscal 2012 . Accordingly, the retsbf operations of the FLO TV business were prieskas discontinued operations. Income
(loss) from discontinued operations included shmsed compensation and excluded certain genegzbrede expenses allocated to the FLO
TV business during the periods presented. Thetsestithe discontinued FLO TV operations were digdes (in millions):

2012 2011
Revenues $ — 3 5
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 1,20 % (507)
Income tax (expense) benefit (427) 194
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes $ 77€ $ (319

Note 12. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thatidvioe received for an asset or paid to transfexbdity (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipas of the measurement date. Applicable
accounting guidance provides an established hieydr inputs used in measuring fair value that imézes the use of observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by reqgithat the most observable inputs be used whatabla Observable inputs are inputs that
market participants would use in valuing the asséiibility and are developed based on market datained from sources independent of the
Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflfecCompanyg assumptions about the factors that market paatits would use in valuit
the asset or liability. There are three levelsglits that may be used to measure fair value:
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» Level 1 includes financial instruments for whiclotgd market prices for identical instruments ar@lable in active marke!

» Level 2 includes financial instruments for whittere are inputs other than quoted prices includéun Level 1 that are observable
for the instrument.

e Level 3 includes financial instruments for whieir value is derived from valuation techniquesvinich one or more significant inputs
are unobservable, including the Company’s own aptoms.

Assets and liabilities are classified based ordhest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurements. The Company
reviews the fair value hierarchy classificationabguarterly basis. Changes in the observabilityaddiation inputs may result in a
reclassification of levels for certain securitieishin the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the Company'’s faiugahierarchy for assets and liabilities measurddiavalue on a recurring basis at
September 29, 2013 (in millions):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash equivalents $ 420 $ 1,346 $ —  $ 5,552
Marketable securities
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedries 64¢ 434 — 1,082
Corporate bonds and notes — 11,87( — 11,87(
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities — 93¢ 23¢ 1,173
Auction rate securities — — 83 83
Common and preferred stock 1,541 81¢ — 2,35¢
Equity funds 96( — — 96(
Debt funds 2,157 3,57¢ — 5,73%
Total marketable securities 5,30¢ 17,63¢ 32z 23,26¢
Derivative instruments — 40 — 40
Other investments 24¢ — — 24¢
Total assets measured at fair value $ 9,75t % 19,02: $ 32z % 29,09¢
Liabilities
Derivative instruments $ 2 3 21 % — 3 23
Other liabilities 244 — — 244
Total liabilities measured at fair value $ 246 $ 21§ — % 267

Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securitiefhe Company considers all highly liquid investmeirtsluding repurchase agreements, \
original maturities of three months or less to bstcequivalents. Cash equivalents are comprisetbnty market funds, certificates of deposit
commercial paper, government agencies’ securiidsepurchase agreements fully collateralized byegument agencies’ securities.

With the exception of auction rate securities, @lmpany obtains pricing information from quoted kedprices, pricing vendors or quo
from brokers/dealers. The Company conducts revafits primary pricing vendors to determine whettrer inputs used in the vendor’s
pricing processes are deemed to be observableairhalue for interest-bearing securities includesrued interest.

The fair value of U.S. Treasury securities and goveent-related securities, corporate bonds andsrastd common and preferred stock is
generally determined using standard observablegsnmcluding reported trades, quoted market prioesrix pricing, benchmark yields,
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sidelatsaand/or benchmark securities.

The fair value of debt and equity funds is repodegublished net asset values. The Company assthesdaily frequency and size of
transactions at published net asset values ar#duhds’ underlying holdings to determine whetiaérvalue is based on observable or
unobservable inputs.
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The fair value of highly rated mortgage- and adsatked securities is derived from the use of mattriging (prices for similar securities)
or, in some cases, cash flow pricing models witkepable inputs such as contractual terms, matwriggdit rating and/or securitization
structure to determine the timing and amount afreicash flows. Certain mortgage- and asset-bas@atities, principally those rated below
AAA, may require the use of significant unobsereaiplputs to estimate fair value, such as defakdtiiood, recovery rates and prepayment
speed.

The fair value of auction rate securities is estaddy the Company using a discounted cash flowainth@t incorporates transaction
details such as contractual terms, maturity anthjrand amount of future cash flows, as well asiaggions related to liquidity, default
likelihood and recovery, the future state of thetaun rate market and credit valuation adjustmeht®arket participants. Though certain of the
securities held by the Company are pools of stulibams guaranteed by the U.S. government, prepaysperds and illiquidity discounts are
considered significant unobservable inputs. Thesktianal inputs are generally unobservable, ardefore, auction rate securities are inclt
in Level 3.

Derivative InstrumentsDerivative instruments include foreign currencyioptand forward contracts to manage foreign exchais for
certain foreign currency transactions and certalarces denominated in a foreign currency; opfimmyard and swap contracts to acquire or
reduce foreign exchange risk and/or equity, pregaytrand credit risks for portfolios of marketabdewrities classified as trading; and warrant
to purchase common stock of other companies atl fixeces. Derivative instruments that are tradedmexchange are valued using quoted
market prices and are included in Level 1. Derixatnhstruments that are not traded on an exchamgesdued using conventional
calculations/models that are primarily based oreplable inputs, such as foreign currency exchaaggsythe Company'’s stock price,
volatilities and interest rates, and thereforehaerivative instruments are included in Level 2.

Other Investments and Other Liabilitie©ther investments and other liabilities included . @vel 1 are comprised of the Company’s
deferred compensation plan liability and relatesbs which consist of mutual funds classifiedradihg securities and included in other
noncurrent assets. Other liabilities included ineéle3 in fiscal 2012 were comprised of put righeschby third parties representing interests in
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. These mgihtsiwere terminated during the third quarter edi 2012and were previously valued witt
conventional option pricing model using significampbservable inputs.

Activity between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchyhere were no significant transfers between Lewvad Level 2 during fiscal 2013 or
2012 . When a determination is made to classifgsset or liability within Level 3, the determinatis based upon the significance of the
unobservable inputs to the overall fair value meament. The following table includes the activity marketable securities and other liabilit
classified within Level 3 of the valuation hieraycfin millions):

2013 2012
Mortgage- Mortgage-
and Asset- and Asset-
Auction Rate Backed Auction Rate Backed Other
Securities Securities Securities Securities Liabilities
Beginning balance of Level 3 $ 11¢  $ 203 $ 124 % 27 % 7
Total realized and unrealized gains or losses:

Included in investment income, net — 8 — 5 (7)
Included in other comprehensive income 1 (6) — 7 —
Purchases — 163 — 14¢ —
Sales — (70 — — —
Settlements (36) 77) (6) (29 —
Transfers into Level 3 — 18 — 43 —
Ending balance of Level 3 $ 83 § 23¢  § 118§ 20§ —

The Company recognizes transfers into and outwafidewithin the fair value hierarchy at the endhd fiscal month in which the actual
event or change in circumstances that causedahsfér occurs. Transfers into Level 3 in fiscal2@hd 2012 primarily consisted of debt
securities with significant inputs that became gesbable as a result of an increased likelihooa stiortfall in contractual cash flows or a
significant downgrade in credit ratings.

Nonrecurring Fair Value MeasurementsThe Company measures certain assets at fair valaenonrecurring basis. These assets include
cost and equity method investments when they semdd to be other-than-temporarily impaired or retdiupon deconsolidation of a
subsidiary, assets acquired and liabilities assumad acquisition or in a nonmonetary exchangd,@operty, plant and equipment and
intangible assets that are written down to faiuealhen they are held for sale or
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determined to be impaired. During fiscal 2013 a@#l2 certain property, plant and equipment relédegtie Company’s QMT division were
written down to their estimated fair values resigtin impairment charges of $158 million and $54iomi , respectively (Note 2). At
September 29, 2013, the carrying value of the QIWision’s property, plant and equipment was $72Hian . During fiscal 2013, the
Company recorded its retained investment in them&rBWA subsidiaries at its estimated fair valué®4# million (Note 10). During fiscal
2012 and 2011, goodwill related to the Company’sSQRvision was written down to implied fair valugsulting in impairment charges of $23
million and $114 million , respectively. The impaient charges were recorded in other expenses.pgde@ber 29, 2013 , the carrying value of
the QRS division’s goodwill was $17 million . Thstienation of fair values and cash flows used irs¢hfair value measurements required the
use of significant unobservable inputs, and asaltighe fair value measurements were classifieldexel 3. During fiscal 2013 , 2012 and
2011 , the Company did not have any other signifiegsets or liabilities that were measured atv@ine on a nonrecurring basis in periods
subsequent to initial recognition.

Note 13. Marketable Securities

Marketable securities were comprised as follows{ittions):

Current Noncurrent
September 29, September 30, September 29, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Trading:
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedrities $ 241 % 19¢ $ 49 % 254
Corporate bonds and notes 26¢ 282 25€ 17€
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities — — 104 12C
Total trading $ 51C 47¢ 40¢ 55C
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedrisies $ 721 % 36z $ 71 % 592
Corporate bonds and notes 4,53: 4,55¢ 6,812 7,57(C
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 74t 1,155 32¢ 241
Auction rate securities — — 83 11¢
Common and preferred stock 8 57 2,351 2,03(
Equity funds — — 96C 1,12¢
Debt funds 2,307 1,95¢ 2,88¢ 1,71¢
Total available-for-sale 8,31« 8,08¢ 13,49: 13,39¢
Fair value option:
Debt fund — — 537 52C
Total marketable securities $ 882 § 8561 $ 14,44C  $ 14,46:

The Company holds an investment in a debt funadvfuch the Company elected the fair value optioralnse the Company is able to
redeem its shares at net asset value, which isndieied daily. The investment would have otherwiserbrecorded using the equity method.
The debt fund has no single maturity date. At Septr 29, 2013 , the Company had an effective ovnieiaterest in the debt fund of 21% .
Net increases in fair value associated with thiggment 0$17 million , $45 million and $9 million were reagiged in net investment income
in fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company classifies certain portfolios of dedmisities that utilize derivative instruments tguaice or reduce foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and/or equity, prepayment aeditrisk as trading. Net losses recognized on geturities classified as trading still held at
September 29, 2013 were $20 million . Net gainsgaized on debt securities classified as tradiiigheid at September 30, 2012 were $22
million . The Company did not hold any securiti¢essified as trading during fiscal 2011.

At September 29, 2013, the contractual maturafesvailable-for-sale debt securities were as fedigin millions):
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Years to Maturity No Single
Less Than One to Five to Greater Than Maturity
One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Date Total
$ 169 $ 6,84: $ 2,30¢ % 1,29 $ 6,35: $ 18,48¢

Debt securities with no single maturity date inéddlebt funds, mortgage- and asset-backed sesuaitek auction rate securities.

The Company recorded realized gains and losseales sf available-for-sale securities as followsrfillions):

Gross Realized Gross Realized
Fiscal Year Gains Losses Net Realized Gain:
2013 $ 43C % 142 $ 28¢
2012 29¢€ (25) 271
2011 35€ (30) 32¢
Available-for-sale securities were comprised alfe$ (in millions):
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

September 29, 2013
Equity securities $ 257C % 79 $ 44 $ 3,31¢
Debt securities (including debt funds) 18,25¢ 39¢ (162 18,48¢

$ 20,82 $ 1,18¢ $ (206) $ 21,80¢
September 30, 2012
Equity securities $ 259¢ % 62 $ 149 $ 3,21:
Debt securities (including debt funds) 17,71« 57:¢ (29 18,26¢

$ 20,31 $ 1,201 $ 33 $ 21,48:

The following table shows the gross unrealizeddesnd fair values of the Company’s investmenisdividual securities that are
classified as available-for-sale and have beencimrginuous unrealized loss position deemed t@typorary for less than 12 months and for
more than 12 months, aggregated by investment @atém millions):

September 29, 2013

Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Treasury securities and government-relatedries $ 42 % @ $ —  $ =
Corporate bonds and notes 2,08¢ (31) 24 Q)
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 367 (5) 24 —
Auction rate securities — — 83 (0]
Common and preferred stock 291 (41) — —
Debt funds 2,77¢ (123%) 4 —
Equity funds 82 ©) — _
$ 564: $ (204 $ 135§ 2
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September 30, 2012

Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Corporate bonds and notes $ 72 $ 8 $ 25¢ % 9)
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 14z Q) 7 —
Auction rate securities — — 11& Q)
Common and preferred stock 10t (5) 9 —
Equity funds 64 (4 36 5)
$ 1,03 $ (18 $ 42:  $ (15)

At September 29, 2013 , the Company concludedthieatinrealized losses on its available-for-saleis@es were temporary. Further, for
common and certain preferred stock and for equity @debt funds with unrealized losses, the Compasytie ability and the intent to hold s
securities until they recover, which is expectetig¢onithin a reasonable period of time. For debtigges with unrealized losses, the Company
does not have the intent to sell, nor is it mdkelji than not that the Company will be requireded, such securities before recovery or
maturity.

The following table shows the activity for the citddss portion of other-than-temporary impairmeorsdebt securities held by the
Company (in millions):

2013 2012 2011

Beginning balance of credit losses $ 31 $ 46 $ 10¢
Reductions in credit losses related to securiiesdompany intends to sell (7 (1) (40)
Credit losses recognized on securities previoustympaired 1 5 2
Additional credit losses recognized on securitievjpusly impaired 1 2 —
Reductions in credit losses related to securitidd s (22) (22) (20
Accretion of credit losses due to an increase ahdws expected to be collected 2 — (5)
$ 4 % 31 $ 46

Ending balance of credit losses
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Note 14. Summarized Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The following financial information reflects all moal recurring adjustments that are, in the opiibmanagement, necessary for a fair
statement of the results of the interim periods.

The table below presents quarterly data for fig2€dl3 and 2012 (in millions, except per share data):

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2013 (1)
Revenues $ 6,01¢ $ 6,12¢ $ 6,24: $ 6,48(
Operating income 2,08¢ 1,871 1,677 1,58¢
Net income 1,90: 1,86: 1,57¢ 1,501
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 1,90¢ 1,86¢ 1,58( 1,501
Basic earnings per share attributable to Qualco2)m ( $ 112 % 1.0 $ 091 % 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Qualcoi@m $ 1.0¢ $ 106 $ 0.9C % 0.8¢€
2012 (1)
Revenues $ 4,681 $ 494: $ 4,62¢ $ 4,871
Operating income 1,551 1,51¢ 1,38: 1,23¢
Income from continuing operations 1,40( 1,43¢ 1,20¢ 1,24(
Discontinued operations, net of tax (5) 761 (©)) 23
Net income 1,39¢ 2,19¢ 1,20¢ 1,26:
Net income attributable to Qualcomm 1,401 2,23( 1,207 1,271
Basic earnings per share attributable to Qualco&)m (

Continuing operations $ 0.8: % 08¢ $ 0.7C % 0.7z

Discontinued operations — 0.4% — 0.0z

Net income 0.8: 1.31 0.7¢ 0.7¢
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Qualcaf@m

Continuing operations $ 081 % 08/ % 0.6¢ $ 0.72

Discontinued operations — 0.4¢ — 0.01

Net income 0.81 1.2¢ 0.6¢ 0.7¢

(1) Amounts, other than per share amounts, are routededllions each quarter. Therefore, the sum ofgharterly amounts may not equal the annual amoun
reported.

(2) Earnings per share attributable to Qualcomm arepated independently for each quarter and the &arypased upon respective average shares
outstanding. Therefore, the sum of the quartentpiags per share amounts may not equal the anmmlirsts reported.
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Year ended September 29, 2013
Allowances:
— trade receivables
— notes receivables
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

Year ended September 30, 2012
Allowances:
— trade receivables
— notes receivable
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

Year ended September 25, 2011
Allowances:
— trade receivables
— notes receivable
— investment receivables (a)
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets

(a) This amount represents the allowance for investmesmgtivables due for redemptions of money markeatstment:
(b) This amount represents notes receivable on steaitegistments that were converted to cost metheeksiment:

SCHEDULE II
QUALCOMM INCORPORATED

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
(Charged)
Balance at Credited to Balance at

Beginning of Costs and End of

Period Expenses Deductions Other Period
$ @) $ (1) $ — — $ @)
(M ©) — 2 (b) (10)
(142) 15 — 7€ (c) (51)
$ (250 $ 9 $ — 78 $ (63)
$ 2 $ = $ 1 = $ Q)
©) 4 — — @
(99) (43 — @ (@ (142)
$ (209) $ 47 $ 1 (1) $ (150
$ 3) $ = $ 1 — $ 2
©) — — — ©)
C) 6 3 — _
(39 (42 — 17 (e) (98)
$ (54) $ (3€) $ 4 a7 $ (203

(c) This amount represents $88 million recorded asqgfatte gain on deconsolidation of certain subsié&@ partially offset by $12 million recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income.
(d) This amount was recorded as a component of otleephensive incom

(e) This amount represents $12 million recorded asualtref an acquisition and $5 millicecorded as a component of other comprehensive



EXHIBIT 10.115

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termdntive Plan (the “Plan"hereby grants you the number
Performance Stock Units set forth below, each oictvlis a bookkeeping entry representing the eqeivain value of one (1) share of
Companys common stock. The Performance Stock Unit Awasllgect to all of the terms and conditions adah herein and the Executi
Performance Stock Unit Agreement (attached heratol) the Plart, which are incorporated herein in their entireBapitalized terms n
otherwise defined in this Grant Notice or the ExteeuPerformance Stock Unit Agreement shall haeertieaning set forth in the Plan.
Participant: «First_ Name» «Last_Name» Grant NNumber»

Emp #: «ID» Number of Performance Stock Uni«Shares_Granted

Date of Grant: «Grant_Date»

Performance Period: From and including September 30, 2013 through addiding September 27, 2C
First Measurement Period: From and including September 30, 2013 through aadldiding March 29, 20!
Second Measurement Period: From and including September 30, 2013 through aaddiding September 27, 2C

Vesting Date: Except as otherwise provided in then Rr the Executive Performance Stock Unit Agreetmehis Performance Stock U
Award will vest on the last day of the Performaiegiod, so long as your Service (as defined irPla@) is continuous from the Date of Gi
through that date.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: By accepting this Performance Stock Unit Award ttie form determined by the Company)
acknowledge receipt of and represent that you head, understand, accept and agree to the termsaauiitions of, the following: this Gre
Notice, the Executive Performance Stock Unit Agreetrand the Plan (including, but not limited ta thinding arbitration provision in Sect
3.7 of the Plan). In addition, by accepting thigf@@nance Stock Unit Award you agree to all of iesms and conditions and furtl
acknowledge that as of the Date of Grant, this GNatice, the Executive Performance Stock Unit Agnent and the Plan set forth the el
understanding between you and the Company regattimgacquisition of stock in the Company and swgmsall prior oral and writte
agreements pertaining to this particular Perforrag®imck Unit Award.

Qualcomm Incorporated:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: «Grant_Date» Date

Attachment: Executive Performance Stock Unitefgmnent




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this ExecutivéoPaance Stock Unit Agreement (thégreement’), Qualcomm Incorporated (the “
Company’) has granted you a Performance Stock Unit Awaitth vespect to the number of shares of the Compacyrnmon stock (Stock™)
indicated in the Grant Notice. Capitalized termsexplicitly defined in this Agreement but defingdthe Qualcomm Incorporated 2006 Long-
Term Incentive Plan (thePlan”) shall have the same definitions as in the Plan.

The details of this Performance Stock Unit Aware as follows:

1. SERVICE AND VESTING.

1.1 SERVICE. As provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyeoftrovision of this Agreement, the Company reserve
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine wlyeur Service has terminated, including in thené\a any leave of absence or part-time
Service.

1.2 VESTING. Except to the extent that your Performance StodksUnay vest earlier as provided in Section 2.4(a)
through (d) and Section 6.1, your Performance Stérks will vest if and to the extent that you done in Service through the Vesting Date
specified in the Grant Notice (the/esting Date’). Except to the extent that your Performance Bidnits may vest earlier as provided in
Section 2.4(a) through (d) and Section 6.1, if yBarvice terminates before the Vesting Date, ajlanir Performance Stock Units shall be
forfeited. Notwithstanding any other provision bétPlan or this Agreement, the Company reservesght in its sole discretion, to suspend
vesting of this Performance Stock Unit Award in 8went of any leave of absence or part-time Service

2. SETTLEMENT OF THE PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS.

2.1 FORM AND TIMING OF PAYMENT. Subject to the other terms of the Plan and thissAgrent, any Performance
Stock Units that vest and become nonforfeitableccordance with the Grant Notice will be paid to yo whole shares of Stock, in the amoun
specified in Section 2.2 and Section 2.3, no ldtan 30 days after the later of (i) the Vestingebgptecified in the Grant Notice or (ii) the date
on which the Committee certifies in writing the noen of Shares (if any) that are payable underAgigement based on the terms and
conditions set forth in Section 2.2 and Section @ldich certification and determination shall bedady the Committee no later than the
November 30th that next follows the end of the &anfance Period. Failure to achieve the minimumdPernce Target necessary for paymrr
under Section 2.2 shall result in the forfeiturabferformance Stock Units.

2.2 AMOUNT OF PAYMENT. Subject to modification under Section 2.3 and ®&c#.4, the number of shares of Stock
that shall be issued to you by the Company on #te specified in Section 2.1 is the sum of the &h&arned for each Measurement Period.
The “ Shares Earned for each Measurement Period is equal to the armdetermined by multiplying the Target Shares fer Measurement
Period by the Payout Percentage, rounding up to¢heest whole share. Thdarget Shares for each Measurement Period is a hnumber of
shares of Stock equal to 50% of the Number of Perdioce Stock Units specified in the Grant Notiaa. furposes of this Section 2.2, the
following additional definitions apply:

(a) “Beginning Period Average Prickmeans the average official closing price per starthe issuer over the 20-
consecutive-trading days ending with and includhmgfirst day of the Measurement Period (if theligpple day is not a trading day,
the immediately preceding trading day).

(b) “Ending Period Average Price means the average official closing price per stairthe issuer over the 20-consecutive
trading days ending with and including the last dathe Measurement Period (if the applicable dayat a trading day, the
immediately preceding trading day).

(c) “Measurement Period means each period specified in the Grant Notice.




(d) “Nasdag-100 Compani€smeans the companies that are included in the NAGQEL00 Index (published by The
NASDAQ Stock Market, or its successor) continuodstyn the beginning through the end of the releWdaasurement Period. The
Committee shall have the authority to make appadpradjustments to the extent necessary to acémuextraordinary, unusual and
infrequently occurring events and transactions lwing that company.

(e) *“Payout Percentagé means the percentage that corresponds to thePeE®éentile Rank specified below:

TSR Percentile Rank Payout Percentage
90th percentile and above 200%
75th percentile 150%
60th percentile 100% (Target)
50th percentile 75%
33rd percentile 33%
Below 33rd percentile 0

Between the levels specified above, the Payoutehtage is interpolated linearly at a ratio of thaee-one-third (3-1/3) percentage
points for each percentile that the TSR PerceRi#ek is greater than the 60th percentile, and ma-ene-half (2-1/2) percentage
points for each percentile that the TSR PerceRi#ek is less than the 60th percentile, in each kaseled up to the nearest decimal
point.

(H “ Performance Period means the period specified in the Grant Notickiclv begins on the first day of the first
Measurement Period and ends on the last day dashdeasurement Period.

(@) “TSR” means total shareholder return as determined\iglidg (i) the sum of (A) the Ending Period AveeBrice
minus the Beginning Period Average Price plus (Bligidends and other distributions paid on thauisr's shares during the
Measurement Period by (ii) the Beginning Period rage Price. In calculating TSR, all dividends assumed to have been reinvestec
in shares when paid. The Committee shall have uti®aty to make appropriate equitable adjustmémesccount for extraordinary
items affecting a company’s TSR for the relevanaslgement Period.

(h) “TSR Percentile Rank means the Company’s percentile ranking relatovthe Nasdad-00 Companies, based on T!
TSR Percentile Rank is determined by ordering theddq-100 Companies (plus the Company if the Coynisamot one of the
Nasdag 100 Companies) from highest to lowest based on fo&khe relevant Measurement Period and countingndoom the
company with the highest TSR (ranked first) to @mmpany’s position on the list. If two companies enked equally, the ranking of
the next company shall account for the tie, soith@te company is ranked first, and two compaaiestied for second, the next
company is ranked fourth. After this ranking, tr&RrPercentile Rank will be calculated using théofeing formula, rounded to the
nearest whole percentile by application of reguamnding:

TSR Percentile Rank

N -R
#* 100
N

“ N represents the number of Nasdag-100 Companigbéorelevant Measurement Period (plus the Comfahg Company is not
one of the Nasdag-100 Companies for that MeasureRezind).

“ R” represents the Company'’s ranking among the Nad@@gqCompanies (plus the Company if the Compampine of the
Nasdaqg-100 Companies for the relevant Measurenesigd).

For example, if there are 100 Nasdaqg-100 Compdimelsiding the Company), and the Company ranked ,46e TSR Percentile
Rank would be at the 60th percentile:
60 = (100 — 40)/100 * 100.




2.3 LIMITATION ON AMOUNT OF PAYMENT. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tlwatrary, if the
Company’s TSR is negative for the Performance Eetten the maximum number of shares of Stockshall be issued to you by the
Company on the date specified in Section 2.1 vélelqual to the Number of Performance Stock Unigifipd in the Grant Notice. Likewise,
your Service terminates in the first Measurememiodaunder the circumstances specified in Sectidred the Compar’'s TSR is negative f
that Measurement Period, then the maximum numbsharfes of Stock that shall be issued to you byCthrapany pursuant to Section 2.4 will
be equal to the number of Target Shares for thatduieement Period.

2.4 EFFECT OF TERMINATION OF SERVICE. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in thigi8e.4, in the
event of the termination of your Service for angsen, whether voluntary or involuntary, all unveserformance Stock Units shall be
immediately forfeited without consideration.

(a) Disability. If your Service with the Employer terminates beeaokyour Disability, the vesting of your Perfornean
Stock Units shall be accelerated in full effectageof the date on which your Service terminatestdy®ur Disability, but the number
of shares of Stock that shall be issued to yothbyGompany under this Agreement shall be proratedpaid as follows. The
Company shall issue to you, within 30 days afterehd of the Measurement Period during which yeuviSe terminates due to your
Disability, the number of shares (rounded up tortearest whole Share) equal to the sum of (i) ther&® Earned for any Measuren
Period prior to the Measurement Period during wlyichr Service terminates due to your Disability9(ii) the Target Shares for the
Measurement Period during which your Service teates.

(b) Death.If your Service with the Employer terminates beeaofyour death, the vesting of the PerformancelStinits
shall be accelerated in full effective upon youattie but the number of shares of Stock that skaissued to you by the Company
under this Agreement shall be prorated as folloviie Company shall issue to your estate, persopegsentative, or beneficiary to
whom the Performance Stock Units may be transfdyyedill or by the laws of descent and distributiaithin 30 days after the end
the Measurement Period during which your death is¢c¢he number of shares (rounded up to the neatesde Share) equal to the
sum of (i) the Shares Earned for any MeasuremeardPprior to the Measurement Period during whiolurydeath occurs, plus (ii) tl
Target Shares for the Measurement Period duringiwydur death occurs. If your Service with the Eogpl terminates because of
your Disability, and you are entitled to paymentlenSection 2.4(a), and you later die in a subsggdeasurement Period covered
this Agreement, your estate, personal represertaiivbeneficiary to whom the Performance StockdJmiay be transferred by will or
by the laws of descent and distribution shall reeevithin 30 days of the end of the MeasuremenibEeturing which your death
occurs, rounded up, equal to the Target ShargbéoMeasurement Period during which your death isccu

(c) Normal Retirement Age.If your Service with the Employer terminates atfier Normal Retirement Age, the vesting
of your Performance Stock Units shall be acceldraidull effective as of the date on which youn8ee terminates, but the number
of shares of Stock that shall be issued to yothbyGompany under this Agreement shall be proratedpaid as follows. The
Company shall issue to you, within 30 days afterghd of the Measurement Period during which y@unviSe terminates at or after
Normal Retirement Age, the number of shares (rodngeto the nearest whole Share) equal to the $yintbe Shares Earned for a
Measurement Period prior to the Measurement Peltivitig which your Service terminates at or afteriNal Retirement Age, plus (
the Shares Earned for the Measurement Period dwtinch your Service terminates multiplied by a fiac the numerator of which is
the number of whole and partial months (roundedfrgm the beginning of that Measurement Periodl ainé date your Service
terminates, and the denominator of which is the memof months in that Measurement Period.

(d) Termination After Change in Control. If your Service with the Employer terminates agsuft of Termination After
Change in Control (as defined below), the vestihgny Performance Stock Units that remained outltanafter the Change in
Control shall be accelerated in full effective ashe date on which your Service terminates, batrthmber of shares of Stock that
shall be issued to you by the Company under thieément shall be prorated and paid as follows.Atmpany shall issue to you,
within 30 days after the end of the MeasuremenibBeaturing which your Service terminates, the nundfeshares (rounded up to the
nearest whole Share) equal to the sum of (i) tteredhEarned for any Measurement Period prior td/th@surement Period during
which your Service terminates, plus (ii) the Shd&amed for the Measurement Period during




which your Service terminates multiplied by a fractthe numerator of which is the number of whaid gartial months (rounded up)
from the beginning of that Measurement Period uhéldate your Service terminates, and the dendarindwhich is the number of
months in that Measurement Period.

(e) Certain Definitions.

(i) *“ Cause” shall mean any of the following: (1) your theft dishonesty with respect to, or falsificationaofy
Participating Company documents or records; (2) yoproper use or disclosure of a Participating @any’s confidential o
proprietary information; (3) any action by you wiikas a detrimental effect on a Participating Camgjsareputation or
business; (4) your failure or inability to perfoamy reasonable assigned duties after written néiee a Participating
Company of, and a reasonable opportunity to cureh) &ilure or inability; (5) any material breachyou of any employmet
or service agreement between you and a Particpp&ampany, which breach is not cured pursuantéddgims of such
agreement; (6) your conviction (including any ptéauilty or nolo contenderg of any criminal act which impairs your
ability to perform your duties with a Participati@mpany; or (7) violation of a material CompanyParticipating Company

policy.
(i) “ Good Reasori shall mean any one or more of the following:

a) without your express written consent, thégassent to you of any duties, or any limitationyofur
responsibilities, substantially inconsistent withuy positions, duties, responsibilities and statiik the Participating
Company Group immediately prior to the date of a@je in Control;

b) without your express written consent, thecation of the principal place of your employment o
service to a location that is more than fifty (Bfijes from your principal place of employment onsee
immediately prior to the date of a Change in Cdntipthe imposition of travel requirements subttdly more
demanding of you than such travel requirementdgiagismmediately prior to the date of the Chang€antrol;

c) any failure by the Participating Company Grdo pay, or any material reduction by the Paréiting
Company Group of, (A) your base salary in effeaniediately prior to the date of a Change in Conaless
reductions comparable in amount and duration anewwently made for all other employees of the iBigiting
Company Group with responsibilities, organizatioeakl and title comparable to yours), or (B) ybonus
compensation, if any, in effect immediately prioithe date of a Change in Control (subject to applie
performance requirements with respect to the aemalunt of bonus compensation earned by you);

d) any failure by the Participating Company Groao (A) continue to provide you with the opportyrto
participate, on terms no less favorable than tioséfect for the benefit of any employee or seevicovider group
which customarily includes a person holding the leypent or service provider position or a compaggtsition
with the Participating Company Group then held by,)in any benefit or compensation plans and progra
including, but not limited to, the Participating @pany Group'’s life, disability, health, dental, riead, savings,
profit sharing, stock purchase and retirement pld@sy, in which you were participating immedigterior to the
date of the Change in Control, or their equivalen{B) provide you with all other fringe benef{tr their
equivalent) from time to time in effect for the ladih of any employee group which customarily inasd person
holding the employment or service provider positiora comparable position with the Participatingrany Group
then held by you;

e) any breach by the Participating Company Gafugny material agreement between you and a
Participating Company concerning your employment; o




f) any failure by the Company to obtain the aggtion of any material agreement between you aead th
Company concerning your employment by a succegsassign of the Company.

(i) “ Termination After Change in Controf shall mean either of the following events occogrivithin twenty-
four (24) months after a Change in Control:

a) termination by the Participating Company Gxrofiyour Service with the Participating Company Gy
for any reason other than for Cause; or

b) your resignation for Good Reason from allazajies in which you are then rendering Servictheo
Participating Company Group within a reasonabléogeof time following the event constituting Goo@dson.

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrdrermination After Change in Control shall notlude any termination of your Servi
with the Participating Company Group which (1)as €ause; (2) is a result of your death or Disahili3) is a result of your voluntary
termination of Service other than for Good Reaswor{a) occurs prior to the effectiveness of a CleimgControl.

2.5 TAXWITHHOLDING. You acknowledge that the Company and/or the Ppdiitig Company that employs you (the
“ Employer”) may be subject to withholding tax obligationssarg by reason of the vesting and/or payment isf Bterformance Stock Unit
Award. You authorize your Employer to satisfy thighlolding tax obligations by one or a combinatadrihe following methods, as selectec
the Company in its sole discretion: (a) withholdfrgm your pay and any other amounts payable tq guwithholding of Stock and/or cash
from the payment of the Performance Stock Unifsafcanging for the sale of shares of Stock payebt®nnection with the Performance
Stock Units (on your behalf and at your directioniet you authorize by accepting this PerformancelsStnit Award); or (d) any other
method allowed by the Plan or applicable law. IfiyEmployer satisfies the withholding obligationsvithholding a number of whole shares
of Stock as described in subsection (b) herein,witibe deemed to have been issued the full nurobshares of Stock subject to this
Performance Stock Unit Award, notwithstanding #atumber of shares is held back in order to satiefywithholding obligations. TheFair
Market Value” of any Stock withheld pursuant to this Sectioh 2hall be equal to the closing price of a shargtotk as quoted on any
national or regional securities exchange or masistem constituting the primary market for the &too the date of determination (or, if there
is no closing price on that day, the last tradiag drior to that day) or, if the Stock is not lidten a national or regional securities exchange ot
market system, the value of a share of Stock asm@ied by the Committee in good faith without meb any restriction other than a
restriction which, by its terms, will never lap3ée Company shall not be required to issue anyeshairStock pursuant to this Agreement
unless and until the withholding obligations argssied.

3. TAXADVICE. You represent, warrant and acknowledge that thegaosnand, if different, your Employer, has made no
warranties or representations to you with respette income tax consequences of the transactmrtemplated by this Agreement, and you
are in no manner relying on the Company, your Eggrl@r their representatives for an assessmentabf tax consequences. YOU
UNDERSTAND THAT THE TAX LAWS AND REGULATIONS ARE SBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN
TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE TAX TREATMENT OF ANY PERPRMANCE STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREIN IS
INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USEBOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIES.

4. DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS. If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Comipa8tock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estalditlyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payaibthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of Shares Earned and the nwhbay Target Shares to which you are entitlechupomination of Service due to deatt
Disability (* Target Shares Earned) subject to this Performance Stock Unit Awardtba dividend record date established by the Company
Any such Dividend Equivalents will be in the forrhamlditional Shares Earned and/or Target Sharaseawill be subject to the same terms
and vesting dates as the underlying Shares Eantdrararget Shares Earned, and will be paid as#imee time and in the same manner as th
underlying Shares Earned and/or Target Shares &aniginally subject to this Performance Stock Ukitard, except that any fractional
shares attributable to Dividend Equivalents willdaéd in cash within thirty (30) days following thate of payment of the Shares Earned
and/or Target Shares Earned based on the Fair Mdatage (as specified in Section 2.5, above) onddie of payment of the Shares Earned
and/or Target Shares Earned. The number of addltiBinares Earned and/or Target Shares EarnedesteditDividend Equivalents on the
dividend payment date will




be determined by dividing (1) the product of (& tumber of your Shares Earned and/or Target SEam®d as of the corresponding divid
record date (including any unvested Shares EamétbaTarget Shares Earned previously creditedrasudt of prior payments of Dividend
Equivalents) and (b) the per-share cash divideidigrathe dividend payment date, by (2) the peraiiair Market Value (as specified in
Section 2.5, above) of Stock on the dividend paytrdate. The Dividend Equivalents will accrue oni®@sa&arned and/or Target Shares Ea
calculated from the Date of Grant.

5. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be
issued to you upon vesting of this PerformancelStoat Award unless the Stock is then registeredeanrihe Securities Act or, if such Stock is
not then so registered, the Company has deterntira@duch vesting and issuance would be exempt fin@mnegistration requirements of the
Securities Act. By accepting this Performance Stdok Award, you agree not to sell any of the searEStock received under this
Performance Stock Unit Award at a time when appliedaws or Company policies prohibit a sale.

6. CHANGE IN CONTROL. Inthe event of a Change in Control, the survivicantinuing, successor, or purchasing corporation
or other business entity or parent thereof, ag#se may be (theAcquiring Corporation”), may, without your consent, either assume the
Company'’s rights and obligations under this Pergomoe Stock Unit Award or substitute for this Parfance Stock Unit Award a substantially
equivalent award for the Acquiring Corporation’sck.

6.1 Payout Pursuant to a Change in Controlln the event the Acquiring Corporation elects moassume or substitute
this Performance Stock Unit Award in connectionhwdtChange in Control, the vesting of this PerfarogaStock Unit Award, so long as your
Service has not terminated prior to the date oGhange in Control, shall be accelerated, effecwef the date ten (10) days prior to the date
of the Change in Control, and the number of shaf&ock that shall be issued to you by the Comparger this Agreement shall be
determined and paid as follows. The Company shsillié to you, within 30 days after the Change int@brthe number of shares (rounded up
to the nearest whole Share) equal to the sum dhéyhares Earned for any Measurement Period foribile Measurement Period during wt
the Change in Control occurs, plus (b) the Shaseadsl for any subsequent Measurement Period las Payout Percentage were 100% an
last day of each Measurement Period were the lsshéss day before the date of the Change in dontro

6.2 Vesting Contingent Upon ConsummationThe vesting of any Performance Stock Units andsirayes of Stock
acquired upon the settlement thereof that was sibié solely by reason of this Section 6 shakkdmditioned upon the consummation of the
Change in Control.

6.3 Applicability of Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, shares of Stock &eguupon settlement of this
Performance Stock Unit Award prior to the Chang€amtrol and any consideration received pursuattiédChange in Control with respect to
such shares shall continue to be subject to aliGgipe provisions of this Agreement except as atlige provided in this Agreement.

6.4 Continuation of Award. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the corporatitwe tstock of which is subject to this
Performance Stock Unit Award immediately prior to@wnership Change Event constituting a Changeomti®@| is the surviving or continuil
corporation and immediately after such Ownershiprgfe Event, less than fifty percent (50%) of thaltcombined voting power of its voting
stock is held by another corporation or by othepomations that are members of an affiliated graithin the meaning of Section 1504(a) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended @loele”), without regard to the provisions of Section 48f) of the Code, this
Performance Stock Unit Award shall not terminatkess the Committee otherwise provides in its dismne

7. TRANSFERABILITY. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in se@tfgrof a Performance Stock Unit Award, the Award
shall not be subject in any manner to anticipatadienation, sale, exchange, transfer, assignméedge, encumbrance, or garnishment by yot
creditors or by your beneficiary (if any), exceptifansfer by will or by the laws of descent anstiibution or (ii) to the extent permitted by the
Company, transfer by written designation of a bienafy, in a form acceptable to the Company, withtsdesignation taking effect upon your
death. All rights with respect to the Performanteck Units shall be exercisable during your lifegimnly by you or your guardian or legal
representative. Prior to actual payment of anyeteBterformance Stock Units, such Performance Siods will represent an unsecured
obligation of the Company, payable (if at all) oflgm the general assets of the Company.




8. PERFORMANCE STOCK UNITS NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. This Performance Stock Unit Award is not an
employment or service contract and nothing in &gseement, the Grant Notice or the Plan shall =l to create in any way whatsoever
any obligation on your part to continue in the $s\of a Participating Company, or of a ParticipgtCompany to continue your Service with
the Participating Company. In addition, nothingy@ur Performance Stock Unit Award shall obligate @ompany, its stockholders, Board,
Officers or Employees to continue any relationshipch you might have as a Director or Consultantlie Company.

9. RESTRICTIVE LEGEND. Stock issued pursuant to the vesting of the Pedae Stock Units may be subject to such
restrictions upon the sale, pledge or other trarcdféhe Stock as the Company and the Compgaogunsel deem necessary under applicabl
or pursuant to this Agreement.

10. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS, AND ACKNOWL EDGMENTS. You hereby agree that in the
event the Company and the Company'’s counsel depec@ssary or advisable in the exercise of theordtion, the transfer or issuance of the
shares of Stock issued pursuant to the vestingeoPerformance Stock Units may be conditioned ywonmaking certain representations,
warranties, and acknowledgments relating to compéawith applicable securities laws.

11. VOTING AND OTHER RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatllhave any voting rights or any other
rights and privileges of a shareholder of the Comypanless and until shares of Stock are issued ppgment of the Performance Stock Units.

12. CODE SECTION 409A.1t is the intent that the vesting or the paymenthef Performance Stock Units as set forth in this
Agreement shall qualify for exemption from the riggments of Section 409A of the Code, and any anitigg herein will be interpreted to so
comply. The Company reserves the right, to thergsttee Company deems necessary or advisable solgsdiscretion, to unilaterally amend or
modify this Agreement as may be necessary to erisatall vesting or payments provided for undés fkgreement are made in a manner tha
qualifies for exemption from Section 409A of thed@pprovided, however, that the Company makes piesentation that the vesting or
payments of Performance Stock Units provided fataurihis Agreement will be exempt from Section 4084he Code and makes no
undertaking to preclude Section 409A of the Codenfapplying to the vesting or payments of Perforcea®tock Units provided for under this
Agreement.

13. NOTICES. Any notices provided for in this Agreement, the @risotice or the Plan shall be given in writing asidhll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in theecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fd)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thathisess you provided to the Company.

14. NATURE OF GRANT. In accepting the Performance Stock Unit Award, soknowledge and agree that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by th@Pany, it is discretionary in nature and it maynmdified, amended,
suspended or terminated by the Company at any {subject to any limitations set forth in the Ptan)

(b) the award of Performance Stock Units is mtdny and occasional and does not create any atnélaor other right to
receive future awards of Performance Stock Unit§emefits in lieu of Performance Stock Units, eifdPerformance Stock Units or other
Awards have been awarded repeatedly in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Awaridigny, will be at the sole discretion of the Camny;

(d) your participation in the Plan is voluntary;

(e) the Performance Stock Unit Award and theeshaf Stock subject to the Performance Stock Biwiard are
extraordinary items that do not constitute comptasaf any kind for Services of any kind rendetedhe Company or the Employer, and

which are outside the scope of your employmentorise contract, if any;

(H the Performance Stock Unit Award and thereba@f Stock subject to the Performance Stock Biwiard are not intende
to replace any pension rights or compensation;




(g) the Performance Stock Unit Award and theehaf Stock subject to the Performance Stock Awird are not part of
normal or expected compensation or salary for ampgses, including, but not limited to, calculatangy severance, resignation, termination,
redundancy, dismissal, end of service paymentgdes) longservice awards, pension or retirement or welfareefis or similar payments a
in no event should be considered as compensatipprfoelating in any way to, past services for @mmpany, the Employer or any
Participating Company;

(h) the future value of the underlying shareStfck is unknown and cannot be predicted withadety; further, neither the
Company, the Employer nor any Participating Comgariable for any foreign exchange fluctuationveeén your Employer’s local currency
and the United States Dollar that may affect tHeevaf this Performance Stock Unit Award;

(i) no claim or entitlement to compensation am@ges shall arise from forfeiture of your PerfanogaStock Units resulting
from termination of your Service (for any reasoratgdoever and whether or not in breach of localr#daes or later found invalid), and in
consideration of the grant of the Performance Stdiits to which you are otherwise not entitled, ywavocably agree never to institute any
claim against the Company, waive your ability,nfyato bring any such claim, and release the Comfram any such claim; if,
notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim isvaéd by a court of competent jurisdiction, thep participating in the Plan, you shall be
deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue dlagm and agree to execute any and all docunmaasssary to request dismissal or
withdrawal of such claim;

() the Performance Stock Unit Award and theddis evidenced by this Agreement do not createeamiflement, not
otherwise specifically provided for in the Planppovided by the Company in its discretion, to htheePerformance Stock Unit Award or any
such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, anotirepany, nor to be exchanged, cashed out origubsitfor, in connection with any
corporate transaction affecting the Company’s Steok

(k) the Company is not providing any tax, legafinancial advice, nor is the Company making esgommendations
regarding your participation in the Plan, or yooguaisition or sale of the underlying shares of Bfgou are hereby advised to consult with
your own personal tax, legal and financial advisegarding your participation in the Plan befolldrig any action related to the Pl

15. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofStage of California as if the Agreement were
between California residents and as if it were reténto and to be performed entirely within that8tof California.

16. ARBITRATION. Any dispute or claim concerning any PerformancelStonits granted (or not granted) pursuant to tlam P
and any other disputes or claims relating to aimgi out of the Plan shall be fully, finally andcissively resolved by binding arbitration
conducted by the American Arbitration Associatiamguant to the commercial arbitration rules in Bégo, California. By accepting this
Performance Stock Unit Award, you and the Compaaiy&your respective rights to have any such despat claims tried by a judge or jury.

17. AMENDMENT. Your Performance Stock Unit Award may be amendagr@gided in the Plan at any time, provided no such
amendment may adversely affect this PerformancekSinit Award without your consent unless such admeent is necessary to comply with
any applicable law or government regulation, arastemplated in Section 12 hereof. No amendmeatldition to this Agreement shall be
effective unless in writing or in such electronicrh as may be designated by the Company.

18. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. Your Performance Stock Unit Award is subject t@sthgreement, the Grant Notice and
all the provisions of the Plan, the provisions dfieh are hereby made a part of this Agreementjsafdther subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may from to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®lan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the GRatice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

19. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held to beeaforceable for any reason, it shall be adjustdterahan
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the inteinthe parties to the extent possible. In any gwahother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensinbs.




20. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY . The Plan documents, which may include but do noessarily include:
the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Agreement, andrapgrts of the Company provided generally to tben@Gany’s shareholders, may be
delivered to you electronically. In addition, ifrpgtted by the Company, you may deliver electrolyctne Grant Notice to the Company or to
such third party involved in administering the Pénthe Company may designate from time to timeh®weans of electronic delivery may
include but do not necessarily include the delivefra link to a Company intranet or the interné sif a third party involved in administering
the Plan, the delivery of the document via eledgtromail (“e-mail”) or such other means of electodilivery specified by the Company.

21. WAIVER. The waiver by the Company with respect to yourafoy other Participant’s) compliance of any provisid this
Agreement shall not operate or be construed aswemaf any other provision of this Agreement, daay subsequent breach of such party
provision of this Agreement.

22. REPAYMENT/FORFEITURE. Any benefits you may receive hereunder shall bgestito repayment or forfeiture as may be
required to comply with (a) any applicable listisigndards of a national securities exchange adaptctordance with Section 954 of the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiadiict (regarding recovery of erroneously awardemhpgensation) and any
implementing rules and regulations of the U.S. 8&ea and Exchange Commission adopted thereufidesimilar rules under the laws of any
other jurisdiction and (c) any policies adoptediiyy Company to implement such requirements, adhécextent determined by the Company in
its discretion to be applicable to you.
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ARTICLE |
INTRODUCTION

1.1 _History. Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Companyijeviously established the Qualcomm Incorporatetumary Executiv
Retirement Contribution Plan (the “ERC”) and thea@@omm Incorporated Executive Retirement Matchimgpt@bution Plan (the “ERMCR;
both nongualified deferred compensation plans for a sejeatip of management or highly compensated employkete Employer, and bc
originally effective as of December 1, 1995. Tempany consolidated the ERC with and into the ERM(fective as of October 1, 2008,
has amended and restated the ERMCP in its entfédgtive as of December 30, 2008, April 1, 2008 danuary 1, 2011. The ERMCF
amended and restated effective September 30, 281t forth herein, and the name of the ERMCRasged to the Qualcomm Incorpore
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan effectivefsuch date.

ARTICLE Il
DEFINITIONS

2.1 “Account(s)” means the book entry account(s) established underPtan for each Participant to which are credites
Participant’s Basic Deferrals, Bonus Deferrals,fétenanceBased Compensation Deferrals, Matching Contribstiddiscretionary Compa
Contributions and any Investment Returns with resgeereto. Account balances shall be reduced pydatributions made to the Participan
the Participans Beneficiary(ies) from the Plan and any charges thay be imposed on such Account(s) pursuantaadims of the Pla
Separate Subaccounts may be established undeldahea® set forth herein. As the context may requiecount” shall also refer to su
Subaccounts.

2.2 “Affiliate " means any entity which controls, is controlleddsyis under common control with the Company.

2.3 *“Base Salary” means the annual base salary to be paid by thedyemplwithout regard to Basic Deferrals hereun@erse
Salary shall not include, unless specifically auttesd by the Committee, bonuses, overtime, distigmg from this Plan, commissions,
value of any proceeds from the exercise of anyifig@lor nonqualified stock option, stock appreciation riglestricted stock award, restric
stock unit, performance share, performance uniterded compensation award, or other stbeked award, the proceeds from any ¢
purchase right under the Company’s employee stockhase plans, incentive payments, noonetary awards, auto allowances or any ¢
form of compensation, whether taxable or non-taxabl

2.4 “Basic Deferral(s)” means the percentage of a ParticipaiBase Salary and/or Director Fees which the Rati¢ elects t
defer pursuant to Section 4.1 of the Plan.

2.5 “Benchmark Fund(s)” means one or more of the mutual funds or contselected by the Committee pursuant to Article
the Plan.

2.6 “Beneficiary(ies)” means the beneficiary(ies) designated by the Raatit who are entitled to receive any distributidnosn the
Plan payable upon the death of the Participant.

2.7 “Benefit(s)” means the total of the vested amount(s) creditedRarticipant’s Account.
2.8 “Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Company’s Board of Directors.

2.9 “Bonus” means the annual cash incentive bonus normally toa#h Eligible Employee after the end of the fisgsar or suc
other amounts payable under the bonus policiestaiagd by the Employer determined without regardrtg Bonus Deferral.

2.10 “Bonus Deferral” means the percentage of a Particimm®bnus which the Participant defers pursuant wi&e 4.2 of th
Plan.

2.11 “Cause” means any of the following: (i) theft, dishonesty falsification of any Company documents or resoid) imprope
use or disclosure of the Company’s confidentiapmprietary information; (iii) any action which hasdetrimental effect on the Compasny’
reputation or business; (iv) failure or inability perform any reasonable assigned duties aftetewritotice from the Company of, an
reasonable opportunity to cure, such failure obiiiits; (v) any material breach of any employmentervice agreement between the Partic
and the Company, which breach is not cured purdoahe terms of




such agreement; (vi) conviction (including any ptéaguilty or nolo contendere) of any criminal adtich impairs the Participarst’ability tc
perform his or her duties; or (vii) violation of@aterial Company policy.

2.12 *“Change in Control” means an Ownership Change Event or a series @aéde@wnership Change Events, as defined k
(collectively, a “Transaction”wherein the stockholders of the Company immediaielpre the Transaction do not retain immediatéigrdhe
Transaction, in substantially the same proportiasstheir ownership of shares of the Companydting stock immediately before
Transaction, direct or indirect beneficial ownepsbif more than fifty percent (50%) of the total damed voting power of the outstand
voting securities of the Company or, in the casa ®fansaction described in clause (iii) below,dbeporation or other business entity to wl
the assets of the company were transferred (thenSferee”)as the case may be. The Board shall determing wtistretion whether multipl
sales or exchanges of the voting securities ofGbmpany or multiple Ownership Change Events aratedl Notwithstanding the preced
sentence, a Change in Control shall not includeiad¥ Transaction, as defined in Section 2.1 & LTIP. For purposes of the foregoing
“Ownership Change Evenghall be deemed to have occurred if any of theofahg occurs with respect to the Company: (i) tired ol
indirect sale or exchange in a single or serie®lated transactions by the stockholders of the f@om of more than fifty percent (50%) of
voting stock of the Company; (ii) a merger or cdigsgion in which the Company is a party; (iii) tlsale, exchange or transfer of al
substantially all, as determined by the Board srdiscretion, of the assets of the Company; ordiljjuidation or dissolution of the Compa
provided that the Transaction constitutes a chamgavnership or effective control of a corporationa change in ownership of a substa
portion of the assets of a corporation for purpageSode Section 409A.

2.13 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended

2.14 “Committee” means the Executive Retirement Contribution Plam@dtee composed of such individuals who ma
appointed by the Compars/Executive Vice President, Human Resources, dr stieer officer serving in that capacity, and thernittee sha
function as the administrator of the Plan.

2.15 “Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par vall3d8Q@ per share.

2.16 “Company” means Qualcomm Incorporated, a Delaware corporadiwh any successor thereto.

2.17 *“Compensation Committee’ means the Compensation Committee of the Compag&d of Directors.

2.18 “Deferrals” means, as applicable to a Participant, Basic DalferBonus Deferrals and/or Performalased Compensati
Deferrals made pursuant to the terms of the Plan.

2.19 “Deferral Subaccount” means a Subaccount under the Participant's Acdounhich Deferrals are credited for a given |
Year.

2.20 “Director Fees” shall mean all fees and retainers, including meetees, paid in cash to Ndfmployee Directors of ti
Company, and specifically excludes any annual boatainer paid in stock units.

2.21 “Disability” means, to the extent applicable and determineddénrdance with Code Section 409A, a determinatiat the
Participant, (a) by reason of any medically deteahle physical or mental impairment that can besetql to result in death or can be expe
to last for a continuous period of no less thane/enonths, is receiving income replacement benédit a period of not less than three mo
under the Company’s longrm disability insurance policy covering the Rapant, or, (b) is unable to engage in any subistiagdinful activity
by reason of any medically determinable physicainental impairment that can be expected to reaulteiath or can be expected to last 1
continuous period of not less than twelve months.

2.22 ‘“Discretionary Company Contribution” means a Company contribution awarded to an Elidiinigloyee pursuant to Sect
4.6 of the Plan.

2.23 ‘“Distribution Date” means the date on which distribution of a PartitijzaBenefits is made or commences pursuant to A
9 of the Plan.

2.24 “Effective Date” means September 30, 2013, except as otherwisgdeaherein.

2.25 “Election(s)” means the form or forms on which a Participantel@cts to make Deferrals, (ii) elects a DistribntDate fo
Plan Benefits, (iii) elects the method by which diser Benefits will be distributed; and (iv) spies his




or her Beneficiary(ies) under the Plan. An Electitwall be in such form or forms as may be presdrifpethe Committee, including specifice
an electronic form.

2.26 “Eligible Employee” means an employee of the Employer who is a member select group of management or hig
compensated employees and who has been desigsatéidible to participate in the Plan in accordawith Article 3 of the Plan.

2.27 “Employer ” means the Company and any other Affiliate of @@npany that has adopted the Plan.
2.28 “Fair Market Value ” shall have the same meaning given such termdarL_iP.

2.29 "Good Reason”means any one or more of the following: (i) withthg Participant’s express written consent, thegassent
of any duties, or any limitation of responsibilgjesubstantially inconsistent with the Participangbsitions, duties, responsibilities and st
with the Company immediately prior to the date @feange in Control; (i) without the Participasmexpress written consent, the relocatic
his or her principal place of employment or servizea location that is more than fifty (50) milesrh the principal place of employment
service immediately prior to the date of a Chamg€antrol, or the imposition of travel requiremestdbstantially more demanding than tt
existing immediately prior to the date of a Chaimg€ontrol; (iii) any failure by the Company to pay any material reduction by the Comp
of, (A) base salary in effect immediately priorttee date of a Change in Control (unless reductammparable in amount and duration
concurrently made for all other employees of thean@any with comparable responsibilities, organizsdlolevel and title), or (B) bon
compensation, if any, in effect immediately priottihe date of a Change in Control (subject to applie performance requirements with res
to the actual amount of bonus compensation earr{@d)any failure by the Company to (A) continue poovide the Participant with t
opportunity to participate, on terms no less fabtgahan those in effect for the benefit of any &yee or service provider group wh
customarily includes a person holding the employtnoerservice provider position or a comparable fasiwith the Company then held by
Participant, in any benefit or compensation pland programs, including, but not limited to, the Guamy's life, disability, health, dent:
medical, savings, profit sharing, stock purchase retirement plans, if any, in which the Participasas participating immediately prior to
date of the Change in Control, or their equivalent(B) provide the Participant with all other fgim benefits (or their equivalent) from time
time in effect for the benefit of any employee grauhich customarily includes a person holding timpyment or service provider positior
a comparable position with the Company then heldhigyParticipant; (v) any breach by the Compangrof material agreement between
Participant and the Company concerning the Paatitip employment; or (vi) any failure by the Companyotatain the assumption of &
material agreement between the Participant an@tmepany concerning the Participan€mployment by a successor or assign of the Coyr

2.30 “In-Service Distribution Date” means the date prior to a Separation from Servicevtuich the distribution of a Participast’
Deferral Subaccount(s) is made or commences pursuam Election made under Article 9 of the Plan.

2.31 “Investment Return” means the investment return or loss determineddénrdance with Article 6 of the Plan, which sha
credited to Participants’ applicable Subaccountsymnt to the terms of the Plan.

2.32 “LTIP” shall mean the Qualcomm Incorporated 2006 Long-Tlagantive Plan, as amended, or any successottdhere

2.33 “Matching Contributions” means the Comparg/matching contributions to the Plan on behalfroEéigible Employee who
a Participant, as determined in accordance witti@®ed.5 of the Plan.

2.34 “Non-Employee Director” means a director who is not an Employee.

2.35 *“Open Enroliment Period” means such period as the Committee may specififdoticipants to submit an Election to m
Deferrals under the Plan. The Open Enroliment Eestall begin on the date selected by the Commattegleend no later than (i) with respec
Basic Deferrals for any Plan Year, the first daysoth Plan Year; (ii) with respect to Bonus Deflsiréhe first day of the period for which
Bonus may be earned; (iii) with respect to PerfaroeBased Compensation Deferrals, the date that ismsirths before the end of -
applicable performance period, provided the Paudict performs services continuously from the latethe beginning of the performar
period or the date the performance criteria arabdished through the date the Deferral Electiom&le and, provided, further that in no e
may a PerformancBased Compensation Deferral Election be made a&fteh Performance Based Compensation has becomay
ascertainable within the meaning of Section 1.4@%&)8) of the Treasury Regulations; and (iv) wigspect to an Eligible Employee or Non
Employee Director who first becomes eligible totiggpate in the Plan, the date that is no latenttiarty (30) days after first becoming
Eligible




Employee or NorEmployee Director, provided that an Election maynimde only with respect to Base Salary or DireE®es (as applicab
paid for services performed after the Election &lmand, provided further, that no Bonus Deferray fve made with respect to any Bonus
the first day of the period for which such Bonusyrba earned.

2.36 “Participant " means an Eligible Employee or N&mployee Director who becomes a Participant inRten as provided
Article 3.

2.37 “Performance-Based Compensation’'means any cash compensation paid to an Eligiblel@&me which is contingent on t
satisfaction of prestablished organizational or individual performameiteria relating to a performance period of edst 12 consecuti
months, determined without regard to any PerforradBased Compensation Deferral and in accordante@utle Section 409A.

2.38 “Performance-Based Compensation Deferral’means the percentage of a Participant's PerformBased Compensati
which the Participant defers pursuant to Secti@o#the Plan.

2.39 “Plan” means this Qualcomm Incorporated Non-Qualified BeteCompensation Plan as set forth herein.
2.40 “Plan Year” means the 12 consecutive month period beginningach January 1 and ending on the following Deesr@h.

2.41 “Retirement” means the Participant’'s Separation from Servich thi¢ Employer after attaining the earlier of:a@e sixtyfive
(65) or (ii) age sixty-two and one-half (62 1/2}hvat least ten (10) Years of Service.

2.42 “Separation from Service” means separation from Service whether by terminatib employment or Board service.
Participant will be presumed to have had a Semarditom Service where the level of bona fide sexsiperformed by such individual decre:i
to a level that is less than or equal to 20% ofatherage level of bona fide services performethé&36émonth period immediately preceding
Separation from Servic&ubject to the foregoing and the requirements afi@g 409A of the Code and the regulations isshedeunder, tt
Committee, in its discretion, shall determine wieth Participant has had a Separation from Searidehe effects thereof.

2.43 “Service” means an Eligible Employesemployment or service with the Employer in thpagity of an employee or a mem
of the Board. An Eligible Employeg'Service shall include periods of employment ovise with the Company and any subsidiary, regas
of whether the Company has determined that sucibsidiary will not be an Employer for purposestaf Plan.

2.44 * Specified Employee” means any Participant who, as of the date of Saparfrom Service, is a key employee of
Employer by reason of meeting the requirementseati®n 416(i)(1)(A)(i), (ii) or (iii) of the Codeapplied in accordance with the regulati
thereunder and disregarding Section 416(i)(5)ngttame during the 12aonth period ending on the last day of the PlanrYaasuch other da
as may be established by the Committee in a sepdogtument applicable to all deferred compensaians sponsored by the Company.

2.45 “Subaccount(s)” means the subaccount(s) established within a Remits Account with respect to the various type
Deferrals and Company contributions made undePthe.

2.46 “Total Compensation” for a Plan Year means wages as defined in Seci(d) of the Code, any annual cash ince
bonus which is normally paid by the Employer toEigible Employee after the end of the fiscal yeard all other payments of compense
to an Eligible Employee by the Employer (in the rsguof the Employes' trade or business) for which the Employer is iregluto furnish th
Eligible Employee a written statement under Sec86r41(d) or Section 6051(a)(3) of the Code for sBtdn Year, excluding the followil
items: any bonus other than an annual cash inahtiwus which is normally paid by the Employernd=igible Employee after the end of
fiscal year, commissions, the value of a qualifiesaientive or norgualified stock option, stock appreciation rightstricted stock awal
restricted stock unit, performance share, perfocaamit, deferred compensation award, or otherkdt@sed award, granted to the Elig
Employee by the Company to the extent such valumecisdable in the Eligible Employeetaxable income, reimbursements or other exj
allowances, fringe benefits (cash and w©ash), moving expenses, deferred compensation aifdres benefits, but including amounts that
not includable in the gross income of the EligiBlmployee under a salary reduction agreement byneafthe application of Section 125, 40:
(e)(3), 402(h), or 403(b) of the Code or by reasban election of the Eligible Employee to defercamts of Base Salary under this Plan. 1
Compensation must be determined without regardahyorales under Section 3401(a) of the Code that kine remuneration included in way
based on the nature or location of the employmetti@services performed (such as the exceptioadacultural labor in Section 3401(a)(2
the Code).




2.47 “Trust " means the legal entity created by the Trust Agreet(s).

2.48 *“Trust Agreement” means the trust agreement entered into betweedngpany and the Trustee(s) to hold assets
respect to this Plan.

2.49 “Trustee(s)” means the person(s) or entity named as Trustae{hpiTrust Agreement established to hold assets regpec
to this Plan and any duly appointed and acting essgxar Trustee(s) appointed by the Employer purdoahe terms of the Trust Agreement.

2.50 “Year of Service” means each 12 consecutive month period of comp&sedce.

ARTICLE Il
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

3.1 _Eliqibility to Participate Participation in the Plan shall be limited to Nemployee Directors and those Eligible Employ
selected by the Executive Vice President, Humaro&®ess of the Company and notified as to theirilglity to participate in the Plan. T
Committee, in its discretion, may limit the ability Participants to make certain types of Defermalbe credited with Company contributi
under the Plan.

3.2 _Commencement of ParticipatioRarticipation in the Plan is voluntary. An EligitEmployee or Nof=mployee Director mg
begin participation in the Plan upon the execuéind submission of an Election during the applic&yen Enrollment Period.

ARTICLE IV
DEFERRALS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
4.1 Basic Deferrals

4.1.1. An Eligible Employee or NdBmployee Director may elect to reduce his or heseB&alary or Director Fees, as applicablt
the percentage of Base Salary or Director Feeapplicable, set forth in an Election filed with tBemmittee, subject to the provisions of
Article 4. Basic Deferrals shall not be paid to ferticipant, but shall be withheld from amountseotvise payable to the Participant, ani
amount equal to the Basic Deferrals for the Plaarhall be credited to the Participant’'s Basicdbefl Subaccount under the Plan.

4.1.2. The Election to make Basic Deferrals niasfiled with the Committee during the Open Enmaht Period for the Plan Yeal
which such Election applies. A ParticipanE&lection with respect to Basic Deferrals shathae in effect until changed by the Particif
during a subsequent Open Enroliment Period. EaelstiBh to make Basic Deferrals shall apply onlyBtse Salary or Director Fees,
applicable garned after the effective date of such Electidactibns with respect to Basic Deferrals, once mabell be irrevocable for the P
Year.

4.2 Bonus Deferrals and PerformaiBased Compensation Deferrals

4.2.1 An Eligible Employee may elect to defgpeacentage of any Bonus and/or PerformaBased Compensation as
forth in an Election with the Committee, subject ttee provisions of this Article 4. Such Bonus Ded¢s and/or Performandgase!
Compensation Deferrals shall not be paid to thdidfaant, but shall be withheld from the amounthentvise payable to the Participant
credited to the Participant’s applicable Defernab&ccount under the Plan.

4.2.2 The Bonus Deferral Election and/or PerfamoeBased Compensation Deferral Election must be fikth the
Committee during the applicable Open EnrolimenideerA Bonus and/or Performan&ased Compensation Deferral Election shall renna
effect until changed by the Participant during bssquent Open Enrollment Period. Elections witpeesto Bonus Deferrals and Performance
Based Compensation Deferrals, once made, shaltdtable for the applicable fiscal year or perfance period.




4.3 Maximum Deferrals; Cash Deferrals OnSubject to such further limits as the Committesyrastablish in its sole discretion:

(&) An Eligible Employee may not defer Base Balm an amount that exceeds 60% of Base Salargrmé@ted prior to ar
reductions for tax withholding amounts (includirgyt not limited to, FICA and FUTA taxes), contrilmrts to the Compang’401(k) Plar
employee stock purchase plan(s), or Code Sectibrpleh or other amounts that may reduce or be aciet from Base Salary.

(b) An Eligible Employee may not defer Bonus /andPerformancé&ased Compensation in an amount that exceeds Bamils
PerformanceBased Compensation reduced by applicable employtagnwithholding amounts (including, but not limitéo, FICA and FUT,
taxes) attributable to such Bonus and/or Perform&ased Compensation, as applicable.

(c) A Director may elect to defer up to 100%hid or her cash Director Fees.

(d) Notwithstanding anything herein to the cangr no Participant shall be permitted to defeclsfoased compensation under
Plan.

4.4 _No Withdrawal Except as otherwise set forth herein, amountditer@ to a Participard’ Account may not be withdrawn b
Participant and shall be paid only in accordandé tiie provisions of this Plan.

4.5 _Matching Contributions The Company will credit Matching Contributions ttee Matching Contribution Subaccount of
Eligible Employee for a Plan Year if (a) the Contedt has determined that the Eligible Employee isragrthose designated as eligibli
receive a Matching Contribution; and either (b) Eigible Employee is actively employed by the Eoydr on the first day following the e
of such Plan Year, or (c) the Eligible Employeemployment with the Employer is terminated duting Plan Year by the Employer with
Cause. The Matching Contribution shall be equdiftp percent (50%) of the Eligible EmployeeDeferrals credited to his or her Account
the Plan Year; provided, however, that the totakdWimg Contribution credited to the Matching Coptiion Subaccount of any Eligil
Employee for any Plan Year shall not exceed 8%uoh<ligible Employee’s Total Compensation for #pplicable Plan Year.

All Matching Contributions to the Plan with respéctPlan Years beginning before January 1, 2014l ble credited to an Eligik
Employee’s Matching Contribution Subaccount solalyhe form of shares of the CompasyCommon Stock. All Matching Contributions
the Plan with respect to Plan Years beginning ahafter January 1, 2014, shall be credited to dgiti® Employees Matching Contributic
Subaccount in the form of cash unless the Compens&ommittee, in its sole discretion, determinkeat tMatching Contributions shall
credited in the form of shares of the CompanZommon Stock. To the extent the Compensation GQtisendetermines that Matchi
Contributions will be credited in shares of the @amy’s Common StocKor purposes of converting a Company Matching Gbuation from ¢
dollar value to a number of shares of the Compa@dmmon Stock, the Fair Market Value of the Comparyommon Stock shall be -
average of the Fair Market Value of the Compar@bmmon Stock over the two hundred (200) tradengsdmmediately preceding the last
of the applicable calendar year or, with respeetrtdligible Employee whose employment is termiddtg the Employer without Cause dut
the Plan Year, the average of the Fair Market Valuthe Company Common Stock over the two hundred (200) tradiagsdmmediatel
preceding the last day of his or her employment.

4.6 _Discretionary Company ContributionSrom time to time the Company may, as recommeibgettie Compensation Commit
in its complete discretion, credit to an Eligiblenfloyees Account a Discretionary Company Contributionsirth amounts and at such tit
as the Compensation Committee may determine. Sisdrdlionary Company Contributions may be denoneith@ cash or shares of Comp
Common Stock, as determined by the Compensationn@tbee. The Company shall be under no obligationdwotinue to make Discretion:
Company Contributions and may discontinue suchritmritons at any time.

4.7 _Adjustments Shares to be issued under the Plan are resevvéssfiance under the LTIP, and shall be subjeatjostment i
the event of a change in the Company’s capitatsire, in accordance with Section 4.2 of the LTIP.

ARTICLE V

ACCOUNTS




Accounts; SubaccountsSeparate Accounts and Subaccounts shall be issidbland maintained for each Participant in acouse
with the terms of the Plan. Each Participant’'s mle Subaccounts shall be credited with the €lpant's Basic Deferrals, Bonus anc
Performance-Based Compensation Deferrals, MataBmgributions and Discretionary Company Contribusioif any. ParticipantsAccount:
shall be credited (or debited) with the applicaloleestment Return as set forth in Article 6. Pgoaats’ Accounts shall be reduced by los
distributions and any other charges which may h@sed on the Accounts pursuant to the terms dPlde.

ARTICLE VI
PLAN INVESTMENTS AND EARNINGS ON PARTICIPANTS’ ACCO UNTS

6.1 _Investment of Matching Contributions anddetionary Company Contributions Credited in Stock

6.1.1 As set forth in Article 4, each ParticibanMatching Contributions and Discretionary Compagntribution:
Subaccount (to the extent a contribution is denateihin Company Common Stock) shall be creditetiecParticipans Account in shares
the Company’s Common Stock, and shall be accounteshd reported in terms of shares of the Comma@gmmon Stock.

6.1.2 In the event that the Trust establisheat vaspect to Matching Contributions or Discretign@ompany Contributior
in the form of the Company’s Common Stock for aegson holds cash or other property sufficient tclpase a share of the Company’
Common Stock, the Trustee shall first arrange tpe additional shares of the Compangommon Stock, either by purchasing such sha
the public market or by acquiring such shares tirdrom the Company, unless the Committee, irdiscretion, determines to credit such «
or other property to Participant&ccounts. In the event that the Trust for any redsolds cash or other property in an amount insiffit tc
purchase a share of the CompanZommon Stock, such amount shall be held in cash @ash equivalent determined by the Comm
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Planthie contrary, in the event there are insufficidmires of the Compa’s Common Stoc
reserved and available for issuance to make MagcbinDiscretionary Company Contributions in thenfioof Company Common Stock, -
Company may credit cash amounts in lieu of shaf€ompany Common Stock to the applicable Subacsooihbne or more Participants
some or all of the Matching and Discretionary Comp@&ontribution amounts.

6.1.3 Effective September 27, 2010, if the Badedlares a cash dividend on the shares of the GoyrfggCommon Stock,
of the first business day following the dividend/peent date with respect to such cash dividendCitvapany shall credit a cash amount e
to such per-share cash dividend with respect th share of Company Common Stock credited to addaatit's Matching Contributions and.
Discretionary Contributions Subaccount as of theddind declaration date for such cash dividend.séith cash amounts shall be credite
the Subaccount and be subject to the same termsa@nditions relating to vesting and payment as dbeesponding shares of Comp
Common Stock credited to that Subaccount and bme@do be invested in a money market fund or smiiigestment as of the first tradi
day after the dividend payment date with respediutcth cash dividend, provided, however, that aidaant may at any time elect to rein\
any such amounts deemed invested in a money miamketor similar investment in any other Benchmatkd specified under Section 6.:
but only after the fund is added to the recordkegglystem.

6.2 Investment of Deferrals, Matching Contribag and Discretionary Company Contributions Denateid in Cash.

6.2.1 The Committee may designate the particflads or contracts which shall constitute the Benark Funds wit
respect to Basic Deferrals, Bonus and/or Perform@ased Compensation Deferrals, Matching Contribstiand Discretionary Compa
Contributions awarded in cash and the Committee, nmaigs sole discretion, change or add to the Berark Funds; provided, however, 1
the Committee shall notify Participants of any sahlnge prior to the effective date of the change.

6.2.2 Each Participant may select among the lBeack Funds and specify the manner in which eadtisobr her applicab
Subaccounts shall be deemed to be invested, sfelgurposes of determining the Participanthvestment Return. The Committee ¢
establish and communicate the rules, proceduresleadlines for making and changing Benchmark Fetectons. The Company shall h,
no obligation to acquire investments correspondintpe Participant’'s Benchmark Fund selections.




6.2.3 The Investment Return is based on the as#tevalue, net of administrative fees and inwemtt management fees i
other applicable fees or charges, of the Benchnramkd(s) designated by the Committee. The InvestrRaturn may be negative if
applicable Benchmark Fund(s) sustain a loss. Thestment Return shall be credited (or debited) mgnor more frequently as the Commit

may specify.
ARTICLE VII
BENEFICIARIES

A Participant shall have the right to designateaonElection prescribed by the Committee one or nBmeeficiaries to receive a
Benefits due under the Plan in the event of théddaant’s death.

If the Participant has not properly designated adfieiary, or if for any reason such designatioalshot be legally effective, or if s¢
designated Beneficiary shall predecease the Raatiti then the Participant's Beneficiary shall be Participans surviving spouse. In t
event there is no surviving spouse, the Participdeneficiary shall be the Participant’s estate.

The Participant shall have the right at any timestmke a previous Beneficiary designation andutzsstute one or more other Beneficiary(is
provided, however, that the most recent Beneficidegignation received prior to a Participant’s Hesitall supersede all prior Beneficiary
designations made under the Plan.
ARTICLE VI
VESTING

8.1 _Vesting of Deferral@ll Deferrals credited to a Participant’s Accouht$ always be 100% vested.

8.2 _Vesting of Matching and Discretionary CompaContributions.A Participants Matching and Discretionary Compi
Contribution Subaccounts shall vest in accordanitie whichever one of the following vesting schedutesults in the largest vested balant
the Participant’s Account.

8.2.1 One hundred percent (100%) shall be vegpsh the Participarg’ death, Disability, attainment of age 65 w
employed by the Employer, or completion of two ¢@htinuous Years of Service.

8.2.2 A Participant shall be partially or fulested in the discretion of the Compensation Cotemitso long as |
acceleration of vesting results in an acceleratiogpayment prohibited under Section 409A of the €od

8.2.3 A Participant shall be one hundred per¢&d®%) vested upon involuntary termination of eoyphent without Cau:
or voluntary termination of employment for Good Be@, in either case at any time within twefdy (24) months following a Change
Control.

8.3 Amounts credited to a Participant which ao¢ vested at the time that the Participant hagpation from Service with t
Employer shall be forfeited. A Participant who f&té any such amounts shall have no rights togktration of such amounts in the event
he or she once again becomes eligible to partigipathe Plan.

ARTICLE IX
BENEFIT DISTRIBUTIONS

9.1 _Benefit Amount The value of a Participant’s Benefit shall eqtre vested value of the ParticipanSubaccount(s) on t

applicable Distribution Date. Distributions fromParticipants Matching Contributions or Discretionary Compangn@ibutions Subaccou

credited as shares of Company Common Stock shalalokin whole shares of the Company’s Common Stock

9.2 _Timing of Distributions In accordance with the ParticipamE&lection made at the time of the original defefwa a permissibl
later election, if applicable), Benefits shall kadp(or payments shall commence) within sixty (68ys following the earliestf:




9.2.1 The date of the Participant’s SeparatiomfService (including due to Retirement);

9.2.2 The InService Distribution Date designated by the Paréiot (solely with respect to distributions of De#d
Subaccounts);

9.2.3 The date of the Participant’s death oabigy; or

9.2.4 The date of a Change in Control of the Gamny.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryitiegpants shall not be entitled to elect anService Distribution Date wi
respect to their Matching and Discretionary Comp&uontribution Subaccounts. Any Matching Contribatior Company Discretiona
Contribution that vests pursuant to Section 8.Z2.8he Plan after the date of a Change of Contrallde distributed upon the Participant’

subsequent Separation from Service.

9.3. _Methods of Distribution

9.3.1 _Distribution Methods A Participants Benefit shall be paid in a single lump sum payinanless the Participe
specifies in an Election that (1) a distributionDEferrals made pursuant to such Election and aatcMing Contributions credited with resg
to such Election in the event of Retirement or Disiyy or (2) a distribution of Deferrals made puast to such Election (but not any Matct
Contributions credited with respect to such Elettiapon an InService Distribution Date shall be paid in quaystest annual installme
payments of substantially equal amounts over agexs provided below:

Reason for Distribution Installment Period
Retirement 1to 10 Years
Disability 1to 10 Years

In-Service Distribution Date(s) 2/3/4/5 Years
Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to Hlmts made on or after January 1, 2013, only animséhliments shall be availab

9.3.2 A Participant may amend a previous lump gayment Election to take a distribution upon Ratient, Disability ¢
an InService Distribution Date in installments, by fdimn amended Election at least twelve (12) momttelivance of the date specified in
original Election. With respect to a distributiopan Retirement or an I8ervice Distribution Date, the new Distribution Baust be at lee
five (5) years after the date of the first disttibn specified in the original Election. No such emdment may accelerate the date that
distribution would be made from the Plan.

9.3.3 The Participard’method of distribution selected in his or hercEte shall remain in effect for all future simi
Deferrals until changed by the Participant duringubsequent Open Enrollment Period. The Participamethod of distribution may
changed only in accordance with the requiremengeation 9.3.2.

9.3.4 _Failure to Properly Specify Form of Ditstition. If, at the time of his or her Distribution DateParticipant has faile
to elect a form of distribution or a Participantavblects an installment distribution does not gatise requirements for the installment t
elected, then such Participant’s Benefits shatlis&ibuted in a single lump sum payment.

9.3.5 _Installment AmountsFor purposes of this Section 9.3, installmentrithigtions shall commence within sixty (¢
days following a Participard’ Retirement or Disability, and shall thereaftergaéd within the thirty (30) day period beginning the las
business day of each calendar quarter beginnirty tit calendar quarter next following the quantewhich the initial payment date occur
(for quarterly installments) or on a date that ighim 30 days of each anniversary of the initiaymp&nt date (for annual installmen
Installment distributions with respect to an3ervice Distribution Date shall commence on thermss day corresponding with or immedia
following the date elected by the Participant aedphid within the 3@ay period beginning on the last business day ol ealendar quart
beginning with the calendar quarter next followthg quarter in which the initial payment date ocedr(for quarterly installments) or on a ¢
that is within 30 days of each subsequent annivgisahe In-Service Distribution Date (for annurdtallments).




9.3.6 _Reemployed After Installments Beglha former Participant is reemployed after hgvibegun to receive installms
distributions from the Plan, then such former R#éint, upon once again becoming an Eligible Emgédoymay begin a new period
participation in the Plan; provided, however, tthe installment distributions previously commeneali continue to be paid to the Particip
over the specified installment period.

9.3.7 _Minimum Account Balance Necessary fotdliments. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the cantr if €
Participant’'s Account balance is less than $50,80Ghe time elected to begin installment distribogi, the Participarg’ Benefit wil
automatically be distributed in a single lump sum.

9.4 _Election of IfService Distribution Date

9.4.1 _Initial Election Upon filing an Election to make Deferrals for dPkan Year, a Participant may specify arSkervice
Distribution Date for the Subaccount to which saferrals are credited, subject to the following:

9.4.1.1 A Participant may elect one or moreShkrvice Distribution Dates for all of the Deferraledited to suc
Subaccounts for the Plan Year.

9.4.1.2 Any InService Distribution Date must be at least twoy@ars after the end of the Plan Year for whict
initial Election specifying such In-Service Distuifon Date is made.

9.4.1.3 Benefits shall be paid (or paymentsist@hmence in accordance with Section 9.3.5) onelketed In-
Service Distribution Date elected for such Defeyral

9.4.2 _Revocation or Amendment of-3ervice Distribution Election A Participant who has elected an Service
Distribution Date may revoke and/or amend theSémvice Distribution Date Election by filing a resagion or an amended Election at |
twelve (12) months in advance of the In-Servicetiitigtion Date specified in the Election being rkeed or amended. The amended3ervice
Distribution Date must be at least five (5) yediterathe InService Distribution Date specified in the prioe&ion. Nothing in this Secti
9.4.2 shall preclude a Participant from amendisgoniher Election as to the method of distributioaccordance with Section 9.3.2, above.

9.4.3 _Separation from Service Before the PldnneService Distribution Date If the Participant has a Separation f
Service with the Employer before his $®rvice Distribution Date for any reason (othemtfgetirement or Disability, to the extent of a d
Retirement or Disability election), distribution tife Participans Account shall be made in a single lump sum paymwéhin sixty (60) day
after the Participant’s Separation from Service.

9.4.4 _Separation from Service After Commencdnaoérinstallment InService Distributions Notwithstanding any pri
Election, if the Participant has a Separation fi®envice with the Employer for any reason (othentRa&tirement or Disability, to the exten
a valid Retirement or Disability election) whilecedving In-Service Distributions in the form of installmentsstribution of the Participarg’
remaining installments shall be made in a singtegdisum payment within sixty (60) days after thetiegant's Separation from Service.

9.5 _Distribution Upon Death of Participantf a Participant dies before his or her Benefiyiments have commenced, then :
Participants Benefits shall be paid to his or her designatedeficiary in a single lump sum cash payment witikty (60) days following tt
date of the Participarg’death. If a Participant dies after installmentrpants have commenced, his or her remaining Accbalaince shall t
paid to the Beneficiary in a single lump sum paytweithin sixty (60) days after the Participant’satle

9.6 _Specified Employeesin the event of a distribution to a Specified Hoype based upon such individwlSeparation fro
Service, distributions will be made or commencessipective of any Election or provision of thisrPta the contrary, on the date that is si>
months and ten (10) days after the date of Separ&thm Service, or if earlier, the date of dedthhe Specified Employee.

9.7 _Limitation on Distributions to Covered Empes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this A9, and subject to t
requirements of Code Section 409A, a distributiayrbe delayed to the extent that the Company reddpmanticipates that if the distributi
were made as scheduled, the Compsirdeduction with respect to such distribution wontit be permitted due to the application of C
Section 162(m). Any amount which is not distributedhe Participant as a result of the foregoinglldbe distributed during the Participant’
first taxable year in which the Company reasonadfficipates that if the distribution is made durisigch year, the deduction of s
distribution will not be barred by application ob€e Section 162(m).




9.8 _Tax Withholding Distributions under this Article 9 shall be sudtjéo all applicable withholding requirements fedéral, stal
and local income or other taxes. Amounts requicedet withheld pursuant to this Section 9.8 shallaben first from distributions of cash ¢
second, to the extent necessary to satisfy thenmimi tax withholding requirements, from the proceetishe sale of shares of Comp.
Common Stock distributed to the Participant, wigale the Participant authorizes as a conditioradigpation in the Plan.

9.9 _Section 280G Parachute Paymbnthe event that any distribution from the Placeieed or to be received by a Participat
“Distribution”) would (i) constitute a “parachuteapment”within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code, &idut for this Section 9.
cause the Participant to become subject to thesexak imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (thei¥exTax”) or increase such Participant’
Excise Tax liability, then such Distribution may teluced to the largest amount which the Parti¢jparhis or her sole discretion, determi
would result in no portion of the Distribution bgisubject to the Excise Tax. The determination Waaicipant of any reduction shall
conclusive and binding upon the Employer, the Camgpand the Committee. The Committee shall redubéstibution and/or shall accept-
return of some or all of a Distribution previoushade to a Participant only upon written notice ey Participant indicating the amount of s
reduction. Any amounts returned to the Plan purst@arthis Section 9.9 shall be treated as a farfeitand shall be used to reduce
Company'’s future contributions to the Plan or ty pasts associated with the operation and admiatistr of the Plan.

ARTICLE X
ADMINISTRATION

10.1 _Committee StructureThe initial humber of Committee members shalltheee (3), until such number is changed by
Company’s Executive Vice President, Human Resourgesuch other officer serving in that capacitye(t'EVP, Human Resources’
member of the Committee must be an employee oEthployer or a member of the Board and shall coetitmuserve until such member
resigns, (ii) is removed or (iii) terminates emptmnt with the Employer and no longer serves orBibard for any reason. The EVP, Hur
Resources is or at his discretion may be a membeheo Plan Committee. The EVP, Human Resources reayove a member of t
Committee. A majority of the remaining members leé Committee may fill one or more vacancies onGoenmittee. The Committee
allocate and delegate some or all of its respdiitg#si described in this Article 10 and otherwise set forth in the Plan. The Committee’
authority under this Article 10 shall at all times subject to the ability of the EVP, Human Resesito remove any or all of the member
the Committee for any reason, change the numbenavhbers of the Committee, fill vacancies on sudmrodgtee, and establish rules
procedures for the Committee.

10.2 _Committee Powers and Responsibiliti#fie Committee shall have control of the admiaistn of the Plan, with all powe
necessary to enable it properly to carry out itseduin that respect, including, but not limited lee power and authority to:

10.2.1 Construe the Plan and any Trust Agreefgletd determine all questions that shall ariseoasterpretations of tt
Plan’s provisions, including determinations of whichiinduals are Eligible Employees and the extenthairt eligibility to participate in tt
Plan, which individuals are Specified Employeesd aeterminations related to the amounts credite@ t®articipans Account and tt
appropriate timing and method of Benefit payments;

10.2.2 Establish reasonable rules and proceduhésh shall be applied to Elections, the estabtisht of Accounts ar
Subaccounts, and all other discretionary provisifrtee Plan;

10.2.3 Establish rules, procedures and formatstle electronic administration of the Plan, inlthg specifically th
distribution of Participant communications, Eleoscand tax information;

10.2.4 Establish the rules and procedures byhvitie Plan will operate that are consistent whte terms of the Pl
documents and Code Section 409A,;

10.2.5 Compile and maintain all records it deiees to be necessary, appropriate or convenieabimmection with th
administration of the Plan;

10.2.6 Adopt amendments to the Plan which aeengel necessary or desirable to facilitate admatistr of the Plan and/
to bring Planrelated documents into compliance with all appliedbws and regulations; provided, however, that@ommittee shall not ha
the authority to adopt any Plan amendment thatredlllt in substantially increased costs to the @amg unless such amendment is contin
upon ratification by the Compensation Committeeobebecoming effective;




10.2.7 Employ such persons or organizationseidopm services with respect to the administratiesponsibilities of tt
Committee under the Plan as the Committee deterrimde necessary and appropriate, including, butimited to, attorneys, accounta
and benefit, financial and administrative consukan

10.2.8 Select, review and retain or change thacBmark Funds which are used for determining tvedtment Retu
under the Plan;

10.2.9 Direct the investment of the assets @fTthust(s);

10.2.10 Review the performance of the Trustee(l$) respect to the Trusteeduties, responsibilities and obligations u
the Plan and the Trust Agreement(s); and

10.2.11 Take such other actions as may be reyess appropriate to the management and investmietite assets he
with respect to this Plan.

10.3 _Decisions of the Committe®ecisions of the Committee made in good faithrupoy matter within the scope of its authc
shall be final, conclusive and binding upon allgmers, including Participants and their legal repnéstives or Beneficiaries. Any discret
granted to the Committee shall be exercised inraecme with rules and policies established by tbmRittee.

10.4 _Indemnification To the extent permitted by law, the Company simalémnify each member of the Committee, and ahgi
Employee or member of the Board with duties untlerRlan, against losses and expenses (includingraoynt paid in settlement) reason:i
incurred by such person in connection with anynetaagainst such person by reason of such persamduct in the performance of his or
duties under the Plan, except in relation to mattarto which such person has acted fraudulenily load faith in the performance of his or
duties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Compaimall not indemnify any person for any expense firezl through any settlement
compromise of any action unless the Company cossentriting to the settlement or compromise.

10.5 _Claims ProcedurdBenefits shall be provided from this Plan throygbcedures initiated by the Committee, and théié¢aan
need not file a claim. However, if a ParticipanBamneficiary believes he or she is entitled to adS# different from the one received, then
Participant or Beneficiary may file a claim for tBenefit by writing a letter to the Committee.

10.5.1 If any claim for Benefits under the Pianvholly or partially denied, the claimant shadl biven notice in writing «
such denial within 90 days of the date the letteinting benefits is received by the Committee.péaial circumstances require an extensic
time, written notice of the extension shall be fsined to the claimant within the initial 98ay period.

10.5.2 Notice of the denial shall set forth fbbowing information: (a) the specific reason @asons for the denial; |
specific references to pertinent Plan provisionsvbich the denial is based; (c) a description of additional material or information necess
for the claimant to perfect the claim and an exaleom of why such material or information is neeegs(d) an explanation that a full review
the Committee of the decision denying the claim rbayrequested by the claimant or his or her authdrrepresentative by filing with 1
Company, within 60 days after such notice has lbeegived, a written request for such review; andf(@uch request is so filed, the claimar
his or her authorized representative may revieuirpat documents and submit issues and commenmisting within the same 60 day period.

10.5.3 The decision of the Committee upon re\séail be made promptly, and not later than 60 @digs the Committee’
receipt of the request for review, unless spedrabmstances require an extension of time for pgsicgy, in which case the claimant shall b
notified and a decision shall be rendered as seqgmoasible, but not later than 120 days after ptadithe request for review. If the clain
denied, wholly or in part, the claimant shall bemptly given a copy of the decision. The decisiballsbe in writing and shall include spec
reasons for the denial, specific references topttinent Plan provisions on which the denial isdshand shall be written in a mar
calculated to be understood by the claimant. Nthé&rrlegal action may be initiated claiming bersefihder this Plan until the claims procec
set forth in this Article 10 is complete.

10.6 _Plan Expense3he Company shall pay all costs and expensetedela the operation and administration of the Plan

ARTICLE Xl

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION




11.1 _Right to Amend The Committee shall have the right to amend tha,Rat any time and with respect to any of itsvigions
and all parties claiming any interest under thenRhall be bound by such amendment; provided, hewedhat no such amendment s
deprive a Participant of a right accrued underRlen prior to the date of the amendment, unlesh ancamendment is required by applic
law or deemed necessary to preserve the prefeaedréatment of the Plan. Notwithstanding anythivegein to the contrary, only t
Compensation Committee shall have the authoritpdopt amendments that result in a change to thehingt contribution formula und
Section 4.5 of the Plan.

11.2 _Amendments to Ensure Proper Charactavizaif Plan. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 11He Plan may t
amended by the Committee or the Compensation Cdeerdtt any time, and retroactively if requiredolfind necessary, in the opinion of
Committee or the Compensation Committee, in ordezonform the Plan to the provisions and requirgmenh applicable law (including, t
not limited to, Section 409A of the Code, and othpplicable portions of ERISA and the Code). Nohsamendment shall be conside
prejudicial to any interest of a Participant heidem

11.3 _Plan Termination or Plan Suspensidhe Company reserves the right, by action of@bepensation Committee, to termir
the Plan at any time, to suspend the operatioheoPlan for a fixed or indeterminate period of timeto terminate the Plan and provide fo
amounts to be distributed in a lump sum, to themxpermitted under Section 409A of the Code arddlyulations issued thereunder.

11.4 _Successor to Compangny corporation or other business organizatiorctvhs a successor to the Company by reasor
consolidation, merger or purchase of all or sulitiy all of the assets of the Company, or anyeotGhange in Control, shall have the rigt
become a party to the Plan by means of a resolofitime entity’'s board of directors or other appiatp governing body.

ARTICLE XII
PLAN TRANSFERS

12.1 _Transfers to Other Plank the event that a Participant becomes empltyedny affiliated company, subsidiary corporat
parent corporation or unrelated corporation withiohithe Company enters into a transaction to aedie assets or stock of such unrel
corporation, the Committee shall have the right,rimt the obligation, to direct the Trustee to #fen funds in an amount equal to the am
credited to such Participant's Account (the “Tramsfd Account”)to a trust established under a Transferee Plan. Jtramittee she
determine, in its sole discretion, whether suchgfer shall be made and the timing of such tran§fech transfer shall be made if, and on
the extent that, approval of such transfer is olehifrom the Trustee.

12.1.1 _Transferee Plaifror purposes of this Section 12.1, “Transferea’P$hall mean an unfunded, nonqualified defe
compensation plan described in Sections 201(2)(a3() and 401(a)(l) of ERISA maintained by anytiké Companys affiliated entities
subsidiary corporations, parent corporations or esrporation unrelated to the Company with whica @ompany has successfully clost
transaction in which the Company acquired the assethe outstanding stock of such unrelated catjor.

12.2 _Transfers in from Other PlanShere may be transferred directly from the tresté another nonqualified, funded, defe
compensation plan (an “Other Pland) the Trustee, subject to the approval of thesfienor corporation maintaining the Other Plan am
Committee, funds in an amount not to exceed theuasocredited to the Other Plan accounts maintafoedhe benefit of that Eligib
Employee. Amounts transferred pursuant to thisi&ect2.2, and any gains or losses allocable thefétshall be accounted for separa
(“Transfer Account”)from amounts otherwise allocable to the Eligible gimgee under this Plan, and (ii) the Transfer Actoshall b
distributed in accordance with the Eligible Emplegedeferral election under the Other Plan, as sledtien may be amended pursuant tc
terms of the Other Plan. Subsequent earnings omrti@unt in the Transfer Account shall be credite@ tseparate Account for the Eligi
Employee established pursuant to this Plan and lsbaletermined under the Plan’s investment proeedin Article 6.

12.3 _Effect of Section This Section 12 shall only be operable to therixthe Committee determines and in its sole aisolat
discretion at the time of any proposed transfet sligh transfer will not impact the Plan and anfeded amounts in a tax disadvantage
manner under Section 409A of the Code.

ARTICLE XIlI




MISCELLANEOUS

13.1 _No AssignmentThe right of any Participant, any Beneficiaryamy other person to the payment of any benefiteutids Pla
shall not be assigned, transferred, pledged ormbeted, including pursuant to domestic relatiomers.

13.2 _No Secured InteresThe obligations of the Company to Participantdarrthis Plan shall not be funded or otherwise 1=t
and shall be paid out of the general assets ofCmapany. Participants are general unsecured crsditiothe Company with respect to
Companys contributions hereunder and shall have no legatjoitable interest in the assets of the Compiaugjyding any assets the Comp
may set aside or reserve against its obligatiodguthis Plan.

13.3 _SuccessorsThis Plan shall be binding upon and inure to lbeeefit of the Employer, its successors and assgs the
Participant and his or her heirs, executors, adstratiors and legal representatives.

13.4 _No Employment AgreementNothing contained herein shall be construed afecdng upon any Participant the right
continue in the Service of the Company or any #sfd.

13.5 _AttorneysFees. If the Employer, the Participant, any Beneficiayd/or successor in interest to any of the foragobring:
legal action to enforce any of the provisions a$ tAlan, the prevailing party in such legal actirall be reimbursed by the other party for
prevailing party’s legal costs, including, withdimitation, reasonable fees of attorneys, accoustand similar advisors and expert witnesses.

13.6 _Entire AgreementThis Plan constitutes the entire understandirdy agreement with respect to the subject matteradoex
herein, and supersedes any and all agreementsrstenuings, restrictions, representations or wégganamong any Participant and
Employer other than those set forth or providedriahis Plan.

13.7 _Severability. If any provision of this Plan is held to be indalillegal or unenforceable, such invalidity, d&ity, ol
unenforceability shall not affect any other proeisiof this Plan, and the Plan shall be construedesnfiorced as if such provision had not t
included. In addition, if such provision is invaliflegal or unenforceable due to changes in appli law or accounting requirements,
Company may amend the Plan, without the consentvatitbut providing any advance notice to any P#g#ot, as may be necessar)
desirable to comply with changes in the applicddleor financial accounting of deferred compensaptans.

13.8 _Governing Law This Plan shall be construed under the laws of the Sthalifornia, except to the extent preemptes
federal law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Plan has been adoptechbyGompany effective as of the Effective Date.

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED

Dated: October 11, 2013 By: /s/ David A. Reichel
Name: David A. Reichel
Title: Senior Director, Total Rewards Management




EXHIBIT 10.117

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT N OTICE
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termentve Plan (the “Planhereby grants to the Participant nai
below the number of Restricted Stock Units sethfttlow, each of which is a bookkeeping entry repnéing the equivalent in value of one
share of the Comparg/’common stock. The Restricted Stock Unit Awarslisject to all of the terms and conditions as sghfherein and tt
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Directors i tbnited Kingdom (attached hereto) and the Plarchwiare incorporated herein in tt
entirety. Capitalized terms not otherwise definethis Grant Notice or the Restricted Stock Unirédgment shall have the meaning set for
the Plan.

Participant: «<FIRST_NAME» «LAST_NAME» Grant NeNUM»
Emp #: «ID» Shares Subject to Restricted Stock Unit: «<SHARES
Date of Grant: «<GRANT_DATE»

Vesting Date

This Restricted Stock Unit Award vests on the eatlto occur of the following events provided y@arvice is continuous from the Date
Grant through the applicable date: (1) April [DDY,YYY] (the “Scheduled Vesting Date”),2) the date of the next annual meeting
stockholders of the Company that occurs after taee@f Grant should you not stand for re-electionat be reelected, (3) your death, (4) y«
Disability, or (5) a Change in Control.

Settlement Datt

The Restricted Stock Units will be settled and mdorovided in the Restricted Stock Unit Agreermmmtor as soon as practicable follow
but in no event later than thirty (30) days aftgerih[DD], [YYYY] . However, as provided in Section 2.1 of the Refsd Stock Un
Agreement, these Restricted Stock Units may béedegtrlier upon the termination of your Board s@nand certain other events.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: The Participant acknowledges (in the form deterchibg the Company) receipt of, and represents
the Participant has read, understands, acceptagmees to the terms and conditions of the followihgs Grant Notice, the Restricted St
Unit Agreement and the Plan (including, but notitéd to, the binding arbitration provision in Secti3.7 of the Plan). Participant her
accepts the Restricted Stock Unit Award subjedlt®f its terms and conditions and further ackrenges that as of the Date of Grant,
Grant Notice, the Restricted Stock Unit Agreememdl éhe Plan set forth the entire understanding éetwParticipant and the Comp
regarding the acquisition of stock in the Compang aupersedes all prior oral and written agreempattaining to this particular Restric
Stock Unit Award.

Qualcomm Incorporated: Non-Employee Director:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: «GRANT_DATE» Date

Attachment: Non-Employee Director Restrictedc&tonit Agreement




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEME

FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this Non-Empldyeector Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Dikstin the United Kingdom
(the “Agreement”), Qualcomm Incorporated (the “C@mp’) has granted you a Restricted Stock Unit Awaitth respect to the number of
shares of the Company’s common stock (“Stock”)datid in the Grant Notice. Capitalized terms nglieitly defined in this Agreement but
defined in the Qualcomm Incorporated 2006 Long-Taroentive Plan (the “Plan”) shall have the samiiniteons as in the Plan.

The details of this Restricted Stock Unit Award asgfollows:
1. SERVICE AND VESTING.

1.1 SERVICE. As provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyeoftrovision of this Agreement, the Company reserve
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine wlyeur Service has terminated.

1.2 VESTING. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or thise&gent, this Restricted Stock Unit Award will vest
the vesting dates provided in the Grant Notice {Yfesting Dates”). Except as otherwise expresstyfarh in the Grant Notice, in the event of
the termination of your Service for any reason, thhbevoluntary or involuntary, all unvested Res&it Stock Units shall be immediately
forfeited without consideration. Unless and urté Restricted Stock Units vest on the applicablstivig Dates, you will have no right to
payment of any such Restricted Stock Units.

2. SETTLEMENT OF THE RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS.

2.1 TIMING OF PAYMENT. The “Settlement Datedf your vested Restricted Stock Units shall beah#iest to occur «
the following: (a) the Scheduled Vesting Date sfiediin the Grant Notice, if any; (b) your sepamatirom Service, to the extent such
separation constitutes a “separation from seryitguant to Section 409A of the Internal RevenuéeGuf 1986, as amended (the “Code”); (c
your death; (d) your Disability, to the extent suikability constitutes “disability” pursuant to Section 409A of the Codae;(e) a Change in
Control, to the extent such Change in Control dartss a “change in ownership or effective contriolhe corporation” with respect to the
Company pursuant to Section 409A of the Code.

2.2 FORM OF PAYMENT. Your vested Restricted Stock Units shall be paidfimle shares of Stock (in cash as to
fractional shares) on, or as soon as practicaliafimg, but in no event later than thirty (30) dagfter, the Settlement Date, except as
otherwise specified below. To assist you in saitigfffederal, state, local, or nahS. income tax or National Insurance Contributifigations
arising from your Restricted Stock Unit Award, Bempany will allow you to make a ottigne irrevocable election no later than (60) dafysr
the Date of Grant specified in the Grant Noticehatizing the Company to pay cash in lieu of Stadth respect to a percentage of the
Restricted Stock Units equal to the sum of anyiapble U.S. and non-U.S. income tax or Nationalitaace Contribution withholding rates
(such sum referred to herein as the “Tax Percefjtagee amount of cash paid in lieu of such sharegdafkSshall be equal to (i) the numbel
Restricted Stock Units (rounded up to the nearéstievRestricted Stock Unit) corresponding to the Parcentage, multiplied by, (ii) if the
Stock is listed on a national or regional secwsig&change or market system, the closing pricesbfae of Stock as quoted on such national o
regional securities exchange or market system itotisg the primary market for the Stock on thet kaading day prior to the Settlement Date,
or, if the Stock is not listed on a national orice@l securities exchange or market system, treemi a share of Stock as determined by the
Committee in good faith without regard to any riesitbn other than a restriction which, by its teymdl never lapse (the price determined
under this clause (ii) being hereinafter referi@tbr purposes of this Agreement as the “Fair Makkaue of the Stock”). Any election to
receive a portion of the Restricted Stock Unit Advpaid in cash as specified in this Section 2.3|l stot be effective with respect to any
Settlement Date that occurs within six (6) montitsrahe later of (i) the date of the election irthe Date of Grant specified in the Grant
Notice.




3. TAX WITHHOLDING. As a Non-Employee Director of the Company, you $thoeport any income you derive from the
Restricted Stock Units and pay all applicable inedaxes and National Insurance Contributions oh sutome. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event that a Participating Conypla&s any income tax, National Insurance Contrimgj payroll tax or other tax-related
withholding (“Tax-Related Items”) obligation witlespect to the income you derive from the Restri&@eak Units, you authorize the
Participating Company, at its discretion, to wittthall applicable Tax-Related Iltems legally payaiyeyou by one or a combination of the
following methods: (i) withholding from cash compation payable to you by the Company; (ii) withliotdin shares of Stock, with such
withholding obligation determined based on any igaple minimum statutory withholding rates; or)(girranging for the sale of shares of S
acquired upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Ujoitsyour behalf and at your direction pursuarthts authorization). Finally, you agree that
to pay on demand to the Participating Company amguat of Tax-Related Items that the Participatimgmpany may be required to withhold
as a result of your participation in the Plan @& playment of shares of Stock that cannot be sadisly the means previously described.

4. TAX ADVICE. You acknowledge that you may be subject to fedstate, local, and non-U.S. income tax and National
Insurance Contribution obligations arising from y®&estricted Stock Unit Award. You represent, wati@nd acknowledge that the Company
has made no warranties or representations to ythurespect to the income tax or National InsuraBeetribution consequences of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, amdaye in no manner relying on the Company or igagentatives for an assessment of suc
tax consequences. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THE TAX LAWSID REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU SHOULD
CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE TAX ANONATIONAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION TREATMENT OF
ANY RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREINSIINTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE
USED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIE

5. DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS. If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Coipatock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estalditlyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payabthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of Restricted Stock Units siiligethis Restricted Stock Unit Award on the dand record date established by the
Company. Any such Dividend Equivalents will be lve form of additional Restricted Stock Units, vii# subject to the same terms and vestin
dates as the underlying Restricted Stock Units,veifidbe paid at the same time and in the same miaas the underlying Restricted Stock
Units originally subject to this Restricted StochitJ/Award, except that any fractional shares atitable to Dividend Equivalents will be paic
cash within thirty (30) days following the datepzEfyment of the underlying Restricted Stock Unitdabsn the Fair Market Value (as specified
in Section 2.2, above) on the date of payment®iiiderlying Restricted Stock Unit. The numberdifiional Restricted Stock Units credited
as Dividend Equivalents on the dividend paymeng dali be determined by dividing (1) the product(aj the number of your Restricted Stock
Units as of the corresponding dividend record ¢ia&uding any Restricted Stock Units previouslgdited as a result of prior payments of
Dividend Equivalents) and (b) the per-share castieind paid on the dividend payment date, by (2)aér-share Fair Market Value (as
specified in Section 2.2, above) of Stock on thedéind payment date.

6. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be
issued to you upon vesting and settlement of teistfitted Stock Unit Award unless the Stock is theggistered under the Securities Act or, if
such Stock is not then so registered, the Compasybtermined that such vesting and issuance vbeuéckempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. By acceptirggRestricted Stock Unit Award, you agree not tba®y of the shares of Stock received ui
this Restricted Stock Unit Award at a time whenligple laws or Company policies prohibit a sale.

7. TRANSFERABILITY. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in set@tfdrof a Restricted Stock Unit Award, the Awardlsha
not be subject in any manner to anticipation, aliem, sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pjeggeimbrance, or garnishment by your
creditors or by your beneficiary, except (i) traardby will or by the laws of descent and distributor (ii) transfer by written designation of a
beneficiary, in a form acceptable to the Comparith such designation taking effect upon your deathrights with respect to the Restricted
Stock Unit Award shall be exercisable during yafatime only by you or your guardian or legal reggstative. Prior to actual payment of any
Restricted Stock Units, such Restricted Stock Unitksrepresent an unsecured obligation of the Canyp payable (if at all) only from the
general assets of the Company.




8. RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. This Restricted Stock Unit Award is not an employiner
service contract and nothing in this Agreement,Ghant Notice or the Plan shall be deemed to cieasay way whatsoever any obligation on
your part to continue in the service of a PartitimpCompany, or of a Participating Company to aard your Service with the Participati
Company. In addition, nothing in your RestrictedcktUnit Award shall obligate the Company, its &toglders, Board, Officers or Employees
to continue any relationship which you might hageadirector or Consultant for the Company.

9. RESTRICTIVE LEGEND. Stock issued pursuant to the vesting and settleofahe Restricted Stock Units may be subject to
such restrictions upon the sale, pledge or otlaaster of the Stock as the Company and the Compaayinsel deem necessary under
applicable law or pursuant to this Agreement.

10. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS, AND ACKNOWL EDGMENTS. You hereby agree that in the
event the Company and the Company’s counsel depec@ssary or advisable in the exercise of theardtion, the transfer or issuance of the
shares of Stock issued pursuant to the Restridtazk &nits may be conditioned upon you making éemepresentations, warranties, and
acknowledgments relating to compliance with apbliesecurities laws.

11. VOTING AND OTHER RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatllhave any voting rights or any other
rights and privileges of a shareholder of the Camypaless and until shares of Stock are issued ppgment of the Restricted Stock Units.

12. CODE SECTION 409A.1t is the intent that the payment of Restrictedc&tonits as set forth in this Agreement shall dyali
for exemption from the requirements of Section 4@8Ahe Code, and any ambiguities herein will kerpreted to so comply. The Company
reserves the right, to the extent the Company demmassary or advisable in its sole discretionitaterally amend or modify this Agreement
as may be necessary to ensure that all payment&lpdofor under this Agreement are made in a matirarqualifies for exemption from
Section 409A of the Code; provided, however, that€ompany makes no representation that the pagroéRestricted Stock Units provided
for under this Agreement will be exempt from Sec#®9A of the Code and makes no undertaking tolymlecSection 409A of the Code from
applying to the payments of Restricted Stock Upiitsvided for under this Agreement.

13. NOTICES. Any naotices provided for in this Agreement, the @rislotice or the Plan shall be given in writing astdll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in theecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fd)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thathisess you provided to the Company.

14. DATA PRIVACY . You hereby explicitly and unambiguously consentthe collection, use and transfer, in electronic or
other form, of your personal data as described lrist Agreement by and among, as necessary and apple;, the Participating Companies,
for the exclusive purpose of implementing, admimghg and managing your participation in the Plat

You understand that the Company may hold certairrqmnal information about you, including, but nottiited to, your name, hom
address and telephone number, date of birth, soseturity or insurance number or other identificath number, salary, nationality, and ar
shares of stock or directorships held in the Comgaand details of the Restricted Stock Units or asther entitlement to shares of Stoc
canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstantiryour favor, for the purpose of implementingdeinistering and managing the Plan
(“Data”).

Participants residing outside the U.S, should und&nd the following: Data will be transferred to HRADE Financial
(“E*TRADE"), or such other stock plan service progler as may be selected by Company in the futureictviis assisting Company with the
implementation, administration and management o&tfPlan. You understand that the recipients of thatA may be located in the United
States or elsewhere, and that the recipi¢ country (e.g., the United States) may have different data priydaws and protections than your
country. You understand that you may request a listh the names and addresses of any potentialpégits of the Data by contacting the
Stock Administration department. You authorize t®mpany, E¥XTRADE and any other possible recipients that may asdigt Company
(presently or in the future) with implementing, admistering and managing the Plan to receive, posseasse, retain and




transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, fahe sole purpose of implementing, administeringdamanaging your participation in the
Plan. You understand that Data will be held only bmg as is necessary to implement, administer am@nage your participation in th
Plan. You understand that you may, at any time,wiBata, request additional information about theosage and processing of Data, requi
any necessary amendments to Data or refuse or witladthe consents herein, in any case without cdist,contacting in writing the Stock
Administration department. You understand, howevtrat refusing or withdrawing your consent may affeyour ability to participate in the
Plan.

For more information on the consequences of yourfusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, you und&and that you may
contact the Stock Administration department at QUADMM Incorporated, 5775 Morehouse Drive, San DieddA 92121.

15. NATURE OF GRANT. In accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yokreowledge and agree that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by tl@@any, it is discretionary in nature and it mayrmdified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless wikerprovided in the Plan, the Agreement or thenGNbtice;

(b) the award of Restricted Stock Units is védum and occasional and does not create any condldaar other right to
receive future awards of Restricted Stock Unitdyemefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, eveRéstricted Stock Units or other Awards h
been awarded repeatedly in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Awandigny, will be at the sole discretion of the Camny;
(d) your participation in the Plan is voluntary;
(e) the future value of the underlying shareStoick is unknown and cannot be predicted withader;

) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damaed arise from forfeiture of the Restricted Stadkits resulting
from termination of your Service (for any reasoratgoever), and in consideration of the grant ofRbsetricted Stock Units to which you are
otherwise not entitled, you irrevocably agree ndwanstitute any claim against the Company, waiver ability, if any, to bring any such
claim, and release the Company from any such cl&imotwithstanding the foregoing, any such clamallowed by a court of competent
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plamuyshall be deemed irrevocably to have agreedonpttsue such claim and agree to execute
and all documents necessary to request dismissdtlmirawal of such claims;

(g) the Company is not providing any legal oaficial advice, nor is the Company making any renendations regarding
your participation in the Plan or your acquisitimnsale of the underlying shares of Stock;

(h) you are hereby advised to consult with youn personal legal and financial advisors regargimgr participation in the
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

16. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofSfage of California, U.S.A., as if the Agreement
were between California residents and as if it vearered into and to be performed entirely withie State of California.

17. IMPOSITION OF OTHER REQUIREMENTS. The Company reserves the right to impose otherir@gents on your
participation in the Plan, on the Restricted Stdcits, and on any shares of Stock acquired undePtan, to the extent the Company
determines it is necessary or advisable in ordeotoply with local law or facilitate the adminigian of the Plan, and to require you to sign
any additional agreements or undertakings that Ineayecessary to accomplish the foregoing.

18. ARBITRATION. Any dispute or claim concerning any Restricted Btdaits granted (or not granted) pursuant to tlsRind
any other disputes or claims relating to or arising of the Plan shall be fully, finally and exdledy resolved by binding arbitration conducted
by the American Arbitration Association pursuantie commercial arbitration rules in San Diego,ifGalia. By accepting the Restricted St
Unit Award, you and the Company waive your respectights to have any such disputes or claims tried judge or jury.




19. AMENDMENT. Your Restricted Stock Unit Award may be amendegrasided in the Plan at any time, provided no such
amendment may adversely affect the Restricted StmikAward without your consent unless such amesints necessary to comply with ¢
applicable law or government regulation, or is eomplated in Section 12 hereof. No amendment ottiaddio this Agreement shall be effect
unless in writing or in such electronic form as nii@ydesignated by the Company.

20. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is subject to tAigreement, the Grant Notice and all
the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which hereby made a part of this Agreement, angribdr subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may from to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®lan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the Giwiice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

21. SEVERABILITY . If any provision of this Agreement is held tolgenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjusatiter that
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intefthe parties to the extent possible. In any gv@hother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensitdes.

22. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY . The Plan documents, which may include but do noessarily include:
the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Agreement, andrapgrts of the Company provided generally to tben@any’s shareholders, may be
delivered to you electronically. In addition, ifrpgtted by the Company, you may deliver electrolyctne Grant Notice to the Company or to
such third party involved in administering the Pénthe Company may designate from time to timeh®weans of electronic delivery may
include but do not necessarily include the delivafrg link to a Company intranet or the internét sif a third party involved in administering
the Plan, the delivery of the document via eledtromail (“e-mail”) or such other means of electodilivery specified by the Company.




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT N OTICE

FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS IN HONG KONG

Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termentve Plan (the “Planhereby grants to the Participant nai
below the number of Restricted Stock Units sethftstlow, each of which is a bookkeeping entry repnéing the equivalent in value of one
share of the Comparg’common stock. The Restricted Stock Unit Awardubject to all of the terms and conditions as eghfherein and
the Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit égment for Non-Employee Directors in Hong Kong (thgreement”) attached heret
and the Plan which are incorporated herein in thefirety. Capitalized terms not otherwise defirethis Grant Notice or the Agreement s
have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

Participant: «First Name» «Last_ Name» Grant NNumber»
Emp #: «ID» Shares Subject to Restricted Stock Unit: «Shareent&d
Date of Grant: «<RSU_Date»

Vesting Date

This Restricted Stock Unit Award vests on the eatlto occur of the following events provided y@arvice is continuous from the Date
Grant specified above through the applicable dafethe oneyear anniversary of the Date of Grant, (2) the ddthe next annual meeting
stockholders that occurs after the Date of Gra)ty¢ur death, (4) your Disability, or (5) a Changeontrol.

Settlement Datt

The Restricted Stock Units will be settled and pasdprovided in the Agreement on, or as soon adigasle following, but in no event la
than thirty (30) days after, vesting.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: The Participant acknowledges (in the form deterchibg the Company) receipt of, and represents
the Participant has read, understands, acceptagrreés to the terms and conditions of the followthgs Grant Notice, the Agreement and
Plan (including, but not limited to, the bindingodration provision in Section 3.7 of the Plan)rtR#pant hereby accepts the Restricted S
Unit Award subject to all of its terms and conditsoand further acknowledges that as of the Da€rafit, this Grant Notice, the Agreement
the Plan set forth the entire understanding betwRariicipant and the Company regarding the acduisiof stock in the Company a
supersedes all prior oral and written agreementaipég to this particular Restricted Stock Univard.

Qualcomm Incorporated: Non-Employee Director:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: «<RSU_Date» Date

Attachment: Non-Employee Director Restrictedc&tonit Agreement




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEME NT
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS IN HONG KONG

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this Non-Empldyeector Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Dikstin Hong Kong (the
“Agreement”), Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Companlyds granted you a Restricted Stock Unit Award wagpect to the number of share
the Company’s common stock (“Stock”) indicatedhe Grant Notice. Capitalized terms not explicitefided in this Agreement but defined in
the Qualcomm Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incerfilam (the “Plan”) shall have the same definitioasrathe Plan.

The details of this Restricted Stock Unit Award asgfollows:
1. SERVICE AND VESTING.

1.3 SERVICE. As provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyoftrovision of this Agreement, the Company reserve
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine wlyeur Service has terminated.

1.4 VESTING. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or thise&gent, this Restricted Stock Unit Award will vest
the applicable vesting date provided in the Graotidé (the “Vesting Date”). Except as otherwiseresgly set forth in the Grant Notice, in the
event of the termination of your Service for angsen, whether voluntary or involuntary, all unvedRestricted Stock Units shall be
immediately forfeited without consideration. Unles®l until the Restricted Stock Units vest on thgliaable Vesting Date, you will have no
right to payment of any such Restricted Stock Units

2. SETTLEMENT OF THE RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS.

2.3 TIMING OF PAYMENT. The “Settlement Date” of your vested Restricteccktdnits shall be as soon as practicabls
following, but in no event later than thirty (30y& after, the Vesting Date.

2.4 FORM OF PAYMENT. Your vested Restricted Stock Units shall be paid/fimwle shares of Stock (in cash as to
fractional shares), except as otherwise specifedovin To assist you in satisfying federal, stateal, or nond.S. income tax or social insurai
contribution obligations arising from your ResteidtStock Unit Award, the Company will allow yourt@ke a one-time irrevocable election nc
later than (60) days after the Date of Grant spetih the Grant Notice, authorizing the Companpay cash in lieu of Stock with respect to a
percentage of the Restricted Stock Units equdiecstim of any applicable U.S. and non-U.S. incaret social insurance contribution
withholding rates (such sum referred to hereirhasTax Percentage”The amount of cash paid in lieu of such shares@tiSshall be equal
(i) the number of Restricted Stock Units (roundedaithe nearest whole Restricted Stock Unit) gpoading to the Tax Percentage, multig
by, (ii) if the Stock is listed on a national ogienal securities exchange or market system, th&rg price of a share of Stock as quoted on
such national or regional securities exchange oketaystem constituting the primary market for &teck on the last trading day prior to the
Settlement Date, or, if the Stock is not listedaamational or regional securities exchange or may&em, the price of a share of Stock as
determined by the Committee in good faith withagard to any restriction other than a restrictidrich, by its terms, will never lapse (the
price determined under this clause (ii) being hmexftér referred to for purposes of this Agreemartha “Fair Market Value of the StockAny
election to receive a portion of the Restrictedc®tonit Award paid in cash as specified in thist®er2.2, shall not be effective with respec
any Settlement Date that occurs within six (6) rhergfter the later of (i) the date of the electiorfii) the Date of Grant specified in the Grant
Notice.

3. TAX WITHHOLDING. As a Non-Employee Director of the Company, you $thoeport any income you derive from the
Restricted Stock Units and pay all applicable inedaxes and social insurance contributions on same. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the event that a Participating Company has anyniectax, social insurance contributions, payrolldaxther tax-related withholding (“Tax-
Related Items”pbligation with respect to the income you derivairthe Restricted Stock Units, you authorize theiépating Company, at i
discretion, to withhold all applicable Tax-Relatézins legally payable by you by one or a combimatibthe following methods: (i)
withholding from cash




compensation payable to you by the Company; (iinkdlding in shares of Stock, with such withholdwotgigation determined based on any
applicable minimum statutory withholding rates{iay arranging for the sale of shares of Stockuwdoed upon vesting of the Restricted Stock
Units (on your behalf and at your direction purduarthis authorization). Finally, you agree thapay on demand to the Participating
Company any amount of Tax-Related Items that thiédjzating Company may be required to withholdaagsult of your participation in the
Plan or the payment of shares of Stock that cabashtisfied by the means previously described.

4. TAX ADVICE. You acknowledge that you may be subject to fedstatg, local, and non-U.S. income tax and sosflrance
contribution obligations arising from your ResteidtStock Unit Award. You represent, warrant anchaekedge that the Company has made
no warranties or representations to you with restgethe income tax or social insurance contributtonsequences of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and you are in anmer relying on the Company or its representafimean assessment of such tax
consequences. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THE TAX LAWS ANREGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU SHOULD
CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE TAX ANDSOCIAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION TREATMENT OF
ANY RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREINSIINTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE
USED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIE

5. DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS. If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Coyipa8tock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estaldislyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payabthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of Restricted Stock Units siiligethis Restricted Stock Unit Award on the dandl record date established by the
Company. Any such Dividend Equivalents will be e form of additional Restricted Stock Units, vii# subject to the same terms and Ve:
Date as the underlying Restricted Stock Units,witicbe paid at the same time and in the same nraaséhe underlying Restricted Stock U
originally subject to this Restricted Stock Unit Axd, except that any fractional shares attributebl@ividend Equivalents will be paid in cash
within thirty (30) days following the date of paymieof the underlying Restricted Stock Unit basedtenFair Market Value (as specified in
Section 2.2, above) on the date of payment of tiedying Restricted Stock Unit. The number of &iddial Restricted Stock Units credited as
Dividend Equivalents on the dividend payment datehe determined by dividing (1) the product of {ae number of your Restricted Stock
Units as of the corresponding dividend record ia&uding any Restricted Stock Units previouslgdited as a result of prior payments of
Dividend Equivalents) and (b) the per-share casidéeind paid on the dividend payment date, by (8)abr-share Fair Market Value (as
specified in Section 2.2, above) of Stock on thedéind payment date.

6. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be
issued to you upon vesting and settlement of teistfitted Stock Unit Award unless the Stock is theggistered under the Securities Act or, if
such Stock is not then so registered, the Compasydbtermined that such vesting and issuance vbeudkempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. By acceptirggRestricted Stock Unit Award, you agree not tbasy of the shares of Stock received ut
this Restricted Stock Unit Award at a time whenligple laws or Company policies prohibit a sale.

7. TRANSFERABILITY. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in setttgrof a Restricted Stock Unit Award, the Awardlsha
not be subject in any manner to anticipation, aliem, sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pledgeimbrance, or garnishment by your
creditors or by your beneficiary, except (i) trasrdby will or by the laws of descent and distribuator (ii) transfer by written designation of a
beneficiary, in a form acceptable to the Comparith such designation taking effect upon your deathrights with respect to the Restricted
Stock Unit Award shall be exercisable during yafatime only by you or your guardian or legal reggstative. Prior to actual payment of any
Restricted Stock Units, such Restricted Stock Unitsrepresent an unsecured obligation of the Camyp payable (if at all) only from the
general assets of the Company.

8. RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. This Restricted Stock Unit Award is not an employiner
service contract and nothing in this Agreement,Ghant Notice or the Plan shall be deemed to ciesaay way whatsoever any obligation on
your part to continue in the Service of a PartitippCompany, or of a Participating Company to oarg your Service with the Participati
Company. In addition, nothing in your Restrictedc¢ktUnit Award shall obligate the Company, its &toaders, Board, Officers or Employees
to continue any relationship which you might haseadirector or Consultant with the Company.




9. RESTRICTIVE LEGEND. Stock issued pursuant to the vesting and settleofahe Restricted Stock Units may be subject to
such restrictions upon the sale, pledge or otlamsfer of the Stock as the Company and the Compaayinsel deem necessary under
applicable law or pursuant to this Agreement.

10. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS, AND ACKNOWL EDGMENTS. You hereby agree that in the
event the Company and the Company’s counsel depec@ssary or advisable in the exercise of theordtion, the transfer or issuance of the
shares of Stock issued pursuant to the Restridteak ®Jnits may be conditioned upon you making éentepresentations, warranties, and
acknowledgments relating to compliance with aplieasecurities laws.

11. VOTING AND OTHER RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatlhave any voting rights or any other
rights and privileges of a shareholder of the Camypnless and until shares of Stock are issued ppgment of the Restricted Stock Units.

12. CODE SECTION 409A.1t is the intent that the payment of Restrictedcgtdnits as set forth in this Agreement shall dyali
for exemption from or comply with the requiremeatsSection 409A of the Code, and any ambiguitieginewill be interpreted to so
comply. The Company reserves the right, to thentsttee Company deems necessary or advisable solgsdiscretion, to unilaterally amend
or modify this Agreement as may be necessary tarerthat all payments provided for under this Agreet are made in a manner that
qualifies for exemption from or complies with Secti409A of the Code; provided, however, that thenBany makes no representation that
the payments of Restricted Stock Units providedufmter this Agreement will be exempt from or skalinply with Section 409A of the
Code and makes no undertaking to preclude Sec@i®A 4f the Code from applying to the payments oftReted Stock Units provided for
under this Agreement. The Company will have noiliigtto you or any other party if the Restrictetb&k Unit Award, the delivery of shares
of Stock upon payment of the Restricted Stock Bmmard or other payment hereunder that is intenddsetexempt from, or compliant with,
Code Section 409A, is not so exempt or compliarffboany action taken by the Company with respleetdto.

13. NOTICES. Any notices provided for in this Agreement, the @risotice or the Plan shall be given in writing asidhll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in thgecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fB)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thethisess you provided to the Company.

14. DATA PRIVACY . You hereby explicitly and unambiguously consenttke collection, use and transfer, in electronic or
other form, of your personal data as described lrist Agreement by and among, as necessary and apple;, the Participating Companies,
for the exclusive purpose of implementing, admimghg and managing your participation in the Pla

You understand that the Company may hold certairrgmal information about you, including, but notinited to, your name, hom
address and telephone number, date of birth, soseturity or insurance number or other identificath number, salary, nationality, and ar
shares of stock or directorships held in the Compaand details of the Restricted Stock Units or asther entitiement to shares of Stoc
canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstaniryour favor, for the purpose of implementingdeinistering and managing the Plan
(“Data”).

Participants residing outside the U.S, should undtand the following: Data will be transferred to HRADE Financial
(“E*TRADE"), or such other stock plan service progier as may be selected by the Company in the fytwigich is assisting the Company
with the implementation, administration and managemt of the Plan. You understand that the recipiemthe Data may be located in the
United States or elsewhere, and that the recipiéotauntry (e.g., the United States) may have diffat data privacy laws and protections
than your country. You understand that you may rezgi a list with the names and addresses of any midérecipients of the Data by
contacting the Stock Administration department. Yauthorize the Company, E*XTRADE, and any other piids recipients that may assist
the Company (presently or in the future) with impleenting, administering and managing the Plan to egge, possess, use, retain and
transfer the Data, in electronic or other form, fahe sole purpose of implementing, administeringcdamanaging your participation in the
Plan. You understand that Data will be held only bmg as is necessary to implement, administer amanage your participation in th
Plan. You understand that you may, at any time,wiBata,




request additional information about the storage éprocessing of Data, require any necessary amenaiisi¢o Data or refuse or withdraw
the consents herein, in any case without cost, byptacting in writing the Stock Administration depament. You understand, however, that
refusing or withdrawing your consent may affect yoability to participate in the Plan.

For more information on the consequences of yourfusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, you und&and that you may
contact the Stock Administration department at QUADMM Incorporated, 5775 Morehouse Drive, San DieddA 92121.

15. NATURE OF GRANT. In accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yokreowledge and agree that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by tl@@any, it is discretionary in nature and it mayrmdified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless wferprovided in the Plan, the Agreement or thenGNbtice;

(b) the award of Restricted Stock Units is vééuym and occasional and does not create any condlaar other right to
receive future awards of Restricted Stock Unitdemefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, eveReéstricted Stock Units or other Awards h
been awarded repeatedly in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Awandigny, will be at the sole discretion of the Camny;
(d) your participation in the Plan is voluntary;
(e) the future value of the underlying shareStoick is unknown and cannot be predicted withader;

) no claim or entitlement to compensation or damaed arise from forfeiture of the Restricted Stadkits resulting
from termination of your Service (for any reasoratgoever), and in consideration of the grant ofRbsetricted Stock Units to which you are
otherwise not entitled, you irrevocably agree ndwanstitute any claim against the Company, waiver ability, if any, to bring any such
claim, and release the Company from any such cl&imotwithstanding the foregoing, any such clamallowed by a court of competent
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plamuyshall be deemed irrevocably to have agreedonptitsue such claim and agree to execute
and all documents necessary to request dismissdtlmirawal of such claims;

(g) the Restricted Stock Unit Award and the liigmevidenced by this Agreement do not createemitlement, not
otherwise specifically provided for in the Planppovided by the Company in its discretion, to htheRestricted Stock Unit Award or any
such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, anotimpany, nor to be exchanged, cashed out orisubstfor, in connection with any
corporate transaction affecting the Company’s Stock

(h) the Company is not providing any legal oaficial advice, nor is the Company making any renendations regarding
your participation in the Plan or your acquisitimnsale of the underlying shares of Stock;

(i) you are hereby advised to consult with yown personal legal and financial advisors regargimgy participation in the
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

16. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofSfage of California, U.S.A., as if the Agreement
were between California residents and as if it vearered into and to be performed entirely withie State of California.

17. SECURITIES LAW NOTICE. Warning: The Restricted Stock Units and any shafétock to be issued pursuant to the
Restricted Stock Unit Award do not constitute aligudffering of securities under Hong Kong law aan@ available only to Employee
Directors and Consultants of the Company and itgiBipating Companies. The Plan, the Agreement, atingr incidental communicatic
materials have not been prepared in accordance aiiith are not intended to constitute a ‘prospecfasa public offering of securities under
the applicable companies and securities legislatibhiong Kong, and the documents have not beeewed by any regulatory authority in
Hong Kong. The Agreement and the incidental comeation materials are intended only for the persomsé of each Participant and not 1
distribution to any other person. If you have amylbt about any of the contents of the AgreemetitePlan, you should obtain independent
professional advice




18. RESTRICTION ON SALE OF SHARES OF STOCK. In the event your Restricted Stock Units vest drates of Stock are
issued to you within six months of the Date of Grgou agree that you will not dispose of the Stpdkr to the six-month anniversary of the
Date of Grant.

19. IMPOSITION OF OTHER REQUIREMENTS. The Company reserves the right to impose otherirements on your
participation in the Plan, on the Restricted Stdcikts, and on any shares of Stock acquired undePtan, to the extent the Company
determines it is necessary or advisable in ordeotoply with local law or facilitate the adminigtitn of the Plan, and to require you to sign
any additional agreements or undertakings that Inearyecessary to accomplish the foregoing.

20. ARBITRATION. Any dispute or claim concerning any Restricted Btdaits granted (or not granted) pursuant to ttaRind
any other disputes or claims relating to or arising of the Plan shall be fully, finally and exdledy resolved by binding arbitration conducted
by the American Arbitration Association pursuantite commercial arbitration rules in San Diego,iféatia. By accepting the Restricted St
Unit Award, you and the Company waive your respectights to have any such disputes or claims tried judge or jury.

21. AMENDMENT. Your Restricted Stock Unit Award may be amendegdrasided in the Plan at any time, provided no such
amendment may adversely affect the Restricted StmikAward without your consent unless such amesins necessary to comply with ¢
applicable law or government regulation, or is eomplated in Section 12 hereof. No amendment ottiaddio this Agreement shall be effect
unless in writing or in such electronic form as nii@ydesignated by the Company.

22. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. Your Restricted Stock Unit Award is subject to tAigreement, the Grant Notice and all
the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which hereby made a part of this Agreement, anaribdr subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may froma to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®lan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the GRatice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

23. SEVERABILITY . If any provision of this Agreement is held tolgenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjustiter that
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the inteinthe parties to the extent possible. In any gwahother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensinbs.

24. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY . The Plan documents, which may include but do noessarily include:
the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Agreement, andrapgrts of the Company provided generally to tbenfany’s stockholders, may be
delivered to you electronically. In addition, ifrp@tted by the Company, you may deliver electrolycaccept and acknowledge the Grant
Notice and/or this Agreement and/or deliver suctutieents to the Company or to such third party imedlin administering the Plan as-
Company may designate from time to time. Such meérkctronic acknowledgement, acceptance an@lredy may include but do not
necessarily include use of a link to a Companyaimét or the internet site of a third party involweddministering the Plan, the delivery of the
document via electronic mail (*e-mail”) or such etimeans specified by the Company. You hereby ecditseeceive the above-listed
documents by electronic delivery and, if permitbgdhe Company, agree to participate in the Plaouih an on-line or electronic system
established and maintained by the Company or d garty designated by the Company, as set forthimer

25.  WAIVER. The waiver by the Company with respect to yourafoy other Participant’s) compliance of any provisis this
Agreement shall not operate or be construed aswemaf any other provision of this Agreement, daay subsequent breach of such party
provision of this Agreement.

26. REPAYMENT/FORFEITURE. Any benefits you may receive hereunder shall bgestilto repayment or forfeiture as may be
required to comply with (a) any applicable listisigndards of a national securities exchange adaptctordance with Section 954 of the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiadiict (regarding recovery of erroneously awardaemhgensation) and any
implementing rules and regulations of the U.S. @ites and Exchange Commission adopted thereufiolesjmilar rules under the laws of any
other jurisdiction and (c) any policies




adopted by the Company to implement such requirésnati to the extent determined by the Compariysidiscretion to be applicable to you.

By:



EXHIBIT 10.118

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT GRANT NOTICE

Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termdntive Plan (the “Plan"hereby grants you the number
Restricted Stock Units set forth below, each of alhis a bookkeeping entry representing the equitale value of one (1) share of
Companys common stock. This Restricted Stock Unit Awardubject to all of the terms and conditions asfaeh herein and the Executi
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (attached hereatd)the Plart which are incorporated herein in their entiretypi€aized terms not otherwi
defined in this Grant Notice or the Executive Rettd Stock Unit Agreement shall have the meang&idarth in the Plan.

Participant: «<kEmployee» Grant No.: «<Number»
Emp #: «ID» Number of Restricted Stock UnilkShares_Granted
Date of Grant: «Grant_Date»

Performance Period: «Date Range»

Performance Measure: Adjusted GAAP Operating Inca@ined as the Comparsyoperating income, determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or acéogrdtandards as may be required by the Finandabénting Standards Board as of the
hereof (“GAAP”), but determined excluding (a) rasufrom operations of the Qualcomm Strategic Itiitea (“QSI”) segment; (b) all share-
based compensation other than amounts relatedaeishsed awards granted under a bonus program thatresait in the issuance
unrestricted shares of the Company’s common st(mkthe following items resulting from acquisitiorscquired inprocess research
development expenses, recognition of the siemf inventories to fair value and amortizationceftain intangible assets; and (d) losse
expenses attributable to discontinued operatidast ghut-downs, or other restructuring.

Performance Target: «3Amount» in Adjusted GAAP @fieg Income for the Performance Period

Vesting Date

Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or thechtiee Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, the RetdcStock Units vest if and to the ex
that (A) the Performance Measure equals or excHeelPerformance Target for the Performance Pedetermined pursuant to writl
certification of the Committee as specified in S@ctl.2 of the Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreent, and (B) your Service is continu
from the Date of Grant through the applicable \fesDate:

Shares Vested Vesting Date

«Shares» «1st Vesting Date»
«Shares» «2nd Vesting Date»
«Shares» «3rd Vesting Date»

Payment of Vested Restricted Stock Ur

Any Restricted Stock Units that vest will be paaldwing the Vesting Date or following such earlidate as provided in the Execu
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: By accepting this Restricted Stock Unit Award (imetform determined by the Company)
acknowledge receipt of and represent that you nead, understand, accept and agree to the termsaatitions of the following: this Gre
Notice, the Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreatrend the Plan (including, but not limited to, thiading arbitration provision in Secti
3.7 of the Plan). In addition, by accepting thisteted Stock Unit Award you agree to all of iksrhs and conditions and further acknowle
that as of the Date of Grant, this Grant Notice, Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreement andRlaa set forth the entire understant
between you and the Company regarding the acauigiti stock in the Company and supersede all jpriarand written agreements pertair
to this particular Restricted Stock Unit Award.




Qualcomm Incorporated:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: «Grant_Date» Date

Attachment: Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreate

1A copy of the Plan can be obtained from the Stodknistration website, located on the Company’snimal webpage, or you may request a
hard copy from the Stock Administration Department.




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this ExecutivariRésd Stock Unit Agreement including any counsecific terms set forth in the
Addendum to the Agreement (together, the Agreerardtthe Addendum are referred to herein as thgréement’), Qualcomm Incorporated
(the “Company”) has granted you a number of Restricted StockdJnmith respect to the number of shares of the Gmyls common stock (“
Stock”) specified in the Grant Notic&.ou must accept or reject this Restricted Stock {&vard in the manner specified in the Grant Noti
Capitalized terms not explicitly defined in this rdg@ment but defined in the Qualcomm IncorporatéebA®ng-Term Incentive Plan (the “
Plan ") shall have the same definitions as in the Plan.

The details of this Restricted Stock Unit Award asefollows:
1. SERVICE AND VESTING.

1.1 SERVICE. As provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyeoftrovision of this Agreement, the Company reserve
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine wlyeur Service has terminated, including in thené\a# any leave of absence or part-time
Service and to suspend crediting of Service antingesf your Restricted Stock Units in the eventaf/ leave of absence or part-time Service
Subject to the foregoing, in the event of termimatf your Service (whether or not in breach ofldabor laws or later found invalid), the date
of termination of your rights (if any) with respedotthe Restricted Stock Units as set forth inRken and this Agreement will be measured f
the date that you are no longer actively employetiwill not be extended by any notice period maedatnder local law €.g., active
employment would not include a period of “gardeswie’ or similar period pursuant to local law).

1.2 VESTING. Except to the extent that your Restricted StockdJmay vest earlier as provided in Section 1.{gjugh
(c), below, your Restricted Stock Units will vesand to the extent that (A) the Performance Measgguals or exceeds the Performance Ti
for the Performance Period (as each capitalized iedefined in the Grant Notice), if applicabladgB) you are in Service on the applicable
Vesting Date(s) specified in the Grant Notice. Alggermination that the Performance Target is aeldeshall be made by written certification
of the Committee no later than the November 304 tiext follows the end of the Performance Pefirdess and until your Restricted Stock
Units vest, you will have no right to payment ofauch Restricted Stock Units. In the event oftdrenination of your Service for any reason,
whether voluntary or involuntary, all unvested Restd Stock Units shall be immediately forfeitedh@ut consideration, except as follows:

(&) DEATH. If your Service terminates because of your dehthyesting of your Restricted Stock Units shall be
accelerated in full effective upon your death.

(b) DISABILITY. If your Service terminates because of your Disshithe vesting of your Restricted Stock Ui
shall be accelerated in full effective as of theedan which your Service terminates due to youabigy.

(c) TERMINATION AFTER CHANGE IN CONTROL. If your Service terminates as a result of Termonati
After Change in Control (as defined below), thes wlesting of your Restricted Stock Units shall beeterated in full effective as of the date
which your Service terminates. For this purposBefmination After Change in Controf shall mean either of the following events occuogri
within twenty-four (24) months after a Change im@ol (as defined in the Plan):

(i) termination by the Participating Company Gpof your Service with the Participating Company
Group for any reason other than for Cause (as efielow); or

(i) your resignation for Good Reason (as defibelow) from all capacities in which you are then
rendering Service to the Participating Company @neithin a reasonable period of time following #anent constituting Good Reason.

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrarermination After Change in Control shall notlude any termination of your Servi
with the Participating Company Group which (A) @ Cause; (B) is a result of your death or DisahiliC) is a result of your voluntary
termination of Service other than for Good Reaswor{D) occurs prior to the effectiveness of a CreimgControl.




For purposes of this Section 1.2:

“ Cause” shall mean any of the following: (i) your theftishonesty, or falsification of any Participating
Company documents or records; (ii) your improper aisdisclosure of a Participating Company’s caatfitihl or proprietary information; (iii)
any action by you which has a detrimental effecadparticipating Company’s reputation or businés¥your failure or inability to perform
any reasonable assigned duties after written néace a Participating Company of, and a reasonappgortunity to cure, such failure or
inability; (v) any material breach by you of any@oyment or service agreement between you andte&iating Company, which breach is
not cured pursuant to the terms of such agreerf@hyjour conviction (including any plea of guiltr nolo contenderg of any criminal act
which impairs your ability to perform your dutiedtlva Participating Company; or (vii) violation afmaterial Company policy.

“ Good Reasori shall mean any one or more of the following:

0] without your express written consent, the assignt to you of any duties, or any limitation of
your responsibilities, substantially inconsisteithwour positions, duties, responsibilities anatss with the Participating Company Grc
immediately prior to the date of the Change in @aint

(i) without your express written consent, the oaltion of the principal place of your employment
or service to a location that is more than fift@)Biles from your principal place of employmentservice immediately prior to the date of the
Change in Control, or the imposition of travel regments substantially more demanding of you thardravel requirements existing
immediately prior to the date of the Change in @aint

(iii) any failure by the Participating Company Gpoto pay, or any material reduction by the
Participating Company Group of, (A) your base saiareffect immediately prior to the date of theaBge in Control (unless reductions
comparable in amount and duration are concurrendlgie for all other employees of the Participatimgn@any Group with responsibilities,
organizational level and title comparable to youos)(B) your bonus compensation, if any, in effiecinediately prior to the date of the Change
in Control (subject to applicable performance regmients with respect to the actual amount of baougpensation earned by you);

(iv) any failure by the Participating Company GrdogA) continue to provide you with the
opportunity to participate, on terms no less fabtgahan those in effect for the benefit of any &ype or service provider group which
customarily includes a person holding the employineeiservice provider position or a comparable fasiwith the Participating Company
Group then held by you, in any benefit or compédosatlans and programs, including, but not limitedthe Participating Company Group’s
life, disability, health, dental, medical, savingsofit sharing, stock purchase and retirementglérany, in which you were participating
immediately prior to the date of the Change in @alnor their equivalent, or (B) provide you with ather fringe benefits (or their equivalent)
from time to time in effect for the benefit of aagnployee group which customarily includes a petsading the employment or service
provider position or a comparable position with Beaticipating Company Group then held by you;

(v) any breach by the Participating Company Grouany material agreement between you and a
Participating Company concerning your employment; o

(vi) any failure by the Company to obtain the asgtiom of any material agreement between you
and the Company concerning your employment by eessor or assign of the Company.

2. PAYMENT OF YOUR RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS.

2.1 TIMING OF PAYMENT. Subject to the other terms of the Plan and thissAgrent, any Restricted Stock Units that
vest and become nonforfeitable in accordance wetttiGn 1.2 will be paid to you as follows: (a) fiirst installment (or, if the Grant Notice
specifies a single Vesting Date, all of the RetdcStock Units) shall be paid to you no later tB@rdays after the later of (i) the earliest
Vesting Date specified in the Grant Notice or tfii¢ date on which the Committee certifies in wgtthat the Performance Measure equals or
exceeds the Performance Target for the Perform@aded; and (b) any subsequent installments skeghidid to you no later than 30 days after
the date on which the Restricted Stock Units vest.

2.2 FORM OF PAYMENT. Your vested Restricted Stock Units shall be paidfile shares of Stock except as providec
in Section 5 below regarding fractional shareshaitable to Dividend Equivalents.




3. TAX WITHHOLDING. Regardless of any action the Company or the Ppaticig Company that employs you (the
“Employer”) takes with respect to any or all incotag, social insurance, payroll tax, payment oroaat or other tax-related items related to
your participation in the Plan and legally applieato you “Tax-Related Iltems”), you acknowledge that thernitte liability for all TaxRelate«
Items is and remains your responsibility and mageer the amount actually withheld by the ComparheiEmployer. You further
acknowledge that the Company and/or the Employ)eméke no representations or undertakings regattimgreatment of any Tax-Related
Items in connection with any aspect of the Regtd&tock Unit Award, including, but not limited tbe grant, vesting or payment of the
Restricted Stock Unit Award, the issuance of shaf&tock upon payment of the Restricted Stock Bmitird, the subsequent sale of shares ¢
Stock acquired pursuant to such issuance and tegtef any dividends and/or any Dividend Equiwéée and (2) do not commit to and are
under no obligation to structure the terms of trengor any aspect of the Restricted Stock Unit Adnta reduce or eliminate your liability for
Tax-Related Items or achieve any particular taxlteBurther, if you have become subject to tamiore than one jurisdiction between the Dat
of Grant and the date of any relevant taxable ewent acknowledge that the Company and/or the Eyepl(or former employer, as applicak
may be required to withhold or account for Tax-Reddtems in more than one jurisdiction.

Prior to any relevant tax withholding event, youl way or make adequate arrangements satisfaaiahyet Company and/or the
Employer to satisfy all Tax-Related Items. In ttégard, you authorize the Company and/or the Engplay their respective agents, at their
discretion, to satisfy the obligations with regtwdill Tax-Related Iltems by one or a combinatiotheffollowing methods, as selected by the
Company in its sole discretion: (a) withholdingrfryour wages or any other cash compensation payaieu by the Company and/or the
Employer; (b) withholding from proceeds of the saileshares of Stock acquired upon payment of thetrRéed Stock Unit Award, either
through a voluntary sale or through a mandatory aalanged by the Company (on your behalf and patgo your authorization by your
acceptance of this Restricted Stock Unit Award)withholding in shares of Stock to be issued upayment of the Restricted Stock Unit
Award; or (d) any other method allowed by the Rdad applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoifigou are subject to the short-swing
profit rules of Section 16(b) of the Exchange Alg Company will withhold in shares of Stock upba televant tax withholding event, unless
the use of such withholding method is preventedyglicable law or has materially adverse accountingix consequences, in which case, the
Tax-Related Items withholding obligation may bessetd by one or a combination of methods (a), (i &) above. If the obligation for Tax-
Related Items is satisfied by withholding in shasEStock as described in subsection (c) hereintaio purposes, you are deemed to have bee
issued the full number of shares of Stock subjetié vested Restricted Stock Unit Award, notwahsling that a number of the shares of
Stock are held back solely for the purpose of paytre Tax-Related Items due as a result of anycagfhgour participation in the Plan. The
Fair Market Value of any share of Stock withheldguant to this Section 3 shall be equal to theirdpprice of a share of Stock as quoted on
any national or regional securities exchange okgtasystem constituting the primary market for 8teck on the day on which tax withholding
is required (or, if there is no closing price oattbay, the last trading day prior to that day)ifthe Stock is not listed on a national or regibn
securities exchange or market system, the valaesbfire of Stock as determined by the Committgedd faith without regard to any
restriction other than a restriction which, byteésms, will never lapse.

Finally, you shall pay to the Company or the Emplogny amount of Tax-Related Items that the Comparlie Employer may be
required to withhold or account for as a resulyadir participation in the Plan that cannot be §iatisby the means previously described. The
Company shall not be required to issue or delilrershares of Stock or the proceeds of the saleawés of Stock if you fail to comply with
your obligations in connection with the T-Related Items.

4. TAX ADVICE. You acknowledge that you may be subject to U.Serfald state, local and/or non-U.S. income tax aruibs
insurance obligations arising from this Restric&dck Unit Award. You represent, warrant and ackiedge that the Company has made no
warranties or representations to you with respette income tax or social insurance consequerfadbe dransactions contemplated by this
Agreement, and you are in no manner relying orQbapany or its representatives for an assessmesnicbftax consequences. YOU
UNDERSTAND THAT THE TAX AND SOCIAL INSURANCE LAWS AID REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU
SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THEAX AND SOCIAL INSURANCE TREATMENT OF ANY
RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREIN IS TENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIES.

5. DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS. If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Coripatock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estalldislyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payabthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of unvested Restricted Stodts Jubject to this Restricted Stock Unit Awardtba dividend record date established by
the Company. Any such Dividend Equivalents willibehe form of additional Restricted Stock Unitsllle subject to the same terms and
vesting dates as the underlying Restricted StodksiJand will be paid at the same time and in e manner as the underlying Restricted
Stock Units originally




subject to this Restricted Stock Unit Award, exdbat any fractional shares attributable to Dividé&muivalents will be paid in cash within
thirty (30) days following the date of payment & tunderlying Restricted Stock Unit based on tHeMarket Value on the date of payment of
the underlying Restricted Stock Unit (where Fairrkéd Value shall be as specified in Section 3, @howless you are resident in a country
requiring the use of a specific share valuationhméology for tax purposes, in which case Fair Makkaue shall mean the value of a share of
Stock calculated in accordance with such methodgldhe number of additional Restricted Stock Uniesdited as Dividend Equivalents on
the dividend payment date will be determined bydiing (1) the product of (a) the number of your ested Restricted Stock Units as of the
corresponding dividend record date (including anyasted Restricted Stock Units previously crediéeé result of prior payments of Dividend
Equivalents) and (b) the per-share cash divideidigrathe dividend payment date, by (2) the peraliair Market Value (as specified in
Section 3 above) of Stock on the dividend paymers.d

6. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be
issued to you upon vesting or payment of this Reett Stock Unit Award unless the Stock is theristeged under the U.S. Securities Act o
such Stock is not then so registered, the Compasylbtermined that such vesting and issuance vbeuéckempt from the registration
requirements of the U.S. Securities Act. By aceepthis Restricted Stock Unit Award, you agreetoatell any of the shares of Stock receivec
under this Restricted Stock Unit Award at a timeswlapplicable laws or Company policies prohibiake s

7. TRANSFERABILITY. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in payragall Restricted Stock Units, your Restrictedckto
Units shall not be subject in any manner to andittgm, alienation, sale, exchange, transfer, asségm, pledge, encumbrance, or garnishme
your creditors or by your beneficiary, except (apsfer by will or by the laws of descent and distiion or (b) transfer by written designati
of a beneficiary, in a form acceptable to the Comypavith such designation taking effect upon yoeatth, provided however, that, if you are
employed outside the United States, you are nahittexd to designate a beneficiary under this AgreimAll rights with respect to your
Restricted Stock Units shall be exercisable duyiowgy lifetime only by you or your guardian or legapresentative. Prior to actual payment of
any Restricted Stock Units, such Restricted Stowitsvill represent an unsecured obligation of @mnpany, payable (if at all) only from the
general assets of the Company.

8. RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. This Restricted Stock Unit Award is not an
employment or service contract and nothing in A&gseement, the Grant Notice or the Plan shall sl to create in any way whatsoever
any obligation on your part to continue in the $s\of a Participating Company, or of a ParticipgtCompany to continue your Service with
the Participating Company. In addition, nothinghirs Restricted Stock Unit Award shall obligate @@empany, its stockholders, Board,
Officers or Employees to continue any relationshipch you might have as an Employee or otherwise.

9. RESTRICTIVE LEGEND. Stock issued pursuant to the vesting and/or paywifeydur Restricted Stock Units may be subject
to such restrictions upon the sale, pledge or dthesfer of the Stock as the Company and the Caypaounsel deem necessary under
applicable law or pursuant to this Agreement.

10. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS, AND ACKNOWL EDGMENTS. You hereby agree that in the
event the Company and the Company'’s counsel depec@ssary or advisable in the exercise of theordtion, the transfer or issuance of the
shares of Stock issued pursuant to your Restrigtedk Units may be conditioned upon you makingaientepresentations, warranties, and
acknowledgments relating to compliance with apblieasecurities laws.

11. VOTING AND OTHER RIGHTS. You shall not have any voting rights or any othights and privileges of a shareholder of
the Company unless and until shares of Stock aumgupon payment of your Restricted Stock Units.

12. CODE SECTION 409A.For U.S. taxpayers, it is the intent that the paynod Restricted Stock Units as set forth in this
Agreement shall qualify for exemption from or cosnplith the requirements of Section 409A of the Cated any ambiguities herein will be
interpreted to so qualify or comply. Notwithstarglithhe foregoing, if it is determined that the Riestid Stock Units fail to satisfy the
requirements of the “short-term deferral” exemptom are otherwise deferred compensation subjedtd¢tion 409A of the Code, and if you
are a “specified employee” (as defined under Secti@®A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code) as of the date ofiy“separation from service” (as defined
under Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h))ntte issuance of any shares of Stock that wolldratise be made upon the date of the
separation from service or within the first six (6dpnths thereafter will not be made on the origynstheduled date and will instead be issued
in a lump sum on the date that is six (6) montlts@me day after the date of the separation from




service, but only if such delay in the issuancthefshares is necessary to avoid the impositi@uditional taxation on you in respect of the
shares under Section 409A of the Code. The Compasgyves the right, to the extent the Company demmassary or advisable in its sole
discretion, to unilaterally amend or modify thisregment as may be necessary to ensure that allgragprovided for under this Agreement
are made in a manner that qualifies for exemptiomfor complies with Section 409A of the Code; jied, however, that the Company
makes no representation that the payments of ResirStock Units provided for under this Agreemeititbe exempt from or comply with
Section 409A of the Code and makes no undertakimpgeclude Section 409A of the Code from applymthe payments of Restricted Stock
Units provided for under this Agreement. The Conypaill have no liability to you or any other parifythe Restricted Stock Unit Award, the
delivery of shares of Stock upon payment of thetfiéed Stock Unit Award or other payment hereurttiet is intended to be exempt from, or
compliant with, Code Section 409A, is not so exeorptompliant or for any action taken by the Compuaiith respect thereto.

13. NOTICES. Any notices provided for in this Agreement, the @risotice or the Plan shall be given in writing asidhll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in theecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fd)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thathisess you provided to the Company.

14. DATA PRIVACY. You hereby explicitly and unambiguously consenttbe@ collection, use and transfer, in electronic or
other form, of your personal data as described lrist Agreement, the Grant Notice and any other Régrd Stock Unit Award grant
materials by and among, as necessary and applicathle Participating Companies, for the exclusiverpose of implementing, administerir
and managing your participation in the Plan.

You understand that the Company and/or the Employesy hold certain personal information about yowndluding, but not limitec
to, your name, home address and telephone numbate @f birth, social security or insurance number other identification number,
salary, nationality, and any shares of stock or éatorships held in the Company, and details of y&Restricted Stock Units or any othi
entitlement to shares of Stock, canceled, exercjsagbsted, unvested or outstanding in your favon, flee purpose of implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”).

You understand that Data will be transferred to ERIADE Financial (“"E¥*TRADE") or such other stock planservice provider as
may be selected by the Company in the future, whhssisting the Company with the implementati@aaministration and management of
the Plan. You understand that the recipients of @Banhay be located in the United States or elsewhare] that the recipients’ country €.g.,
the United States) may have different data privdaws and protections than your country. If you asmployed outside the United States,
understand that you may request a list with the nesrand addresses of any potential recipients ofddlay contacting the Company’s Stock
Administration department. You authorize the ComparE*TRADE and any other possible recipients thaagnassist the Compar
(presently or in the future) with implementing, admstering and managing the Plan to receive, posseasse, retain and transfer Data, in
electronic or other form, for the sole purpose afiplementing, administering and managing your paiifiation in the Plan. You understand
that Data will be held only as long as is necessarymplement, administer and manage your particfwan in the Plan. If you are employed
outside the United States, you understand that yoay, at any time, view Data, request additionaldnihation about the storage and
processing of Data, require any necessary amendragatData or refuse or withdraw the consents herdmany case without cost, k
contacting in writing the Company’s Stock Administiion department. You understand, however, thatusihg or withdrawing your consent
may affect your ability to participate in the Plan.

For more information on the consequences of yourfusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, you und&and that you may
contact the Stock Administration department at Quamm Incorporated, 5775 Morehouse Drive, San Die@# 92121.

15. NATURE OF GRANT. In accepting this Restricted Stock Unit Award, yamknowledge and agree that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by th@any, it is discretionary in nature and it maynedified, amended,
suspended or terminated by the Company at any (subject to any limitations set forth in the Pltan)

(b) the award of Restricted Stock Units is védum and occasional and does not create any conddaar other right to
receive future awards of Restricted Stock Unitdyemefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units, eveRéstricted Stock Units or other Awards h
been awarded repeatedly in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Awandigny, will be at the sole discretion of the Camny;




(d) your participation in the Plan is voluntary;

(e) the Restricted Stock Unit Award and the shanf Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Uniafdhare not intended to
replace any pension rights or compensation;

() the Restricted Stock Unit Award and the sisaof Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Unitafdvare not part of norrn
or expected compensation or salary for any purpaselsiding, but not limited to, calculating anyweseance, resignation, termination,
redundancy, dismissal, end of service paymentgdes) longservice awards, pension or retirement or welfareefis or similar payments a
in no event should be considered as compensatipprfoelating in any way to, past services for @mmpany, the Employer or any
Participating Company;

(g) the award of the Restricted Stock Units goar participation in the Plan will not be interfwd to form an employment
or service contract or relationship with the Companany Participating Company;

(h) the future value of the underlying shareStick is unknown and cannot be predicted withadety;

(i) no claim or entitlement to compensation amdiges shall arise from forfeiture of your Restdcbtock Units resulting
from termination of your Service (for any reasoratdoever and whether or not in breach of localr#daes or later found invalid), and in
consideration of the grant of your Restricted Stdoiits to which you are otherwise not entitled, yoavocably agree never to institute any
claim against the Company, waive your ability,nfyato bring any such claim, and release the Comfram any such claim; if,
notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim ievaéd by a court of competent jurisdiction, they participating in the Plan, you shall be
deemed irrevocably to have agreed not to pursue dlagm and agree to execute any and all docunmaasssary to request dismissal or
withdrawal of such claim;

() the Restricted Stock Unit Award and the Hasevidenced by this Agreement do not createentitlement, not
otherwise specifically provided for in the Planppovided by the Company in its discretion, to hthe2Restricted Stock Unit Award or any
such benefits transferred to, or assumed by, anotrepany, nor to be exchanged, cashed out origubsitfor, in connection with any
corporate transaction affecting the Company’s Stock

(k) the Company is not providing any tax, legafinancial advice, nor is the Company making esgommendations
regarding your participation in the Plan, or yooguaisition or sale of the underlying shares of Bfgou are hereby advised to consult with
your own personal tax, legal and financial advisegarding your participation in the Plan befolldrig any action related to the Plan; ¢

() if you are employed or providing servicedside the United States, (i) the Restricted Stook Bward and the shares of
Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Unit Awarel extraordinary items that do not constitute corspéan of any kind for services of any
kind rendered to the Company or the Employer, ahidhvare outside the scope of your employment nvic® contract, if any; and (ii) neither
the Company, the Employer nor any Participating gany is liable for any foreign exchange fluctuatimiween your local currency and the
United States Dollar that may affect the valuehid Restricted Stock Unit Award.

16. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofSfage of California, U.S.A., as if the Agreement
were between California residents and as if it veriered into and to be performed entirely witlhia State of California.

17. IMPOSITION OF OTHER REQUIREMENTS. The Company reserves the right to impose otherirements on your
participation in the Plan, on your Restricted Stbichts, and on any shares of Stock acquired uridePtan, to the extent the Company
determines it is necessary or advisable in ordeotoply with local law or facilitate the adminigitan of the Plan, and to require you to sign
any additional agreements or undertakings that Ineayecessary to accomplish the foregoing.

18. ARBITRATION. Any dispute or claim concerning any Restricted Btdaits granted (or not granted) pursuant to tteRind
any other disputes or claims relating to or arising of the Plan shall be fully, finally and exdledy resolved by binding arbitration conducted
by the American Arbitration Association pursuantie commercial arbitration rules in San Diego,ifGalia. By accepting this Restricted
Stock Unit Award, you and the Company waive yowspeztive rights to have any such disputes or cléiimd by a judge or jury.




19. AMENDMENT. This Restricted Stock Unit Award may be amendegrasided in the Plan at any time, provided no such
amendment may adversely affect this Restrictedk3tlmit Award without your consent unless such anmeeit is necessary to comply with
any applicable law or government regulation, arastemplated in Section 12 hereof. No amendmeatldition to this Agreement shall be
effective unless in writing or in such electronicrh as may be designated by the Company.

20. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. This Restricted Stock Unit Award is subject to tAgreement, the Grant Notice and all
the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which hereby made a part of this Agreement, anaribdr subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may from to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®ltan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the Giwiice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

21. LANGUAGE. If you have received this Agreement or any otheudeent related to the Plan translated into a laggwaher
than English and if the meaning of the translatedion is different than the English version, timglish version will control.

22.  SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held to beenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjustdterahan
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intefthe parties to the extent possible. In any gvahother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensitdes.

23. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY . The Plan documents, which may include but do noessarily include:
the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Agreement (inalgdiny Addendum), and any reports of the Compaayiged generally to the Company’s
stockholders, may be delivered to you electronjcétli addition, if permitted by the Company, youyngectronically accept and acknowledge
the Grant Notice and/or this Agreement and/or @elsuch documents to the Company or to such tlairty nvolved in administering the Plan
as the Company may designate from time to timeh Sueans of electronic acknowledgement, acceptamb®rdelivery may include but do
not necessarily include use of a link to a Compatnanet or the internet site of a third party ihaea in administering the Plan, the delivery of
the document via electronic mail (“e-mail”) or suzfier means specified by the Company. You herebgent to receive the above-listed
documents by electronic delivery and, if permitbgdhe Company, agree to participate in the Plaouih an on-line or electronic system
established and maintained by the Company or d gairty designated by the Company, as set forthifmer

24. ADDENDUM. Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreemehg Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be subjecirng
special terms and conditions set forth in any Adiden to this Agreement for your country. Moreovégdu relocate to one of the countries
included in the Addendum, the special terms andlitioms for such country will apply to you, to thgtent the Company determines that the
application of such terms and conditions is neggssiaadvisable in order to comply with local lawfacilitate the administration of the Plan.
The Addendum constitutes part of this Agreement.

25.  WAIVER. The waiver by the Company with respect to yourafoy other Participant’s) compliance of any provisid this
Agreement shall not operate or be construed as\emaf any other provision of this Agreement, daay subsequent breach of such party
provision of this Agreement.

26. REPAYMENT/FORFEITURE. Any benefits you may receive hereunder shall bgestito repayment or forfeiture as may be
required to comply with (a) any applicable listisigndards of a national securities exchange adaptctordance with Section 954 of the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiadiict (regarding recovery of erroneously awardemhpensation) and any
implementing rules and regulations of the U.S. 8&ea and Exchange Commission adopted thereufidesimilar rules under the laws of any
other jurisdiction and (c) any policies adoptediiyy Company to implement such requirements, adhécextent determined by the Company in
its discretion to be applicable to you.




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
EXECUTIVE RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

COUNTRY ADDENDUM

The additional terms and conditions set forth bedoey specifically incorporated into the ExecutivesRicted Stock Unit Agreement (together,
the Agreement and this Addendum are referred teihas the “Agreement”). These terms and conditgmeern the Restricted Stock Units
granted to you under the Plan if you are workingrile of the countries listed below. If you aret&en or a resident of a country other than the
one in which you are currently working or move tm#her country after the Date of Grant, the Compargll, in its discretion, determine to
what extent the terms and conditions containedimaiell be applicable to you. Due to the complegiof legal, regulatory and tax issues, yot
are advised to seek appropriate professional ad@de how the relevant laws in your country maghypo your individual situation, or if you
have any questions regarding the terms and condittontained herein. Certain capitalized terms bsgdot defined in this Addendum have
the meanings set forth in the Plan and/or the BiezRestricted Stock Unit Agreement.

ALL NON -U.S. COUNTRIES

Definition of Disability
If you are on the payroll of a Participating Compautside of the United States, for purposes & #areement the following provision shall
replace the definition of “Disability” set forth tlhe Plan:

“Disability” shall mean your inability to engage &my substantial gainful activity by reason of amgdically determinable physical or mental
impairment which can be expected to result in deatlvhich has lasted or can be expected to lasi famtinuous period of not less than twe
(12) months. The Company shall have sole discretiatecide whether you have presented sufficiembfthat you have a Disability as defir
by this Agreement.

ARGENTINA

Securities Law Notice

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yokreowledge that you understand that the RestriStedk Units and the shares of Stock to
be issued pursuant to the Restricted Stock Uni¢otiered as a private transaction. This offergigat subject to supervision by any Argentine
governmental authority.

AUSTRIA

Sale of Shares of Stock Consent

As set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement, youersthnd that the Company may, at its discretiaisfgahe withholding obligations for all
Tax-Related Items, in whole or in part, by methodsudoig withholding from proceeds of the sale of slsavf Stock acquired upon paymen
the Restricted Stock Unit Award, either throughodumtary sale or through a mandatory sale arrabgatie Company (on your behalf and
pursuant to your authorization by your acceptaridhis Restricted Stock Unit Award). By acceptifhgstAward, you hereby consent to the ¢
of a portion of any shares of Qualcomm Stock issog@u upon vesting of the Restricted Stock Uaitd withholding from the proceeds of
that sale to satisfy all applicable Tax-Relatedhgevithholding obligations related to your partadijpn in the Plan and legally applicable to
you.

BRAZIL

Compliance Notice

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yguea to comply with all applicable Brazilian lawsdgpay any and all applicable taxes
associated with the vesting of the Restricted Stditits and the sale of Stock obtained as a reétifteovesting of the Restricted Stock Units.
You agree that, for all legal purposes, (a) theshisnprovided to you under the Plan are the resfulbmmercial transactions unrelated to your
employment; (b) the Plan is not a part of the teams conditions of your employment; and (c) theime from the Restricted Stock Units, if
any, is not part of your remuneration from emplopine




CANADA

Form of Payment
Due to Canadian tax law, you are prohibited fromd&xing shares of the Company’s Stock to pay anyRelated Iltems in connection with the
Restricted Stock Units.

Termination of Service
The following provision supplements Section 1.1haf Agreement:

In the event of termination of your Service (whetbenot in breach of local labor laws or laterridunvalid), the date of termination of your
rights (if any) with respect to the Restricted &tbiits as set forth in the Plan and this Agreemégltbe measured from: (i) the date that you
are no longer actively employed, or at the disoretif the Committee, (ii) the date you receive e®tf termination from the Employer, if
earlier than (i), regardless of any notice periogeriod of pay in lieu of such notice required entbcal law (including, but not limited to
statutory law, regulatory law and/or common law).

The following provisions apply if yvou are a resideof Quebec

Consent to Receive Information in English
The parties acknowledge that it is their expreshwhat the Agreement, as well as all documents;e®and legal proceedings entered into,
given or instituted pursuant hereto or relatingdlity or indirectly hereto, be drawn up in English.

Les parties reconnaissent avoir expressément stéuhae la conventiorcKAgreement»), ainsi que tous les documents, apioeédures
judiciares, éxécutés, donnés ou intentés en vertouwliés directement ou indirectement a la présennvention, soient rédigés en lan
anglaise.

Authorization to Release Necessary Personal Inforntian
The following provision supplements Section 14hef Agreement:

You hereby authorize the Company and the Compaepiesentatives to discuss and obtain all releindotmation from all personnel,
professional or noprofessional, involved in the administration of #lan. You further authorize the Company and th&iddsating Companie
to disclose and discuss such information with thdiisors. You also authorize the Company and #ngdipating Companies to record such
information and to keep such information in youmpdoyment file.

CHINA

The following provisions govern your participationthe Plan if you are a national of the People&piablic of China resident in mainland
China:

Mandatory Sale Restriction

Due to regulatory requirements, you acknowledgeaarde that you must sell any shares of Stock dsBugou upon vesting of the Restricted
Stock Units within thirty (30) days following thertmination of your Service, or within any other Isuicne frame as may be required by the
PRC State Administration of Foreign Exchange. Ygrea that if you continue to hold any of such sbafter this time, the shares will be sold
by the Companyg designated broker on your behalf at the instonatif the Company. Therefore, by accepting theriRéstl Stock Unit Awarc
you acknowledge that you understand and agreahtba@@ompany is authorized to, and may in its s@erdtion, instruct its designated brol

to assist with the mandatory sale of Stock (on ymlralf pursuant to this authorization) and youressly authorize the Company’s designatec
broker to complete the sale of such Stock. You askedge that the Company’s designated broker i®und obligation to arrange for the sale
of the Stock at any particular price. Upon the sdléhe Stock, the proceeds, less any Tax-Relaésdsl and brokerage fees or commissions,
will be remitted to you in accordance with any agable exchange control laws and regulations.

Exchange Control Restrictions

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yokreowledge that you understand and agree thattaderechange control laws in China, you
are not permitted to transfer any shares of Stagkiaed under the Plan out of your account estiaddisvith the Company’s designated broker,
and that you will be required to repatriate allqggeds due to you from




your participation in the Plan, including any caéidends paid by the Company on shares of Sto@dagmproceeds from the sale of such S
(together, the “cash proceeds”) to China. In thard, you acknowledge and agree that, due to tepaériation requirements, you are not
eligible to participate in any automatic dividemihvestment program.

You further understand that, under local law, stegatriation of the cash proceeds will need toffected through a special exchange control
account established by the Company, the Employex,Rarticipating Company in China, and you hemdnysent and agree that the cash
proceeds may be transferred to such special acpoiantto being delivered to you. The cash procardyg be paid in U.S. dollars or local
currency at the Company'’s discretion. If the cagitgeds are paid in U.S. dollars, you understaatythu may be required to set up a U.S.
dollar bank account in China so that the cash pd&enay be deposited into this account. If the pagbeeds are converted to local currency,
you acknowledge that the Company is under no diifigdo secure any currency conversion rate, aatlittmay face delays in converting 1
proceeds to local currency due to exchange corgsbtictions in China. You acknowledge and agre¢ ybu bear the risk of any currency
conversion rate fluctuation between the date thattsh dividend is paid and/or the shares of Sioelsold, as applicable, and the date of
conversion of the cash proceeds to local currevioy. further agree to comply with any other requiesrts that may be imposed by the
Company in the future in order to facilitate coraplie with exchange control requirements in China.

Finally, you acknowledge and agree that the Comgaoffer of participation in the Plan to you is ¢imgent upon your agreement to abide by
the restrictions set forth herein and that anyatioh of these restrictions will constitute a metielbreach of the terms of this Agreement, whict
will affect your ability to participate in the Plan

FRANCE

Consent to Receive Information in English
By accepting the Restricted Stock Units, you canfiraving read and understood the Plan and the Agreg which were provided in the
English language. You accept the terms of thosemeats accordingly.

En acceptant cette attribution gratuitiactions, vous confirmez avoir lu et comprenezlnket ce Contrat, incluant tous leurs termes et
conditions, qui ont été transmis en langue angla¥&mis acceptez les dispositions de ces documerE®@aissance de cause.

HONG KONG

Securities Law Notice

Warning: The Restricted Stock Units and any shaf&tock to be issued pursuant to the RestricteckS1#init Award do not constitute a public
offering of securities under Hong Kong law and available only to Employees, Directors and Consulaf the Company and its
Participating Companies. The Plan, the Agreememd, @ther incidental communication materials haveleen prepared in accordance w
and are not intended to constitute a ‘prospectas’e public offering of securities under the applite companies and securities legislation in
Hong Kong, and the documents have not been reviewedy regulatory authority in Hong Kong. The Agreent and the incident
communication materials are intended only for teespnal use of each Plan Participant and not fatribution to any other person. If you
have any doubt about any of the contents of the&gent or the Plan, you should obtain independeriepsional advice.

Sale of Shares
In the event your Restricted Stock Units vest drates of Stock are issued to you within six mowfithe Date of Grant, you agree that you
will not dispose of the Stock prior to the six-mio@inniversary of the Date of Grant.

INDIA

Exchange Control Restrictions

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yokreowledge that you understand and agree that meeds you may receive from the sale
of shares of Stock or from any dividends paid achsBhares must be repatriated to India within aaeable time following the sale.é.,

within 90 days). You must maintain the foreign imdraemittance certificate received from the banleretthe foreign currency is deposited in
the event that the Reserve Bank of India or the leyep requests proof of repatriation. It is youspensibility to comply with applicable
exchange control laws in India.

ISRAEL




Grant Subject to Terms and Conditions of Israeli Sb-Plan

The Restricted Stock Unit Award is offered to yaobject to, and in accordance with, the terms ofRttaa and the Israeli Sub-Plan to the
Qualcomm Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Rtae “Sub-Plan”). Upon vesting of the Restrictedc® Units, the Stock shall be
controlled by the Trustee (as defined in Secti@ad?.the Sub-Plan) for your benefit for at least Bequired Minimum Trust Period (as defined
in Section 2.2 of the Sub-Plan). Notwithstanding fitregoing, in the event you elect to releasesiayes of Stock acquired upon vesting of th
Restricted Stock Units prior to the conclusionhe# Required Minimum Trust Period, the tax consegesmnder Section 102 of the Israeli
Income Tax Ordinance [New Version], 1961 shall ggpland shall be borne solely by you, as furtleefaerth in the Sub-Plan. By accepting
the Restricted Stock Unit Award, you agree to benaoby the terms of the Plan, the Sub-Plan, anégreement and upon request of the
Company or the Employer, to provide written conderihe terms of any tax ruling or agreement olediny the Company or the Employer
with regard to the Plan and the Sub-Plan.

The Restricted Stock Unit Award is intended to H®2 Capital Gains Track Grant (as defined in ®ac#.2 of the Sub-Plan) that qualifies for
the 102 Capital Gains Track (as defined in Seci@of the SuliRrlan) tax treatment. Notwithstanding the foregolmgaccepting the Restrict
Stock Unit Award, you acknowledge that the Compaaynot guarantee or represent that the 102 C&patials Track tax treatment will apply
to the Restricted Stock Unit Award.

The Company may at its sole discretion replaceltiastee from time to time and instruct the transffeall Restricted Stock Units and shares o
Stock held and/or administered by such Trusteect §me to its successor and the provisions of ¥@nant Notice, this Agreement and the
Trust Agreement shall apply to the new Trustedatis mutandis

ITALY

Data Privacy Notice
The following provision replaces Section 14 of &kgreement in its entirety:

You understand that the Employer, the Company agdParticipating Company may hold certain persamakmation about you, including,
but not limited to, your name, home address arapteine number, date of birth, social insurancelwerddentification number, salary,
nationality, job title, any shares of Stock or dimgships held in the Company, details of all OpgioRestricted Stock Units, or any other
entitlement to shares of Stock awarded, canceledcised, vested, unvested or outstanding in yawwrf for the exclusive purpose of
implementing, managing and administering the PlBata”) and in compliance with applicable laws aedulations.

You also understand that providing the Company Witia is necessary for the performance of the &tahthat your refusal to provide such
Data would make it impossible for the Company tdgren its contractual obligations and may affectiyability to participate in the Plan. The
Controller of personal data processing is QUALCONtdorporated, with registered offices at 5775 Mangde Drive, San Diego, California
92121, U.S.A,, and, pursuant to Legislative Decreel96/2003, its representative in Italy is QUALKZR Europe with registered offices in
3rd Floor, Piazza Indipendenza 11/B Rome, Italy.

You understand that your Data will not be publidizeut it may be transferred to E*Trade Finandialks, and other financial institutions or
brokers involved in the management and adminisinadf the Plan. You further understand that the @amy, the Employer or a Participating
Company will transfer Data amongst themselves assgary for the purpose of implementation, adniitisin and management of your
participation in the Plan, and that the Companyryemployer or a Participating Company may furtihansfer Data to third parties assisting
the Company in the implementation, administratind management of the Plan, including any requisitesfer to E*Trade Financial or
another third party with whom you may elect to d@pany shares of Stock acquired under the Plach 8ecipients may receive, possess, use,
retain and transfer the Data in electronic or ofben, for the purposes of implementing, adminisigrand managing your participation in the
Plan. You understand that these recipients mapdstdd in the European Economic Area, or elsewiseidhy as the U.S. or Asia. Should the
Company exercise its discretion in suspendingedkssary legal obligations connected with the mameagt and administration of the Plan, it
will delete your Data as soon as it has accomplistiethe necessary legal obligations connectel thié¢ management and administration of
Plan.

You understand that Data processing related tptingoses specified above shall take place undensaied or non-automated conditions,
anonymously when possible, that comply with theppses for which Data is collected and with confideity and security provisions as set
forth by applicable laws and regulations, with sfieceference to Legislative Decree no. 196/2003.




The processing activity, including communicatidre transfer of your Data abroad, including outsifithe European Economic Area, as he
specified and pursuant to applicable laws and egguis, does not require your consent theretoeprthcessing is necessary to performance
contractual obligations related to implementataministration and management of the Plan. You tstaled that, pursuant to Section 7 of the
Legislative Decree no. 196/2003, you have the righincluding but not limited to, access, deletggate, ask for rectification of your Data and
stop, for legitimate reason, the Data processingh€r, you are aware that your Data will not bedufor direct marketing purposes. In addit
the Data provided can be reviewed and questiogsmplaints can be addressed by contacting your hugsources department.

Plan Document Acknowledgment

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yekreowledge that you have received a copy of tha Bial the Agreement and have
reviewed the Plan and the Agreement, includingAllidendum, in their entirety and fully understamd @accept all provisions of the Plan and
the Agreement, including this Addendum.

You further acknowledge that you have read andipaity and expressly approve the following clasise the Agreement: Section 1: Service
and Vesting; Section 3: Tax Withholding; SectiorRestricted Stock Units Not a Service Contractti®acl5: Nature of Grant; Section 16:
Applicable Law; and the sections applicable to yoountry contained in the Addendum.

MEXICO

Labor Law and Plan Document Acknowledgment
By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yekreowledge that you have received a copy of tha Bial the Agreement, have reviewed
these documents in their entirety and fully underdtand accept all provisions of the Plan and tieeément.

In addition, in accepting the Restricted Stock Uwitard, you further acknowledge that you understaind agree that: (a) your participation in
the Plan does not constitute an acquired rightth@)Plan and your participation in the Plan i®dtl by the Company on a wholly
discretionary basis, the Company reserves the atesoght to amend the Plan or discontinue it gttame without any liability to you and any
such amendment or termination of the Plan shaltoostitute a change or impairment of the termsamditions of your employment or
service relationship; (c) your participation in fkan is voluntary; (d) the Restricted Stock Unitakd granted to you under the Plan is not
related to your salary or any other contractuakfiesiprovided to you by your Employer; (e) the Guany, with registered offices at 5775
Morehouse Drive, San Diego, California 92121, U_Sié\solely responsible for the administratiortted Plan and your participation in the P
and any acquisition of shares of Stock does naninway, establish an employment or service matiip between you and the Company
since you are participating in the Plan on a whotiynmercial basis and the Employer in Mexico isryanle employer, nor does it establish
rights between you and your Employer; and (f) rezithe Company, your Employer nor any Subsidiargp@ration is responsible for any
decrease in the value of the shares of Stock thanyay acquire under the Plan.

Finally, you hereby declare that you do not reséowourself any action or right to bring any claagainst the Employer, the Company or any
Participating Company for any compensation or dasas a result of your participation in the Plath #rat you therefore grant a full and br
release to the Employer and any Participating Camppéth respect to any claim that may arise.

Spanish Translation

Reconocimiento de la Ley Laboral y de la Recepcidte Documentos
Al aceptar el Premio de Unidades de Acciones Regtlas, usted acepta y reconoce haber recibidcopia del Plan y del Contrato; que
leido y entendido en su totalidad dichos documepntpse por lo tanto los acepta en sus términos.

Aunado a lo anterior, al aceptar el Premio de Wiédade Acciones Restringidas, usted entiende ynoeeoque: (a) su participacion en el |
no constituye un derecho adquirido; (b) el Plam yarticipacién en el mismo es ofrecido por la E#sprde manera estrictamente discreci
la Empresa se reserva el derecho absoluto a madiicPlan o descontinuarlo en cualquier momensinyresponsabilidad para uste
cualquier modificacion o terminacién del Plan nde@ constituir un cambio o impedimento respectdodetérminos y condiciones de
empleo o relacion de servicio (c) su participa@érel Plan es voluntaria; (d) el Premio de Unidatieécciones Restringidas otorgado a L
derivado del Plan no se encuentra relacionado e@alario o cualquier otra prestacion contractuapprcionada a usted por la Empresa; (
Empresa, con




oficinas registradas en 5775 Morehouse Drive, Sagd) California 92121, EE.UU., es la Unica respbies de la administracion del Plan
participacion en el Plan y la adquisicion de lasifes no establece, de ninguna manera, una nelediéral entre usted y la Empresa debi
que usted participa en el Plan en una base competa comercial y su Unico Patron es y su Unica@pdb es el Patron, ni establece dert
alguno entre usted y su Patron; y (f) que la Engyres Patrén o las Compafiias Subsidiarias no spomsables por la disminucién en el v
de las Acciones adquiridas durante su participagroal Plan.

Por ultimo, usted declara que no se reserva ningacian o derecho por ejercer en contra de suRdr&Empresa o cualquier Compafiia
Subsidiaria por cualquier compensacion o dafios gesultado de su participacion en el Plan y qud@tanto usted en este acto exonera a s
Patrén, la Empresa o cualquier Compafiia Subsidiesigecto de cualquier demanda o reclamacion giienauderivar del Plan.

PHILIPPINES

Securities Law Notice

The securities being offered or sold herein hawdeen registered with the Philippines Securitied Bxchange Commission under its
Securities Regulation Code (the “SRC”). Any futofter or sale thereof is subject to registratioguieements under the SRC unless such offe
or sale qualifies as an exempt transaction.

Further, you will not be permitted to receive slsaséStock upon vesting of the Restricted Stock®Janless or until the Company, the
Employer, or a Participating Company in the Philiigs has obtained all necessary approvals or ratjests or has submitted all filings
required under Philippines law. If the Company, Emeployer, or a Participating Company in the Philiies is unable to obtain such approval
or registration or does not submit such filings, yeknowledge that you may not receive sharesawfk3ipon vesting of the Restricted Stock
Units and you will not receive any compensatiomenefits in lieu of the Restricted Stock Units.

You acknowledge that you are permitted to sellahaf Stock acquired under the Plan through thigdated Plan broker appointed by the
Company (or such other broker to whom you may fearthe shares of Stock), provided that such sdes place outside of the Philippines
through the facilities of the NASDAQ Global Seldtarket, on which the shares are listed.

RUSSIA

Securities Law Notice

The Agreement, the Grant Notice, the Plan andth#romaterials you may receive regarding your pigdtion in the Plan do not constitute
advertising or an offering of securities in Rusgibsent any requirement under local law, the issaaf securities pursuant to the Plan has no
and will not be registered in Russia and therefibre securities described in any Plan-related deciisnrmay not be used for offering or public
circulation in Russia. The delivery of Plan documseand the issuance of shares of Stock shall conforthe provisions of Section 6 of the
Agreement and this Section of the Addendum.

U.S. Transaction

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yekreowledge that you understand and agree that took $ be issued upon vesting of the
Restricted Stock Units shall be delivered to yawtigh a brokerage account in the U.S. You may ti@dStock in your brokerage account in
the U.S.; however, in no event will Stock issueg¢tda under the Plan be delivered to you in Rugaigther, you agree that you are not
permitted to sell the Stock directly to other Rasdiegal entities or individuals.

Mandatory Sale Restriction

Due to regulatory requirements, the Company resaheright to require the immediate sale of amciSto be issued to you upon vesting of
the Restricted Stock Units. By accepting the Retsti Stock Unit Award, you acknowledge that youansthnd and agree that the Company is
authorized to, and may, in its sole discretiontriurcd its designated broker to assist with the nadéony sale of Stock issued to you upon vesting
of the Restricted Stock Units (on your behalf parguto this authorization) and you expressly alteathe Company’s designated broker to
complete the sale of such Stock. You acknowledgettie Company’s designated broker is under ngatitin to arrange for the sale of the
Stock at any particular price. Upon the sale ofSheck, you will receive the proceeds, less any-Ralated Items and brokerage fees or
commissions.




SINGAPORE

Securities Law Notice

The Restricted Stock Unit Award is being made pansto the “Qualifying Person” exemption under sec273(1)(f) of the Securities and
Futures Act (Chapter 289, 2006 Ed.) (“SFA”). TharPhas not been lodged or registered as a prospeittuthe Monetary Authority of
Singapore. You should note that the RestrictedkStbdt Award is subject to section 257 of the SH#lgou will not be able to make (a) any
subsequent sale of the shares of Stock in Singapdi® any offer of such subsequent sale of tlaeeshof Stock in Singapore, unless such sal
or offer is made pursuant to the exemptions under X1l Division (1) Subdivision (4) (other tharstion 280) of the SFA (Chapter 289, 2006
Ed.).

SOUTH AFRICA

Tax Obligations
By accepting the Restricted Stock Units, you agoasotify your Employer of the amount of gain reali upon the vesting of the Restricted
Stock Units. You will be responsible for paying afifference between your actual tax liability amy @amount withheld by your Employer.

Exchange Control

You understand and agree that you are solely ragperfor complying with applicable South Africarochange control regulations. Because
the exchange control regulations change frequamiti/without notice, you should consult a legal sdvprior to the sale of shares of Stock to
ensure compliance with current regulations. Itdaryresponsibility to comply with South African dsange control laws, and neither the
Company, the Employer, nor any Participating Compaiti be liable for any fines or penalties for ydfailure to do so.

SPAIN

Nature of Grant
This provision supplements Section 8 and Sectioafibe Agreement:

By accepting the Restricted Stock Units, you cohgeparticipation in the Plan and acknowledge jfwat have received a copy of the Plan.

You understand that the Company has unilateratBtugously, and in its sole discretion decidedtant Restricted Stock Units under the Plan
to individuals who may be employees of the Compamniarticipating Companies throughout the worlde @ecision is a limited decision that
is entered into upon the express assumption andittmmthat any grant will not bind the CompanyaoParticipating Company, other than to
the extent set forth in the Agreement. Consequewntly understand that the Restricted Stock Unasé#fiered on the assumption and condition
that the Restricted Stock Units and any sharesanfkSacquired as a result of the vesting of sucstiiéed Stock Units under the Plan are not
part of any employment contract with the Compahg,Employer, or any Participating Company and gi@tlbe considered a mandatory
benefit, salary for any purposes (including sevegatompensation), or any other right whatsoeveathEy, you understand and agree that,
except to the extent expressly permitted underi@edt2 of the Agreement or otherwise expresslyided for by the Company at the Date of
Grant, the Restricted Stock Units will be canceligthout entitlement to shares of Stock or to amoant as indemnification if you terminate
employment by reason of, including, but not limitedresignation, retirement, disciplinary dismissdjudged to be with cause, disciplinary
dismissal adjudged or recognized to be without easlividual or collective layoff on objective gnods, whether adjudged to be with cause ¢
adjudged or recognized to be without cause, mataadification of the terms of employment underiglg 41 of the Workers’ Statute,
relocation under Article 40 of the Workers’ Statuieticle 50 of the WorkersStatute, unilateral withdrawal by the Employer, ander Article
10.3 of Royal Decree 1382/1985.

You understand that this offer would not be madeftauthe assumptions and conditions referred twvabthus, you acknowledge and freely
accept that, should any or all of the assumptiensitstaken or should any of the conditions not le¢ fior any reason, then any grant of or ri
to the Restricted Stock Units shall be void.

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

Securities Law Notice
The Restricted Stock Unit Award is only being offéito eligible Employees, Consultants and Direcamics is in the nature of providing equity
incentives to Employees, Consultants and DireabesParticipating Company in the United Arab




Emirates. Any documents related to the RestrictedkSUnit Award, including the Plan, the Grant Neti the Agreement and any other grant-
related documents (“Restricted Stock Unit Documignise intended for distribution only to such Emyges, Consultants and Directors and
must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any pfierson. The relevant securities authorities mveesponsibility for reviewing or verifying
any Restricted Stock Unit Documents. United Arakiratas securities or financial/economic authoritiage not approved the Restricted Stocl
Unit Documents, nor taken steps to verify the infation set out in them, and thus, are not respta&ib their content. You, as a prospective
stockholder, should conduct your own due diligeoieghe securities. If you do not understand theerts of the Restricted Stock Unit
Documents, you should consult an authorized fireradvisor.

UNITED KINGDOM

Tax Obligations
The following supplements Section 3 of the Agreeimen

If payment or withholding of the income tax due@ made within 90 days of the event giving ris¢ht® Tax-Related Items (the “Due Date”)
or such other period specified in Section 222(19fdhe U.K. Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) 2063, the amount of any uncollected
income tax shall constitute a loan owed by yolheo@ompany and/or your Employer, effective on tlue Date. You agree that the loan will
bear interest at the then-current HM Revenue argiatns Official Rate (“HMRC”)jt will be immediately due and repayable, and tlwen@any
and/or your Employer may recover it at any timee¢aéer by any of the means referred to in Se@iofthe Agreement. You also authorize
Company to withhold the transfer of any sharesto€iSunless and until the loan is repaid in fulbtiithstanding the foregoing, if you are a
director or executive officer (within the meaninfgSection 13(k) of the Exchange Act) of the Compahg terms of this Section will not apply
to you. In the event that Tax-Related Items arecotiécted from or paid by a director or executftcer of the Company by the Due Date, the
amount of any uncollected income tax may constiéupenefit to such director or executive officernrich additional income tax and National
Insurance Contributions may be payable. You ackedge that you will be responsible for reporting pagling any income tax and National
Insurance Contributions due on this additional fiedeectly to the HMRC under the self-assessnregime.

VIETNAM

Mandatory Sale Restriction

Due to regulatory requirements, the Company resaheright to require the immediate sale of amcksto be issued to you upon vesting of
the Restricted Stock Units. By accepting the Retgtri Stock Unit Award, you acknowledge that youemsthnd and agree that the Company is
authorized to, and may in its sole discretion,ringtits designated broker to assist with the magissale of Stock issued to you upon vesting
of the Restricted Stock Units (on your behalf parguo this authorization) and you expressly auteothe Company’s designated broker to
complete the sale of such Stock. You acknowledgettie Company’s designated broker is under n@atitin to arrange for the sale of the
Stock at any particular price. Upon the sale ofShack, you will receive the proceeds, less any-Ralated Items and brokerage fees or
commissions.

Exchange Control Restrictions

By accepting the Restricted Stock Unit Award, yokreowledge that you understand and agree thaasli proceeds from the sale of shares
acquired under the Plan must be immediately regiattito Vietham. Such repatriation of proceeds memd to be effectuated through a specia
exchange control account established by the Compaggur Employer. Further, you consent and adgnaethe cash proceeds may be
transferred to such special account prior to beilyered to you.



EXHIBIT 10.119

QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR DEFERRED STOCK UNIT GRANT NOT ICE

QUALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termdntive Plan (the “Plan"hereby grants to the Particip
named below the number of Deferred Stock Unitdagt below, each of which is a bookkeeping enggresenting the equivalent in valut
one (1) share of the Company’s common stock. Thae-Blaployee Director Deferred Stock Unit Award is &dbjto all of the terms a
conditions as set forth herein and the Non-Emplop&ector Deferred Stock Unit Agreement (attachedteln) and the Plahwhich are
incorporated herein in their entirety. Capitalizedms not otherwise defined in this Grant Noticéhar NonEmployee Director Deferred Stc
Unit Agreement shall have the meaning set fortthePlan.

Participant: «First_Name» «Last_Name» Grant Noumber»
Emp #: «ID» Shares Subject to Deferred Stock w8hares Granted
Date of Grant: «DSU_Date»

Vesting
«Deferred retainer»

« This Deferred Stock Unit Award is fully vested dretDate of Grant»

«Annual award»
« This Deferred Stock Unit Award vests on the earliesoccur of the following events provided youm8ee is continuous from tl
Date of Grant through the applicable date: (1)dheyear anniversary of the Date of Grant, (2) the @étine next annual meeting
stockholders of the Company that occurs after thtedf Grant, (3) your death, (4) your Disability,(5) a Change in Contro#.

Settlemen

The Deferred Stock Units will be settled and paisl provided in the NoRmployee Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement@nas soon
practicable following, but in no event later thdmirty (30) days aftef specify date of 3 years from grant or later dateesfied in valic
election]. However, as provided in Section 2.1 of the Defé Stock Unit Agreement, these Deferred StockdJmiay be settled earlier uf
the termination of your Board service and certdhepevents.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: The Participant acknowledges (in the form deterchibg the Company) receipt of, and represents
the Participant has read, understands, acceptagnees to the terms and conditions of the followihis Grant Notice, the NoBmployet
Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement and the Rlaoluding, but not limited to, the binding arlition provision in Section 3.7 of the Pl:
Participant hereby accepts the Deferred Stock Rwird subject to all of its terms and conditionsl durther acknowledges that as of the [
of Grant, this Grant Notice, the Nd&mployee Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement #r@Plan set forth the entire understanding bet
Participant and the Company regarding the acqoisitif stock in the Company and supersedes all prarand written agreements pertair
to this particular Deferred Stock Unit Award.

QUALCOMM Incorporated: Non-Employee Director:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: «<DSU_Date» Date

Attachment: Non-Employee Director Deferred Stbkt Agreement




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR DEFERRED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this Non-Empldyeector Deferred Stock Unit Agreement (the “Agresti), Qualcomm
Incorporated (the “Company”) has granted you a BeteStock Unit Award with respect to the numbesloéres of the Company’s common
stock (“Stock”) indicated in the Grant Notice. Cafized terms not explicitly defined in this Agreent but defined in the Qualcomm
Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (theafP) shall have the same definitions as in the Plan

The details of this Deferred Stock Unit Award asgf@lows:
1. SERVICE AND VESTING.

1.1 SERVICE. As provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyeoftrovision of this Agreement, the Company reserve
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine wlyeur Service has terminated.

1.2 VESTING. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or thise&gent, this Deferred Stock Unit Award will vest o
the vesting dates provided in the Grant Notice {(Yfesting Dates”). Except as otherwise expresstyfarh in the Grant Notice, in the event of
the termination of your Service for any reason, thbevoluntary or involuntary, all unvested Defer@&tock Units shall be immediately
forfeited without consideration. Unless and urté Deferred Stock Units vest on the applicable iMgdDates, you will have no right to
payment of any such Deferred Stock Units.

2. SETTLEMENT OF THE DEFERRED STOCK UNITS.

2.1 TIMING OF PAYMENT. The “Settlement Date” of your vested Deferred Stodks shall be the earliest to occur of
the following: (a) the third anniversary of the Baif Grant specified in the Grant Notice, or suatierl date as you may elect in accordance wit
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188Gmended (the “Code”); (b) your separation frarvige, to the extent such separation
constitutes a “separation from service” pursuargeotion 409A of the Code; (c) your death; (d) ybigability, to the extent such Disability
constitutes a “disability” pursuant to Section 408&he Code; or (e) a Change in Control, to thiereixsuch Change in Control constitutes a
“change in ownership or effective control of thepmration” with respect to the Company pursuaréation 409A of the Code.

2.2 FORM OF PAYMENT. Your vested Deferred Stock Units shall be paid hole shares of Stock (in cash as to
fractional shares) on, or as soon as practicaliimg, but in no event later than thirty (30) dagfter, the Settlement Date, except as
otherwise specified below. To assist you in saitigfffederal, state, local, or non-U.S. income takgations arising from your Deferred Stock
Unit Award, the Company will allow you to make aestime irrevocable election no later than (60) dafysr the Date of Grant specified in the
Grant Notice, authorizing the Company to pay cadieu of Stock with respect to a percentage ofDkérred Stock Units equal to the sum of
(i) the federal tax rate for supplemental wagesfiact under Section 1(i)(2) of the Code and (i California tax rate for supplemental wages
other than stock options and bonus payments ircteffeder Section 18663(b)(1) of the Revenue anafi@x Code (the sum of (i) and (ii)
being hereinafter referred to as the “Tax Percari)aghe amount of cash paid in lieu of such shares@flSshall be equal to (I) the numbel
Deferred Stock Units (rounded up to the nearestevbeferred Stock Unit) corresponding to the TasxcBetage, multiplied by (Il) if the Stock
is listed on a national or regional securities exagje or market system, the closing price of a sbfa&tock as quoted on such national or
regional securities exchange or market system itotisg the primary market for the Stock on thet kaading day prior to the Settlement Date,
or, if the Stock is not listed on a national orice@l securities exchange or market system, treepi a share of Stock as determined by the
Committee in good faith without regard to any riesitsn other than a restriction which, by its termdl never lapse (the price determined
under this clause (1) being hereinafter refer@dbt purposes of this Agreement as the “Fair Makkaue of the Stock”). Any election to
receive a portion of the Deferred Stock Unit Awpedd in cash as specified in this Section 2.2, stwlbe effective with respect to any
Settlement Date that occurs within six (6) montherahe later of the date of the election or theddof the Grant specified in the Grant Notice.




3. TAXADVICE. You acknowledge that you may be subject to fedstate, local, and non-U.S. income tax obligatiarising
from your Deferred Stock Unit Award. You represemdrrant and acknowledge that the Company has maderranties or representations to
you with respect to the income tax consequencésedfransactions contemplated by this Agreemertyan are in no manner relying on 1
Company or its representatives for an assessmesnicbftax consequences. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THE TBXWS AND
REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. YOU SHOULD CONSU YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE TAX
TREATMENT OF ANY DEFERRED STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STAID HEREIN IS INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND
CANNOT BE USED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYEPENALTIES.

4. DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS. If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Comipa8tock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estalditlyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payabthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of Deferred Stock Units sulfetitis Deferred Stock Unit Award on the divideedord date established by the Comp
Any such Dividend Equivalents will be in the forrhamlditional Deferred Stock Units, will be subjéctthe same terms and vesting dates as tt
underlying Deferred Stock Units, and will be paidhe same time and in the same manner as thelyimdeDeferred Stock Units originally
subject to this Deferred Stock Unit Award, excéyatttany fractional shares attributable to Divid&ugplivalents will be paid in cash within
thirty (30) days following the date of payment loé tunderlying Deferred Stock Unit based on the Mairket Value (as specified in Section :
above) on the date of payment of the underlyingeDetl Stock Unit. The number of additional Defergdck Units credited as Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date will beedwined by dividing (1) the product of (a) the rhenof your Deferred Stock Units as of
the corresponding dividend record date (including Beferred Stock Units previously credited assalteof prior payments of Dividend
Equivalents) and (b) the per-share cash divideidigrathe dividend payment date, by (2) the peraliair Market Value (as specified in
Section 2.2 above) of Stock on the dividend payrete.

5. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be
issued to you upon vesting and settlement of tieifeed Stock Unit Award unless the Stock is thegigtered under the Securities Act or, if
such Stock is not then so registered, the Compasydbtermined that such vesting and issuance vbeuéckempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. By acceptirggdieferred Stock Unit Award, you agree not to ari} of the shares of Stock received undet
this Deferred Stock Unit Award at a time when apgdhle laws or Company policies prohibit a sale.

6. TRANSFERABILITY. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in setttdrnf a Deferred Stock Unit Award, the Award shall
not be subject in any manner to anticipation, aliem, sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pledgeimbrance, or garnishment by your
creditors or by your beneficiary, except (i) trasrdby will or by the laws of descent and distribuatr (ii) transfer by written designation of a
beneficiary, in a form acceptable to the Comparith such designation taking effect upon your deathrights with respect to the Deferred
Stock Unit Award shall be exercisable during yafatime only by you or your guardian or legal reggstative. Prior to actual payment of any
Deferred Stock Units, such Deferred Stock Unitd meipresent an unsecured obligation of the Compayable (if at all) only from the gene
assets of the Company.

7. DEFERRED STOCK UNITS NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. This Deferred Stock Unit Award is not an employment
service contract and nothing in this Agreement,Ghant Notice or the Plan shall be deemed to ciesaay way whatsoever any obligation on
your part to continue in the service of a PartitigpCompany, or of a Participating Company to oarg your Service with the Participati
Company. In addition, nothing in your Deferred &tbamit Award shall obligate the Company, its stoaklers, Board, Officers or Employees
to continue any relationship which you might hageadirector or Consultant for the Company.

8. RESTRICTIVE LEGEND. Stock issued pursuant to the vesting and settleofahe Deferred Stock Units may be subject to
such restrictions upon the sale, pledge or otlaaster of the Stock as the Company and the Compaayinsel deem necessary under
applicable law or pursuant to this Agreement.

9. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS, AND ACKNOWL EDGMENTS. You hereby agree that in the ev
the Company and the Company’s counsel deem it sapesr advisable in the exercise of their disoretthe transfer or issuance of the share:
of Stock issued pursuant to the Deferred Stockd.miy be conditioned upon you making certain repradions, warranties, and
acknowledgments relating to compliance with apjbliesecurities laws.




10. VOTING AND OTHER RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatllhave any voting rights or any other
rights and privileges of a shareholder of the Camypnless and until shares of Stock are issued ppgment of the Deferred Stock Units.

11. CODE SECTION 409A.1t is the intent that the payment of Deferred Stockts as set forth in this Agreement shall qualdy
exemption from the requirements of Section 409#hefCode, and any ambiguities herein will be intetgd to so comply. The Company
reserves the right, to the extent the Company demmassary or advisable in its sole discretionitaterally amend or modify this Agreement
as may be necessary to ensure that all payment&glpdofor under this Agreement are made in a matirarqualifies for exemption from
Section 409A of the Code; provided, however, that€@ompany makes no representation that the pagrméeferred Stock Units provided
for under this Agreement will be exempt from Sec#®9A of the Code and makes no undertaking tolymlecSection 409A of the Code from
applying to the payments of Deferred Stock Unitsvjated for under this Agreement.

12. NOTICES. Any notices provided for in this Agreement, the @risotice or the Plan shall be given in writing asidhll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in theecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fd)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thathisess you provided to the Company.

13. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofStage of California as if the Agreement were
between California residents and as if it were reténto and to be performed entirely within that8tof California.

14. ARBITRATION. Any dispute or claim concerning any Deferred Stoclits granted (or not granted) pursuant to the Rizth
any other disputes or claims relating to or arigingof the Plan shall be fully, finally and exdledy resolved by binding arbitration conducted
by the American Arbitration Association pursuantiie commercial arbitration rules in San Diego,iiGalia. By accepting the Deferred Stock
Unit Award, you and the Company waive your respectights to have any such disputes or claims toied judge or jury.

15. AMENDMENT. Your Deferred Stock Unit Award may be amended asiged in the Plan at any time, provided no such
amendment may adversely affect the Deferred StatkAlvard without your consent unless such amendrnsemecessary to comply with any
applicable law or government regulation, or is eomplated in Section 11 hereof. No amendment ottiaddio this Agreement shall be effect
unless in writing or in such electronic form as ni@ydesignated by the Company.

16. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. Your Deferred Stock Unit Award is subject to thigrAement, the Grant Notice and all
the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which hereby made a part of this Agreement, anaribdr subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may from to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®lan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the Giwiice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

17. SEVERABILITY . If any provision of this Agreement is held tolgenforceable for any reason, it shall be adjusttiter that
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intefthe parties to the extent possible. In any gvahother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensitdes.

18. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY . The Plan documents, which may include but do noéess&arily include:
the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Agreement, andrapgrts of the Company provided generally to tben@any’s shareholders, may be
delivered to you electronically. In addition, ifrpgtted by the Company, you may deliver electrolyctne Grant Notice to the Company or to
such third party involved in administering the Pénthe Company may designate from time to timeh®woeans of electronic delivery may
include but do not necessarily include the delivera link to a Company intranet or the interné sif a third party involved in administering
the Plan, the delivery of the document via eledtromail (“e-mail”) or such other means of electodelivery specified by the Company.




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR DEFERRED STOCK UNIT GRANT NOT ICE
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS IN SPAIN

QUALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”), pursuant to its 2006 Long-Termdntive Plan (the “Plan"hereby grants to the Particip
named below the number of Deferred Stock Unitdagt below, each of which is a bookkeeping en&gresenting the equivalent in valut
one (1) share of the Company’s common stock. Thae-Blaployee Director Deferred Stock Unit Award is &dbjto all of the terms a
conditions as set forth herein and the Nemployee Director Deferred Stock Unit AgreementBorectors in Spain (attached hereto) anc
Plan*which are incorporated herein in their entiretypifalized terms not otherwise defined in this Grdntice or the NorEmployee Directc
Deferred Stock Unit Agreement shall have the maaaat forth in the Plan.

Participant: «First_Name» «Last_Name» Grant Noumber»
Emp #: «ID» Shares Subject to Deferred Stock w8hares Granted
Date of Grant: «DSU_Date»

Vesting
«Deferred retainer»

« This Deferred Stock Unit Award is fully vested dwetDate of Grant»

«Annual award»
« This Deferred Stock Unit Award vests on the eatliesoccur of the following events provided youm8ee is continuous from tl
Date of Grant through the applicable date: (1)dheyear anniversary of the Date of Grant, (2) the @étine next annual meeting
stockholders of the Company that occurs after thteDf Grant, (3) your death, (4) your Disability,(5) a Change in Contro#.

Settlemen

The Deferred Stock Units will be settled and paisl provided in the NoBmployee Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement @nas soon
practicable following, but in no event later thdmrty (30) days aftef specify date of 3 years from grant or later dateesfiied in valic
election]. However, as provided in Section 2.1 of the Defé Stock Unit Agreement, these Deferred StockdJmiay be settled earlier uf
the termination of your Board service and certdirepevents.

Additional Terms/Acknowledgments: The Participant acknowledges (in the form deterchibg the Company) receipt of, and represent
the Participant has read, understands, acceptagne@s to the terms and conditions of the followihis Grant Notice, the NoBmployet
Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement and the Rlaoluding, but not limited to, the binding arlgition provision in Section 3.7 of the Ple
Participant hereby accepts the Deferred Stock Awird subject to all of its terms and conditionsl durther acknowledges that as of the [
of Grant, this Grant Notice, the Nd&&mployee Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement drelPlan set forth the entire understanding bat
Participant and the Company regarding the acqaoisitif stock in the Company and supersedes all prgrand written agreements pertair
to this particular Deferred Stock Unit Award.

QUALCOMM Incorporated: Non-EmployeeDirector:

By:

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs Signature
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: «DSU_Date»

Date

Attachment:  Non-Employee Director Deferred Stbkt Agreement in Spain

! A copy of the Plan can be obtained from the Stodknistration website, located on the Company’snimal webpage, or you may request a
hard copy from the Stock Administration Department.




QUALCOMM INCORPORATED
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR DEFERRED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT
FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS IN SPAIN

Pursuant to the Grant Notice and this Non-Empldyeector Deferred Stock Unit Agreement for Direstam Spain (the
“Agreement”), Qualcomm Incorporated (the “Compariyds granted you a Deferred Stock Unit Award wétspect to the number of shares of
the Company’s common stock (“Stock”) indicatedhe Grant Notice. Capitalized terms not explicitefided in this Agreement but defined in
the Qualcomm Incorporated 2006 Long-Term Incerfilam (the “Plan”) shall have the same definitioasrathe Plan.

The details of this Deferred Stock Unit Award asgf@lows:
1. SERVICE AND VESTING.

1.3 SERVICE. As provided in the Plan and notwithstanding anyeoftrovision of this Agreement, the Company reserve
the right, in its sole discretion, to determine wlyeur Service has terminated.

1.4 VESTING. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or thise&gent, this Deferred Stock Unit Award will vest o
the vesting dates provided in the Grant Notice {(Yfesting Dates”). Except as otherwise expresstyfarth in the Grant Notice, in the event of
the termination of your Service for any reason, thhbevoluntary or involuntary, all unvested Defer®tock Units shall be immediately
forfeited without consideration. Unless and urité Deferred Stock Units vest on the applicable iMgdDates, you will have no right to
payment of any such Deferred Stock Units.

2. SETTLEMENT OF THE DEFERRED STOCK UNITS.

2.3 TIMING OF PAYMENT. The “Settlement Date” of your vested Deferred Stodks shall be the earliest to occur of
the following: (a) the third anniversary of the Baif Grant specified in the Grant Notice, or suatierl date as you may elect in accordance wit
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188Gmended (the “Code”); (b) your separation frarvige, to the extent such separation
constitutes a “separation from service” pursuargeotion 409A of the Code; (c) your death; (d) ybigability, to the extent such Disability
constitutes a “disability” pursuant to Section 408&he Code; or (e) a Change in Control, to thiereixsuch Change in Control constitutes a
“change in ownership or effective control of thepmration” with respect to the Company pursuaréction 409A of the Code.

2.4 FORM OF PAYMENT. Your vested Deferred Stock Units shall be paid hole shares of Stock (in cash as to
fractional shares) on, or as soon as practicaliaimg, but in no event later than thirty (30) dagfter, the Settlement Date, except as
otherwise specified below. To assist you in saitigfyffederal, state, local, or non-U.S. income tagaxial insurance obligations arising from
your Deferred Stock UnAward, the Company will allow you to make a onediirevocable election no later than (60) daysrdfte Date of
Grant specified in the Grant Notice, authorizing @ompany to pay cash in lieu of Stock with respeet percentage of the Deferred Stock
Units equal to the sum of any applicable U.S. amid.S. income tax or social insurance withholdiatgs (such sum referred to herein as the
“Tax Percentage”). The amount of cash paid in ¢itsuch shares of Stock shall be equal to (i) tmalrer of Deferred Stock Units (rounded up
to the nearest whole Deferred Stock Unit) corredpanto the Tax Percentage, multiplied by (ii))li&tStock is listed on a national or regional
securities exchange or market system, the clogiicg pf a share of Stock as quoted on such natmmnigional securities exchange or market
system constituting the primary market for the 8tor the last trading day prior to the Settlemeateor, if the Stock is not listed on a
national or regional securities exchange or magistem, the price of a share of Stock as deterniyetde Committee in good faith without
regard to any restriction other than a restrictidnich, by its terms, will never lapse (the pricéedmined under this clause (ii) being hereinafte
referred to for purposes of this Agreement as Bar‘Market Value of the Stock”). Any election ®ceive a portion of the Deferred Stock Unit
Award paid in cash as specified in this Section &1all not be effective with respect to any Setdat Date that occurs within six (6) months
after the later of the date of the election orBrae of the Grant specified in the Grant Notice.

3. TAX WITHHOLDING. As a non-employee Director of the Company, you khaeport any income you derive from the
Deferred Stock Unit Award and pay all applicableame taxes and social insurance contributions on




such income. Notwithstanding the foregoing, inéfient that a Participating Company has any incaxesocial insurance contribution,
payroll tax or other tax-related withholding (“T&elated Items”"pbligation with respect to the income you derivatirthe Deferred Stock Ul
Award, you authorize the Participating Companytsatliscretion, to withhold all applicable Tax-Rield Items legally payable by you by
withholding in shares of Stock, with such withhalgiobligation determined based on any applicablérmim statutory withholding rates. In
the event that the Company cannot legally satlsfyTtax-Related Items obligations by such withhaldm Shares, the Company shall be
entitled to withhold all applicable Tax-Relatednite legally payable by you by one or a combinatibtine following methods: (i) withholding
from cash compensation payable to you by the Cognpafii) arranging for the sale of shares of Stackuired upon payment of the Deferred
Stock Unit Award (on your behalf and at your direatpursuant to this authorization). Finally, yaree to pay on demand to the Participating
Company any amount of Tax-Related Items that thiddfmating Company may be required to withholdaagsult of your participation in the
Plan or the payment of shares of Stock that cabashtisfied by the means previously described.

4. TAX ADVICE. You acknowledge that you may be subject to fedstate, local, and non-U.S. income tax and soc&lriance
obligations arising from your Deferred Stock Univard. You represent, warrant and acknowledge tte€Company has made no warrantie
representations to you with respect to the incamedt social insurance consequences of the traoractontemplated by this Agreement, and
you are in no manner relying on the Company orefgesentatives for an assessment of such taxqoesees. YOU UNDERSTAND THA
THE TAX LAWS AND REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGEYOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISOR
REGARDING THE TAX AND SOCIAL INSURANCE TREATMENT ORANY DEFERRED STOCK UNITS. NOTHING STATED HEREI
IS INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE UED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING TAXPAYER PENALTIES.

5. DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS. If the Board declares a cash dividend on the Coipatock, you will be entitled to Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date estaldislyethe Company equal to the cash dividends payabthe same number of shares of
Stock as the number of Deferred Stock Units sulfetitis Deferred Stock Unit Award on the divideedord date established by the Comp
Any such Dividend Equivalents will be in the forrhamlditional Deferred Stock Units, will be subjéctthe same terms and vesting dates as tt
underlying Deferred Stock Units, and will be paidhe same time and in the same manner as thelyimdeDeferred Stock Units originally
subject to this Deferred Stock Unit Award, excéatttany fractional shares attributable to Divid&uplivalents will be paid in cash within
thirty (30) days following the date of payment loétunderlying Deferred Stock Unit based on the Mairket Value (as specified in Section :
above) on the date of payment of the underlyingeDetl Stock Unit. The number of additional Deferg@dck Units credited as Dividend
Equivalents on the dividend payment date will beedwined by dividing (1) the product of (a) the rhenof your Deferred Stock Units as of
the corresponding dividend record date (including Beferred Stock Units previously credited assalteof prior payments of Dividend
Equivalents) and (b) the per-share cash divideidigrathe dividend payment date, by (2) the peraliair Market Value (as specified in
Section 2.2, above) of Stock on the dividend payrdate.

6. SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, no shares of Stock will be
issued to you upon vesting and settlement of tieifeed Stock Unit Award unless the Stock is thegigtered under the Securities Act or, if
such Stock is not then so registered, the Compasylbtermined that such vesting and issuance vbeuéckempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. By acceptirgg@ieferred Stock Unit Award, you agree not to ari} of the shares of Stock received undet
this Deferred Stock Unit Award at a time when apgdhle laws or Company policies prohibit a sale.

7. TRANSFERABILITY. Prior to the issuance of shares of Stock in setttérnf a Deferred Stock Unit Award, the Award shall
not be subject in any manner to anticipation, aliem, sale, exchange, transfer, assignment, pledgeimbrance, or garnishment by your
creditors or by your beneficiary, except (i) trasdby will or by the laws of descent and distribuator (ii) transfer by written designation of a
beneficiary, in a form acceptable to the Comparith such designation taking effect upon your deathrights with respect to the Deferred
Stock Unit Award shall be exercisable during yafatime only by you or your guardian or legal reggstative. Prior to actual payment of any
Deferred Stock Units, such Deferred Stock Unitd meipresent an unsecured obligation of the Compayable (if at all) only from the gene
assets of the Company.

8. DEFERRED STOCK UNITS NOT A SERVICE CONTRACT. This Deferred Stock Unit Award is not an employment
service contract and nothing in this Agreement,Ghant Notice or the Plan shall be deemed to




create in any way whatsoever any obligation on ymut to continue in the service of a Participat@mmpany, or of a Participating Company
to continue your Service with the Participating Quamy. In addition, nothing in your Deferred Stockit Award shall obligate the Company,
its stockholders, Board, Officers or Employeesdntimue any relationship which you might have &iractor or Consultant for the Company.

9. RESTRICTIVE LEGEND. Stock issued pursuant to the vesting and settleofahe Deferred Stock Units may be subject to
such restrictions upon the sale, pledge or otlaster of the Stock as the Company and the Compaayinsel deem necessary under
applicable law or pursuant to this Agreement.

10. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS, AND ACKNOWL EDGMENTS. You hereby agree that in the
event the Company and the Company'’s counsel depec@ssary or advisable in the exercise of theardtion, the transfer or issuance of the
shares of Stock issued pursuant to the Deferretk&1aits may be conditioned upon you making certapresentations, warranties, and
acknowledgments relating to compliance with apblieasecurities laws.

11. VOTING AND OTHER RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, you shatllhave any voting rights or any other
rights and privileges of a shareholder of the Camypanless and until shares of Stock are issued ppgment of the Deferred Stock Units.

12. CODE SECTION 409A.1t is the intent that the payment of Deferred Stockts as set forth in this Agreement shall qualdy
exemption from the requirements of Section 409hefCode, and any ambiguities herein will be intetgd to so comply. The Company
reserves the right, to the extent the Company demmassary or advisable in its sole discretionitaterally amend or modify this Agreement
as may be necessary to ensure that all payment&lpdofor under this Agreement are made in a matirarqualifies for exemption from
Section 409A of the Code; provided, however, that€@ompany makes no representation that the pagrméeferred Stock Units provided
for under this Agreement will be exempt from Sec#®9A of the Code and makes no undertaking tolymlecSection 409A of the Code from
applying to the payments of Deferred Stock Unitsvjated for under this Agreement.

13. NOTICES. Any notices provided for in this Agreement, the @risotice or the Plan shall be given in writing asidhll be
deemed effectively given upon receipt or, in theecaf notices delivered by the Company to you, fd)edays after deposit in the United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to you at thathisess you provided to the Company.

14. DATA PRIVACY . You hereby explicitly and unambiguously consenttke collection, use and transfer, in electronic or
other form, of your personal data as described lrist Agreement by and among, as necessary and apple;, the Participating Companies,
for the exclusive purpose of implementing, admimghg and managing your participation in the Plat

You understand that the Company may hold certairgmal information about you, including, but notinited to, your name, hom
address and telephone number, date of birth, soseturity or insurance number or other identificath number, salary, nationality, and ar
shares of stock or directorships held in the Compaand details of the Deferred Stock Units or aner entitlement to shares of Stoc
canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstaniryour favor, for the purpose of implementingdeinistering and managing the Plan
(“Data”).

Participants residing outside the U.S, should und&nd the following: Data will be transferred to HRADE Financial
(“E*TRADE"), or such other stock plan service progler as may be selected by Company in the futureictviis assisting Company with the
implementation, administration and management oktfPlan. You understand that the recipients of that@ may be located in the United
States or elsewhere, and that the recipi¢ country (e.g., the United States) may have different data priydaws and protections than your
country. You understand that you may request a listh the names and addresses of any potential pemits of the Data by contacting the
Stock Administration department. You authorize t®mpany, E¥XTRADE and any other possible recipients that may asdigt Company
(presently or in the future) with implementing, admistering and managing the Plan to receive, posseasse, retain and transfer the Data,
electronic or other form, for the sole purpose afiplementing, administering and managing your paiifiation in the Plan. You understand
that Data will be held only as long as is necesstrymplement, administer and manage your particifwa in the Plan. You understand that
you may, at any time, view Data, request additiomdbrmation about the storage and processing of Aarequire any necessai
amendments to Data or refuse or




withdraw the consents herein, in any case withoost, by contacting in writing the Stock Administiah department. You understand,
however, that refusing or withdrawing your consemiay affect your ability to participate in the Plan.

For more information on the consequences of yourfusal to consent or withdrawal of consent, you und&and that you may
contact the Stock Administration department at QUADMM Incorporated, 5775 Morehouse Drive, San DieddA 92121.

15. NATURE OF GRANT. In accepting the Deferred Stock Unit Award, youramkledge and agree that:

(a) the Plan is established voluntarily by tl@@any, it is discretionary in nature and it mayromdified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless wikerprovided in the Plan, the Agreement or thenGNbtice;

(b) the award of Deferred Stock Units is voluptand occasional and does not create any conalaatwther right to
receive future awards of Deferred Stock Units, eméfits in lieu of Deferred Stock Units, even iffBreed Stock Units or other Awards have
been awarded repeatedly in the past;

(c) all decisions with respect to future Awaridigny, will be at the sole discretion of the Camny;
(d) your participation in the Plan is voluntary;
(e) the future value of the underlying shareStofck is unknown and cannot be predicted withadwey;

()] no claim or entitlement to compensation or damatped arise from forfeiture of the Deferred Stochitd resulting
from termination of your Service (for any reasoratdoever), and in consideration of the grant ofdbéerred Stock Units to which you are
otherwise not entitled, you irrevocably agree newénstitute any claim against the Company, waiwer ability, if any, to bring any such
claim, and release the Company from any such cl&imotwithstanding the foregoing, any such clainallowed by a court of competent
jurisdiction, then, by participating in the Plamuyshall be deemed irrevocably to have agreedonptitsue such claim and agree to execute
and all documents necessary to request dismissdttmirawal of such claims;

(g) the Company is not providing any legal oiaficial advice, nor is the Company making any renendations regarding
your participation in the Plan or your acquisitimmsale of the underlying shares of Stock;

(h) you are hereby advised to consult with youn personal legal and financial advisors regargimgr participation in the
Plan before taking any action related to the Plan.

16. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws ofStage of California as if the Agreement were
between California residents and as if it were reaténto and to be performed entirely within that8tof California.

17. IMPOSITION OF OTHER REQUIREMENTS. The Company reserves the right to impose otherirements on your
participation in the Plan, on the Deferred Stockt&/rand on any shares of Stock acquired undePldue, to the extent the Company determ
it is necessary or advisable in order to comphjhatal law or facilitate the administration of tR&an, and to require you to sign any additiona
agreements or undertakings that may be necessapctonplish the foregoing.

18. ARBITRATION. Any dispute or claim concerning any Deferred Stoclits granted (or not granted) pursuant to the Rizth
any other disputes or claims relating to or arising of the Plan shall be fully, finally and exdledy resolved by binding arbitration conducted
by the American Arbitration Association pursuanthe commercial arbitration rules in San Diego,ifGatia. By accepting the Deferred Stock
Unit Award, you and the Company waive your respectights to have any such disputes or claims tried judge or jury.

19. AMENDMENT. Your Deferred Stock Unit Award may be amended asigded in the Plan at any time, provided no such
amendment may adversely affect the Deferred StatkAward without your consent unless such




amendment is necessary to comply with any applkckt or government regulation, or is contemplate8ection 12 hereof. No amendmer
addition to this Agreement shall be effective usl@swriting or in such electronic form as may lesignated by the Company.

20. GOVERNING PLAN DOCUMENT. Your Deferred Stock Unit Award is subject to thigrAement, the Grant Notice and all
the provisions of the Plan, the provisions of which hereby made a part of this Agreement, anaribdr subject to all interpretations,
amendments, rules and regulations which may from to time be promulgated and adopted pursuahget®lan. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions of this Agreement, the Giwiice and those of the Plan, the provisions efRkan shall control.

21. SEVERABILITY . If any provision of this Agreement is held tol@enforceable for any reason, it shall be adjusdtiter that
voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intefthe parties to the extent possible. In any gva@hother provisions of this Agreement shall
deemed valid and enforceable to the full extensitdes.

22. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY . The Plan documents, which may include but do noéessarily include:
the Plan, the Grant Notice, this Agreement, andrapgrts of the Company provided generally to tben@any’s shareholders, may be
delivered to you electronically. In addition, ifrpgtted by the Company, you may deliver electrolyctne Grant Notice to the Company or to
such third party involved in administering the Pénthe Company may designate from time to timeh®woeans of electronic delivery may
include but do not necessarily include the delivefra link to a Company intranet or the interné sif a third party involved in administering
the Plan, the delivery of the document via eledtromail (“e-mail”) or such other means of electodilivery specified by the Company.



EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

QUALCOMM Atheros, Inc. (QCA), a Delaware Corption, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CompaQ€A and its subsidiaries,
Atheros Communications KK, incorporated in Japatiefos International LLC, incorporated in Delawarnel QUALCOMM Atheros Canada
Corporation, incorporated in Canada, do businedsutieir own names. The Company consolidates QQ#s financial statements.

QUALCOMM Global Trading Pte. Ltd. (QGT), a Singaparorporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of @@mpany. QGT and its
subsidiaries, Atheros Communications India Privateited, incorporated in India, Atheros India, LL@corporated in Delaware; DesignArt
Networks Ltd, incorporated in Israel; Global WirgdeApplication Services Private Limited, incorpedhin India; Opulan Technologies Cot
incorporated in the Cayman Islands; Opulan TechgieoCorp. HK Limited, incorporated in Hong Kongl @echnologies Ireland Limited,
incorporated in Ireland; QUALCOMM Asia Pacific Ptdd., incorporated in Singapore; QUALCOMM Atheréismland Oy, incorporated in
Finland; QUALCOMM Atheros Hong Kong Limited, incaymted in Hong Kong; QUALCOMM Atheros Internatioradl., incorporated in
Bermuda; QUALCOMM Atheros International (Shanghag., Ltd., incorporated in China; QUALCOMM Atherfidacao Commercial
Offshore) Limited, incorporated in Macao; QUALCOMMheros Networks Ltd., incorporated in Bermuda; QUMM Atheros Taiwan
Corporation, incorporated in Taiwan; QUALCOMM AtlsrTechnology Ltd., incorporated in Bermuda; QUALZKd Canada Inc.,
incorporated in Canada; QUALCOMM CDMA Technologhksia-Pacific Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Singapd@&ALCOMM CDMA
Technologies GmbH, incorporated in Germany; QUALC®@KDMA Technologies (Korea) Y.H., incorporated inuh Korea; QUALCOMN
CDMA Technologies, Y.K., incorporated in Japan; QUOMM Communication Technologies Ltd., incorporated aiwan; QUALCOMM
Communications Gmbh, incorporated in Germany; QUAIMM Communications UK Limited, incorporated in tbaited Kingdom;
QUALCOMM Finland Oy, incorporated in Finland; QUAIGIMM France SARL, incorporated in France; QUALCOMNb@al Trading, Inc.,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands; QUALCOWIGT Holdings, Inc., incorporated in the Britishryin Islands; QUALCOMM India
Private Limited, incorporated in India; QUALCOMMr&el Ltd, incorporated in Israel; QUALCOMM MaurisitHoldings Limited,
incorporated in Mauritius; QUALCOMM New Zealand Libed, incorporated in New Zealand; QUALCOMM PanediMifacturing Ltd.,
incorporated in Taiwan; QUALCOMM Saudi Arabia LLDcorporated in Saudi Arabia; QUALCOMM (Shanghad..td., incorporated in
China; QUALCOMM Technologies Netherlands B.V., inporated in the Netherlands; QUALCOMM (UK) Limiteidcorporated in the Unite
Kingdom; QUALCOMM Wireless Semi Conductor Techna&syLimited, incorporated in China; Spike Techniésd_LC, registered under t
laws of the State of California and Wireless Busi8ervices Private Limited, incorporated in Indiapusiness under their own names. The
Company consolidates QGT in its financial statement

Qualcomm Technologies, Inc. (QTI), a Delaware Coapon, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

The names of other subsidiaries are omitted. Sulskidiaries would not, if considered in the aggte@e a single subsidiary, constitute a
significant subsidiary within the meaning of Ite®l1fb)(21)(ii) of Regulation S-K.



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-BB3904, No. 333-120948, No.
333-131448, No. 333-131157, No. 333-137692, No-B3R693, No. 333-150423, No. 333-148177, No. 333884, No. 333-148556, No.
333-166246, No. 333-173184, No. 333-174649 and388:188104) of QUALCOMM Incorporated of our repddted November 6, 2013
relating to the consolidated financial statemethis financial statement schedule and the effecéisemf internal control over financial
reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California
November 6, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Paul E. Jacobs, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkQUALCOMM Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or eméttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nlatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdatanmnmittee of registrant's Board of Directors parsons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registraability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 6, 2013

/s/ Paul E. Jacobs
Paul E. Jacobs,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, George S. Davis, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16flkQUALCOMM Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer analve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdataumnmittee of registrant's Board of Directors parsons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registraability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 6, 2013
/s] George S. Davis

George S. Davis,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repd®UYALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended
September 29, 2013 (the “Report”), I, Paul E. Jacahief Executive Officer of the Company, certifyirsuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopte«
pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@&;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 6, 2013

/s/ Paul E. Jacobs
Paul E. Jacobs,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repd®UYALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company”) on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended
September 29, 2013 (the “Report”), |, George S.iRavhief Financial Officer of the Company, certipursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as
adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 6, 2013

/s/ George S. Davis
George S. Davis,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




